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We are

lacemakers

N O
We create :J;,tstlandlnzr{blaces which make a posd@.ei ]
difference to pe’eple’é-{?ueryday lves. Our pojtfolig v'h @b
quality commertial pioperty is focused on retail [foatipds
around the UK and Londen offizes.

Cur objective 1s to deliver long term ard sustainable total
returns to all our stakenolders. We do this by focusing on
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In this years
Annual Report

Our portfolio

Read more about our £14 6 billion
properiy portfolie and how it has
performed this year

To read more go to
pages 3b6ta b7

Major trends impacting
our markets

Read about the long term trends
i our markets and how we

are responding

To read more go to
pages 12ta 17

The mportance

of people

Read about the importance

we place on our people and

how that fits into our strategy

@ To read more go to
pages 221023
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¥ Our strategy
.4 Understand our approach
and how it drives value for
our shareholders

@ Toread more go to
pages 1810 25

Our business model
Learn about what we do and
why that sets us apart

To read more go to
pages 10t 11

For more information

or relevant information

www britishland com

Feedbach

Our corporate website
www britishtand com/contacls

, Fottow us on Twilter
@BritishLandPLC

EE You witl find kinks throughout thus
Report to guide you o furtherreading  information i this Report in bine with

For mare information visit ourwebsite

We value your feedback Please contact us at

We are placemakers
Understand how our properties
enhance the lwes of those who
work shop and bive in them

To read mare go to
pages 26 1035

Integrated reporting
We iniegrate social and environmental

the Internatronal Integrated Reporting
framework This reflects how
sustainability 1s integrated nto our
placemaking strategy governance
and business operations Qurindustry-
leading sustainabibity strategy s a
powe Tul toot Lo deliver lasting value
for alt our siakeholders

For more imformation visit
www britishland com/sustamability




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Portfolio valuatan [proportionally consolidated)
N

£14.6bn

EPRA NAV per share’

Dwvidend per share

28.36p

Undertying Praf:t!

£363m

Underlying EPS’

34. lp

Carben intensity [index score}

sinee
-409%

2009
~ Strong full year results

Total property returr’
11.3%

IFRS net assets
£9.619m
Total accounting return’
14.29%

IFRS profit belare tax
Sl,331m
IFRSEFPS
131.2»

Customer satisfaction

749/10

- Valuation performance driven by improving ERV growth and lettings

- Placemaking skills delivering teasing success, portiolio nearly fully let

- Allocating capital into our Lendon campuses and multi-let Retait asseis

- Modest committed development, but a significant pipeline with optionality

- Robust financtal position with continued access to low cost finance

Presemation of financial snformation

The Group financral statements are prepared under IFRS where the Group s snterests injoint ventures
and funds are shown as a single bne stem on the Income staterment and balance sheet and all subsidiaries
are cansoiidated at 100%

Management considers the business principally on a propertionaliy consolidated basis when setung

the strategy determining annual priosties making vestmeant and financing decisions and reviewing
performance This inctudes the Group s share of joint verntures and funds on a line-by-line basis and
excludes non-controlling mnterests in the Group s subsidiaries The financial key performance indicators
are also presented on this basis Refar ta the Financial review for a discusson of the IFRS results

Seeglossary for defimtions
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European Publie Real

Estate Association (EPRA)

Performance measures’

As at 31 March [Em] 20016 215 2004

EPRA earnings 345 313 295

EPRA NAY 16,074 9035 7027

EPRA NNNAV 9640 8359 6700

As at 31 March {9 2016 2015 2014

EPRA net witiat yreld 41 43 48

EPRA Topped-up

net inial yield 45 48 53

EPRAvacancy rate 20 29 52

EPRA Cost Ratio

{including direct

vacancy cosic) 166 164 1412

{exciuding direct

vacancy costs) 149 146 139
1
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Strategic Report

GROUP AT A GLANCE

We create outstanding

places which

make a positive difference to people’s
everyday lives: Places People Prefer

Total Portfolio

We create and operate attractive places for
peopte tawork shop and live in Our propes ties
are well connected and well designed and we
use our placemaking skiéls to enhance and
enkiven them providing envirenments which
meet the growing expectations of our occupser s
and customers

£20.0bn:

Assels under management

£14.6bn

Britsh Land owned

29m sq ft

Of fteor space

sO74dny

Contracted rent

98.89

Qceupancy rate

9.0vrs

Weighted average
lease length

Highlights

- Total accounting return of 14 2% for the year

- Strong ERV growth of 5 3% 30 bps ahead
of the market benchmark

- Completed £1 3 billbon of gross (nvestment
activity with acquisition and development/
capital spend broadly balancing disposals

- Propor tionately consolidated weighted
average interest rate reduced by 50 bps
to 3 3%

- Roger Madelin appointed 1o head up
Canada Water development

—Winner of the 2016 Queen s Award for
Entet prise for Susiainable Devetepment

To 1ead more information about our
performance go to pages 34 to 47

Retail & Leisure

Our Retal and Lersure portfoliois focused on
regional and locat multi-let assets We provide
high quality retail alongside a growing leisure
offer and best in class services to delver
outstanding places which are in tune with
modern consumer lfestyles places where
peopte goto shop eal and be enter tained

£9.8bn’

Assets under management

$4.3bn’

British Land owned

20m sq ft'

Ot floor space

47

multi-let assets

152

other retail and
leisure assets

Highlights
- Portfolia vatuation up 2 4% to £7 3 bithon

- Qver 03 000 sq ft of Retarl lettings and
renewals 8% ahead of ERV

- Acceterating ERV trend broagdly batanced
autoss regienal and local sub sectors
leading to 1PD outperfermance of 100 bps
demonstratsng the guabty of our portfehio

- £420 miltion of disposals further teducing
exposure (o malure or non-core assets
multi-fel now represents over 70%
of retail porticlio

. To read mere iInformation about our Retail
and Leisure go to pages 40 1o 43

' Includes 100% cf the assets owned by the Group s joint ventures and funds
? Includes the Group share of jount ventures and funds and excludes non-controiling

interests in the Group s subhsidiares
¥ Includes Canada Water preperty of £0 3 bilhon

2 British Land | Annual Reporl and Accounts 2014

Offices & Residential

Our Offices and Residential portfolio s focused
on Lendon We provide a range of working

and {iving space across our campuses and
distinctive standalone properties which
combine a broad mix of retait and lersure

lo create attractive well-located and well
managed environments

99w 3

Assets under management Mixed use campuses

£4.0bn’ 57

British Land owned Stand-alone cffices

Om sq ft 7

Cf floor space Oifice and residential
developments

Highlights
- Portfolio valuation uplift of 11 8% to £7 0 bilion

~795 000 sq f1 of Oifice lettngs and renewals
5 6% ahead of ERV

- Leadenhall Butding $8% let or under offer
withy Just one floor left to let

- Netinvestment of £280 mittion into our
London campuses includimg acquisition
of 1 Sheldon Square at Paddinglen

- 73% 600 sq It of developments completed
in the period with 3 Broadgate accounting
for 710 000 5g ft

- Plannming consent receved for a 823 000 sq ft
redevelopment at our Broadgate campus
{100 t.iverpaol Street and 1 Finsbury Avenuel

To read more information about our Offices
and Residentizl ga 10 pages 44 10 47




Our portfolio is focused on
retail locations around the
UK and London offices

Qur properties are home to over 1 200 different
orgamsations ranging from international
brands to local start ups More than 64 G0
people work across our Office portfolio and our
Relail sties recewe 330 million visits per year

Mcadowhall

1L.5m sq ft

Retail and leisure space

98

Occupancy

Yorkshire s prermier shopping
dastination and horne to nearly 300
shops and restaurants The centre first
opened in 199G and 15 undergamng a
substantial refurbishment on s 25th
annwversary It has atiracted 560 mitlion
visitors in Us 25 years APwC repor{
published this year revealed thai i
supports 1 job i every 104w the
regian and 1p inevery £1 generated

by the regional eccnomy

www meadowhall.couk [}

To read the PwC report go to
www britishland com/Meadowhatl25

London
\
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Map key

@ Oilices & Residential

@ Reitall & Lessure

The Leadenhall Building

603,000 sq it

Difice and Retail space

98

letfunder offer

Promunenily tocated inthe Cily of London
The Leadenball Building s distinctive shape
was developed as a response Lo plannng
requirements which proiect the viewing
corridors of 5t Paul s Cathedral Officratty
opened by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince
Harry:n 2015 it has attracled some high
profile occupiers including joint owners
OMERS and the buillding s architects
Rogers Stirk Harbour + Partners

www theleadenhalibuilding com

5.5m sq ft

Adesignated London Opportunity Area
this 46-acre site was assembled in four
transactions over five years We are
working with the London Borough of
Southwark Lo create an exciling new
ptace for Londoen which connects with
the local cormmunity and s integrated
with the surrounding area Thisisa
majar long term project which will

be delivered in @ number of phases
and s one of the largest mixed use
regeneratian projects in London

www canadawatermasterplan com

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 3




Strategic Report

CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT

We have had another busy
and successful year

Key highlights of the year

Total accounting return?

14.2%

Reftecting the increase \n our nel assét value
per share and income yeld fram the dividend

EPRA net asset value per share’

919,

Up109%

Dividend per share

28.36p

Up 2 5%

! Please see the glossary for defimition

Welcome to our 2016 Annual Report We have
had a strong year reflecting the work we have
done repesttioning eur por tfolio to mirror the
changing way people live thei fives

Buitdings are most successful when they

1 eflect the needs of those wha occupy and

use them Getling closer 1o our customers
contimues 1o be a key theme for us and an
understand:ng of how modern Ufestyles
increasingly met ge work and letsure time
informs not only how we manage and develop
our assets but also the allocation of owr capital

Our delivery of Places People Prefer s
evidenced once agam by our near fully let
portfolio and the growth we have generated
across our husiness

Unde1 tymng Profit far the year was £363 mullion
up 16% The valuation of our pertfolio also
increased by 6 7% to £14 6 bilion and NAVwas
up 12 9% to 919 pence per share The Board has
recommended a fourth quarter dividend of 709
pence per share making a total of 28 36 pence
for the year We have proposed a fust quarter
dividend of 7 30 pence per share for 2017 an
mcrease of 3 0% The total accounting return
was 14 7%

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Across the global markets equities have had
adiificult year the FTSE 100 was down 11 6%
aver the last 12 months lyear to 16 May 2016}
reflecting heightened concerns about
macro-economic and potiical nsks Cleserto
home our shares along with the REIT sector
have underperformed the FTSE principally
reflecting concerns about the iImpact an exit
from Europe would have on the property sector
particularly in London White we are mindfut
of this uncei tainty we are confident that our
busiess is both resitient and well placed for
the long term

Atighlight for me tius year was the official
opering of The Leadenhall Building

last October 1 was detighted to wetcome

the Duke of Cambridge and Prince Harry as
guests of honour as the bulding afficsally
opened for business The Cheesegrater as

1115 affectionately known 1s a greal example

of what Britsh Land does best - financing
devetoping and managing exceptional busldings

Frem s innovative construction techmique and
distinctive design to its tmmediate t ecogmuon
an the London skyline The Leadenhall Bullding
has been an outstanding success story Voted
The City of London Building of the Year in 2015
Ithas attracted the highest sents ever achieved
in the City of London it s ne surprise that it s
now 98% letfunder offer

Duting the year we we: e once agam also
recogrnised as suslanability leaders in globat
indices and awards Since {aunching our 2020
sustainability strategy in 2015 we have made
strong p: ogress embedding sustamnability
across our husiness We are achieving results
by setling high standards delivering traming
providing support and sharing best practice
working closely with cur development partners
and property rmanagement subsidiary
Broadgate Estates Ltd 1 am pleased that we
support RE100 - commutted to purchasmg
electricily from renewable power We also invest
nrenewable energy sources at our assets with
photovoltaic paneis instalted at St Stephen s in
Hutt during the year By promoting weitbemy
supporiing cammunities operating efficient




buildings developing people s skills and growing
economies we are creating places that attract
occupiers workers shoppers and residents and
so gain value over iime - Places People Prefer

Cur hugh quality portfolio the epianality within
our development programme and our stiong
finances postions us well for the future

GEdAreA -

John Gildersleeve
Nan-Executive Charrman

@ Full year results 2016
www britishland com/resutts

For more inforration on sustainability
www britishland com/sustainability

@ Chief Executive s review go to pages
6108

Chairman s governance review o (o
pages 70to 71

66

Our delivery of Places People Prefer is evidenced once
again by ouwr near fully let portfolio and the growth we
have generated across our business.”

w 2016 Queen’s Award for Enterprise

It Apr il this year British L_and was one of only seven companies
to receive the 2016 Gueen s Award for Enterprise Sustanabie
Development as part of Her Majesty The Queen s 90th
birthday honours
THE QUECN'S AWARDS
i The Awatd 15 the UK s lnghest accolade for business success

and is given to campares which bring major economic

social and environmental benelits through therr own business
success It has been awarded to Biish Land for contiuous
achievernent in all these areas over the last five years

According to Business Secretary Sajid Javid winners are
leading the way in a broad range of industries and show
they are involved in activity that ensures a better quabty of

lite for everyone now and in the future

We wer e obviously thritied 1o recewve the award Understanding

what really matters to our customers s hetping us drive continugd :
unprovements throvghout our business As people s athtudes

and expectations change good businesses respond Our purpose

of creating Places People Prefer and the huge amount of work

we have done on placemaking 1s making a material positive

difference to the customer experience at ow assets

This award recognises the contribution of everyone at Briish
Land We atso appreciate that the help and commitment of our
customers pariners suppliers and many other stakeholders
has played a part n this achrevement Integrating secial and
environimental activiies inte every area of a business is not
something you can do on the side orinisolatton We would bike
to exlend aur thanks to everyone who has worked with us over
theyears and like us believes that adepting a responsible
approach to bustness 1s a pawerful tool which helps drive
customer pieference and deliver lasting value

John Gildersleevc Chnis Grigg
MNon-Executve Chairman Chief Executive

@ For rnore infor matton on The Queen s Awards for Enterpnise
http.//queensawardsmagazine com/

For more o mation on our awards
www britishland com/awards

British Land | Annual Repert and Accounts 2016 S5




Strategic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

Our strong results are underpinned

by good performances across

the business

Key lhughhghts of the vear
Total accounting returns!

14.29%

Reflecting the increase i our net asselvalue
pershare and iIncame yield {rarm the dividend

Underlying Profit growth’

16.0%

DOriven by financing aclwity development
campletions and ke for ke net rental
ncome growth

Planning granted on

1.5m sq ft

of development space

' Please see the glossary lor definition

tn a fast changing market we are focusmg

our business ta benefit from long term trends
notabty the transforming impact technology

15 having on the way we work shop and bive the
impact of population gr owth and urbanssation
particularly in Lenden and the South East and
mnereasing consumes expectations in areas
such as health wellbemng and sustamability
We are focusing cw portfolio on places where
we can condrol the environment exploiting

our placemaking expertise to manage more
complex mixed use environments delivering

on our core purpose of creating Places People
Prefer We see tncreasing overiap between our
office campuses and our mulhi-let regionat and
local retail centres as they cominne a gi eater
mix of uses and evolve ta reflect our customers
changmg Lifestyles

We have had another good year both in terms
of our undertying hinancial performance and
aur delivery against our stiategic objectives
Per lormance in the year was underpinned by
strengtheming rental growth reflecting the
investments we have made across our portfolio
n recent years alengside good occupational
markets We made good progress with gur
committed developments and are ina strong
position to be able to move fos ward with our
near term development pipeline when the

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016

time 1sTight We continued to sell mature and
non-core assels redeploying capital principally
into our extsting portfolio - in our campuses
and regional and local 1 etai centres Overall
our investiment activity was broadly balanced

EPRA net asset value was 10 9% ahead at

9 pence per share al the year end (932 pence
excluding the impact of the recenlinct ease In
stamp duty} Valuation was up 6 7% with Offices
up 1 8% and Retail up 2 4% prinapally due to

5 3% ERV growth acrass the portfolio which
was 130 bps abead of IPD We gener ated lotal
propet ty returns of 11 3% for the yeast

Underlying Profit was 16 0% ahead at

£363 million driven both by our successiut
leasing activity and our lower financing costs
Diiuted Underlying EPS was up 11 4% at

34 1 pence per share In line with previous
announcements the final quarterly dvidend
15 709 pence per share bringing the tull year
dividend to 28 346 pence per share anincrease
of 2 5%, delivering a 1otat accounting return of
14 2% Qur proportionately consolidated LTV
reduced to 32% in e with our str ategy of not
gearing up on yreld shaft with our investment
actiwity broadly balanced Asa 1resutt of our
refinancing activities including the £350 rullion
Zero coupon conver Lible bend our average
financing cost s down 50 bps to 3 3%
Reftecting our confidence in the coming year
the Board s proposing a quarterly dividend of
730 pence per shaie or 29 20 pence per share
for the full year anincrease of 3 0%

Qur portfolio 1s virtually full with occupancy

of 99% In good eccupational markets in both
Retail and Offices we saw stiong tevels of
demand for our remaining space Thists
reflected in our leasing transactions with

¥ 3 mithion sq ft of tettings and 1enewals agreed
on average 6 8% ahead of ERV

In Offices we made good progress enhancing
and enbiveruing environmenis strengthening
long ierm demand for our space and appealing
te & broader range of occupiers We let or
renewed 296 000 sq ft of space on average

5 6% ahead of ERV and added £3 8 million

of rent through rent reviews settled on terms




17% ahead of previous rents The Leadenhall
Building is now 98% let or under offer with just
one of the top floors to let We are making good
progress on ouf campus visions At Broadgate
we completed 5 Broadgate and we are
progressing our developrnent opportunitres
across the campus Elsewhere ourfocus on
creating Places People Prefer s driving public
realm improvements at Paddington Central
and will influence cur plans at Regent s Place
where we see further near term refurbishrnent
oppos tuntties Our campuses remain
atfordable and the investment we are
undertaking leaves us well posihoned to
capture rental growth going forward

In Retail we let or renewed 903 000 sq ft of
space on average 8 0% ahead of ERV reflecting
the strength of our markets as well as the
quality of our assets and the work we have been
doing 1o wnprove them We now manage our
multi-let partfolio along regienal and local bnes
reflecting how we see consumers spend they
time and money We cantinued ta wvest in our
multi-let portiolio through large scale leisure
extensions but alse through smaller asset
managemnent mitiatives mproving the
amenities at our assets to dive footfall
dwell and spend through smproved custormer
satisfacuon Footfall across our rulti-les
portfoliowas up 3 0% outperforming the
market benchmark by 440 bps with retallers
n-store sales also ahead of the market up
2 4% We saw strang demand for eur pipeline
of leisure extensions and dt those assets where
we have completed extensions or improvement
works we have already seen good ERV growth
and operatienal improvements Superstores

* performance was more subdued asexpecied
but we have been active in selliag down our
holding to £4 8 bhittion from £1 3 bittion two
years ago With deals under offer this falls
to £0 7 bitlton

As expected our investment activity was
broadly balanced over the year mcluding

our share of capital spend We continued

to allocate more capital into aur London
campuses, invesing a net £280 millton through
devetoprments at Broadgate Regents Place
and Paddington Central where we also
acquired One Sheldon Square In Retalt we
made £420 mitbion of disposals as we increase
our focus on the mulii-let portfolio where we
can put our placemaking skills to work to drive
rental growth

In April British Land was one of only seven
companies lo receve the 2016 Queen s Awar d
for Enterprise Sustainabte Development as
part of Her Majesty The Queen s 90th burthday
honours The Award s the UK s highest
accotade for business success and 1s given

to companies which bring major economic
social and environmental benelits through
thetr business The award reflects our

We create outstanding ptaces which
make a positive difference to people s
everyday lwes

Places People Prefer

This s the core unifying purpose of
our business guiding our stiategy
and shaping our actions

Strategie focus
We deliver long term sustanable returns
for our stakeholders by focusing on

Customer Orientation
Right Pluces

Capital Efficiency
Expert People

This drives demand from our occupiers
sustainable growth in income and
uftimately capital values

More inforrnation about our strategy
and progress can be found on pages
1810 25

Placemakmg

Placemaking 1s how we deliver places
people want towork shop live and
spend ime

We connect
We design
We enhance
We enliven

@ Find out more about eur placemaking
approach on pages 26 t0 35

Qur values
Qurvalues underpin everything we do

Do what is right not
what is easy

Work efficiently as one team

Make commercial decisions
that create long term value

Muake things happen

continuous achievement in all these areas over
the tasl five years We made strong progress
embedding our suslamabilily sirategy
inctuding innovating onwetlbeing thr cugh
public realm improvements where we invested
£30 mullion gver the year We diverted 98% of
all managed waste from fandfill and delwvered
a 40% carbon mtensity reduction leading

the Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark for Europe/diversified for the
secondyear runmng

Development remains a core part of our
business With the delivery of 5 Broadgate

our 2010 programime completed in the year
gener ating profit of £11 billien and an IRR of over
30% We are currently on site al 629 000 sq ft of
developments, a speculative commtment of
£530 mithian prineipally 4 Kingdom Street and
Clarges Maylair our super prime residential
scherme [over 50% pre-sold] Looking forward
we have a significant future pipeline with bult

i optionality meaning we can start each project
at the right ime At Broadgate our nearterm
pipeline includes 100 Liverpool Street and

1 Finsbury Avenue where we recewved planning
during the year and logking 1o the medium

term we submutted a ptanning application at
2-3Finshury Avenue Other potential near term
apportunities in Offices snclude 1 Triton Square
at Regent s Place and 5 Kingdorn Street at
Paddington Central In Retall our nearterm
pipebine includes teisure extensions at Drake
Cireus Plymouth and New Mersey Speke

CGur medium term plans include our mixed use
redevelopment of the EdenWalk Hingston and
a significant leisure extension at Meadowhall
{currently in public consuttation) wiuch witd
enhanceits position as a flagship regional centre

We have an exceptional oppor tunity at Canada
Water to create a wii ant new destination for
London and are delighted Roger Madetm has
jeined British Land to head up the project

we are alieady benefiting from his experience
teadmng the redevelopment of King s Cross
This s atong term project butwe are making
progress with a public consultation taking
place in February 2016 ahead of an outline
ptanning subriission w 2017

Briish Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 7




Strategico Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW CONTINUED

Outlook

Looking forward we remam confident in the
underlying strength of the business despste
continued global macro uncertainty and the
potentially adverse unpact of 2 vote for the UK
to leave the European Union Qurbusiness s
resitsent our portfolio ts modern nearty fulty
let to quality occupiers on long leases and our
finances are strong with moderate LTV low
costs and long dated financing from a wide
range of sources Our current committed
development pipeline 1s modest but we have
built optionabity into our future pipeline 5o we
can explost its potenuial when the ume 1s right
Our strategy of creating Ptaces People Prefer
focuses our investment and activities on macro
trends ensuring our real estate reflects the
changing way people work shop and live

We have significant appor lumties across our
existing por tiolio inciuding in our three existing
London campuses and the potentiat {o c1eate
a new London campus at Canada Wated
alongside our regional and local muli-let
Retal assets

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

@ To read mote information about our
Business model go to pages 10 and 11

Fult year results 2016
www britishland com/results

Chief Executive blog
www britishland com/ceoblog

For more information on sustainabilety
www britishland com/sustainahibity

Our priorities for the vear ahead

Deliver sustamable returns for stakeholders

Customer Orientation Right Places
- Improve understanding of our customers - Progress developmenis alengside materiat
pre lets

- Use placemak:ng to deliver impr oved

customer exper ience - Progress Canada Water vision and plan

Expert People
- lmpr ove company orgamsational
effecliveness

Capital Efficiency
- Deliver budget

- Accelerale delivery of muln let regional

and local tifestyle 1 etast - Erabed placermaking across the business

8 Bribsh Land | Annual Repert and Accounts 2616
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The Leadenhall Building

Destgned by Rogers Stirk Har bour + Partners
The |_eadenhall Building 15 a unique 603 000 54
ft office tower prarminently located in the centre
of the City of Londen Its defining feature 1s 1ts
distinctive taper ing shape which when viewed
from the West appears to lean away from

St Paul s Cathedral Thiswas developed asa
response 10 the specific planning requirements
which protect the views of St Paul s froma
number of locations in London The British Land
and Oxford Proper bes building won the
Woershipful Company of Chartered Architects -
City of Londan s Building of the Year award in
2015 after judges dectas ed it an "extraordinary
example of contempaorary architecture”™ The
building was also recogrused by the British
Council of Offices with a Cemmercial Workplace
Award forits iconic structure and intetligent
arrangerients which allow the building layout
o change asitrises

www theleadenhalilbulding com
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#8a Cheesegrater

The winning entry by Tom Mearns

to our #5ayCheesegrater Instagram
competition designed to cetebr ate the
otficial opeming of The Leadenhall Buitding
by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince Harry

British ,Landll:'\‘m‘u};i Reepatbesiad A ounts /llff' '
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Serategic Report

BUSINESS MODEL

N

2
) ) Connect
Owr business is

&
focused on creating Design
Places People Prefer We focus on attractive and convenient

ptaces which are in tune with modern
Lifestyles, those which connect

with people and reflect the best

in modern design

1 Connect We create placeswhich
connect physically and degrtally
Source with those people who use them

including locat communities in
& which they are located

I t Deswgn Our busldings and

n@es environmenis offer the highest
quality of design with engaging

Identitying and investing architecture and a fully integrated

in assets with the greatest public realm

potential to provide value

Source The scale of our business - ;
the expertise of our people and our I
network of contacts provide access .

to the best investment opportunibies Il L

Invest We have the skills experience 1
and financial flexibility to execute the - [v]
most value-enhancing investments - il
erther in acquiring assets or nvesting ﬁ} 0
n the existing portfotio
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Enhgnce
Enliven

Active asset management to
enhance and enliven our assets
creates vibrant and engaging real
estate, which attracts the strongest
accupters to our portfolio

Enhance We enhance our properties
by attracting a strong, diverse mix of
occupiers and broadenng the offering

Enliven We provide events and
ackwities which bring life and a
real sense of community to our
buildings and bestn class services

which improve the expenience lor w

our customers j

Y

4 &

Our sector knowledge and expertise
allows us to evatuate the potentiat
of our assets and assess whether

they can deliver future value for
shareholders

Evaluate We assess our sectors
and assets for thes potential to
deliver attrachive 1 etus ns over hme

Hold or Sell We allocate capital to
sactors and assets with potential
and reailse capital frem mature
OF NON-Core assets

Find rmore information abeut our
strategy on pages 18 t¢ 25
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Strategdic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW

What sets
us apart?

QOur approach to doing business puts
the customer at the heart of what we do
This underpins our ability to deliver
Places People Prefer

More than

64,000

peepla work across our office parifolio

Placemaking skills i
Improving our assets to cr eate a better

overat! experience for our cuslomers

and locat communities Places which

are easy tovisit vibrant pleasant and

engaqing and with high quality on site

services places where people want

tework shop lwve and visit

Customer msight
Ourinvestment in data collection
and analytics brings us closer

1o our customers guidiig our
investrments and helping us to
create ptaces thal meet their
expectations and lifestyles

High quality office
campuses

Office-led environments focused
around key uansport infrasirucivre
with a growing relail and lessure offer
enabling people to combine woi k and
play The diver sity of our offering
provides opportunities and amentties
foriocal communities helping to
energise the broader campus

Lifestyvle focused retail 330
cnvironments

Regional and local mutti-let annual footfall at

aurt 55els
retail assets In tune with modern etaila

consumer litestyles where people
goto shop eatand be entertained

12 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016




Mixed use deveclopment

experience
Large scale projects cambiring
offices retail residential and

tetsure set amudst attractive
public spaces Typically these
developments involve close
collabar ation wath local planming
authanities cormmuntlies and
pariners aswell as aclive
day-to-day management

Strong network

of relationships
Our networks span accupiers
planners locat authorities
communily leaders strategic
parinersand investors reflecting
our many years as leading
developers and landlords

across the UK

29,500

People benefited directly irom our
commun+ly programme this year
includ ng apprentices jobseekers
and schoalchitdren

Abihity to source and

execute complex deals
We have the expertise and
financial lexiility required o
execule complex deals delivering
hrghly altr active returns for

our shareholders

Sustamabihty

credentials
We have been sustamnability
leadersfora long time and

have successfully integrated
suslanability into our placemaking
approach innovating {0 improve
people swellbeing supporting
local commumities designing for
the future and developing skills
and opportunities at our places

Far more information on sustamabibity
“—" www britishiand com/sustatnability

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

Major trends impacting

our markets

Globalisation

Ourmvestment and occupational markets are
increasingly global The UK s pelitical stabitity
sound legal and hnancial framework time zone
and the Ligundity of 11s property markets make
1tan attractive hame for international capital
London i parucutar offers some of the best
employment opporiunites as well as gieat
piaces to live and work underpminmng the
growing globalisation of its workfoi ce

Sourccs of mvestment in UK real estate

- BUK 57%

/H #Amencas 17%

Rest of World 26%

Source JLI 2018

@

Positive but modcerate
economic growth

Overall, econamic fundamentals in the UK
remaimn positive Real wages and employment
are forecast to continue to grow and miaton
and interest t ates are expected to remain low
by tustoric standards However with markets
becoming increasingly global there i1s a greater
risk that external factors including a vole for
the UK to leave the European Union will rnpact
our marketls sowe are mindiul of the needto
manage our business to mitigate these risks

5.1%

UK unemployment rate versus Euro areacf 10 3%

Source Office for Nationa! Statistics Apnil 2016

14 British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2014

Population growth
and urbanisation

The UK poputation 15 expected to grow from

64 & mullion in 2014 10 74 3 mutlion by 2039
Much of the increase will be n its largest cities
notably Londan underpmnming dermand for
retail and office space aswell as infraskruciure
and housing tn London investment in better
transpor! incleding new rail nks and
improved stations 1s under way Thisis driving
growth and regeneration across the capital

8.7m

Greater |_ondon population farecast to grow
by 1% per arnurn

Source Oxford Economics

1.Sm

extra peopte with'n 45 munutes of Londan
with Crossrait from 2018

Source Crossraf websie




;

Transforming impact
of technology

Technology continues to transform the way
wework shop and live The interneti has ¢reated
a chaice of delivery platforms so people can
shop in a manner which suits them People are
also able towork remotely ingreasimgly they
see thewr working environment as a place 1o
coltaborate and network and this changes the
type of office space they are tooking fo

344.000

additional employees working for small firms

Source Department for Business Innavation & Skifls
Business Population Estimates 2015

66

Our sustainable business model is designed
to benefit from and exploit long term sector
and macro-economic trends.”

Increasing consumer
expectations

Feople s expectations of where they work

shop and bive are nsing They expect attractive
weil-managed environments modern facilities
and a high standard of service They {ike places
which are accessible and convenient and
increasingly they expect lersure 1o be a part

of thewr everyday lives

249%

increase in UK F&Bfieisure spend lerecast between
2016 and 2021

Source CACI

Focus on sustainable
and ethical behaviours

o

e W T il

People expect companies to have sound
sustainability credentials 1o adhere toa bugh
standard of ethical behaviour and to ensur e the
wellbemng of therr employees Thisis staiing

to influence who we want towork {o: the places
we shop and {ive and the kind of developments
locat commumities are prepared to accept
Reflecting this 1s a growing expectation that
governments should use policy to promete
sustamable and ethical practices

809%

of people believe that cornpanies can play a l=ad'ng role
Insobving society s problems while stitt making profits

Source Edeiman 2014 Trust Barometer

195

cauniries agreed to keep glabal warming below 2°C
pursuing efforts to irmit it to 15°C

Source United Naticns Framework Convention
on Chimate Change COF 21 Paris 2015

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2616 15




Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

How we are

responding

Getting closer to our customers

~Improving cur understanging of our
custorner s preferences with effective
systems and proresses to capture and
analyse data

- Increasing in-house expertise with dedicated
analytics and rarketing capabibities

- Improving in-house management of our
properiles to deltver consistent best in
class standards

- lnvesting in the British Land brand so people
know what they can expect from us and the
propet ies we own and manage

Compteted

>150,000

cansumer exit surveys completed over the past four
years at ourretal assels

- Investing in places which are well
cennected well desigred and in tune
with moder n lifestyles

- Enhancing and enlivering our assets
through our placemaking actvities
attractive environmments bestin class
services and innovative leisure and
enter lamment oplions

- Flaces which are well integr ated which
add vatue to local commumties and where
they chaose to spend time

£280m

invesied in London campuses ovel the last year

16 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 7014

Focusing on internet resilient
lifestyle Retail

- Focusing on creating outstanding regtonal
and tocal multi-let 1 etasl assels which are
In fune with modern consumer bifestyles

- Under standhing whei e a wtde ranging mixed
use offering will drive footfall and where
convenient and accessible assets are
ntore appropi iate

- Investing to keep pace with changing
cansumer preferences

15%

ncrease in dwell tirme at the assets where we have
recently completed makeovers (o imprave the
shopping experience




&

Growing in London
and the South East

- ldentifying emerging areas that will benefit
from growth and regeneration particularty
lranspor t/infrastructure-led

- Increasing the retail leisure residential
and other alternative uses 1o enhance our
office-led campuses

- lhwesting in relatively offluent setart locations
outside of London with papulation growth
where there s potential le upscale the offer

- ldenufying compelling residential
opportunities

659%

of our assets are iocated
in London ar the South East

- Near ter m opportunities whech focus on
keepng our campuses and our retail-led
centres modein

~-Longterm large scale mixed use projecis
where we can put our placemaking skills
o work

- Managing risk through pre-letting and
phasing development staris

92m sq ft

of developments in our near/medum term pipeline

N

Embedding sustainability
m placemaking

- Adaptable and effictent bulldings

- Promoting wellbeng and productivity for
our occupiers customers and cornmunities

- Suppaor ting tocal communities with our
new Local Charter launched this year

- Developing skills and opportunities 1o support
tocal economies

RE100

Wa support RE100 - commatted to purchasing
electricity frorn renewable power in our own space
and across service charge space

@ For more information on sustainablsty
www britishland com/sustamability

loread more about our strategy
yoto pages 1810 25

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 17




Stratedic Report

QUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Our strategy
Our strategy determines our focus

for our annual priorities —
AVA
To read more on our priorities

for the year ahead go io

page 8 Customer Orientation Right Places
- Leverage out customer msight services - Create and operate exciting and engaging
experience and technology 1o be recogrised Wfestyle oriented real estate put Places
for creating Places People Prefer People Preles at the heart of our approach
- Use consistent and scalable ways of working ~invest in London - in existing assets and

emerging locations benefiting from

- Prowvide hest in class praope! ty management
¢lass propetfy manage regeneralion and growth

by developing n-house capahilities
through Broadgate Estates - Focus on regional and local mulii-let retad

assels which are 1n tune with modern

consumers [ifestyles

00o
CCYD

Expert People Capital Efficiency

- Maintain hrgh standard of operationat - Allocate capital to raximise returns from
and investmert skill sets and encour age our competiiive advantages

development in evolving area
P 9 s - Manage boeth our development exposure and

- Promote a culture which supports financial leverage through the cycle while
the recrutmeni and development maintaining the benefits of scale

of a diverse team
~ Be the partner of choice for intei national

~ Improve ways of working capitat and public bodies
across the business

Creating Places This generates Together with
Pcople Prefer long term groroth.  an optimal capital
drives enduring in rents and structurc this
demand for capital value. delivers sustainable
our propertics., long term value.

18 8nitish Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2015




Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all stakeholders

Occupiers and

their customers

- High guality environmenis
which promote productivity
and wellheing

- Affordable and efficient buldings

- Qutstanding customer services
and facilities

investors
- Access to high quality bguid real
eslate investiment

Emplovees

- Aninclusive environment
with enhanced wellbeing
and productivity

- Stable secure cash flows

- Superiortotal returns

- Potannal to develop skills
and opportunities

- Opportunities to make
a positive difference

aml

Local communities
- Attractive local environments

- Facilites and services which
enhance the overall area

Partners
- Access to igh quality real estate

- Places which support local jobs
and skills
- Assel management and

development skilis - Stronger community networks

and facilities
- Strong retationships

@ For more information on sustanability
www britishland com/sustainability

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016
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Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Our long term objective

How we performed |
over the past yeafr Delivering sustamnable

long term value |

Our priortties in the year were What we have achueved

Customer Orientation
- Getting closer 1o our occupiers and end users

- improving our systems and processes

- Leveraging Broadgate Estates

- Innovating 1o support customer wetlbeing
- Continuing to reposition the Retail pertfolio

- 13m sg ft of leasing activity arross Retail
and Offices

- The Leadenhall Buiding now 98% lei/under
offer up from 84% at the start of the year

- £420m of mature/nen-core Retalt assets
scld including £122m of superstores
reducing our weighting to 5%

- Over 43000 people surveyed in Retad with
sales data on 94% of multi-let assets and
footiall data on 99%

-4 2/5wisttor score for shopping experience

- 350 occupier surveys now completed
in Offices, with footfall counters piloted
at Broadgate

- Broadgate Estates now manag:ng all of
our retail assets covering over 20m sq ft

- Partnered with occupiers on intiatives
at our properties including wellbeing |
and community

- Internal team strengthened with wnproved
systerns and processes to analyse data

Right Places
- Progressuyg our strategy for London
- Progressing committed and near term

- £280m net investment :mnto London campuses - Lirca £80m svested mimprovements and
- Progressing the Broadgate vision with extensions to Retall assets Drawing up plans

plantung achieved on 190 Liver pocl Street for @ proposed 330 000 »q ft Leisure Hall
at Meadowhalt

developments
- Refreshing medium term strategies for
Broadgate Meadowhall and Canada Water
- Supporting successful local cornmunities

and 1 Finsbury Avenue and subrmitted at
2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue
- Good ptogress at our development at
4 Kingdom Street and Paddingion Central

- £60m refurbishiment of Meadowhall under

way and progressing well

- Progressing our Cenada Water developmenl

held a publc consuttation in February 2016
- launch of Local Charter to suppor t
successful local communities and develop
local skills and opportunities
- Community programme equivalent to @ 6%
of pre-tax profits benefiting 29 500 people

- Refurbishment of 338 Euston Road Regent s
Place compieted with over 80% of space
pre-letto Facebook

Capital Efficiency

- Optimising stze and financial structlure across
the property cycle

- Balancing tr ade-off hetween a cost efficient
and higher capabthity organisation

- Continunig 1o build retationships with direct
and imdirect capital and public bodies

- Detivering futur e proofing inthatives

-£618mnon core asset/mature sates i the
year with acquisitons and capital investment
of £639m

- Building our reiationship with Southwark
Counail our partner on Canada Water

- Compieted aver E1bn of hinancing actwity
since 31 March 2813 including a zero coupon
£350m senior unsecured cenvertble bend
due 2026 and the tender offer and purchase of
£110m of debenture bonds reducing weighted
average interesi rate
by 50 bps to 3 3%

- 40% carbon miensity reductron ver sus 2009

[index scare]

Expert People

- Continuing toimps ove organisational design
and effectiveness

- Build management capaintities for new
aswell as tradittonat skt sets

- Developing skitls and opportunities

- Creating an inctusive woarking envir onment

- Appointed Roger Madelin to head up Canada
Water development

- Wornen s Network and BL Pride established

- Par icipation in the National Equakity Standard

- One Star rating in Best Comparies to Work
For Survey

20 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

- 87% employee score for our offices

supporting their wellbeing

- 169% of our employees and 72% supplier
workforce at our properties patd the Living

Wage Foundaton wage

For definitions see glossary on
payes 200 to 203




How we measure up'

Risk indicators and incentive measures

Total aceounting return (TAR)

14 2%

2016 14.2%

LI} 0

i

- Total accounting return 1s our averall measure
af performance ks the dredend paid plus the
growth in EPRA NAV in the period

- Duning the year we generated a strong TAR
of 14 2% bringing the 3year TAR 1o 679%

Qur deadend vwas increased hy 2 5% 10 28 34
pence per share and our NAV increased
by 109% to 919 pence per share

Risk indicators we monitor

- forecast GOP

- the margun between property yields and
borrowing costs and

- property caprtal and ERV grawth for ecasis

Management compensation linked to
- total accounting returns retative to peers

Customer satisfactton

7 9outcf 10
20146 7.9

H €

We extensively survey people who use ous
assets (o assess our per formance and
identify opportunities for improvernent

Sustaiabshty Performance

- Dow Jones Sustamnability Index World
and Europe 2015 94th percentile

- FTSE4Good 2015 98th percentile

- Global Reat Estate Sustainability Benchmark
2015 Sector beader European/Dwversified

We track our sustainabmlity impacts on these
indices We are proud to have heen awarded the
Queen s Award for Enterprise Sustainable
Development 2016

Risk indicators we monitor

- cansumer confidence

- employment farecasts for refevant
sectors and

- market letting risk [vacancies expiries
administrations)

Management compensation Unked to

- Company reputation with all stakeholders
and

- suppor ting the delivery of sustainatility
objectives

Total property returns

13% vs |PD

20146 i1.3% i line

“ 7 +130bps

b ' +60bps

We have performed in ine with the iIPD
benchmatk on total property return this
year and outper for med over the last 3 years
by 60 bps per anaum

Development comuntinent
£0 8bn % of standing investments

2015 £0.8bn +5 8%

B ~100%
RS V3.

Development supports value and inceme
growth but alse adds nsk We awn to keep
cur committed development exposure at

less than 15% of our investment por tfolio

Risk indicators we monitor

- property capital and ERV growth forecasts

- total and speculative development exposure
and

- progiess of developments against plan

Management compensation linked to

- total property returns relative to IPD

- execution of 1argeted acquisitions and
disposals and

- progress on key prejects including
developments

Loan to value (LTY)

- proportionalbhy consohdated
32%

2016 32%

We manage cur leverage such that LTV should
not exceed a maximurn thr eshold if market
yrelds were 1o rise {0 previous peak levels

Weighted average mnterest rate
— proportaonally consohidated!

33%

2016 31.3%

e —_ -
. -
PR

Our low cost of finance supperts per formance
and is one of the lowest of isted UK REITs

Risk mdicators we moniter

- hikelihood of covenant breach
-whenrefirancing 1s required and

- percentage of debt at fixed interest rates

Management compensation hinked to
- execution of debt financings
- progress on strengthening the dividend and
- execution of targeted acquistions
and disposals

The Sunday Times Best Compames o
to Work For
One star

2016 One star

Please see the glossary for definitions

The Sunday Times annual survey IS one
of the most extensive benchmarks of
employer engagement

Long-term Incentive Plan
Annual Incentive award

Risk indicators we monitor
- unplanned executive departures

Managemenlt compensation hinked to
- quality of people and management
renewal and

- Company reputation with all stakeholders

@ Managing risk in delivering our strategy
see pages 57 to 63

Remuneration report see pages 8610 110

8rittsh Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 21




Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The importance
of people

Our focus on Places People Prefer puts
people at the heart of our strategy

Customer Orientation

We are investing In the resour ces that bring
us closer to the people who work shop and
live across our assets improving both our
customer insight and cur understanding of
local communities and helping to guide how
and where we do business

Inretad our custorners have mare choice

than ever before the offering 1swider and there
ate more debvery platforms We are building
our understanding of how our customers
manage these choices and are working with
our accupier s at our multi-let assets to deliver
autstanting places for modern consurner
lifestyles Our understanding of our customer s
1s underpinned by the data we gather from our
schemes we have completed over 150 009
consumer exit surveys over the last louryears
we collect turnover data on 94% of our multi-1et
assets by value and footfall data from 98% of
ou miuth-let assets Imporiantly we have the
systems and pracesses in place 1o generate
insights and learnings from this data and this
gusdes our approach to placemaking We know
that our leading inchcator s including footfall
dwell time and spend benefit dramatically
from an increased leisure food and beverage
arovision and better services so thus 1swhere
we are focusing our efforts At our 1egional
assets we are fecused onwmnproving the
hreadth and depth of our retail and leisure offer
introducing cinemas and restaurants as well as
more mnrovative lersure concepls At our tocal
assets we are (mpioving the services we offer
and creating a more attractve environiment

for our wisitors those who want convenience
and accessibility

In Offices our occupters increasingly see
property as key to attracting and retaining tatent
so we are working together {o hetp them stay
ahead This year we have surveyed around 350
occuplers or prospective occuplers to further
develop our understanding of what Places
People Prefer means to them We understand
that tocation and i par ticular proximity to

Qur values
Our values underpin our dardy working
practices and set us apart They are

Iz

15 \

Work efficienth
48 one team

Do nhat s mght
not what 15 eass

LB

Make thungs

‘Make conymercial

decisions that create happen
long term valve

22 British Land | Annual Report and Accaunts 2016

transportinfrastructure are priorities so these
are important consider ations for us when we
make investment decisions The quality and
efficiency of the building rnatters occuprers
want the ablity to adapt space as their needs
¢hange and for thewr workspaces (o promote
collaboration and positive retationships across
their businesses Employees atso expect an
attractive place towork aswell as a range of
factities and services they can enjoy outside

of the office This 1s why our strategy in Offices
15 focused on cur campuses which are more
mixed i use and include retail leisure and
often residenlial space and other amenities
where we can manage the broader
environment We have developed more
interactive markeling campaigns giving people
the oppor tuniy e participate in the Lfe of our
carmnpuses and we are ptioting footfalt counters
at Broadgate to provide accun ate data on how
successfully our actviies are attracting people
to the campus We are making a ssmitar effortin
residentral where over 400 purchasers across
lhe super prime prime and top tier mas kets
were surveyed At Clarqes our super prime
residential development n Mayfarr we work
with our custormers on an iIndividual basis to
ensure we deliver a product that really reflects
thenr specific lifestyles




We ensure the fughest standards of service
across our office assels by managing them
in-house through Broadgete Estates our
wholly owned subsidiary and one of the UK s
leading property management companes

Its client portiolio inctudes some of the most
prestigious properiies in the UK andwe
leverage its scale and expertise across the
wider mar ket to provide a best in class service
Having proved highly successful at managing
our Offices portfolio Broadgate Estates remt
now also covers our mulu-let Retanl por tlolio

Toread more about Broadgate Estates
go to www broadgateestates co uk

The quality of ou assets and strength of our
services enables us to attract a lugh calibre of
occupies to our portfalio This together with our
high occupancy levels and long average lease
tengths underpins the guabity and secunity of our
rentat rncome We are ncreasing the diversity
of our occupter mix and no single occupier
accounts for more than /% aof owr revenues

For our major occupers see the table on
page 188

Expert People

Our 587 employees are split between the
core team at Briush Land and our property
management subsidiary Broadgate Estates
The breadth and depth of our knowledge

our skills and our retationships underpin

our competitive advantages and enable usto
deliver on our over-niding purpose of creating
Places People Prefer

The scatle of our operations has enabled us

to attract and retain a team of experts who
know our mar kets well and bring a range of
expertise across a mix of actvities - retad
letsure offices and residentiat We have access
to a broad network of contacls spanning
occuplers planners gavernment and local
authonittes community leaders shiategic
pariners and investors sowe see the besi
investment opportunities and the maost
attractive partnering and funding possibilities
enabling us to successfully execute atliactive
and often hughly complex deals

Our people sirategy focuses on creating a team
who can deliver Places Peaple Preter Geiting
closer to our customers s one of our key
strategic prionties and having a workforee which
reflects the diver sity of our customers helps us
achieve this The pobcy throughaut British Land
15 to employ the best candudates averlable in
every position regardtess of sex race ethmic
origin nationality colour age religion or
philosophical belief sexual orientation
marriage or cvil partnership pregnancy
maternity gender reassignment or disability

We achieved a key rmulestone on our journey
towards creating a truly inclusive environment

this year with our formaton of BL Pride, our
leshian gay bisexual transgender [LGBT]
and allies network and our Women s network

Both networks have been active in the year
and we aie pleased that our Chief Executive
Chris Grigg was ranked Hthn the 2015
Leading 30 LGBT Ally Executives by
Qutstanding and the Financial Times

We are also ptloling a mentoring scheme
initiatly for women offering help guidance
adwvice and support where it 1s needed We
cury ently have three fernate Directors on the
Boatd LucindaBell Chief Financial Otficer
and Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade Gery bath
Nen-Executive Directors As at 31 March 2016
48% of employees across Briish Land and
Broadgate Estates were female including

thi ee aut of ten of our Executive Committee

Nurturing talent and supporting development
15 an important element of our people strategy
We operate a range of online resources 1o help
ernployees develop their skills and work with
Cambridge University to run a Leadershipin
Real Estate programme 24 of our staff have
benefited frem this programme since it was
taunchedin 2014 Other training partners

this year ;nclude Happy City who promote
happiness and wellbeiny through skidlls
training and campaigns and measure the
impact of change on local wellbeing Theyran
a wor kshaop for semor managers on embedding
welibeing principles across our business Qur
ongoing volunteer ing programme also offers
our staff personal development oppartunities
particularly through skilts-based opportunities
such as mentoring 84% of our staff took part
in voluntgering activities in the year

Our focus on Places People Prefer siarts with
our people Both Brinish Land and Broadgate
Estates were recognised i the Sunday Times
Best Companies to Work For 2016 each
achieving a One Star rating  This reflects staff
satistaction with aspects such as leadership

wellbeing geving sorething back personat
growth poyand benefits as well aswith their
manager and tearn

We believe supporting the workfor ce of
tomarrow 1S impoertant for our business and
markets We are involved in intiatives which
inake young people of all backgrounds aware
of real estate careers including Pathways to
Property and Budding Brunels 15 000 people
benefited from employment training and
educalion inttiatives across our assets during
the year We are also working towards 3% of
our supplier wot kforce being apprentices by
2020 Asdetailed in our Supply Chain Charter
we lry to use local suppliers and we pariner
with oceuplers and supplier s on fair waorking
practices including the Living Wage
Foundation wage

o read more abotst our Expert People
go to www britishland com/blogs
and 1o read more about skills go to
www britishland com/skills

Report of the Nomuinatien Commitiee
see pages 84 to 85

@ Board of Direclors see pages
66 1o 69
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Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Managing our
portfolio

From sourcing and investing in the Right
Places, to enhancing and enlivening our
assets, we are focused on allocating capital
efficiently to maximise returns

Right Places

Ourinvestment decisions are heavily influenced
by the lang term trends we see driving our
comsmerciat proper ty markels so we can
position ourselves well for the longer term

Qur focus on Lendon and the South East
reflects the population growth and increasing
urbarnsation we are seewng in the capital
alongside its attraction as a leading global ity
Maor e specifically our investment in Londen in
partreular has lacused on those areas where
nfrastructure 1sirnpi oving driving regeneration
and growth Thisis where we see the strongest
returns over the longer term

(Our portichio 1s approximaiely evenly split
hetween Retail and Letsure and Offices and
Residential but more and mare we are
increasimg the mix of uses on our existing sites
as well as investing directly in mixed use assels
This 1eflects the lact that people s work and
personal lives inc easingly over lap they expect
more of the places theywotk shop orvisit They
want to work in offices which have places to eat
shop and relax and 1 etail destinations with a wide
{ersure and service offering This understanding
undes pins owt focus on placemaking

Placemaking s about owning assets which
connect with the prople who use them and
which are designed with thew needs in mind
We are investing tn our assels to enhance
the offer to enbiven therm with events and

services and to provide a broader more
engagmg experience 1his approach 1s
shaping our portfolio

Our Offices and Residential portfotio1s focused
on our three mixed use campuses in London
and alsonciudes disunclive London propeilies
such as The l_eadenbalt Building alongstde
smalter clusters of propertres Our campuses
henefit from excetlenl fransport infrastructur e
and two Broadgate and Paddington Central
will have thear own Crossrail stations when
Crossrail opens in 2018 They all have great
poiential Broadyate also benefits fromns
proximity to Shoreditch and the emerging tech
hubs to the north and east of the City which
are increasing the diversity of the occuprer

mix Regent s Place and Paddington Central
are on the fringes of the West End oftering hugh
quality flevible and affordable space Regenis
Place has beneftted from 1egenerauon and we
ale now seeing thts at Paddington We are
using our placemaking principles to evolve and
grow our campuses with new devetopments
which reftect the changing ways people work
with more flexible floor plates break-out areas
and outside space We are atso adding retail
and leisure and investing in public reatm
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NPt cvements So oul campuses al e vibr ant
and attractive places in which towork and

to spend time outside of work In Residential
we have been highly selective about the places
we investin Looking forward it will become a
more signiftcant part of our portfolio as part

of our mix-use offer par ticular ly as we make
progress at Canada Water where we are
creating one of the largest nuxed use
regeneralion projectsin London

In Retad where technology 1s changing the
way people shop Right Places is about focusing
on assets which are n tune with medern
consurmer bfestyles where people can shop
eat and be entertained The core portiolio
cormpnses regional and local multi-let assets
where we ar e able to manage and iImprove

the broader envitonment We focus on assels
which are prime In the:r catchrment and capture
a broad range of consumer spend Dur larges
regional assets have a wide-ranging retail

and leisure offering attiacting visitors fram

a broad caichment Qur smaller locat assets
are convenient and accessible aligned to the
daily lide cf local communities Qur focus an
Custorner Ot ientation ¢nsures a consistent
appt oach to placemaking across these




formals although our actions are carefully
considered to improve and optimise each
wndividually Across our portfoliowe are adding
leisure extensions where we see demand for
cinemas and restauranis with smaller scale
improverments where appropniate such as more
cales orymproved car parking helping to
deliver our broader placemaking st ateqgy of
creating Ptaces People Prefer

Developrment is an important part of what we do
and s a key driver of returns It keeps our assets
madern ensuning demand for them endures

We have a significant pipeline of development
oppai tumities focused on our campuses and our
multi-tet retail assets We have built optienality
mto our pipeline so we can progress
opportumties when the tme 1s nght

&

Across our portfolio we ar e conscious of the
impact our places have on local communities
We are working to improve how local people
can influence decisions relating to our assets
s0 we deliver places they prefer to live and work
around as well as shops restaurants cinemas
and public places where they choose to spend
time Relationships with local government and
community leaders are rmportant to our
business We build trust by supporting their
endeavours and wark with them to undel stand
and meet local challenges and aspirations

We make 1t easy for local people to mfluence
decisions refating to our assets so we deliver
ptaces they are pleased to bive and work
around as well as shops restaurants cinemas
and pubhic spaces where they choose to spend
time At Regent s Place the launch of a new
Commumity Fund is empowering our occupliers
lo support lacal projects and s strengthening
community links

For detail on our portfolio performance see
pages 36 to 47

For detail on our development pipeline
see lahles on pages 194 to 195

For detail on our developrient perfor mance
see pages 3710 39

For rnore inforeation on communities
www britishland com/community

Capital Efficiency

Qur capital 1s broadly batanced between

our Retad and our Office assets Investment
decisions are made across sectors hased

an the prospective returns of indvidual assets
We assess our capital allecation by sector
geography and assel levet hased on our
estimates of future internal rates of return
This helps 10 1dentify where our greatest
potential lies and where cur captal Is best
allocated Over the last five years we have sold
£3 4 billion of non-core asset/mature assets
and renvested the proceeds i bigh guality
Income generating assets and developments

Development rs an important part of our
husiness but 1t 15 also hugher risk than our
income producing assets dueto the ume delay
between commitment to a project and futly
letting the campleted buillding so we manage
our exposure carefully Development s linited
ta 15% of the total por tfolio {by vatue] with a
maximum of 10% to be developed speculatively
{1 e without a pre-let or residential pre-salef
atany one ime

We manage cur mix of equity and debt finarcing
te achieve the right balance between enhancing
returns for shareholders and the nsk of higher
leverage Our primary measure of leverage 1s
loan to value [LTV) on a proportionally
consclidated basts iwhich includes the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds and excludes
non-controlling interests in the Group s
subsidiaries} We aim 1o manage our LTV
through the property cycle such that our
hnancial position would remain robust in the
event of a sigmficant fall in property values Tis
means we will notincrease our leverage solely
on the basis of animprovement in markes yields

For further details on our acquisitians and
dispesals see the table on page 186

We access a broad range of debt finance on
attractive terms reflecting the scale of our

£350m

raised through a 1% coupen
convertible band in June 2073
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business combined with the quality of cur
dssets and rental income stream We raise

debt fromya var ety of sources across a spread
of maturtties to ensure the Group and s jomt
ventures and funds ai e appropriately financed
We alse maintain sigrificant undrawn loan
facilities 1o provide flexibiitty and suppor t current
and future regurernents of the business

We use stiateqic partrerships to leverage our
investments achieve benefits of scale and
spread risk Around one third of our owned
assets by value are in joint ventuwr es, including
Biroadgate and Meadowhall This approach
has enabled us to under take more ambitious
development projects including The
Leadenhall Building where we worked with
Oxford Proper ties Within these structures
we typically provide asset management
development corporate and finance services
for which we earn management and
performance fees enhanang our overatt
returns and strengthening our relattonships
with partners key customers and suppliers

We proactively manage oy assets 1o promate
therr long term sustainabtlity Our resource
efliciency programme continues to imprave
operatianal efliciency reduce ccoupler costs
and suppor twell-managed environments

We took a positive approach to the Government s
Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme auditing
ener gy use and impiementing add:tional
effictency opporiunites We are also nnovative
inour use of malertals to lower costs and secure
supply and consider on stte energy genes ation

at all our developments This yearwe retrofitted
photovoltac panels at St Stephens Hull aspart
of our plans to increase energy generation

and enhance 1evenues at our assets and we
continue our efforts to miunuse floed risk

Financral review see pages 49 to 53
&)

Fmancial policies and principles see pages
34 to 54

Delails on our carbon reduction
programme see page 48
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Placemaking s how we create atlractive
and engaging real estate which isin tune with
modern hiestyles and are Plares People Prefer

Actively managing our assetsis a core part of
ourbusiness We put our customers first and
invesi m the skills and resourceswhich help us
undersiand them better Ttusunderstanding
guides our wwvestment activities i om mvesting
and devetoping the night assets to enhancing
and enbivening them with a range of amenities
evenis and activibes This creates preference
for cur praperties helping to dive occupier
dermand growth in rents and captal values

— We —_
Connect

Design

- We —
Enhance

_ We e
Enliven
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We

Connect

ool )
Places which connect physically and digitatly (A EAk

with the people who use them, including & & &

local communities

Connecting ts ahout providing assets which
camplement people s bfestyles enabling them
lo integrate therr work and their leisure ime

It means places which are easy to access, 4 3

so we focus on assets with great transport S . bll
infrastructui e and those with convenient of our assets are withen close proximasty
access points or parking faciliies We often of a Crossrail station [opening 201£)
mvest to improve connections for pedestiians
and cyclists and we build local s elationships
connecting with local coramunities to better
under stand thetr needs We also think about
how digitally enabled we are and how we

can use these capabilites to create a

closer community

Building our exposure to Crossrail
When Crossrail opens in 2018 1t will transform
tal transport in London and the South East
increasing central London i ail capacity by 10%
and bringing an estirmated 1 5 miltion more people
towithin 45 rmunutes of central London Atready
Crossratt1s driving regener ation and economic
development At ound £4 bitlion of our assets

ai 2 located near Crossra and two of our Masterplanning a

London campuses Broadgate and Paddington destination for London

will have their own Crossrai stations Canada We have shared our initial ideas for the Canada
Water our 46-acre scheme i South London, Water Masterplan with the local community

i1 very ctose to Canary Wharfand from 2018 These inciude a 3 5 acre park two new public
will be st mindtes from the West End squares cycting and pedestrian friendly spaces

and dockside impr overnents so people can enjoy
and interact wath the water and wildisfe We are
also proposing a pedestriamised open arfugh
street with national and independent retatters
alongside new restaurants and cafes and a new
cutlure and enter tainment hub at the heart of
the town centre Our plans are at an early stage
and will evolve but creating a vibrant and
engaging environment will be our key focus
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S60m

shopper visits to Meadowhall
over 25 years

Reviving historic links

1 new deveclopments

At Aldgate Piace, desrgned by Allies and
Morrison we are reinstating an original
pedestrian st eet knk which sits above an old
Victorian service iunnel connecting Aldgate and
Aldgate East stations This public thoroughiare
will be reinvigorated with shops and cafes
bringing & new sense of communty to the area

Celebrating local heritage

Etk Mittin Qldham ts one of several assels
where we are using public ai t ta celebrate loca!
heritage and connect with local communities
Professional sculptor Emma Hunter worked

Elk Mill s cotton-spinning heritage and pgems
nspired by local people s stones feature ona
trio of sculptures in the style of spinning cotton

— e 4]

on the oy Hoor y s

@ o read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking

[

- SECI{‘GS -

Engaging with local communitics
Qur four th annal Cormmunity Day brought
together 200 Brinsh Land volunteers as well as
520 tacal jobseekers schoolchildren students
elderly residents and people with learming
disabdities across 20 community parinerships
Our partners commented on the commitment
of those involved reflecuing how the event helps
us strengthen tocal relatignships around our
London assets Forourvolunteersitisagreal
team buitding opporturuty which enables them
te interact with people of different ages and
backygr ounds as well as learning new skills

CGEPIECER WHAT?

with local people to create artwor ks illustrating S G ___ DMLY 'Ti e

Py C;:T -

=T

bobbins Bronze footprints are set nto paving e ~
stones around the Park recalling a time when ’ 'K";TEN‘ g T — -
mitl workers went barefoot to avoud slipping "‘I\.- e Tt L.

S
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We

Design

Buildings and environments which offer
the highest quality of design in both form
and function with engaging architecture
and a fully integrated public realm

We look beyond indwvedual builldings 1o think
about the spaces around them We focus on
assets where we are able 1o control the i oader
environrnent and can therefore undertake
broader and bolder design We also pioneer
new building technologies and the most
sustainable prachices

Great des gn s core to creating

Places People Prefer To demonsirate
our commitment (o iInngvation In =
design British Land 15 proud to 1
sponsot the London Des'gn Festival i

A
T T LY
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and leisure
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Making our developments distinctive
Yalding House our most recently completed
office development in the West End was home
to Radio 1 untdl 2012 Our refur bishment retained
much of the original chasacter of the building
the reception features an adjoining meeting

and waiing room cormplete with turntable

and extensive recor d collechion We believe

the disbinctive natut e of the budding will appeal
to creative and technology locused sectors
which have been a key area of growth across

the capitat In recent years

of developments ¢nirack to achieve
BREEAM Excellent for offices retal

o o 3 dmsq ft
Wi, g0 00D . qu
oo




Improving the public realm
at Paddington Central

We know from our recent survey of 1 000

office workers across the UK that outdoor
areas and gardens are a key part of the ideal
office We ve recently embarked on our second
phase of upgrades at Paddington Central
which will transferm the campus for the people
who work and tive there by creating a greener
more pedestrian friendly environment Our
plans include a Woodland Garden an autdoor
Games Room pr oviding activiies where people
can socialise a Library where people canrelax
and a Kitchen Garden with communal seating
in the summer months All enhancements are
being carefully phased and managed to
mimrimise distuption to retarllers residents
bulding occupants and visiters

Drawing inspiration

from local heritage

At Clarges Mayfair we are creating a new

and elegant landmark it 1s entirely rooted

i the history of the surrounding area

taking insprration from tocal heritage and
craftsmanship This s reflected in the fluted
design of the columns which are made from
Portland stone the delicate alummiem bronze
balustrades that are inspred by ihe branches
of the ptane trees lining Green Park and the
bread lace collars that were fashionabte in
16th century Mayfair

2.5m

number of visitors to
Broadgate Circle since
its re-designin 2015

Desigming for a low carbon tuture
At St Stephen s in Huil we have installed 1100
photoveliaic panels generating enough clean
power to fulfil a third of all electricsty demand
in the common areas The panels buitd on the
Centre s award-winning efficency programme
which has reduced landie: d energy by 40%
since 7010 saving occuprers £383 100 and
cutting carbon emissions by 2 470 tonnes
Other innovations inciude a rainwater
harvesting system which provides over

one mitlien Litres of water eachyear and

a food-to-water treastment ptant which
recycles 13 tonnes of food waste annually

¢13m

of energy savings for us and our
otcupiers through effrciency
reductions over the past four years

Delivering innovative design

At Glasgow For t we are building a inulti-storey
car parkwith four restaurants on sts ground
floor The bustding will be naturally venulated
with a sustainable wooden slated rear fagade
A corten steel facade with a punctured tree
designwill cover the front of the balding and
agreen lmving canopy will overhang the four
restaurant units The new car park 1s set in
awild forest therned buffer to the sui face

car park tncorporaiing natural play elements
for young children

@ To read more case studies go o
www britishtand com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

— We —
Enhance

Quality occupiers alongside a broad food, beverage
and leisure offering, reflecting the growing expectations
of our occuplers and customers

We enhance our assets by improving the
breadih depthand mix of occupiers and the
physical space at our properties Retatwely
ssmple improvements such as cafes and
attractive places to rest or have lunch outside
the offtce or while you re shopping can make
a big diffet ence to the places people work

or shop

Incorporating open spaces

At Aldgate Place over 50% of the footprintis
dedicated to new public realm spaces including
two landscaped gardens pedestran streets

66(y well thought-out play spaces and water features

0 The devetopment mciudes a four -star hotel

of people who used Click & cafes restaurantsand sheps The landscapmg

Collect across our portfolio designed by Townshend Landscape Ai chitects

went on to spend st our assets reflects the contempor ary style of the City but
mamtams the industrial and historical legacy

Investing 1n assets of the East End

with great potential

New Mersey Speke 1s the therd largest
shoppmng park in the UK with annual footfalt of
8 9 million and a third of visitors using click and
collect Since the year end we have increased
oui hotding in New Mersey Speke o Just over
&6% We have approval for an 11-screen cnema
[which 1s pre-let} and six new restaurants
totalling 29 000 sg ft asweltas plans fora
comprehensive refurbishment introducing
double height glazed shop frents and a new

custorner setvices po 330,000 Sq ft

of new space planned af Meadowhall 5 proposed
rew Leisure Halk
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Enhancing the environment

for our own team

Our focus on enhanoing our assels includes our
own head office at York House and Broadgate
Estates office at Paddington Central both of
which we recently refurthshed with Broadgate
Estates achieving the world s first BREEAM . -

Outstanding Fit-Oui Surveys show that peopte 99(y
{eel happier healthier and more productive in (U
the new space which has more naturat kght
better views and greenery as well as improved
space planning to encourage active living and
socialainteraction This seis the tane to promiote
wellbetng and productivity across our portfolio

of stati find cur newly
refurtnshad offices an
enjoyable place to work
up from 595

Listening to our customers

The data we collect from across our 1etait
portfoiio gives us a ctear 1dea of what matters
to our customers In response to customer
feedhack we have been upgrading assets

in the por tfolio to improve shopper satisfaction
Enhancements include additional food and
beverage options, better car parking and
improved public reatm such as new customer
walkways cycle routes seating and attractve
landscaping as well as childrens play areas
and tolet facitiies All lightbulbs installed are
energy efftcient taps and toilets are designed
to use as little water as possible and tmber
comes from guaranleed sustainable sources

Leveragimg Broadgate Estates

We have brought the management of our

relait assels in-hause through our subsidiary
Broadgate Estates aleading property
management company We are working to
enhance the ofter for customers standardising
operational excetlence and 1 oting out
value-added services including technology and
consumer services Broadgate Estates already
delivers best in class service across our office
assels and for third parties including many
leading commercial and retail landlords

We have extended its remit to cover retail

as we work logether to ensure alt our assets
are recognisably Places People Prefer

To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

— We —
Enliven

Events and activities and best in class services
bring life and a real sense of community to
our buildings

We enliven our properties by holding events
and activities which benefit our customers
and the lacal communities which surreund
thern We atso provide bestin class services
which improve the averall experience for
our customers

Encouragmg health and wellbeing
Last summer we celebrated health and
welibeing week at Paddington Central to
encourage campus residents wos Kers and
visitars Lo achieve a healthy work/Ufe balance
The schedute featured fi ee health-themed
pap-ups treatments events classes and
give-aways anmed to relax energise or activate
the mund We are now piloting wellbeing and
produchivity Innovations with our occupiers
here who see promoting wellbeing asan
important part of then sirategy to attract

and retain the best talent

Promoting public art : .
Across our pertfalio we have used publicact
to bring our assets to bfe InJanuary this year
we sponsor ed an instatlation called Platomic
Spin by Nathaniet Rackowe ai Regent s Place
as part of Lumiere London a free outdoor light
festival Over four evenings in January the city
was ransformed with an exti aordinary ariay
of installations turning the capital nto a
winter playground

More than

800

people World Host customer
service trained at our places
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Celebratmg the summer
Last sumemer our recently developed Old Market

E\'olvmg traditional retaid space shopping destination m Hereford launched

At Meadowhall we are planming a £300 million Herefest aumque month-long summer
Leisure Hall torespend te our customers programme of music street theatre arts and
changing Lifestyles where shopping is crafts and tood and drink An tcomic Routernaster
mncreasingly seen as a leisure activity bus was parked at the centre and inside visiors
Comprising 330 000 sq fi of space the enjoyed workshops makeovers cake sampling
preposed Lewsure Hatl will add a range sessions and cookery demonstratians

of dining and entertarnment experiences
not currently available at the centre
Housed under an elegant giazed roof the
Leisure Hall wilk integr aie with the existing
centre to create a new mult-levelled
landscaped mall with fugh quality internal
and external spaces {os promotional and
community uses

- i - 7 ”
- iﬂf‘: P !> -
~ ¥ Twsr S : ;

Mgre than

600

peaple al our assels are
Dementia Friendlytrained

Attracting all ages to our assets
As pari of our comprehensive programme

of asset upgrades we have designed and bwilt
play areas for our younger visitors at Tollgate
3000, Colchester Wheatley Doncaster Orbital
Swindon and Elk Milt Oldham All the play
areas are heritage-themed and reflect
feedback from shopper s and loral heritage
experts At Swindon a Spithre art sculplure
and play aiea1eference local industrial links
to the manufacture of the Supermanine Spitfire
and designs at Oldham reflect the oid cotton
mitk which formerly occupied the site with old
colton cans adapled to form play equipment
and seating areas

5.5m sq ft

of nat space at Canada Water
which we planto develop

@ To read more case studies qo to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

We are focusing the business around
long term trends and continue to see
the benefits of recent investment

Orverview

2015/16 was another strong pertod for the

UK property market overall despite the more
challenging macro environment London
contirued to outperform the rest of the UK
Perfor mance was driven by rental growth

as opposed 1o the yield compression seen in
recent years with prime yields supported by
rents which ¢centinued to nise in both the West
End and the City The occupational market
overall remains favourable although more
recently there s evidence that some large
occuprers are delaying decisions ko take space
untll after the upcoming EU referendum
Inretall demand remains for prime assets
but wider uncertainty has impacted investment
market volumes in recent months The retal
occupaucnal market strengthened overall
reftecting impr oving consumer confidence
and rising real wages However since the turn
of the year there have been some signs that
consumer confidence and spending have
started to weaken

Qur pot tfolio per formed well overail
benefitting from our strategy to increase our
focus on London and balance our pertfolio
between Offices and Retail London and the
South East now represents 45% of the portfolio
compai ed to 56% uix years ago 1he porifolio
15 alse broadly batanced between Oflices
{49% on a pro-forma basis] and Retail This
compares with six years ago when Offices
accounted for 33% of the portfolte Our Offices
and Retail businesses are increasingly
comptementary reftecting our focus on
cammpuses in Offices and mulb-let centres

Portfolio Performance

£14.6bn

UK portiolio vatuation

11.3%

Totat properiy return

3.3%

ERV growth

6.8%

Caprtalreturn

6.8%

Lettings/renewals varsus ERV

98.8%

Occupancy rate

Valuation uplift

fnvestment Totat

Valuation portfolie Developments portiolie

Year ended 31 March 2016’ £m % % %o
Retan & Lewsure 7341 24 32 24
Offices & Residential 7024 17 127 118
Canada Water 283 - 17 17
Total 14,648 b4 94 57

* Ona proportionately consolidated basis

36 Briish Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2006

in Retail whych are becoming more mixed

use In addition the stable income generated
by the Retail business has altowed us 1o Invest
in mor e cyclical Office development projecis

Qur porttolio generated a total property

return of 11 3%, comprising a capital return

of 6 8% and an income return of 4 2% We
outperformed IPD benchmarks by 50 bps on
acapital returns basis o 200 bps per annuim
ana 9 year view continuing a consistent irend
of outper formance Total portfotio valuation
was up & 7% to £14 6 bitbion Thus performance
tncludes the unpact of a 1% increase in stamp
duty for commercial properly announced by
the Chancellor in March Excluding the stamp
duty increase the underlying portfolio valuation
was up 77% The standing mvestment portiotio
was up 4 4% and accounted for ¢90% of the
iotal upbift the contribution from developments
was tawer as the completion of 5 Broadgate in
July 7015 brought our major 2010 development
programme {¢ « close

Perfor mance was driven by ERV growth
across the husiness of 5 3% outper forming
the market by 130 bps with a far tower
contribution from yield compression which
was 17 bps compared 10 48 bps in 2014/1%
Overall our actions accounted for atound 0%
of perfoimance in both the Retail and Offices
por tiolios Offices and Residential delivered a
valuation upliit of 11 8% driven by ERV growth
of 9 6% and cur Retail and Leisure portioho
grew by 2 4% also benefiting from 2 4% of ERV
growth Within our Retail & beisure portfolio
our multi-let assets were up 2 8% with ERV
growth of 3 4%

We are pleased with the shape of aur por tiotio
with our weightings in Retail and Offices
broadly balanced Inthe past the tncome
gener ated from the Retail side of the por ticlie
atlowed us to build out our significant 2610
development programme while maintaining
our dividend and gomg forward as tachnology
transforms how we tive and work we see that
the breadih of our pos tiolio will provide a
competitive agdvantage




Imestment Activity

fhe gross value of our iInvestment activity
since 1 Aprit 2015 as measured by our share
of acquisitions disposals capital spend on
devetopments and other capital projects was
£13 bstlion Ona net basis ouractmty was
broadly balanced We maintained our capital
discipline taking advantage of supportive
markets tc sell mature or non-core assets
and remvesting in cur existing business and
inselected acquisitians principally adjacent
to existing assets

The most significant acquisition was

One Shetdon Square Paddington Centrat
acquired for £210 rmithon in April last year
This brought our total ownership at the campus
t0 836 000 sq ftincluding 4 Kingdom Street
which 1s under construction with the potential
to develop a further 240 000 sq ft at 5 Kingdom
Street We also acquired an additional £95
milbon mterest (gross asset valuel i the
Hercules Umit Trust| HUT ] portfolio bringing
our gross investment over the last two years
to £492 million at an effecuive net imitrat yield

af 6 0% Our holding now stands al 75%

In lne with our strategy we continved io
reshape the Retail portfolio with £420 nmutbion
of mature or non-cor e asset disposals in the
period Key transactions included the sale

of Rotherham Parkgate and Birstait {for

£120 million and £31 mullion respectively
[both our sharel We also sold mine standalone
foodstores totaiting £122 millien reducing our
totat superstore holding to £0 8 &illion from
£1 3 billion two years ago We no longer have
any exposure to the European mar ket since

9.0 years

Lease tengthlofirst break

¢1.3bn

Gross mvestment activity

£307m

Capttatinvestment

£332m

Acquisitions

£618m

Pisposals

selling the rema:ning £43 millien of owr
Eurapean assets in line with our exit strategy

in Offices we sold 39 Viclonia Streetin July

last year for £139 mulbion at an attractive yield
of less than 4% crysiallising an attractive

IRR of over 20% We also sold £59 milion

{our shar e] of residential properties on average
3% ahead of valuation and continued io acheve
completions on exchanged viits Two thirds

by value [our sharel were at The Hempel
Colectian in{ine with our strategy we will

Retail Difrces Resideniial Totat
Fram  Apri 2015 £m £m fmn £m
Devetopment Spend 17 140 30 187
Capitat Spend 99 19 2 i20
Purchases 100 232 - 332
Sales [420) {139 (5% (618}
Net Investment (204) 252 127} 2
Gross Investment £36 530 91 1,257

' Ona propertonately consolidated basis

market no further units at Clarges Mayfair until
practical completion in 2017 This totlows our
successful pre-sales carmpaign in September
2014 where we pre-sold [ust over 50% by value

Development

We completed 908 000 sq {t of developments
in the period with 3 Broadgate accounting for
710 06D sq ft The completion of 5 Broadgate
marked the concluston of the 2 7 mullion sq §t
development programrme star ted in 2010
which genarated profits of £1 1 billion and an
IRR of over 30% We also completed Yalding
House a 29 D00 sq ft office-led refurbishment
in the heart of Fizrovia as well as 167 000 sq ft
of Retail developments including a retail
extension at Gtasqgow lNort and a leisure
extension at Whitetey

Our under construction programme covers
629000 sq ft representing a speculative Lapital
commitment of £330 mullton Frus principally
includes 192 0G0 sq ft at our super prime
residential-led development Clarges Mayfair
where we have already pre-sold over 50% of
the residential unrts by value and 147 000 sg ft
of office space at 4 Kingdoen Sireet an our
Paddingion Ceatral campus

We are malung good progress with our near
term development pipetine which increased
frorm 15 millien sq ftin March last year to

2 0 mulbon sq ft We have built optionality into
oul pipeline and are pregressing the projecis
s0 we can be ready to commit when the time
5 right

The three largest schertesin the near

term pipeline reflect office lease expiries
over the nexi 2 years at Broadgate and
Regent s Place where we expact to deliver
a signrficant Increase in the averall floor space
on 1edeveloprment At 100 Liver pool Street
we recenlly received a resolution to grant
plarning consent for a revised 520 000 sq ft
redevelopment incorporating atarger retatl
component and at 1 Finsbury Avenue

we recewved consent on a 303 000 sq ft
redevelopment At 1TntonSquare on our
Regent s Place campus we are progressing
the design for a substanual refurbishment
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Strategic Report

PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Our planming applicatien for 340 000 sq ft of
mixed use space al Blossom Streel Shoreditch
was alse granted consent having been ¢called
in by the Mayor of London The High Court has
since rejected a Judiciat Review of the Mayor s
decision to take over the application but it1s
unlikely that we will start onsite in 2016 At

5 Kingdom Street on our Paddington Central
campus we expect to subrnit a revised
plarmng application for a lar ger scheme

by the end of the year

In Retait we will continue 1o enhance our offer
with a strong near term pipeline of leisure
exlensions inctuding 102 000 sq ft at Drake
Circus Plymouth and 64 000 sqft at New
Mersey Spreke We atso receved planming
consent at Faling Broadway for the converston
of an office block to 34 000 sq ft of private rented
residential apartments We also added Crawley
Homewares Park to the near term pipeline
where we obtained planning consent to
redevelop the existing Homebase into a 52 000
sq {t homewares park comprising 5 units

Looking abead to our medium term pipeline
it Retail we submitted a planming applieation
for the £262 multion lour share £131 mulkion]
mxed use redevelopment of Eden Walk
Kingston The 562 000 »q ft development
willinclude public space teisure retail and
residential We aie also i public consultation
for a 330 006 sq {t {eisure scheme at
Meadowhall tn Offices we subrutted a
planning applicatian foi the redeveloprnent of
7-3Finsbury Avenue which seecks 1o increase
the area fiom 189 000 sq ft to 550 000 sq it

Committed Developments & Pipeline

The most ssgrificant progectin the medium term
mpetine 1s at Canada Water At the beginning of
February 2016 we were delighted to welcome
Roger Madelin 1o the tearmn to head up this
exciting 4b6-acre redevelopment opportunity

As Chief Executive/Jamt Chief Executive of
Argent Roger was direcily responsible for
leadhng @ number of significant developments
and from 2000 led the team on the 67-acre
King s Cross developrment CanadaWater is
one of the largest regeneration projacts Insmer
London it has good transport infrastructure,
with access ta the (ity West End and Canary
What f via the Jubilee kine but also to emergng
areas around Shoreditch as well as South West
l.ondan wia the London Overground

Ptanning poiicies bave now been adepted
within the London Borough of Southwark and
the Greater London Authority which encourage
and are suppor iive of 3 significant guantum of
mixed development in February 2014 public
censultation commenced regarding the current
masterplan proposats Over the coming
months British Land and Southwark Council
will 1eview the responses recewved from the
local community

Studies te assess how the proposed quantum
and mix of develepment might best be
configured and delivered over time are

curs ently being undet taken alongside detaled
financial modelling Discussions with a numbet
of prospective occupiers from the retasl
letsure workspace and the Tull residential
spectrum dr e assisting us in this process

The implications of the Governrment s proposed

Housing Bilt and of any emerging policies
from the new Londan Mayor will be assessed
and incorparated where necessary

We anticipate a programme and resource
schedule to prepare evatuate and consider a
planring submusston will have been produced
and agreed with Southwark Counail by sumener
2016 with the ambition to subrmut an outline
planrng application in 2617 As we work towards
a planning submissian we wilt conlinue to collect
rents of £8 mithan per annum t1om the shopping
centre and leisure park at Surrey {luays

During the year we conbinued (o support
diversity and trainmg inriataves that make young
peopie of att backgrounds aware of real estate
careers inctuding Pathways ta Property and
Budding Brunels aswell as apprenticeships
and local employment programmes such

as Broadgate Connect Together with our
suppliers we supported 120 apprenticeships
atour places in the year In addiion a pilot
study on fous developments revealed that 60%
of spend went withun 25 miles and over 50%
went ta small and medwem sized enterprises
fuelling regional ecanomies around cur assets

@ More details on the portfelio property
performance indwidual developments
and assets acquired during the year can
be found in the Retail & Leisure and Offices
& Residential reviews on pages 40 10 47
and 1n the detailed supplementary lables
on pages 184 10195

Britsh Land share
Current Costto Pre-lat Residential Pre sold
Sqft value camplete LRV ERV =nd value residential
A1 31 March 2016 000 £m £m £m fm fm £m
Completed in Period 908 553 13 237 215 - -
Under Construction 629 605 204 16 1 a2 457 358
Near term Pipeline 2.9 1,450
Medium term Pipeline 7175

' Dn a proporuonately consoldated bass lexcept area which1s shown at 100%]
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Our development pipeline

On site and comnutted

4 Kingdom Street

147,000 sq it

Completing 2017

Office development at Paddington Central an 1 acre
rmixed use campus i London s West End

ST

Clarges Mayfair

192,000 sq ft

Completing 2017

Mixed use development in Mayfair comprising 34 high
end apartments together with retait and office space

Aldgate Place, Phase 1

221,000 sqfc

Completing 2014
A residential development

Near term

5 Kingdom Street

240,000 sq i

Onsite 2017
Dtlice development at Paddington Centrat

Blossom Street, Shoreditch

340,000 sq ft

Onsite 2017

Character offices ina regeneration area deally
sutted to the needs of small and medwm sized
ocLuprers

100 Liverpool Street

520,000 sq ft

Onsite 2017
Qffice refurishment at Broadgate increasing capacity
and improving local connections and public spaces
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1 Finsbury Avenue

303,000 sq ft

0On site 2017

Difice refurbishment at Broadgate increasing capacity
and improving local cenngctions and public spaces

Plymouth Leisure

102,000 sq ft

Onsite 2015
Letsure exlension including a ¢inema

Speke Leisure

66,000 sq ft

Onsie 2014
Leisure extension inciuding a cinema
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Strutegic Report

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW

Our Retail strategy is focused
on creating outstanding places
for modern consumer lifestyles

Key hughlights of the year

$4.3bn

Portfotio valuation [Britsh Land share]

4.8%

Total property return

2.4%

ERV growth

2.5%

Capital return

8.0v%

Lettings/renewals versus ERV

99.04%

Occupancy rate

98 years

Lease tength to Hirst break

40

L r

Orverview

The way people shop and spend thew leisure
time continues to evolve with technology lying
at the heart of this It has become increasingly
clear that while online sales continue to grow
physical space remains at the heai t of how
people shop But teday successful destinations
need 1o be about more than just shopping -
they are more mixed use oftenwith food drink
and leisure and are more embedded in the
cormnmunities wher e they are located Our
strategy in Retail 1s to focus on creating
outstanding places for modern consumer
lifestytes places for people to shop eat

and be entertained

We have been progressively reducing our
exposure to smaller and single-let assets

and locusing the business around our larger
multi-let assets where we can controt the
environment in which we operate and use our
placemaking experlise to drive value Asa
result of these actions our mulb-let portiolio
now accounts for over 70% of our Retast
business up from 60% six years age We now
manage and repoi t our multi-let portfolio atong
regional and local ines reflecting how we see
consumers spend their wme and money The
data we cotlect tells us that reqional and local
assets fulfil dhffer ent consurmer needs but
welt-located and well-configured assets can
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Charles
Maudsley
Head of Retast
and Lelsure

be equally successiul in today s emni-channet
world Regonal assets have a wide retail and
leisure cffer a bigger catchment and langer
dwetl time Local assets are typscally smalter
in scate hughly convenient and accessible and
often with more local community amenities
and activities

Over the year the retail occupatianal market
strengthened reflecting rising employment

and real wages slongside [alling ol prices
Occupancy rates tmproved as retail and lessure
aperators continued to expand trial new formats
and focus on takeng space m the most attr active
locations Results have been positive overall
espectatly for food and hever age operators and
retailers with mature ornni-channel st ategies
Thus has created occupter tension driving rents
al those assets offering high levels of faotfall
and sales in high quality environments Since
tlhe turn of the year however consumer
confidence has fallen and retail sales have
dipped with some adrminstr atians infashion
likety reflecting concer ns about the iImpending
£U referendum and wider global economic

and pelitical uncertaity

The calendar year 2015 was also a good

year for the retail investment market and a
record breaking year for shapping parks with
£2 6 hillion of deals transacted Since the turn




of the year there has been a lack of benchmark
1etanl transactions and a slowdown In actvity
with the majority of deals carried over from
2015 Oemand remawms strong for prime
mutti-let retal assets and s mereasingly
diverse but there s a imited amount of stock
on the market Investors have become maore
discerning with increased polanisation betwean
prime and secandary assets and demand for
secondaty assets showing signs of softeiing

Portfoho Performance

Qur Retail & Leisure porifolo valuation was up
2 4% over the yearto £7 3 tithon  includtng the
umpacl of the recent 1% increase in stamp duty
for commercial property Excluding the effects
of the starnp duty change vatuation uplift was
broadly the same in each half ataround 1 8%
di ven by out actions which contributed 60%
of the uplift The portiolio outperformed the
market by 20 bps on a capital returns basis
and 30 bps on a total returns basis

ERV across the portfolto was up 2 4%
fcompared to 1 4% for the market as whole]
with growth in the second half of the year
higher at 1 5% compared with 0 9% in the fu st
half ERV growth was stranger in the multi-tet
porttolic at 3 4% compared to 3 0% in 2014/15
with the accelerating ERV trend broadly
balanced across both regionat and local

Retail lettings and renewals
by sector (by rent)

Ve

AN

N

M Fashion & Footwear

® Food & Lesure

"Health & Beauty

W General Retail

mDly

S 0ther

WElecincal & Mobile Phone

3%
18%
16%
13%

3%

subsectors leading 1o IPD outperformance
of 210bps demonstrating the quality of aur
portfolic The Retat portfotio conumued 10
henefit{zam yield movement over the year
with ¥1bps of yield compression compared
10 47 bps in the prior year The average NEY
now stands at 5 0%

Asset Management

Ouwr focus on the strongest best located
schemes and our consistent approach to
deliver the most appropriate offer and standar d
of service continued o di ve good dermand for
our space S0 aCccupancy across the portfolio
reiained high at 99% Footfallwas up 3 0%
outperformeng the market by 440 bps and our
retailers performed well wilth their in-store
sales up 2 4% outperforming the market by
200 bps

We provide a {lexible and atfordable proposition
tor occupiers with an average rent to sales
ratio [excluding mternes sales)] of 10% We
signed 903 000 sq 1t of tettings/renewals on
altractive terms with investment lettings and
renewals on average 8 0% ahead of ERV We
saw good demand for units of all sizes including
tar ger units with over 450 000 sq ft of lethings/
renewals on floor areas over 10 000 sq ft Using
our detailed consumer data we continued 1o
improve the occupier rmux at owr local and
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Stratedic Report

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW CONTINUED

66

We continue to enjoy strong relationships
with our major occupiers, and work
closely with them to deliver the space

they want.”

regional assels adding quality brands and
broadening our leisure offering to keep pace
with consumer needs We signed 35 new food
and beverage occupiers and 2 cinernas adding
174 000 sq L ot food beverage and leisure
space to our Retall operations through letungs
and extensions We settled T 6 mullion sq ft of
rent reviews 3t 3 8% ahead of previous passing
rent and only 6% of occupiers decided to leave
on expiry which gives further confidence that
we are creating the right kind of space for
occupiers We saw like-for-like net rental
income growth across the Retail portfolio

of 1 4%

We continue to enjoy strong relationships

with our major occuplers and work closely
with them to delivet the space they wani

The mvestments we are making to improve
our assets continued Lo attract new brands
and pepular restaurant providers ko out
regionat and locat assets Priumark recently
opened 68 000 sq ft of space al Broughton
Chester and Foi t Kinaird Edinburgh and both
locations are trading well At Glasgow Fortwe
altracted 7 new occuptei s out of lown including
Pandora Kike Milano GBK and Foot Asylum
This has improved the quality and range of
occupters avaltable to consumers and diwen
rental growth

In o der to attract such strang occupters to
our mult-let assets we continued to Invest
across the portiolio to deliver the highest
quality retall environments QOver the course

of the year we spent £80 million on asset
management nutiatives and the posiive irnpact
of this s reflected both 1n our valuation andin
our operationdl metrics Actinty included the
£14 muilion refurbishment of Eating Broadway
which campleted i Novernber 2015 yielding
posstive results inciuding a 3% uplftin retailer
sales over the year along vth several new
tenanis Wasabi EAT and Smuggle This resulted
in 7 5% ERV growth a1 Ealing Broadway in the
second half of the year At Teesside Stockton
our ongoing refurbishment has led to new

out of town entrants including Paperchase
laking space We completed a programme

of upgrades on five assets which included
improved new customer walkways parent

903,000 sq ft

of retarl and teisure lettings and renewals

42 Briish Land | Annual Report and Accounts 7016

and chitd parking provision customer service
centres high quakity landscaping community
al tworks cetebrating local heritage and
children s play a1 ecas We are already seeing
the positive impact of these works through
improved customer satisfaction an increase
in retaier sales and ERV growth

In lime with our aim Lo provide a consistent

high level of service for our occupers and
consumers we have taken the property
management of our reta! assels in-house

lo Broadgate Estates our wholly owned
subsidiary and one of the UK s leading praperty
management companies in the year we rolled
out WortdHost customer service training to
more than B8O peaple at our places and
Dementia Friendly training to over 600 pecple
maksng sure thal from cleaning and security to
matntenance and management our teams have
the under standing and skitls 1o welcome and
suppor tvisitors We are delighied by the positive
feedback from visitor s and we ar e recognising
team members wha are going above and
beyond through eur Awards for Excellence

Meadowhall had a strong year Sales at the
centre were 2 2% ahead with retalers on

the returbished premiurn mall sigmificantly
outpet farrming We at e on site with a £60 million
internal refur bishment ahead of which we have
already signed some high guality new brands
ncluding Diesel Joules Kiko Milano Jack Wills
and Tapas Revolution Overall long term deals
al Meadowhall were signed at an average of

6 3% ahead of ERV and like-for-kike income was
up 5 7% over the year Looking lorward we are
in public cansultstion for 3 330 000 sq ft leisure
scheme which will cement Meadowhall s
posibion as among the best retail and lessure
destmations in the UK

We commissioned a review by PwC which
dentified Meadowhall s social and ecenomic
contributian to the Sheffield City Region and
the wider UK for the first ume wath Ipin
every £1and one tobin every 100 i the region
tinking back to Meadowhall aswell as 660
apprenticeships over five years The Centre
has also contnbuted £7 3 billion gross value
added to the UK econormy over 25 years and




£303 muillion tax over five years Environmental
achievements include 42% less energy use
over six years and 17 000 tonnes of waste
recycled over ten years Looking forward
around half the materals and tabour for our
Meadowhall refurbishment are being sourced
from companies witinn the Shetiield City
Regon bringing a further £25 million to

the regional economy

Emestment Activity

Gross mvestment activity over the year was
£636 million with tatal sales of £420 multon
{BL share} and total acquisitions of £100 milkion
BL share}

We continued to reshape the portfolio
disposing £420 mullion of mature or non-core
assels Key transactionsincluded the sate of
HUT assets in Rotherham Parkgate and Birstall
for £120 rullion and £31 milion respectively
[both our shave] We also disposed of nine
standalone foodstores totalling £122 millon
This inctuded the F40 million sale of Tesco
Bursledon at a 5 0% net initial yield and the
£32 rrullion sale of Samsbury s ishington at
anetmual yield of 396% This has reduced

aur totat superstore holding to £C 8 bilthion from
£1 3 billion two year s ago We have a further
£48 mullion of superstores under offer ata NIY
of 4 29 which will further reduce our holding
to £0 7 bitien

We acquired an additonal £95 milien mterestin
the HUT paor tiolio of shopping parks increasing
our owner ship from 69 2% to 75 3% over the
year On average these units weie acquiied

at NAV representing an eflective net inial

yield of 4 3% [based on actual acquisilion costs]
With the disposals made in the year we have
rebalanced the HUT por tfoltio and i February
HUT umtholders resolved to replace Schioders
with Crestbnidge as manager

We completed 169000 sq §t of developments
over the year The 57000 sg 1 leisure extension
al Whiteley opened in November 2015 and has
traded well wath sales growth of 8 2% n the
second half The 112 000 sq ft Marks and
Spencer anchared retait extension at Glasgow
Fort opened at the start of the year providing

a streng additional anchor to the scheme with
footfatlncreastng by 6 7% The new 12 000 sq ft
tessure quarter and 600 space multi-storey car
park are under censiruction at Glasgow Fort
and wilt complete later in the year the new
space is already exchanged or under olfer
atrecord level remts and includes new out

of town occuprers Thatkhun and GBK

Our 254 008 near term development pipeline
tnctudes 168 000 sq ft of letsure extensions and
86 000 sq ft of redevelopment At Drake Circus
Plymouth where we have permission for a

102 GO0 sq {t lessure scheme including space
for 14 restaurants adjacent to the asset we

$6306m

Gross investment activity

169,000 sq ft

of retald and lessure developments completed
over the year

expect to take vacani possession of the bus
station site later this yea: We have already
pre-let space o Cineworld for a 12 screen
cinema as welt as Byron Wagamama and Zizzt
Al New Mersey Speke we received consent
for a 46 000 sq {t lewsur e extension with an
11screen cinema also pre-let to Cinewaorld
and surestaurants Already we have exchanged
or are under offer on six restaurant umits and
in the man part of the scherne Next has
renewed its lease and will extend s trading
spaceto 48 000 sq ft

We have also received planning consent

at Ealing Broadway for the conversion of an
office block to 34 000 sq ft of private rented
residential apartments This marks the next
stage in our development plan for this asset
and follows a successful C14 million
1efurbishment of the centre completed in
November 2015 Planming permussion has
also been granted for the redevelopment of a
Hormebase at Crawley Inio a new 52 000 sq ft
homewares park

Looking lui ther ahead to the mediurmn term
dutingthe year we submirtted a planming
application for a £262 million lour share

£131 million]) mixed use redevelopment of
EdenWatlk Kingston tomclude 562 000 sq ft
public space, leisut e retad and residential

At Meadowhall public consultation has started
on our 330 000 sq ft leisure extension Across
our neai and medwm term pipeline we are
on track to achieve BREEAM Excellent ot Very
Good ratings on 464 000 sq ft of retail and
leisute space reflecting strong performance
onwellbeing efficiency ecelogy and other
sustainalnlity criteria
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Strategic Report

OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW

We have used our placemaking skills

to drive
London o

Key highlights of the vear

<4.0bn

Portfolo valuation [Briush Land sharel

15.49%

Total property return

9.6%

ERV growth

12.0%

Capital return

5.6%

Lettings/renewals versus ERV

98.69%

Occupancy rate

4.9 years

Lease length to first break

£

' .

"
Osverview

Landon agam delivered geod absolute

and relative perfor mance over the year
contirusng to benefit from frends such as
strong relative econgmic growth population
growth globalisation of labour and capital
and infrastructure-led regeneration OQur
Offices & Residential business grew to

£7 G bidlion from £4 0 tillion 2 year ago
driven by valuation uplitt of 11 8%

Our strategy 1s focused on using ou
ptacemakng skills to drive further
improvement at our campuses which account
for over 70% of our Offices portfolio thr ough
development public realm improvements and
the introduction of a greater range of uses

We are also using these placemazking skills

at our standalone assets which allow usta
experiment with differ ent products - such

as Yalding House - and also provide hquidity
ta the portfolio - such as the disposal of

39 Vicioria Street Our developrment capabilibes
are a competitive advantage enabling us lo
improve our campuses and deliver vatue

to cur shareholders

The accupattonal mar ket in London remained
strong seeing healthy demand throughout
the year With Central London vacancy at

2 8% compared to the long term average of
53% prime rents conhnued 1o rise However
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further improvement at our

ffice assets, delivering value
for shareholders

Tun Roberts
Head of Offices
and Residential

n recent months there have been signs of a
slowdown Llikely due to the EU referendum
Take up1s Likely to slow further in the short
term but long term we believe that London s
globhal position wili endure

The investment market also remaned healthy
teflecting the fundamental attractions of
Londan growingients good liquidity and a
scarcity of mncome return around the worltd
Demand from globat 2nd domestic investors
rematned robust despite the historically tow
yrelds and while investment volumes have
fallen since January firsi guarier transactions
at £3 5 billion we: e 8% ahead of the S year
average Importantly there have beena number
of transactions which support current yields

Inresudentisl the prime mar ket has been
impacted by both increased supply and recent
{ax changes and transacuon volumes have
slowed [nihe super prime markel thereis
conttnued emphasis on the quality of stock
and although London continues 1o be viewed
as attraciive volumes have moderated The
mamsiream market in Lendon has remained
telatively robust with steady demand

We continued to reduce our i esidential
commutment through further pre-sales at

The Hempel and Aldgate Place and with only
£292 mullton of umits remaining our restdential




husiness represents @ manageable amount

of our portfolio The majonty of the remaining
uniis by value ar e at Clarges Maytair which we
wilt not mar ket untit completion in late 2017 and
15 a scheme which we belteve will still generate
strong interest

Portfolio Pertormance

We continued to henefit from owr focus on
London The value of our Gffices and Residential
portfolio was up 11 8% to £7 0 billion including
the impact of the recent 1% increase in stamp
duty for commerctal property The drivers of
valuation growth shifted substantially over the
yedr with our actions accounting for 30% af
growth in the fir st kalf, and atmost all growth
1n the second hall We saw inward yield shift
of 21 bps across the Office portfolio compared
1051 bps last year reflecting the slowdown in
the nvestment market

The West End and City portfolios were up

12 8% and 11 1% respectively with the West
End portfolio showeng a particularly strong
performance in the second half in partdue to
the 15% uplift on the West End developments
I'he Residential portfoliowas up 5 7% This
mavement translales into strong averalt
capitalreturn of 12 0% ahead of the IPD
sector benchrnark by 90 bps

The Offices and Residentialinvestment portfolio
was up 11 7% driven by 9 6% ERV growth As
our development pipeline completed standing
investments have become an increasingly
important contributor to perfor mance
accounting for almost 90% of the upliftin the
year Developments delivered vatuation uplift

of 12 7% with strong perfor mance at 4 Kingdam
Street which saw a valuation uplit of 42%

Office letangs and renewals
by sector (by rent)

o

W Banks & Financial Services
B Professional & Corporate
LIMT

W Retal

M Manufactunng

B Government

Minsurance Co s

B Other Business

11.89%

valuation uplift in oifices

£3.8m

of annualised rent added
through rent reviews

383%
195%
1B3%
9 5%
7 2%
54%
39%
08%

Asset Management

Bespite delivering 2 2 rmillion sq [t of
developments in the last 3 years our portfolio
15 now virtually fully let reflecting the strength
of occupational demand and the quality of our
space Asaresult overall letiing volumes st
2946 009 sq ft are below recent years levels
but we continue 1o agree deals on terms 3 6%
ahead of ERV

We added £3 8 million of annualised rent
through rent reviews on 687 G60 sq ft of space
an uplift of 17% compared to previous passing
rent Qur campuses are relatively affordable
and with 1 8 million sq ft of rent reviews 1o
settle in the next 18 rnonths we are wetl placed
to capture rentat growth gaing forward
Average ERVs at Paddington and Regent s
Ptace at £46 psf and £57 psi 1 espectively are
low relative to core West End and at Broadgate
the average 1s £57 psf Overall our portfoliois
now 10% reversionary (7% City 11% West End}

In the City The Leadenhalt Building ts now
8% let or under offer from B4% at the start
of the year with just one of the top floors to tet
we continued ta sel new rental hrghs i the Crty
We have heen particularly pleased not only by
the eccupier interest but also the critical
acclasmt has receved with the Leadenhall
Bullding named "Building of the Year™ by the
Worshipiul Company of Chartered A ctutects
We were also delighted that The Duke of
Cambidge and Prince Harry formally apened
the building 1n October 2015

At Broadgate we are progressing our vision 1o
create awor ld ctass campus for London This
reflects the growth and diver sity of 1ts location
not only as an important pari of the City, but
bewng adjacen! to the 1 egenes ating ar eas of
Shareditch and Sprtalfields which increasingty
cater totechnotogy and other creative sectors
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Our Offices portfolio is now virtually fully
let reflecting the strength of occupational
demand and the quality of our space.”

The opemng of the Crossr ait station at Liverpool
Street in 2018 will also be supportive of our
overalt vision Redevelopment opportunities will
significantly increase the scale of the campus
and better integrate it with the vibrant areas

1o the north and east The redevelopment of
Broadgate Circle has done much to entiven

the campus and our plans will build en this
momentum with @ more diverse offer which
malches changing working ifestyles Qut near
term development pipetine mcludes 823 000 sq
ft of space wath a further 950 000n the
medurn term

At Regent s Place we are progressing our vision
to evolve the campus through redevelopment
works We completed the refurbishment ol

79 000 sq 1t a1 338 Euston Road with Facebook
taking occupation of the majonity of the space
l_evels 2 and 7 [13 060 sq #1) are available and we
are seetng good interest both from existing and
new occuplers We have made good progress
with rent reviews at 20 Triton Street growing
rents on ave: age from £52 psi to £70 psf on

151 000 sq ft of space and adding £2 5 mullion

to annualised rents with a further 600 000 sq ft
lo be negotiated In the next 18 maonths The next
phase of major works s at 1 Triton Square
wheare we are mn the early stages of desigring

a significant 1 efurbishment

At Paddingion Central we are making good
progress towards our wision to complete

the campus through development and
ransfarming the public realrie We campleted
phase 1 of the public realm enhancernent

wor ks and phase 7 which will be focussed
around Kingdom Street 1s out 10 tender and
will start this summer We have secured 4
moarmgs on the canal and we have atso
purchased 2 canal boats 1o be used 1o host
events and enliven the surrounding area

We saw ERV growih of 5% across the campus
in the second half of the year and settled rent
reviews on 75 000 sq ft of space at 2 Kingdam
Stieet taking rents {rom £45 psf to £54 psf
and adding £0 6 million to anaualised rents

46

Imvestment Activity

Gross mvestment activity over the year was
£6271 million wath totat sales of £198 rmill:on
[BL share] and total acquisitions of £232 miltion
[BL share)

We continued 10 make progress at our
Restdential schemes The Heinpel Collection
and Aldgate Place selling €59 million of
apartments at prices on average 3% ahead
of valuation At Clarges Mayfair having
pre-sold over 50% of the gross development
value of the residential element of the scheme
In September 2014 1t remains our ntention
to undertake no further marketing until the
remaining apartments have reached
practicat cornpletion
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In July last year we sold an office building at

3% Victoria Street for a net piice of £139 mullion
We acquired the buillding for £40 miltion in 2009
and 1t was let i 1is entu ely io the Corporate
Officer of The House of Commaons 1 2013
following a substantial refurbishment The
disposal atayield of less than 4% crystallised
an attractive IRR of over 20% per anaum

since putchase

Al the start of the year we acquired One
Sheldon Square for £210 mullion This 1sin line
with our strategy of expanding our interests

n and around our care campuses [t also
Increases our exposure lo an up and coming
area of London and Paddington station a
major Londan transpor Linter change which




will benefit from the opering of Crossrail in
2018 The acquisition adds nearty 200 000 sq it
to our office space bnnging the assets we own
in Paddington Central ta 804 000 sq ft

We completed /3% 000 sq fi of developments

w the period with 5 Broadgate accounting for
710 000 sq ft UBS began kitung out 5 Broadgate
in the summer and we expect them ta move

n Later this year We achieved a BREEAM
Excellent rating at 5 Breadgate and we are

on track ko achieve BREEAM Excellent across

d further 2 7 million sq {t of office space

We also completed Yaldtng House a 29 000 sq ft
office ted refurbishment in the heart of
Frizrovia The building, which was launched in
February has variable lioor plates and 1s

tar geled at small and mediumn sized businesses
In the creative sectors We are pleased with the
level of enquirtes seen to date

Our under construction programme covers

617 000 sg ft with lotal speculative commitment
{mcluding land] of £530 pulbon Tius includes
192 000 sq ft at our super prime residenual led
developmeni Clarges Maytair where hoth the
relocation of the Kennel Club and the affordable
housing elernent were delivered in the perod
We are on track to complete the 48 000 sq ft
office element in the summer with the
residential to complete wn late 2017

At 4 Kingdam Street we are making good
progress We are on track to top out later

this month and on target to deliver 147 000 sq ft
of olfice space i 2017 At 2 Kingdom Street
Broadgate Estates achieved the wortd s first
BREEAM Outstanding Fit Qut Aswell as being
fughly efficient the new environment 1s helping
Broadgate Estates attract and retam the

best talent

£330m

of committed speculative development

LSm sq ft

Near term devetopment pipeline focused
on London

There are signs thatincreases tn construclion
costs are moderating reflecting lower raw
material costs However tender prices sull
reflect hmited capacity In the mdustry with
contractors seeking to restore margins and
uimit thewr risk exposure In central London
we are currently forecasting costinflation

af 5% per annum and for our projecis under
construction all our costs are fixed

We made good progress with our near term
development pipeline which has increased from
1 3 mullion sq ft in March last year to 1 8 mittion
sq it We recently recewved consent for a revised
520 000 sq H redevelepment of 100 Liverpool
Street at Broadgate incorperating alargerretail
component than in the previous consent In kne
wath oui plans to add 400 000 sq ft of retatl to the
campus In the medium term Subject to UBS
completng the bt oui works at 5 Broadgate we
expect o be In a posilion to commence with

100 Liverpoot Streetin early 2017

At 1 Finsbury Avenue we receved planming
consent for a 303 000 sq {1 redevelopment

and at 1 Triton Square on our Regent 5 Place
campus we are progressing ihe design We
will make the decision whether to commut to
these schemes at the appropriate ttme but

we ate pleased with the level of inlerest we are
seemng from occupiers for potential pre-lets
despite the fact that the projects are stitl at

an early stage

Our planming application for 340 0080 sq fi of
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shoreditch
was also granted consent having been called
in by the Mayor of Londen The High Court has
since rejected a Judicial Review of the Mayer s
decision take over m the application but His
unlikely that we wilt start onsite 1n 2016 as had
been our ntentron At 5 Kingdom Street we
have made good progress on the proposed
desigriand we expect to submd a planning
application by the end of the year

Looking ahead to our mediun term pipetine
we submitted a planming application for the
redevetopment of 2 and 3 Finshury Avenue
incseasing the area from 189 000 sq ft to
550 000 sy 1t
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CARBON REPORTING

Our efficiency programme provides well-managed
environments for workers, shoppers and residents,
supports our occupiers’ sustainability goals, cuts
occupancy costs and enhances asset value

CDP
CLIMATE
WISCLESURE
LEANER 20NE

We actively manage gi eenhouse gas emissions
across our busmess We are recogmised in the
COP Disclosure Leadership Index for the fifth
year running with a 100% score for disclosure
We also achieved B tor performance

We have reporied on all emission sources
required under the Compames Act 20046
[Strategic Repor t and Directors Reports]
Regulations 2013 These sour ces fall within
our consobidated financial statement and
1elate to head office activities and controlled
ermissions irom our managed porticho All

Scope 1 and 2 emnstons intensiby (tonnes CO,e)

our scope 1 and 2 emissions are included

in this statement We have used purchased
energy consurmplion data the GHG Protocol
Corporate Accaunting and Reporting Standard
[revised editton) and emission factors from the
UK Government s GHB Canversion Facters for
Company Reporting 2015

Scope 1and 2 carbon emissions reduced

this year due to several factors notably the
decarbonisation of the UK grid improvements
through our engoing efficiency programme and
changes in our portfolio affecling energy use

Year ended 31 March 2015 2015 2008
Par im¢ - Offic es [net letable areal 0075 0074 0118
Per m? - Retal - enclosed 0073 0048 0174
Per parking space - Retad - open air 00463 0043 0104
Per m? - Residential 0081 0085 -
Per £m - gross rental income irom managed por tiolio’ 79 48 8730 -
Absolute Scope 1 and 2 emis<ions (tonnes CO,e)

Year ended 31 March 2016 2015 2007
Combustion of fuel Managed portiolio gas use and fuel use

in British Land owned vehicles 7,284 6 P65 5156
Dperation of facilites Managed portfslio refrigerant toss from

air conditioning [ YA 954 .
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for our own use

Managed porifolio electricity use 38,710 42503 41184
Absolute Scope 3 emissions (tonnes (O, e}

Year ended 31 March 2014 2002
Occupier controlled energy use - Offices Electricity and gas use in our assels 50,291 51839
Occupier controlled energy use ~ Retail Elertricity and gas use in our assets 584,668 748150
Broadgate Estates controlled energy use - Third parties Eleciricity and gas use

In assets owned by others 35,097 -
Development supply chain Construction matetials sie activity design and other

busmess services 78,934 176622

Visitor travel Vehicle use to and from asseis

2,914,903 4 970786

Corparate and other Group procurement finance, employee travet energy

Wfe-cycle related water and residenbal energy

137,816 169133

Gross Rental Income [GRI) from the managed porttolio comprises Group GR1 of £451 million [2015 £399 millan)
plus 100% of the GRI generated by jo.nt ventures and funds of £451 million [2015 £495 mull on) less GRY
generated by assels outside the managed portiolic of £315 miltion 2015 €321 mihon)
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and assocated ermisstons Combustion of fuel
increased shightly due to occupier fit outs
notably i The Leadenhall Building

We commissioned a review of our Scope 3
emsssions by Arup which revealed that changes
in our portiotio since 2012 have substantally
reduced cur carbon footprint The shift towards
assets with strong public transport links

has reduced ermussions from visitor travel by

1 3million tonnes More detaited information
around visitor numbers and transport use has
also mproved accuracy reducing visitor travel
emessions by 860 000 tonnes In addition

the reduction in our total floor area and the
decarbonisation of the UK grid have contributed
to reductions in emissians from occupler
energy use of 164 000 tonnes The increase

in Corporate and other emissions was due

to the addition of Broadgate Estates data and
residential energy use data within our feotprint
aswell as increased emissions related o
property acquisitions and finance

Reducing Scope 3 ennssions
We are working with our development
supply thamn to reduce carbon emissions
from construction matenals At 100

Livet pool Streel our design team has
developed plans that re-use as much

of the bullding structure as possible
cutting construction costs and reducing
emboded carben by 7 270 tonnes Design
improvesments are also targeting a further
4 360 tonne saving versus the onigmal
conceplis atno extra cost by changing
nsulaton matenals wsing cement
1eplacement tncreasing recycled
alurminiuim content and switching to
bightweight engineer ed beams

We amended ous methodolegy for
carbon mtensites this year and have
resiated previous numbers 1o reflect
this For our full methodology
explanation of changes and Pw( s
independent assurance seeour 2014
Sustainabil:ty Accaunts available ai
www britishland com/data




FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our strategic focus on placemaking
along with our active debt management

underpinned our strong results

Kev highlights of the vear

14.2%

Total accounting return’

919,

EPRA net assel value per share'

£9.6bn

IFRS net assets

284

Dwidend per share

£363m

tnderlying Profit’

£1.3bn

IFRS profit before tax

329%

LTV propartionally consolidated

3.3%

We ghted average Interest rate
proportionally consolidated

' See gtossary for definitions

L

Overview

The strong per formance this year 1s refiected in
our operating resutts and the total accounting
returnof 14 2%

Our focus on ptacemaking and accelerating
ERV gi owth have delivered a portiotio vatuation
uplifi of & 7% on a proportionally cansclidated
basis and a 9% increase in NAV per share

to 919 pence excluding the smpact of the 1%
increase tn stamp duty on commer ctal proper ty
NAY per share would have been 932 pence (an
ncrease of 12 4%]

We have completed £1 3 billion of nvestment
actmity with acquisition and development
spend broadly balancing disposals We have
sold mature and non-core assets and have
reinvested in our existing business and

in selected acquisiions adjacent to

existing assets

Our batance sheet melnics remain strong

The propoertionally conselidated loan tovalue
ratio has decreased 1o 32% from 35% due io

a combination of our actions including the
results of our placemaking activity and market
movements We have raised £915 mullion of
new debt including a £350 million zero coupen
converttble bond Together with the £110 mullion
debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

we have completed over {1 tillson of financing

activity i the year This drove the 50 bps
reduction in the Group s propor tionally
consolidated weighted average interest
rate to 3 3% from 3 8%

Underlying Profit increased to £363 mallion
as aresult of our successful financing actvity
teasing of our completed developments and
rental income growth in the investment
portfolio ncluding « number of sigmfrcant
rentreviews in Gffices

Underlying earnings per share increased by
less than profits due 1o the requu erment to
antrcipate conversion Into new shares of the
£400 mulion 1 5% convertble bond 1ssued i
2012 and maturing i 2017 with a conversion
price of 493 pence

1FRS profit before tax for the year of

£1 331 million ts lower than the prior year
primarity due lo a reduced level of property
valuation maovemeni reflecting the slowdown
m yield compression and the recent mcrease
in stamp duty on commercial property

Looking farward to next year we intend to
increase the dividend by 3% to 29 20 pence per
share with a quarterly dmvidend of 7 30 pence
per share
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Presentation of finan¢al informanon
The Group hinanaal statements are prepared
under IFRS where the Group s interests in jomt
ventures and funds are shown as a smgle bine
Item on the income statement and balance
sheet and all subsidiaries are consolidated

at 180%

Management considers the business principally
on a proportionally consolidated basis when
setting the strategy determiming annuat
prionities makmg investment and financing
deaisions and reviewtng performance This
includes the Group s shar e of jont ventures

and funds on a line-by-line basis and excludes
non-controtling nterests in the Group s
subsidharies The financial key performance
indicators are also presented on this basis

A summary income statement and summary
balance sheet which reconcile the Greup
financial slatements to Briish Land s
nterests on a proportionally consohbidated
basis are included in Table Awithm the
supplementary disclosures

Income statement

1 Underlying Profit

Underlying Profit s the measure that 1s used
internatly 10 assessincome performance No
company adpistments have been made in the
current or prior year and therefore this 1s the
same as the pre-tax EPRA earnings measure
which includes a number of adjustments to
the IFRS reported profit before tax Thisis
presented above on a propor ionally
consolidated basis

11 Net rental income iChars 1§

The £35 nutlion increase in net rental Income
during the year was the resull of strong
letting activity

The successiul letting of our development
programme provided £23 mudhion of this
merease pramarily due to the start of the lease
al 5 Broadgate and the lettings we have made
at the Leadenhall Buitding which 15 now almost
full with recent leasing deals setting new
records for City rents

Like-for-like rental income growth was 3 4%
Offices and Resrdential growth was almost 7%
just aver half of this was due to the letting up of
completed developments that are now in the
like-fer-like porttolio wath the emainder being
aitributable to strong rent review actmity
particularly at Regent s Place and Paddingtan
Retall and Leisure growth was 1 4% [1 8%
excluding the impact of surrender premial

Our near term development pipeline could add
3 further £68 nullion of net rental incorme over
the next Syears The three largest schemes in
the near term pipeline are income producing
vestments with a current passing rent of

50

CUnderlving Profit

2016 2015

Section £m £rm
Gross rental income 654 418
Property opelaiing expenses 134 {33)
Net rental income i1 620 585
Net [ees and other income 17 17
Administrative expenses 13 {941 (B8]
Net financing costs 17 (8o} (201
Underlying Profit 363 313
Non-controlling interest tn Undertying Profit 14 16
EPRA adjustments? 954 1,440
IFRS profit before tax 2 1331 1789
Underlying earnings per share 14 341p 306p
IFRS basic ear nings per share 2 13t12p 1683p
Dwvidend per share 3 2836p 27 468p

Fees and otherincome and adminisirative expenses have bean restated to reflect the change in presentation
of the results of Aroadgate Estates a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group This restatement bas had no
impatt on Underlying Profir Referto note 1 of the financial statements for further detaits

? EPRA adjusiments consst of investment ard developmen! property revaluations gains/'nsses en nvestment
and trading property disposals changes in thefarvalue of { nancial instruments and associated close out
costs These itemns are presented in the capital and other column of the consolidated incame statement

Net rental income {€m) (chan 1)

40
r‘,!&.(zw.""(g’ e v
R
-}jh 43{;#1&*‘««,{ s
. |A - 7; L3 \'
143]
215 Oavefoprrents Like for-lke ACOUESTONS Drsposals
rental income growth
Net financing costs (£m) (Chare 2]
27
10
B i T A
{51l {5)
013 Fianang Acqustons Crsposals Completon of
Aty developments
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£24 million which is expecied to run off in the
last quarter of 2014/17

12 Net financing costs (Chan 2)

We completed aver £1 billion of financing
activity in the current year including the

£350 rrulbion zer o coupon convertible bond and
the £110 mittion debenture bonds tender offer
and purchase We have raised and refinanced
a 1otat of £915 million of debt at tower margins
and in a lower interest 1 ate environment
Together with the iImpact of last year s financing
acimity this resulted in a £27 mullion decrease
in financing costs this year

Qur approach 1o interest rate management was
also important in reducing interest costs At the
year end we had reduced the proportion of our
debt hetd at fixed rates lo 60% on average over
the next five year s [64% a1 31 March 2019)

Overall our actions during the year drove the
reduction in our propartionally consolidated
weighted average interest rate 10 3 3% at

31 March 2616 from 3 8% at 31 March 2015

Lower capitalised interestin the current
yearreflected our reduced development
commitment This resulted in an addiionat
£5 million of inter est cost i the year

13 Admirustrative expenses

During the year we brought the property
management of our retait assets in-house to
Broadgate Estales awhoily owned subsidsary
n Line with our strategic tocus on customer
orientation and placemaking In recognition

of the core role Broadgate Estates now plays
in how we run the business we have changed
the way 115 results are presented in the Group
incorne statement This hascesuitedina

£5 mullton increase tn adminisk ateve expenses
and an equal and offsetting increase in net fees
and other Income importantly this change has
no impact on Undet lying Profit The prior year
comparatives for net fees and ather incorme
and administrative expenses have also been
restated to reflect this change in presentation

Development learn costs of €4 millionwere
capitalised for the first ime this year as we
progress cur development pipeling

Overall administrative expenses increased
by £6 mullion this year in bne with ows planned
investment m people and technelagy in order
to enhance the capability of the business
which includes a £2 million increase related
to Broadgate Estates The Group s operating
cost ratig remains sector teading at 14 6%
(2014715 16 4%}

14 Underlying EPS

Underlying EPS for 2015/156 was 34 1 pence
12014/15 30 6 pence] based on Underkying
Proht after tax of £365 million (2014715 £313

2016 2015

Balance sheet Section £m £m
Properties at valuation 14 648 13 677
Other non-current assets 138 256
14,786 13,923

Other net current liabilises 1257} 307
Adjusted net debt & (47651 [4918]
Other non-current liabiliies (9o 173
EPRA net assets [undituted] 9674 8,635
Dilution impact of convertible bond 400 400
EPRA net assels [diluted) 10,074 9,035
EPRA NAV per share 4 919p 82%
Non-controlling interest 277 333
EPRA adjustments! {732)  (803)
IFRS net assets 5 9419 B5é5

' EPRA net assets exclude the rnark 10-market on effective cashfiow hedges and related debt adjusiments the
mark-to-market on the convertble bonds as wetl as deferred taxation on property and derivative revatuations
They snelude the valuation surplus on trading sroperties and are adjusted for the diiutive impact of share eptions
and the £40C milbion convertihle bend maturing in 2017 No adjustment 1s made for the £350 mittien zero coupon
convertible bond because this 1s not currently dilutive Details of the EPRA adjustments are included in Table A

withinthe supplementary disclosures

EPRA NAV per share (p) (chan 3

Othces and Retail Undertyng Dandends
Resdenual and Lesure proft
wvaluaton atuaton
upift upuft

Adyusted net debt (Em)! (chart 41

4,918}

2015 Acguistiens Development hsposais Nei cash
and capax irom
operations

DGondends

Starnpduty

Finance
transachisn
oS5

Oher

2018

' Adjusted net debt s a proportionally consolrdated measure K represents the Group net debt as disclosed in
Note 17 and the Group s share of joint venture and funds net debt excluding the mark-to-market on effective
cash [low hedges and related debt adjusiments and nen-controlling interests Arecanciliation between the
Group net debt and ad,usted net debt s included in Table A within the supplementary disclosures
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millon} adjusted to add back interest an the
E4A00 mithon 1 5% convertible bond of £6 muthion
(2014715 Enil] and the weighted average diluted
number of shar es of 1 089 million [2014/15
1022 millionj

The increase i Underlying EPS of 11 4% 1s less
than the increase (n Underlymg Profit because
we are now required to anticipate conversion
into shares of the £400 mallion 1 5% convertible
bond which maturesin 2017 in our reported
Underlying EPS

2 {FRS profit before tax

The main difference between IF RS probit before
tax and Under lying Praofit s that it includes
the valuation movernent oninvestment and
development properties and the fan vatue
movements of financial instrurnents In
addition the Group s investments i joinl
ventures and funds are equiy accounted

in the IFRS incorme statement but are
included on a proportionally consolidated
basis within Underlying Profit

The IFRS profit before tax for the year was
£.1331 million adecrease of £458 million
primarily due to the slowdown in yreld
compression and the 1% stamp duty increase
on commercal property i the current yea
resulbing i lower levels of property valuation
movemnent This impacts IFRS profitbelore tax
through the valuation moverment on the Group s
pioperties which was £2468 million less than
last year and the vatuation movement on the
properties held in joint ventures and funds
which was £344 million less than last year

Further infor mation on portfolio vatuaton
performance s provided on page 36

The £77 milbion decrease in net financing costs
to £79 mutlion was principally due to revatuation
gamns recorded inrespect of the Gioup s
conwvertible bonds

Thie £50 million increase in net rental Income
1o £425 multien was primanly the result of

the purchase of a controlling miter est in New
Meisey Speke in March 2015 the purchase

of controllmg interests in two mixed portfolios
of single and multi-lel assets {the Tesco
transaction } atso compteted in March 2015
and Like-for-like rental mcome growthin

the standmng por tfolto

Basic earmings per share decreased by 22%

ta 131 2 pence per share The weighted average
number of shares it 1ssue during the period
was 1 025 mutlion [2014/15 1016 million]

h
%]

3 Dnidends

The quarterly dvidend was increased to 7 (9
pence per share in the year bringing the total
dividend declared for the current financial year
10 28 36 pence per share [2014/15 27 68 pence
per share] an increase of 2 5% over the prigr
year The dividend paid in the financial year was
78 02 pence per share [2014/15 27 34 pence
per sharel

[t1s the Board s mtention to increase the
dividend by 3 0% 1n 2016/17 10 29 20 pence per
share with a guarterly dividend of 7 30 pence
pershare

Balance Sheet

4 EPRANAV per share (Chart 3)

The EPRA NAV per share of 919 pence includes
the 13 pence adverse impact from the 1% rise
i Starmp Duty Land Tax on commercial

propet ty announced in the budget this year

The 109% increase in EPRA NAV per share
reflects a strong valuation performance across
the portfolic of & 7% QOurpertiobo s broadly
sphit egually hetween Ofhices and Retail The
vatuation uplilt in the year s primarily due to
ERV growth of 5 3% with an accelerated trend
compared to last year reflecting our focus on
placemaking and the strength of the markets
we wwesiin Yield compression was 17 bps and
contributed significantly tess to the valuation
uplift compared t¢ the prior year

Returns were drwven by our standing
investments up 6 4% boosled by an
increase of 9 4% i our developmenis

Offices and Residential valuations were up

11 8% with strong ERV growth of 9 6% the
West End per formed slightly more strongly
than the City in part due to the valuation

uplift on our developments Retail and Letsure
valuations were up 2 4% underpinned by strong
perfor mance 1n our mult-let por tfolie which
saw ERV growth of 3 4%

The kinance transaction costs prenarilyielaie

to the debenture bond tender offer and
purchase completed in the year and are

Finanemg statistics

compensated for by lower mlerest costs over
the 1 emaining period of the finance

5 {FRSnet assets

IFRS netassets at 31 March 2016 were £9 619
rullton an increase of £1 054 rillion This was
primarily due to property revaluation gainsin
the current year which were £616 million for
the Group and £245 multion tor the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds

In August 2015 the loan proveded by the Group
to the Broadgate joint venture was repaid
This was funded by additonal shareholder
coniributions to the joint venture and resutted
ina £137 million decrease i net debt and

a £137 million increase in the Group s
mvestmenis in goint ventures and funds

Cash Flow. Net Debt and Financing
6 Adjusted net debt tcrar 4}

The impact of our investment activity In the year
was broadly balanced

Sgnificant acguisitions completed in the year
included One Shelden Square and the purchase
of an additional & 1% of the umts in Hercules Unit
Trust bringing the Group s ownership to 75 3%
attheyearend

Development expenditure of £120 mullion
related to the spend on our commutted
development progs amme and capital
expendtture of £120 millien relaled 1o assel
management on the standing portislio
Ferecast development spend of £204 mellion
1s anticipated over the next three years on the
Group s commatiad development prograrmme
and £720 mallton on the Group s neat term
development prpeline This compares to
£358 rmuthion of coniracted residential sales
along with a fur ther £292 mitlon of residentiat
units yet to be contracted for sale on existing
committed projects

Significant disposals i the year included

37 Victoria Street at an att:active yield which
generated an IRR of over 20% Rotherham
Parkgate and Leeds Birstall tn addition
disposals of standalone superstores totalling

Group Proportionally consobidated

2015 2015 2018 2015

Net debifadjusted net debt*
Principat amount of gross debt
Loantovalue

Weighted average mterest rate
Interast cover

Weighted average debt maturity

£3617m  £3828m E4765m  £4918m
£3552m  £3717m £5089m  £5202m

25% 8% 32% 35%
2 6% 313% 33% 38%
33 29 Jo 26

72years  75years 81years B7years

The Group higures represent aet debt as presented in note 17 of the inancizl statements the proporiionatly
consolidated figures inctude the Group s share of joint venture and funds net debt and exctude the mark-to-
market gn effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustmenis and non-controtling interests
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£122 million were completed including the
sale of Tesco Bursledon for £60 milion and
Sainshury s Islington for £32 mellion reducing
the Group s total superstore exposure g under
£0 Bbidlien We currently have a further

£100 million of mature or non-core retai
assets under offer

7 Financing

Batance sheet metrics remain strong LTV

and the weighted average inferesi rate gn
drawn debt were reduced and inter est cover
improved The decrease in both our Group and
praportanally consolidated LTV measuresis
due to a combination of our aciions and market
movernents Note 17 of the inancial statements
sets out the calculation of the Group and
proportionally consolidated LTV

Qur proportionally consolidated LTV was 32%
at March 2016 down from 40% two years ago
Pro-torma for the full conversion of the £400
mittton 1 5% convertsble bond matuning in 2017
proporiionately consolidated LTVi1s 29%

The strength of the Group s halance sheet s
reflected in Briush Land s senior unsecured
credil rating which continues 1o be rated by
Fitch at A-

Financing actwity during the year amounied

to over £1 illron We continue to achieve
attractive financings whuch improve ear nings
and iquidity including €915 rmillion of new debt
finance since 31 March 2015

Taking advantage of favour able market
conditions we raised a £350 mailion zere
coupon senior unsecui ed converiible bond
due 2020 which includes texible settlement
aptions and provides further diver sification
of our sources of finance

Following a lender offer in respect of British
Land s 6 75% Fu st Mortgage Debenture Bonds
due 2020 we purchased €110 mithon of bonds
The puichase was funded by existing commutted
facilitres and the bonds were cancelled

Financing actimvity in our joint venture and
funils in the year consisted of the repayment
of £100 mitlion of 8 Hercules Unit Trust term
loan reducing the faclity to £250 rmilbion and
Iis subsequent refinancing at pricing less than
half the previous facility The Gibr aitar Lirruted
Partnershup £140 milhon loan facility was
alsorefimanced in the year at sigmificantly
lower pricing

Qverall financing activity we completed in the
year was the princrmpal factor in the reduction
of the proportionally consolidated weighted
average interestrate from 3 8% to 3 3%

We have atso agi eed one year extensions to
hoth our hank syndicated unsecured revolving
credi facibities in total £1 245 million

British Land has £1 8 billien of commutted
unsecur ed revolving banking facilities and
£83 mitlion of cash and short term deposits
Of these facititres £1 & bithion have maturities
of more than two years and £1 2 biliion was
undrawn at 31 March 2016 Based on our
current commitments and these facilities
the Group has no requirement to refinance
for four years

Further informat:on on our approach to
financing 15 provided 1n the financial policies

and principles seclion on pages 54 to 56
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Tax

The Group elected for REIT status on 1 January
2007 paying a £308m conversion charge to
HMRC in the same year As a consequence

of the Group s REH status tax s levied on the
distribution of iIncome from our qualifying
property rental business ralher than at the
corporaie level Any income which does not
qualify as property income withm the REIT
rulesis subject to tax in the normal way This
includes profits on properues developed and
sold withun three years as wett as fees and
interest The tax credit far the year1s £2m
[excluding defer: ed tax]

Our 2016 Total Tax Contribution was moere than
£240m mainly ans:ng from taxes collecied
from others which we administered together
with taxes and levies patd directly

HMRC continue to award British Land a low
r1sk tax rating which1s in par t a reflection of our
REIT status tagether with the open and regular
dialogue we mamtam with them We continue

to comforiably pass alt RE{T tests to ensure

our REIT status is maintained

Umiel

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding which
enables us to deliver our property strategy

Leverage

Our mux of equity and debt financing 1s managed
to achreve the appropriate balance between
enhancing 1 eturns for shareholders and the
115k of highet leverage We use a loan to value
rauo [debt as a percentage of the gr oss value

of pur assets LTV to measure our leverage
primartly on a proportronally consolidated basis
including our share of joint ventures and funds
and excluding non-contr olling interests

We seek to manage cur leverage such that

our LTV shoutd not exceed a maximusm
threshold f market yields were [o rise to
previous peak levels This means we will not
mcrease our LTV if asset values increase only
as a result of market yield improvement
Consequently our maximum LTV may be higher
in the low point in the cycle and will tread
downwards as market yields tighten

We leverage our equity and achieve benefits of
scale while spreading risk through joint ventur es
and funds which are typically partly hinanced
with debi without recourse to Briish Land

Qur current propor tonally consobidated LTV
of 32% includes cur shar e of the debtin jont
ventures and funds and s ligher than the
Group measure of 20%

Debt finance

The scale of our business combined with

the guality of our assets and rental income
means that we are attractive 1o a broad range
of debt providers and able to arrange financ e
on tavourable terms Good access to the capital
and debl markets s a competrlive advantage
altowing us 1o take oppet tuniies when

they arise

The Group s approach to debt inancing for
Briish Land s 1o raise funds predaminantly on
an unsecu: ed basis with our standard financial
covenanis [set out on page 58] This provides
the greatest flextbiiity and low oper atonal cost
Our jont ventures and funds are each financed
in ring-fenced structures without recourse to
British Land for repayment and are secured on
the relevant assets

Presented opposite are the five guiding
principles that govern the way we structure
and manage our debt

Debt finanuing involves risk from adverse
changes in the preperty and financing
markets In arranging and momtoring our
linancing we include important risk disaiplines
ensurng that relevant nisks are lully evaluated
and managed

Managmg sk in deliver ing our strategy see
pages 5710 63

Monitoring and controlling our debt
We monitor cur projected LTV and our debt
requirement using several key internally
generaied reports focused princigally on
borrowing levels debt maturity avallable
faciliues and interest raie exposure We alsc
undertake sensitivily analysts lo assess Lhe
impact of proposed transactions movements
wn inierest rates and changes in property values
an the key halance sheet liguidity and
grofitability ratios

in assessing ow ongoing debl reguirements
wncluding for our development programme

we consider potential downstde scenarios such
as a fall in valuations and the effect that might
have on our covenants

Based on our current commitments and
available faciliies the Group has no
requirernent o refinance for four years
[irrespective of whether the settlernery of the
2012 conver Uibte bond 1s with equity or debi|

British Land s curreni comrutted undrawn
bank facilives are £1 2 billion

Managing mterest rate exposure

We manage our interest rate profile
ndependently from our debt The Board
considers the appropriate maximum level of
sensitivily of underlying earnings to movements
in market rates of interest over a five-year
period and the appropriate ranges of fixed

rate debt over retevant time periods
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Our detn finance 1s raised at hoth fixed and
vartable rates Derivauves primarily interest
rate swaps| are used to achieve the desired
interest rate profile across proportionatly
consolidated net debt Currently 60% on
average of projected net debts hixed over the
next five years wilh a decreasing profsle over
the period The use of dervatives 1s managed
by a Dervatives Committee The mnteresi rate
management of joint ventures and funds s
addressed by each eniity for tts business

Counterparties

We moniter the credit standing of aur
counterparttes o minimise our risk exposui e
in respect of placing cash deposits and
derwatives Regular reviews are made of the
external credit ratings of the counterparties

Foreign currency

Our policy :s to have no materiai unhedged
net assets o1 labilities denotminated in
foreign currencies

When attractive terms are available the
Group may choose to beriow in freely avadable
currencies other than sterling and will futty
hedge the foreign currency exposure




Our five guiding principles

Diversify
OUr solrces
of finance

We monix finance markeis and seek to aceess different types of finance when the relevant market condiions are favourable
to meet the needs of our business and where appropriate those of our joint ventures and funds The scale and quality of our
husiness enables us 1o access a broad range of unsecured and secured recout se and non recourse del

We enjoy and encourage long teren relationships with banks and debi imwestors We aim o avoid reliznce on par icular sources
of funds and borrow from a large number of lenders irom different sectors in the market and a range of geographical areas
with a iotal of 33 debt providers of bank facilibes and private placements alone We also aim to ensure that debt providers
understand our business we adopt a transparent approach Lo provide sufficient disclosures so that lenders can evaluate therw
exposure within the overall context of the Group These factor s increase our attractiveness lo debt providers and in the last
{ive years we have arranged over £6 bithion [British Land share over £5 bilbon} of new finance in unsecut ed and secured bank
loan facitittes US Private Placements and convertibie bonds

£0.2bn

Total debi porifolo [proportionatly consolidated)

Phase maturity
of debt portfotio

The maturity profile of our debi 1s rmanaged with a spread of repayment dates We monter the varicus debt markets so that we
have the abality to act quickly to arrange new finance as oppor tunities arise Maturies of different types of drawn debt are wett
spread reducing gur refinancing risk in respect of trming and market conditions As a result of our financing activity we are
comforiably ahead of our preferred rehnancing date horizon of not tess than two year s

The current range of debt maltuntses s one 1o 20 years In accordance with our usual practice we expect 1o refinance faciilies
ahead of thes maturities

8.1 years

Average debt matunity (proportonally consalidated)

Mamtain In addition to our drawn debt we aim always to have a good level of undrawn commitied unsecured revolving bank facitities
liquedtty in British Land These {acilities provide financiat bquidity reduce the need to hold resources in cash and depasits and miimise
costs arissng from the difference between bor rowing and deposit rates while reducing credit exposure
We arrange these revolving credit faciities in excess of our committed and expected 1equirements to ensure we have adequate
financtng avaitahility to support business requu ements and opportunties ‘
£1.2bn
Undrawn cominitted facilities ‘
Maintamn Our facihities are structured ta provide valuable flexitnlity for investment deal execution whether sakes or purchases 1
flexibility developments or asset management Our bank revolving credit facilities in Brriish Land provide fubl flexshility of drawing and ‘

repayment [and cancellation d we require] at short nobice without additronal cost These are arranged with standard terms and
financial covenants and generally have maturities of five years Ftexibility is mamntained with our combination of this unsecured
tevolving debt and secured term debt in debentures with goad substitution rights where we have the ability to move assets in
and out of ihe secunty

£1.8bn

Revolving credit faclities

Maintain sirong
batance sheet
metrics

We actively manage our mix of equity and debt financing to achieve a balance hetween cur ability to generate an altractive reiurn
for shareholders with the risks of having more debt

Our capual strategy 1s responsive {o the need to manage our exposure such that we aim not to exceed a maximum proporbonally
consolidated LTV thresheld in an economic downturn # market yields nise to previous peak levels

329% A- 30

LTV [proportionatly consolidated]  Cred.i rating Interes! cover [proportionally
tonsolida‘ed;

wh

W
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Group borrowings

Unsecured financing for the Group 1s raised
through bilateral and syndicated unsecused
revolving bank facilives wath imitiat terms of
five years [often extendable] US Private
Placements with maturities up to 2027 and the
converuble bonds maturing in 2017 and 2020

Secured deit1s provided by debentures with
longer maturities up to 2035 at fixed rates of
interestand a bank term loan

Unsecured borrowings
The same financial covenants apply across
each of the Group s unsecured facilities These
covenants which have been consistently agreed
with all unsecured lenders since 2003 are
- net Borrowings not to exceed 175%

of Adjusted Capilal and Reserves and
- net Unsecured Borrowings not o exceed

70% of Unencumbered Assets

Covenant ratio

No income/nterest cover ratios apply 1o these
facilies and there are no other unsecui ed
debt {inancial covenants i the Group

The Unencumbered Assets of the Group not
subject to any security stood at £6 5 billion
ds at 31 March 2016

Although secured assels are excluded from
tInencumbered Assets far the covenant
calculatiens unsecured tender s benelit from
the surplus value of these assels above the
related debt and the free cash flow from them
During the year ended 31 March 2016 these
assets generated £63 ritlion of surplus cash
after payment of interest In addition, white
investmenis i joint ventures do not form part
of Unencumbered Assets ourshare of profits
generated by ihese ventures are regularly
passed up to the Group

Secured borrowings

Secured debt with recourse to Briush Land s
provided by debentures at fixed interest rates
with long maturities and no amortisation
These are secured agamnsl a single combined
pool of assets with common covenants the
value of those assets is required to cover the
amount of these debentures by a minimum of
1 5 times and net rental income must cover the
nterestat least once We use eur rights under
the debentures towithdraw subsutute or add
propertes lor cash collateral] in the security
pool in order to manage these cover ratios
effectively and deal with any asset sales

Secured debt without recourse to Briush Land

comprises the following each of which 1s

secured on a specific portfolio of properties

- a fixed rate debenture of £30 million for BLD
Property Holdings Ltd to 2020 and

- a bank loan of £295 million for TBL Properties
Limited fand its subsidiaries) to 2019

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
External debi for cur joint ventures and
funds has been arranged through long dated
securitisations or hank debt accordmg tothe
1equirements of the busingss of each venture

Hercules Unit Trust has terim loan facilings
rmaturing in 2019 and 2020 arranged for

its business and secured on Its property
por tiolies without recourse 10 British Land
These toans include vatue and incame
based covenants

2012 2013 2004 2015 2016
o5 n,

At 31 March % % % %
Net borr owings to adjusted capital and reser ves! 44 31 40 38 34
Net unsecured bor sowings to unencumbered assels? 34 23 31 28 29

Highest durng the year to 31 March 2016
' 42% and
2 33%
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The secunisations of Broadgate [£1 667 million)
Meadowhalt (696 millon] and the Sainsbury s
Supersiores portiolio [£443 milbonl have
welghted average maturities of 12 1 years

10 4 years and & Syear s respectively The only
financial covenant applicable 1s to meet interest
and scheduled amortisation [equivalent to

1 tmes cover] thete are no LTV covenants
These securnitisations prowvide for guarterty
principal repaymentswsth the balance
outstanding reducing to approximately

20% to 30% of the oniginal amount raised

by expected final maturity thus mitigating
refinancing nisk

Other debt arrangements with banks mclude
LTV ratio covenants with maximum levels
ranging from 40% to 65% and most have
rental income 1o interest or debt service
cover [ equirements

There 1s no abligation on British Land to

remedy any breach of these covenants and |
any remedy needed would be considered by

the partes on a case by-case basis




MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

Risk management is integral to our
strategy of delivering long term
sustainable returns

for Brihish Land effective nsk management i1s
a cornerstone of our strategy and fundamental
to the achievement of our strategic abjectives

in delivery of long term sustainable returns We
focus on the management of the princrpal risks
facing our business including those risks that
could threaten the Group s solvency and iquidity
aswelt as identifying emergmg risks whilst at
the same time making the most of our

oppor tunities

Our Risk Management Framew ork
Ous integrated approach combines a top-down
stiategic view with a complementary botiom-
up operational process cutlined in the dizgram
on page 58

The Board takes overall responsibility for

risk management with a particular focus on
deterrmiming the nature and extent of principal
risks rt1s willing to take in achieving sts strategic
objectives Thisis setin the context of the
external environment in which we operate - this
1S our risk appetite The Audit Commutiee takes
responsibility for overseeing the effectiveness
of risk management and internat conirol
systems {as outlined on page 81} on behalf of
the Board and also advises the Board onthe
principal risks facmg the Group including those
that would threaten its solvency or Liqurdity

Lucinda Bell
Chair of the
Risk Comimittee

[he Executive Director s are responsihle
for delivering the Company s strategy and
managing nsk The Risk Commuittee fwhich
1s Chaired by the Chief Financiat Officer
and consists of all Executive Directors) s
responsihle for managing straiegic and
operational resk in achieving the Group s
performance goals

Whitst responsibility for oversight of risk
management rests with the Board the eflective
day-to-day management of risk 1s embedded in
all areas of our business and for ms an integrat
part of our core values and how we work This
bottom-up approach ensures potential nsks
are identified at on early stage escdtaied as
appropriate and mitigations ar e put in place

to manage such risks Each busmess unit
mamntams a compr ehensive nisk 1egister which
1s 1 eviewed qguarterly by the Risk Commuttee
with sigmhicant and emerging risks escalated
to the Audit Commuttee for consideration

as appropriate
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British Land Core Strengths

- High quality commercial property
focused on regronal and {ocat mults-iet
retail assets around the UK and Londan
office campuses

- Platemaking strategy of v+ eating
Places People Prefer

- Custormer orientation enables us to
develop a deep understanding of the
people whe use our places

- Strong and diverse accupier base

- tigh occupancy and long lease tengths
proviges stable secure cash flows

- Mixed use development expertise

- Ahlity to source and execute
attractive investment deals

- Efficient capital structure with good
access to capital and debt markets

- Sustamnabiiity credenbals

Our Risk Appetite

The Group s nisk appetite 1 reviewed annually
fin the context of the core strengths of our
business maodel) and approved by the Board
This evaluation guides the actrons we takein
executing our strategy The most significant
judgements affecting-our 115k appeute mclude
our assessment of prospective property
returns our asset selecion and mvesiment
strategy the level of development exposure
and our financial leverage

We have identified a suite of Key Risk Indicatars
{KRIs) to momitor our principal nisks which

are reviewed quarlerly by the Risk Commiitee
to ensure that the activities of the business
remain within our nsk appetite and thai our
risk exposure i1s well matched to changes in

the business and operatng environment
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The Board has constdered the Group s risk
appetite and it 1s considered appropniate to
achieve our strategic abjectives Our business
15 both resitient and well placed for the long
tersn Our porticlio 1s moder n and neat ly fully
let to quality occupters on long leases We
have maintained our capital discipline with
invesiment and development being bt oadly
balanced by asset disposals and reduced
our propertionably consolidated LTV to 32%
Development continues to rernain a core part
of our business and whilst our current
commitment has reduced as our 2010
programme has recently completed we are
progressing an attractive future pipeline

of development opportunities with the
flexibility to move forward when the ime

1s right

Assessment of Prospects

The Group s annual corperate planning
processincludes the completion of a
slrateglc review reassessing the Group srisk
appetite and updating the Group s forecasts

The Group s strategy pr ovides the focus
forour annual priorsties and 1s formally
reviewed annually This process s led

by the Chief Execulive through the
Executive Committee and wcludes the
active engagement of the Board Part of

the Board s role Is to consider whether

the strategy takes appiropriate account of
the Group s principal risks The tatest updates
to the strategic plan and Group risk appetite
wet e approved by the Board in March 2016

The strategy and risk appetite drive the
Group s forecasts These cover a five year
period and constst of 2 base case forecast
which includes committed b #ansactions
only and a forecast which atso includes
non commilled transactions the Board
expects the Group io make mn line with
the Group s strategy

Assessment of Viability

The period over which the Directors consider
it feasible and appropnate to repart on the
Group s viahitity is the five year period to

31 March 2021 This period has been setected
because it s the period that 1s used for the
Group s medim term business plans and
individual assel performance forecasts

Our Risk Management Framework

Top-Down

Strategic risk management

Review external erviromment
Rabust assessment of pnnaipal nsks
Sat nsk appetde ard pararr =ters

Deterrnne stralegic actien points

Identify principal rsks

D rect detvery of strategic actions

Bottom-Up

Operational risk management

/\

Assess effectiveness of rsk

BOARDS managene sysierrs
AUD'T COMMITTEE -

Report on prrzipal raks
end unceria'rties

,—/\

RISKCOMMITIEE/  Consder completensss of wenithed nsks
in line with risk agpetite EYECUTIVE

and adequacy of miligating aciions

— DIRECTORS -

Mantor key sk indicatars

T

Execute strategic achons

Report on key nsk ind cators

—_—

The assumptions vnder piniing these forecast
cash flows and covenant cornpliance forecasts
were sensibised to explore the resttience of the
Group to the potential smpact of the Group s
significand risks or a combination of those nisks

The principal risks table which follows an
pages &6f) to 43 summarises those matters
that coutd prevent the Greup from delivering
on its sirategy A number of these principal
risks because of ther nalure or potential
impacl coutd also thi eaten the Group sabiliy
to continue In businessin tts current form o
they were to occur

The Directors pad pat heular attention to the
risk of a deter 1or ation in economic outlook which
would unpact proper ty fundamentals including
inwestor and occuprer demand which would have
a negative tmpact on valuations and give rise

to a reduction in the availability of finance

The remasreng principal nsks whikst having an
impact on the Group s business model are not
considered by the Director s 1o have a1easonable
likelihood of impacting the Group s viability over
tive fave year period to 31 March 2021

The sensttivities performed were designed o
be severe but plausible and to take full account
of the availality of mitigating actions that
could be taken to avoid or reduce the impact

or occurrence af the under lying 1isks

BUSINE S5 UNITS

Constder aggregation of risk exposures
across the husingss

/’/\

Report current and emerging risks

{denuify evaluate and rmibgate operationat
risks recorded in sk register

- Bownturnin ecanomic outlook Key
assumphions including occupancy void
periods rentel growth and yields were
sensitised to reflect reasonably hikely levels
associaled with an economic downlurn

- Restnicted avatlability of finance Based
on the Group s current commitrments and
avadable facilities there 1s no requirement
ta refinance for four years In the nor mal
course of business finanang 1s arranged in
advance of expected requirements and the
Directar s have reasonable conflidence that
addiienal or replacement debt faciiies
will be putin place

Viabihty Statement

Having considered the forecast cash ilows
and covenant compliance and the impact of
the sensttivities m cormbinatien the Directors
confirm that they have a reasonabte
expectation that the Group wilt be able to
continue i operation and meet its Labtities
as they fall due over the period ending

31 March 2021

Going Concern

The D ector s also considered it appropriate
to prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis as exptainedin the
Gover nance Review

@ To read more information on going
coneern go Lo page 77




Risk Focus m the Year

The Board has undertaken a robust assessment
of the principal nsks facing British Land and
our principal risks have evolved as a resull

of the uncer tainty as to the outceme of the
pending referendum on the UK s membership
of the EU increased geopolitical instabslity and
cyber secunity External factars such asthe
macro-econamic environment, continue to
domunate the risk landscape Whilst we cannot
control the external environment we centinue
to actively montter leading indicatars an the
economic and property cycle

Our nisk assessment

Principal Risks Key Strateqic Change in

Prionties affected year

External risks
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We continue to drive improverments i our risk
management process and the quality of risk
information generated whilst at the same ime
mantaining a practical approach During the
year we Introduced an enhanced Infor mation
Security Policy with the aim of providing greater
protection of British Land s electronic data by
mandating incr easingly secure processes
appropriate controls and operations and
promoting awareness of cyber security We
have also reviewed and refreshed our Ant-
Bribery and Corruption poticies and controls

The principal nisks facing Briush Land are
summarised across the following pages
inctuding an assessment of potential Impact
and likelshood together with how they relale
to our strategic prior ties

Impact

Note The above illustrates prmapal risks which by ther nature are those wh ¢h have the poiential
to s.gnificantly smpact the Group s strategic objectives financ.al pos t:on or reputation

Key

Strategic prionties

Change year-on-year

@ Customer Z2 Unchanged
)

Ortentation

~  RightPlaces (& Increased
&4

@ Capital @ Reduced

Effiiency
3(%”: Expert People
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

External Risks

Rusks and How we momtor Change m the penod
impacts and manage the risk
Economic The economic climate and - The fisk Commuttae reviews the economic @ The UK economy has remained robust
outlook projections for interest rates environment In which we operale guarterly to however there is continued econorate
present risks and epportunities in assess whether any changes to the econamic and political uncertainty and concerns
property and financing markets and  outlook yusidya re-assessment of the strategy ower the forthcorming EU referendum
the businesses of our occupiers or nsk appetile oi the business Uncertainty remams over when nterest
- Indwcators such as forecast GOP growth rates will rise albelt consensus has
employment rates business and consumer pushed back their expectations for
confrdence interest rates and inflation/deflation interest rate rises and expects the
are considered aswell as centrat bank quidance merease will not be steep
and government policy updates
- We locus on prime assets and sectors which
we helieve will deliver outpet formance over
the medwm term beneliting from continuing
occupier derand and investor appelite
Political Significant politicat events - Whilst we are not able to influence the outcome Uncertanty rernamns as lo the oulcome
outlook (inctuding the pending EU ot sigmficant pelitical events we do take the of the pending referendurn onthe UK s
referendum) and policies, bring uncertainty retaled to such events and the range membearship of the EU We maintain
risks both i terms of uncertainty ol possible outcomes :nto account when making seppot tior remaming i the EL
until the outcome ts known and the sitategic investment and financing decisions Thete IS Uncertainty over the new
impact of policies introduced - We engage public affairs consultants to ensure that Mavor of Lond Y h
rincipaily in two areas yor of London s appreach o planning
principally we are properly briefed on the potential policy and and housing
- teluctance of tnvestors and regulatory implications of poliical events Where
bussnesses tomake investment appropnate we act with other industry participants The geopolitical environment remains

decisians whilst the sutcome
temaing unceriam and

- on deterrrunation of the outcome
the impact on the case for
investment tn the UK and on
speciic policies and regulation
introduced particularty those
which directly irnpact real estate

te influence the debate on these policies unstable withimmigration issues

tesulting §:0m the ongoing unrest in
the Middle East putting pressure on
state resources i Europe

Commercial Reduction ininvestor demand for - The Risk Committes reviews the properly market There has continued to be a high lavel
property UK reat estate mayresultinfalls in  quarterly to assess whether any changasto the of investor demand for UK commercial
nvestor asset valuations and could anse market outtook present risks and opportunities property both from domestic and
demand from variationsin which should be reflected i the execution of our international investor s during the year
- the heatth of the UK economy strategy The Comrmuttee considers indicators such However since the turn of the year
~ the allractveness of mvestment as margin between property yields and borrowing there has been a slowdown in
costs and property capital growth ferecasts which transactions in part due o heightened
i the UK are considered alongstde the Committee members global uncertainty and investors
- availabiity of finance knowledge and expetience of markel actvity and concerns oves the pending EU
- relative atlractiveness of other trends referendum The market for the most
assel classes - We locus on prime assets and sectors which we aitractve assets remamed highly liquid
believe will delver outperformance over the however investors are becoming
medium term benediting fram continuing occuprer increasingly discerning with some
demand and investor appetite softerng in demand for mor e secondary
assets particularly in retail
- Strong refationships wilh agents and direct
nvestors active in the market
Development  Costinflabion presentsarsktothe - [oreach project we make a judgement about @ There are signs that construction cost
cost inflation profitability of our development apportwarnent of constructien risk Where we inflation I1s moderating reflecting lower
projects and has the potential to retan this risk we aum to fix coslts early inthe raw material costs However tender
adversely affect our cash position process subject to other market factors with key prices still refiect the lemted capacity
and overall return oninvestment contractors subject to financial covenant review n the wdusiry with coniractors seeking
- We factor in canstruction cosl inflatron for our to rebuild marging and bimit their risk

oxposure We factor cost inflatioen into
our developmenl appraisals and for
our projects under construclion
substaniially all our costs are fixed

projects as pari of the investment appraisal
process 1o assess the viability of each development

- We are working with gur supply chain oninitiatives
{0 address skills shor tages and to understand how
resource constraints could impact development
costs in the long term

60 British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2016




Risks and How we momtor Change in the peniod

impacts and manage the risk

Gccupier Underlymngincome rentat growth - The Risk Commuttee reviews indicalors of oecupier The L ondon occupational market has
demand and and capital performance could be demand quarterly including censumer confidence rernamed strong through the period with
tenantdefault adversely affected by weakening surveys, employment and ERV growth forecasts healthy take-up and record low vacancy

occupier demand and cccupiler
failures resutting from variations
n the health of the UK economy
and corresponding weakening

of consumer confidence
business activity and investment

Changing consumer and business
practices lincluding the growth
ofinternet retailing flexible
working practices and demand
for energy efficient buildings)

new iechnologles new legisiation
and alternative locations may
resuft in earlier than anticipated
chsolescence of our buriidings if
avolving occupier and regulatory
requirements are not met

rates occuplers are increasingly
thinking about requirements several
year s m advance The market has
however slowed since the turn of the
year as occupiers delay decisions until
alter the pending EU referendum
Looking forwar d the development
pipetine indicates that office supply wall
remain constramned in the near term
and patentialty tonger  proposed
devetopments continue to be delayad

alongside the Commtier members knowledge
and experience of occupier plans trading
performance and leasimng activity in guiding
execution of out strategy

- We have a diversified occupier base and monitor
concentration of exposw e to individual occupiers
or sectors We perform nigorous occupier
covenant checks on an ongoing basis so that
we can be preactive in managing exposure 10
weaker occupiers

- Ongaing engagement with our occupiers Through
our Key Occupier Account progr amme we work
together with our occupier s io find ways to best
meet ther evolving requsrements

- Qur sustainability st alegy inks action on occupler
health and wellbeing efficiency commumty and
sustainable design to our business sirategy Qur
social and enveronmental largets help us cornply
with new legislation and respond to customer
demands for example we expect all office
developiments to be BREEAM Excellent

Inretail the occupational market
remains robust with increasing
requirernents frorn new entrants and
for new store formats particularly a
the most attractive locations Reiatlers
are continuing to focus their portjotos
oh fewer better stores which suils ther
omni-channel strategres Challenges ta
retailer profniabtlity include the lving
wage business rates revaluation and
the increasing cost of omni-channel
platforms including distribution

Avalability and  Reduced availability of property
cost of finance  finance may adversely impact
ability to refinance debt and drive
up cost This mayalsoresultin
weaker investor demand for
real estate

- Increasing finance costs would
reduce Underlying Profits

There continues to be good averatl
markei appelite for real estate finance
depending an quatity of the boriowes
project and specific lender
requirements Overall whete there

has been mar ket volatility financing
costs rernamed refatively low However
Macro-eronarmic usnicer lainties coutd
adversely impact future biquidity

and pricing

- Market borrowing rates and real estate credit
availability and actinty are monnored by the Risk
Commmuttee quar terly and reviewed regularly in
order to guide our financing actions tn executing
our strategy

- We masntain good relationships with our key
financing partners and adwssors

- We marntam a diverse range of sources of finance
to provide access to funding as required We am
always to have a good levet of undrawn cormmitted
unsecured revolving facilities 1o ensure we have
adequate financing avatkatnility to support business
requirements and opportunities

~We work with mdustry bodies and other relevant
organesations 1o participate in any debate of
emerging banking regulalions where our interests
are affected

Catastrophic An externat event such as a ol

business event emergency including a large-scale
terrorist attack, cyber crime
extreme weather occurrence or
environmental disaster could
severely disrupt global markets
fincluding property and finance)
and cause significant damage
and disruption to British Land s
portfolio and operations

The Horne Office threat level from
international terrorism remains
severe Qur business continuity plans
and asset emergency procedures have
been reviewed and enhanced where
appropriate

We maintain a comprehensive crisis response plan
atross all business units as well as a head oflice
husiness ronttnuity plan

- The Risk Commutlee mornitors the Home Office
terrorism threat levels and we have access to
sacunity thr eat information services

- Asset emergency procedures are regularly
reviewed and scenario tested Physical security
measures are in place at propertiesand
development sites

- Asset risk assessments are carried out [e g
security flood environmental health and safetyl

- Our cyber security systems are backed up by
incident management disaster recavery and
business continuity plans all of which are regularly
reviewed (o be able lo respond to changes inthe
threat landscape and organisational requirements

- We also have appropnate insurance in ptace across
the portfolio

During the year we introduced an
enhanced Information Security Policy
with the aim of providing greater
protectson of Briish Land s electronic
data by mandating mecreasingly secure
processes approprizie controts and
operations and prormoling awareness
of cyber secunity

KEY

Change from last year @ Risk exposure has increased @ No sigmficant change inrisk exposure @ Risk exposure has reduced
Our principal Key Risk Indicators are highbighted within Howwe momitor and manage the risk
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Strategie Report

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED

Internal Risks

Risks and How we monitor Change m the perrod
unpJdets and manage the risk
tnvestment tn order to meet our strategic Qur investment strategy 15 determined to he We are focusing the business around
Strategy objectives we must invest i and consistent with our target risk appetrte and s based long term trends and continue to see
exit from the right properties an the evaluation of the exter nal environment the benefits of the Investments we
Responsible at the right ime Sigruficant - made i recent years In linewith our
executives underperformance could - P[iogresatagatlglsl the ‘1“ aleglviand gonilnumg priorities sat out last year we have
Chris Grigg result from inappropriate a[lggg;}e}rql ‘:'C uur:‘rllls Gam:ﬁ L;Lse:lscgfsli focused our mvestment on London
Charles Mauasiey determunation and execution ate ! 15 kmln ' dethWI . “"l olhe and the South East and mvesting
Tim Roberts of our property investment propesty markeis an € externat economic around transport infrastructure
strategy including environment we ve achieved some key development
- sector selection and weighting - (tdmidual investment decisions are subject to milestones and are also gettng closer
robust risk evaluation overseen by our Invesiment to our custermers In Retall we made
- :j"m“? ot ":V;S‘mem and Committee ncluding consideration of returns €420 million of disposals as we increase
vestmenl gecisions relative to nisk adjusted hurdle rates our focus an the multe-tet porifolio
- expasure i developments - Review of prospective performance af indwiduat where we can put our placemaking
- sectar asset lenant region assets and thew business ptans skills lo work to drve rentat growth
concentration - We foster collaborative relationships with our @ Our investiment strategy 1s
~ co-Hwestment arrangements co-nvestors and enter Into ownership agreements oullined on pages 24 to 25
which halance the mterests of the parties
Development  pevelopment provides an We mamtam our tevels of total and speculative Development 1s an kmportant part
exposure opportunity for outperformance development exposure as a proportion of the of pur bustness and a key drver of

Responsible

but this brings with 1t elevated risk
The care with which we make our
decisions around which schemes

returns We have assembled an
altrachive pipehine of deveiopment
oppor tumties which gives us growth

investment portfolio value wathin a target range
takang inte account assoclated 11sks and the impact
on key financiat metrics This s rnonitor ed quarterly

executives
Chris Grigg to develop when, as well as our by the Risk Committee atong with progress of into the luture, and where we are able
Charles Maudsley execution of these projects, developments against ptan to make bmely decisions to reflect
Tim Roberts must reflect this P changes in market conditions These
- Prior to committing io a development the Grou
Development 1isks coutd adversely undertakes a de!a!?ed N i’ . b’ p include exciting opportunities across
PPraIsat Qver Seei vy our our three existing Londen campuses
impat t under lying incorme and ! C | g pus
nvestrient Comrmittee including consideration i sntrad N tond
captal performance including the potential 1o create a new t ondon
of returns relative to nsk adjusted hurdle rates campus at Canada Water alongside
- development letling exposure - Pre-lei targets are used Lo reduce developmeny sigmficant investment opportunities
- construction timtng and costs letting risk where considered appropriate In our existing Retal assets
= major contraclor falure - We actively engage with the communities m which @ For more on our development
- adverse planming judgemenls we operate as detailed n our Local Charler to programme see pages 37 to 39
ensure that our development actmities consider
the wterests of all stakeholders
- We manage environmental and soclal risks across
our development supply chain by engaging with our
suppliers including through our Sustamability Brief
fot Developments and Health and Safety Policy
People A number of critical business Our HR strateqy i1s designed to miniruse nisk through Having expert people 1s one of the fou
pr;);e;sesdanc: d:ctsmns lle - nlormed and skilled recruttment processes er focti’s areas of out business ll'nodel
ands o ovide a sirong corporate cullu
Responsible 1nihe hands ol a lew peaple - talent performance managerment and succession co?n‘::*u:l'ed to o:“_ gea g’ A realu e
executive Failure to recruit develop and pianning for key roles Bt ooy
Chris Grigy 1etain staft and Directors with working environment competitive
the right skills and experience - hghly competitive cornpensation and benefits benelits and career development
may result In sigrsficant - people development and training Opporllun:ies We ejmt?ower our prop!ﬁ
to make the most of their potential wil
URZE{EE::;;“;’:}CZ?Q ll:;“?:g:,ldhe The risk 1s measured through employee engagement us Our high level of staft engagement
zec:smn making IF:] furn impacting surveys employee turnover and retentton metrics was 1ecognised by mamtaiming a One
business performance and regular people review aclivities Star rating n the Sunday Tines Best
We monitor this thr ough the number of unplanned Cormpanies 1o Wark For survey
executive departures in addition to conducting exit @ For more on our expert people
mnterviews see page 23
We engage with our outscurced suppliers to make
clear our requitements i managing key risks
ncluding health and safety iraud and bribery and
other social and ermironmental risks as detarled
tn our Supply Cham Charter
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Risks and How we monitor Change in the peniod

mpacts and manage the rnsk

Capital We maintain a capital structure - We manage our mux of equity and debt Balance sheet metrics in the year
Structure which recognises the balance hinancing to achieve the right balance between remaned strong We have maintained
- leverage between performance, risk enhancing returns fot shareholders and the our capital discipline with investment

Responsible

and flexibilsty
- Leverage magnikies returns

and development being broadty
halanced by asset disposals and
reduced our propor ioneHy consobdated

nsk of higher leverage
- We manitor sur LTV to manage leverage levels

executive both positive and negative over the property cycte and seek to ensure that c
Lucinda Bell - Anncrease inleverage increases LTV should not exceed a maximum threstold if LTV1032% n kne with our strategy to
the risk of a breach of covenants market yields were to rise lo previous peak levels "?' merease leverage soleliv on ‘::19 basis
on borrowing facilies and may Thts means we will not mcrease our LTV f asset of animprovemnent in market yields
merease linance cosls values increase only as a result of market @ f-or more on our financal
yield rmprovement policies see pages 54 o 54
- We manage our mvestment activity the size
and tirming of which can be uneven aswell as
our development commitments to ensure that
ous LTV levet remans appropriate
- We leverage our equity and achieve benefits of
scale whie spreading risk through joint ventures
and funds which are typically partly inanced with
debt without recourse to British Land
Finance Our strategy addressesrisks both ~ We have five key principtes guiding our binancing We continue to achieve aitractive
strategy to continuing solvency and the which tegether are employed to manage the risks financings which improve earmngs
execution stability of our profits wthis area diversify our sources of binance phase and liquidity We have completed over

Respensible

Failure to manage the refinancing
requiremnent may result in a

{ 1 bition of financing activity during
the year including a zero coupon £330
mittion senior unsecured convertible

matur ity of debt partfolio mamtain bguidity maintam
flexubilisy and raintain strong balance sheet metrics
See page 55 for further details

executive
Lucinda Bell shartage of funds lo susiain bond due 2020 which provides further
ycinca Be the operattons of the business - We monitor the period until refinancing is
dwvessification of our sources of
orrepay faciliies as they fall due required which I1s a key determinant of financing
" ol ) he Lkelthood of finance and mcludes flaxible
Tius and a breach of financial actwity "‘:'; reQ'I:: arly evatuate the Uikelihood o settlement options Based on current
cavenant lumats are considered to covenant breac comrmmitments and cut current available
be sigruficant 11sks to the continuing  ~ We are comumutted to mmaimtaining and enhancing faclites the Group has no requirement
operation of Briush Land as a relationships with our key financing pariners 10 refinance for four years
going concern - We are mindtul ¢f relevant ermnerging regutation for more on our financial palicies
which has the potential to ympact the way that @ see
payes 54 ta 56
we linance the Group
Income We must be mindful of maintaining - We undertake comgrehensive profit and cash @ The quahty of our portfohs and
sustainability  sustainable mcome streamsin {low forecasting incorporating scenarto analysis environments enables us to attract

Responsible

order to continue to generate
returns for our shareholders

some of the strongest occupters to
our properties this togetherwith our

o madel the impact of proposed transactians
- Pro-active assetl management approach ko

executives and provide the platform from maintain strong accuprer ine-up We monitor gh occupancy levels and long lease
t.ucinda Bell which to grow the business our market letting exposure ncluding vacancies lengths provides security of income
Chartes Maudsley through development and upcormng expiries and breaks and tenants n We are increasing the diversity of our
Tim Roberts capital appreciation ademinislration as welt as our weighted average occupter mix and no single occupier
We consider sustainabiity lease length accounts f?r(rjnclore than 5 7% of ment
of OuF INCome streams In ~ revenues In delivering our investrmen
i : « t , We han a:ilverflhed occu;::er t(;ass antd momilor strategy we are mndiul of the mpacl
- execution of investmen concentration of exposure to individual occupiers N GUT INCOME SECUrity
strategy and capital recycling or seclors
notably trmung of reinvestment - We are proactwe in addressing key lease breaks
of sale proceeds and expiries to munmise perigds of vacancy
- nature and struclure - We aclively engage with the communities in
ol leasing actraty which we operate as detailed in our Locat Charter
- nature and Liring of 1o ensure we provide buildings that meet the needs
asset management and of all relevant stakeholders
devetopment acuivity
KEY

Change frem last year

@ Risk exposure has increased @ No significant change i risk exposure @ Risk exposure has reduced

Qurpnacipal Key Risk indicators are ighlighted wathin Howwe monitor and snanage the risk
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Governancee and remunceration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy
and leads British Land to

achieve long term success

Chns Gngg
Chief Executive

Appointed 1 January 200°

Lord Turnbull
Sentor Independent Director

Apponted Non-Executive Director
in April 2006 became Senior
tndependent Director in January 2013

Lyvon Gladden
Nan-Executive Dhrector

Appointed in March 215

Charles Maudsles
Head of Retall and Leisure

Appointed in February 2010

Smnon Bomows %
Non-Executive Director g

Wilham Jackson
Non-Executive Director

Appoted in Apnl 2011

Appointed in March 2011
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Tim Score
Non-Executive Director

Appointed in March 2014

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer

Appanted in March 2011 became
Cheef Frinancial Officer in May 2611

Aubrevy Adams
Non-Executive Director

Appanted in Septernber 2008

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Appointed in july 2006

Bt

Laura Wade-Gery
Non-Executive Director

Appointed in May 2015

John Gildersleese
Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed Non-Executve Director in
September 2008 and Charrman in
January 2013
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Governanee and remuaneration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - BIOGRAPHIES

About the Board

Board composition

9 Board of Directors

MW Non-Executive Chairman
& Independent Non-Execulive Directors
- Executive Directors

Directors’ core areas of expertisel

Property
Finance IR
Retat and consumer W %8857 ",

Academsc

Public sector 3

Some Direclors are represented in mere than one category

Excceutnne Drrectors’ appomtments

50% 509%

Appainted internally Apponted externally

Length of Non-Executn ¢ Directors’ tenures

Under 3years 384
3tobyears . s © %
Gver & years R L T
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Non-Executine Chairman

John Gildersleeve

Skills and experience Johnis deputy chairman and senior independent
director of Spire Healthcare Gi oup ple and deputy chasrman of TalkTatk
Telecom Group PLC Jofin was the chairman of Carphone Warehouse
Group unlil December 2015 and 2 nan-executive directer of Pick n Pay SA
unbil Mar ch 2016 He was former ly chairman of New Look Retail Group,
EMI Group and Galtaher Group a non-execubive director of Dixons
Carphone plc Lloyds TSB Bank PLC and Vodatone Group and an
executive director of Tesco plciB 311

Commttee membership
- Nomination {Chairemanl

Executive Directors

Chrs Grigg

Chief Executive

Skulls and experience Chris was chieil executive of Barclays Commercial
Bank untl November 2008 having jomed the bank in 2005 Prior to
Basclays he was a partner of Goldman Sachs where his career spanned
20 years

External appoiniments

- Non-executve director of BAE Systems plc

- Member of the executive board of the European Public
Real Estate Association

- Membher of the board of the British Property Federation

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer

Skitls and experience Lucinda is a chartered accountant with
over 20 years of industiy experience In 2604 she was a member
of the HM Treasury appointed working party which designed the
mmplementalion of the REIT regume

External appomntments
- Non-execuive director of Rotork pic
- Mamber of the Acceunting for Sustainability CFO Leadership Network

Charles Maudslev
Head of Retail and Leisure

Skills and experience Charles joined British Land n 2010 from LaSalle
tnvestment Management He had previously been with AXA Real Estate
Investment Managers for seven years

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Skills and experience Belore joinmg British Land in 1997 Tim was
a partner at Brivers Jonas in the Invesiment Agency team He was
formetty a non-executive diector of Songhird Estates untit 2009

External appointments
- Trustee of the property industry chanty Landfid
and Chair of the Grants Commitiee




Non-Eaecutive Directors

Aubrey Adams

Skalls and experience Aubiey s group chairof L&Q the housing
assocation and residential developer He was former ly head of property
within RBS s Restructuring Division a non-executive director of Pmnacle
Rageneration Group Limited serer :ndependent direc:or of Associated
British Ports PLC non-execubve chairman of Unitech Corporate Parks
PLC non-executive chainman of Air Partner PLC chief executive of
Savills PLC and non-executive chairman of Max Pioperty Group PLC
Aubrey s chairman of the board of irustees of Wigmore Hait

Committee membership
- Audit

Simon Borrows

Skitls and experience Stmonas the chief executive of 31 Group plc and a
rmember of the supervisory board of Peer Heldings BV the Dutch holding
company for 31 sinvestmentin Actton the non-food discount retailer

He worked for 28 yearsin the banking and finance industry most
recently as chairman of Greenhiit & Co Internationat LLP He was also
chief executive officer of Barwg Brother s Internationat Limited the
corporate finance dision of ING Barings and was a non-executive
director of Inchcape plec until May 2015

Committee membership
- Audit

Lynn Gladden

Skills and experience Lynn s a non-executive direcior of IP Group ple
She 1s Professor of Chemical Engineering at the Unwversity of Cambridge
comrmissioner of the Royal Commussion for the Fxhibition of 1857 and

a fetlow of the Royal Society and Royal Academyy of Engineering She
was formerly ¢ member of the Council of the Engineering and Physical
Sciences Research Council and held the position of pro-vice-chancellor
for research at the Umiversity of Cambridge until 31 December 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration

Willzun Jackson

Skulls and experience Willlam 1s Managing Partner of Bridgepoint one
of Ewope s leading private equity groups whach he has led since 2002
He also serves as chairman of the board of Pret A Manger and president
of Dotna Sports SL the rights holder to the MoloGP worid motor cycling
championships He has served on a range of boards during his career
and has exiensive opei ational and transaclion experience

Committee membership
- Remuneration
- Normnatton

Laura Wade-Gen

Shills and experience Laura is an executive diecter Multi Channel of
Marks and Spencer Group plc [M&S] Prior to joiving M&S in July 2011
she had servedin a vanety of senior roles al Tesco PLC Lauiawasa
non-executive director ol Trimity Mircor ple until 2012 Laura s a trustee
of the Royal Opera House and Atdebur gh Music

Committee membarship
- Remuneration

Tim Score

Skills and expertence Tim 1s a non-execulive direcier of Pearson plc
and HM Treasury He was formerly chief financial officer of ARM
Holdings PLC and heid servor financial positions at Rebus Group Limuted
Wiltiam Baird ptc LucasVarity plc and BTR ple From 2005 to 2014

he was a non-executive dit ector of Natronal Express Group PLC

Committee membership
- Audit [Chairman]

Lo:d Turnbull

Senior Independent Director

Skills and experience Andrew entered the House of Lords m 2005
as a Crossbench Life Peer He retired as Secretary of the Cabinet and
Head of the Hame Civil Service in July 2005 Andrew ps eviously held
the positions of Permanent Secretary of HM Treasury and Permanent
Secrelary at the Department of the Environment He was formerly a
non-executive director of Arup Group chairman of BH Glabat Limited
and a non-executive of Prudentiat PLC f1om 20046 unti! May 2015 He
was & non-execulive director of Frontier Economics Ltd from 2006
unlil Novernbes 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration [Chairman}
- Nomination

Company Secretary

Elame Williams

Elaine was appointed Company Sect etary and Gener al Counsel in
November 2015 She was formerly Deputy Group Company Secretary
at HSBC Holdings plc and prior to that a partner at Freshields
Bruckhaus Deringer
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Governanee and remuneration

CHAIRMAN S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate Governance
and Remuneration sections of our

Annual Report

John Gildersleeve
Chatman

Directors’ attendance during the vear ended
31 March 2016

Joha Gildersieeve 8/8
Chris Grigg 8/8
Lord Turnbull 8/8
Aubrey Adams 8/8
Lucinda Bell a/8
Simon Borrows 8/8
Lynn 6ladden 8/8
William Jackson 7/8
Charles Maurstey 8/8
Tim Roberts 8/8
Tim Score 7/8
LauraWade Gery’ 4/6

' Witham Jackson and Tim Score were unab'e to a'tend an unscheduled Board
meeling called ar short notice and held by teiephone due to pre exsting
business cammmitments

¢ LauraWade-Gery was appomted an 13 May 2015 Laura Wade-Gery was
unable o atlend one Board meeting due fa a pre-existing business
comrmtment and onre due to iiness
w1212
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Our robust gover nance structure ss an integral pai t of the way British Land
designs and delwvers its strateqy supparting effective decision-making
antd enabling the 11ght people (o have access Lo the right (informatwon at the
night ime As reported m the Chief Executive s review we have delivered
another strong set of results as we progress in Implementing our strategy
of creating Places Peopte Prefer The Board continues to make a valuable
contributton in overseeing the delivery of our strategy providing
consiructive challenge to management and ensunng key risks

are identified and properly managed

More ifarmation on our strategy and
progress can be found on pages 18t0 25

British Land has a highly effective Brard as confirmed by this year s
wternally conducted Board evaluation exercise reinforcing the positive
results of last year s externally facilitated evaluation We have nat made
any changes to the Board or Committee membership this year other
than the appemntment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May 2015 which we
reported on last year We are not propastng any changes to the Board
at the 2016 Annual General Meeting [AGM]

@ Read our Board biographies on pages 66 10 6%

We value continuity and experience of Bribish Land s business and are
delighted to endorse the Nommation Commuttee s recommendation
that Lord Turnbull be 1 e-appointed as Serar independent Director
Lord Turnbull will step down as Chatrman of the Remuneration
Commuttee following this year s Annual General Meeting although he
will remain a member of that commuiitee Whttiam Jackson has agreed
to lake on the positton of Chairman of the Remuner ation Commiiee

The Remuneration Committee has recommended that we seek approval
this year of a new Remuner ation Pelicy as our Matching Share Plan
expires this year Amendments o our Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}
& e proposed to deliver a simplified remunerauon structure with one
tong lermncentive artangement No other matersal changes to the
existing policy are proposed

The Remuneration Report 1s set out on
pages 86 o 110




We believe that good governance requires open engagement with
stakenholders and have sought and responded to feedback about our
governance structures and the way gur business 1s run We have
consulted widely and taken into account investor views in relation Lo
the propased changes to aur LTIP and hope 1o receive your continued
support of our Remuneration Policy to enable us 10 offer competitive
remuneration structures to attract and retamn the best people 1loaok
forward to 1 eceiving yourt feedback on this and other matters at and
in advance of our AGM on 19 July 2014

Aeaehs-

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

@ Chairinzn s statermnent go {o pages 4 to 5

Comphunce with the Code

The Board has continued 1o apply guod governance practices during
the year operating in camplance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code fthe Code | For easa of reference thisis how we demonstrate
our cotnpliance throughout the Governance and remuneration sectron
of the Annual Report and Accounts 2016

@ A. Leadership

v’ B Effectiveness

v’ C Accountabitity

@ D Remuneration

@ £ Relations with shareholders

[

Ealirg Broadway
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Governanee amd remuneration

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our governance structure ensures
that the right people have access
to the right information

Board

~ Develops strategy and teads British Land
to achieve long term success

- Determines nature and extent
of significant risks

~ Maintains dwalogue with shareholders

Comnuttees of the Board
- Report on their activities lo the Board

nnhaﬂugn;ﬂumxwﬁm ’
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Management Commuttees Risk Committes
- Report on their activittes to the Board ~ Manages strategic and operationat risk in
and its Commitiees as appropriate arbweving the Company s perfermance goals

- Recommends appropriate nisk appetite levels

- Manitors the Company s nisk exposure

- Reviews opei ation of nsk management
processes

- Meels four times a year

- Reporis to the Audit Comimutiee

- Charred by Chief Finsncial OHicer

- Membership Fxecutive Direciors

Operations Committee

- Provides coliaborative leadership across
the Company operationalises business slrategy
champions visten placemaking and values
and leads change i the busingss

- Meets regularly through the year
Membership sentor individuals across
business funchions
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Executive Commuttea

- Conswlers day-to-day operational rnatiers
for runiung the business

- Reviews performance of the Group s assets
and development programme

- Genet ally meets twy e rnonthly

- Reports to the Beard

- Chaired by Chuef Execulive

- Membership Fxecutive Directors and six
sanlor execulives

Health and Safety Committee

- Reviews perfoi mance against targets and drives
farward actions in pursuit of the Company s
health and satety goals

- Meets four times a yeai

- Reports to the Risk Commitiee

- Charred by Chief Financiat Officer

- Membership staff with relevant respensibilities
from actoss the business

- three subcormitiees Construction Managed
Portiolip and Head Oifice {staff commuttee)

. é—:-z.mﬁﬁ‘e




Matters resers ed for Board approsal

- Transactions and financing arrangements over £100 muliion

- Issue of secunties

- Employee share and option schemes

- Documents for disinbution to sharzholders and the Annuat Report
and Accounts

= Dwidends

- Establishing authonity levels below thase of the Board
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Rermuneration Commultee

- Sets remuneration of the Charrman
Chuef Executive, Executive Directors
and Campany Secretary

Remuneration report see pages 86 to 110

Investment Committee

- Reviews approves or recommends
captal iransactions

« Recomimends major transactions
for Board approvat

- Meels as required
Chatred by Chiet Executive

- Mernbershup Executive Directors

@ Investme ! sticking to our strategy
see page //

Charity and Community Commuittee Sustainability Committee
- Approves all spend under the charity - Custodian for sustairability sirategy
and community budget - Reports to the Board
- Reports to Lthe Fxeculwe Committee - Chaired by Chief Financial Officer
- Chasred by a Senior Retail Asset Manager - Membership executves with defined areas
of responsihility
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Governanee and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our robust governance structure is an
integral part of the way we design and

deliver our strategy

The Board has continued to apply good governance practices during

the year and constders that the Company has fully complied with the UK
Corporate Governance Code {the Code} This section of the Annual Report
and Accounts 20146 outlines how we have applied the Code s principles
and prowisions throughout the yeat We are reporting against the Code
which applies to companies with reporting periods beginning on or after

1 October 2014 A copy of the Code 15 available at www fre org uk

Leadershnp

The Board s core respensibiities include setting British Land s strategic
aims and keading the Company as it works to echieve these awns and
attasn tong term success The Board focuses on strategy throughout

the year and the annual Strategy Days provide a key opportunity to

do this as explained 1 the box to the night Progress agawmst and the
appropriateness of the agreed strategy are considered at Board
meetings during the year m hght of Company performance and
changes to the external environment

There 1s a written dwision of responsibilities between the Chairman
fresponsible lorrunming the Board}and the Chief Executive responsible
for runming the Company s business| which has been approved by the
Board (A 211 &

The Executive Dueclors ted by the Chief Executive are responsible

lor ensurig that the business 15 run in accordance with the Board s
strategy The relattvely small numbei of employees at Bittish L and
means that the Executive Directors are involved in or aware of all major
activitves of the Group - hence they are extremely well placed 1o ensure
that actions are abigned with the Board s strateqy This s exemplified by
the process by which investment opportunities are appraised More
nformation on the mvolvement of the Executive Directors in the
mvestment process can be found on page 77

The Boar d sets the parameters and controls within which the Company s
management may operate when undertaking the day-to-day running of
the business These contrals ensure that decisions are taken by people
with the correct authority to do so

The major decisions reserved for Boar d approval and other decisions
delegated to the Executive Drector s are for mally documented A 11 &
The Executive Director s make decrsions within these predefined
parameters Decisions that would nor mally fatl within these parameters
may stll be taken to the full Board for approval where such decisions
relate to activilies outside the ordinary course of business or where

the Executive Directors constder it appropniate to do so Management
Cammitiees deal with thewr specihc areas of responsibility before making
decisions {where they have authority to do sof a1 recommending actions
for Board-level approvat if this s required Akey consideration when
making each decision is on whelher the proposed action 1s aligned with
the strategy the Board has developed
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The Chair man meets with individual Dhrectors outside for mal Board
meelings as part of each Director s continuing contribution to the
delivery of the Company s strategy This process also altows for open
iwo-way discussion about the effectiveness of the Board its Cornmittiees
and individual Directors both Executive and Non-Executive By these
means the Chairman 1s cantinually informed of the views of indwvidual
Directors and can act as necessar y to deal with any issues relating io
Board effectiveness before they become a risk to the Company

The Strategy Davys
The annual Strategy Days tield in February are attended by the full
Board and the [xecutive Commitiee

The Executive Director s senior executives and external guests deliver
a number of presentations to the Board providing an in-depth analysis
on all aspects of the business and the external environment The
Strategy Days are a key opportunity to discuss challenge and develop
the Company s sirategy

As well as considering the Group as a whole and the overall corporate
sirategy consideration s given to each part of the Group s current and
praspective portfolio and te Group financing

The days are carefully struclured o achueve a balance between
presentations and time [or debate and discussion

Areas focused on at Lhe 2016 Strategy Days included
- Corporate Stralegy

- Feedback from Investor Perception Aucht

- Office Strategy

- Retail Strateqgy

- Canada Water

Culture and composition of the Board

The compostion af the Board 15 a fundamertat driver of its success as

it provides strong and elfecuve leader shup, the breadth of knowledge

skills and experience of our Non Executive Dir ectors s detalled in thetr
biographies on pages 8 and 69 The Nomination Commuttee 1s responsible
for reviewing the composition of the Board and Board-level Committees
and assessing whether the balance of skills experence knowtedge and
independence is appropriale to enable them to operate effecuvely (B 2 2) £

The procedure for the appoiniment of new Directors 1s rigorous and
i ansparent Other than the appointment of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May
2015 no changes te the composition of the Board occurred during the year




Non Executve Directors are appointed for specified terms and all
Onectors offer themselves for elechion or re-election by sharehalders
at the Annual General Meeting [AGM| each year if the Beard on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee deems it approprate
that they remainin office [B 7@

Lord Turnbult has been a Non-Execulive Director since April 2006

He has now compleled ten years in office Whiist taking into account the
need to progressively refresh its members through new appointments
the Board recognises the importance of continuity and the value

that Directars who serve for many years are able to bring When a
Non-Executive Direclor s tenure goes further than nine years their
independence 15 carefully j eviewed and monstored The Nemination
Comimittee has again rigarously reviewed Lord Turnbull s contribution
and independence over the years and recommended to the Board that
it1s appropriate for hiny to remamn in office and the Board 1s satisfied
that he remains independent [B 2 3] @

We continue to have a strong mix of experienced mdividuals on the Boaid
with the majority being Non-Executive Directors who are independent
and can offer an extes nal perspective an the business and constiuctively
challenge the Executive Directors particularly when developing the
Company s strategy [B 1 tH& [B 1 2| @ The Non-Executive Directors
scrutimise the performance of management in meeting their agreed
goals and objecttves and moniter the reporting of performance They
satisfy themselves of the integrity of financial infermation and that
internal controls and systems of risk management are etective

The Board culture 1s one of openness and constructive debate the
Dhreciors voice their opintons in a 1 elaxed and respectful environment
allowing coherent discusston The Chairman is responsible for maintaming
this culture He does so by ensuning information of an appropniate quakity
15 provided in a tumely tnanner before Board meetings the opportunity 1o
properly consider such information in advance leads to jocused discussion
i Lhe boardroom When runming Board meetings the Chairman maintains
a collaborative atmosphere and ensures that ali Directors contr hute

to debates The Charman arranges informal meetings and evenls
throughout the year to help build constructive relationships between

the Board members

The high calibre of debate and the participation of all Duectors Executive
and Non-Executive allow the Board to utilise the experience and skills

of the mdivmidual Directors to iheir maximugm poteniial and make
well-considered decrsions that are in the best interesi of the Cornpany

The Board considers that Aubrey Adams Stmon Borrows Lynn Gladden
Witiam Jackson Tun Score tord Turnbull and i aura Wade-Gery are
independent I making this determination the Boar d has considered
whether each Dwector1s independent s character and judgement and
whether there are relationships or circumstances which are likely to
affect or could appear to affect the Director s judgement (B1 1} @

The Board believes that the Non-Executive Directors brogr aphies
demonstrate that they ar e of the stature and experience required to
ptoperly perform their roles as independent Non-Execuuve Directors
Following this year s Board evaluation the Board believes each Non-
Executive Director standing for re-election at the next AGM continues to
elfectively fulhil and rermains cormmtted 1o their role within Briish Land
The terms and conditions of appaintment of Non-Executive Direciars are
available for mspection at the Company s registered office and at the AGM
B3212

Effecuveness

Regular Board and Convmttee meetings are scheduled throughow

the year and the Directors ensure that they allocate sufficient time to
dischar ge then duties etfectively (ccasionally Board meelings may be
held at short notice when Board-level decisions of a tme-critical nature
need to be made Non-Execulive Directors letters of appointment set out
the ime commitments expected and each Drector s attendance record
[shown on page 70] is constdered when assessing whether they should
stand for reappoaintment by shareholders

The Chairman considers that all the Directors continue to devole
suflicient ume to discharging their duties to the requu ed high standard
Briush Land s policy s to allow Executive Directors to take one non-
executive director ship at another FTSE company subject to Briish Land
Board approval External appontments of the Directors are disclosed in
then biograpties and fees earned by Executive Directors are disclosed
on page 101 of the Remuneration Repart (D12} @

The Directors are required to noty the Company of any potential
conflicts of interest that may aitect therm in their roles as Direclors of
Briush Land All potential conflicts of interest are recorded and reviewed
by the full Board at least annually

The Non-Execuiive Directors are kepl well informed of the key
developments in the business by both the Executive Directors and other
senior exccutives through regular reports and presentations Reports
include a Management Repart delivered by the Chief Executive at each
Board meeting and updates on the activities of the Risk and Sustainability
Caommiitees

Throughout the year presentations and repaorts on spectfic aspects of
the bustness and individual assets are also delivered alongwith updates
on the regulatory and external envirgnment

Care s taken to ensur e that snformation 1s enculated in good time

before Board and Committee imeetings whenever possible and that
reports are presented ctearly and contain the apptopriate level of detait
to enable the Board to discharge its duties 1s the Company Secretary s
role to facritate effective information flows between the Baard and

its Committees and between senior management and Non-Executive
Directors The Company Secretary 1s 1 esponsible for advising the

Board on governance matters lhrough the Charman [B 5 2] @

The Non-Executive D ectors are therefore able 10 monitor the
managernent of the business and the implementation of the sirategic
aims effectively and are able toassess the suitability of the current
strategy and the performance of the Chais man and Executive Director s
B512

Boand evaluation

The effectiveness of the Board and its Commitlees s reviewed annually
with anindependent externally facilitated review being conducted at
{east once every three years The last external 1 eview was conducled
n2015iB462 &

Annternal review of the Board and 1is Committees was conducted in
2816 by the Company Secretary by way of questionnaire and coves ed

the following areas (il role erganisation and a compasition of the Board
and its Commitiees [} agenda i) corporate governance vl guality

of information vl monitoring Company performance and il Board
leadership and culture The review concluded that overall the Board
operated very effectivelywith a continuous high standard of performance
throughout the year [B 61] @
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Governanee and remuneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

During the year the Chairman met each Non Executive Birector
individually to discuss thew contnbution to the Board and the Senior
tndependent Director met with the other Non- Executive Directors (with
Executive Directors present] to discuss the performance of the Charman
(A4 21@1(8 6 31D The Remuneration Committee was pravided with

an appraisal of the Chref Executive s performance by the Chairman

and an apprarsal of the performance of the Executive Directors by

the Chtef Executive

Board training and development

Briush Land provides for all Directors a tatlered and thorough induction
including the opportunty to meet with senjor execulives to be given

dn overview of thetr spectlic areas of responsibility within the business
and the opportunity to visit the Company s key propertses and
developmenis [B 4 1)@

The Company also offers Directors opporlusmties to update and refresh
their knowledge on an ongeing basis to enable them to continue fulfilling
therr roles as Board member s and Committee members effectively

This includes traiming opportunities and further wisits to the Company s
properties asrequired In2015/14 the Board held meetings at the
Company s properties Broadgate Cstate and Paddington Central

in addition to the Company s head offrce Updates on the external
environment and regutatory matters are delivered to the Board

and refevant commitiees by external speakers including corpor ate
governance updates {B 4 21&

Key arcas discussed and 1eviewed by the Board
i 2016

- cutcomes of the Beard Strategy Days and approval of strategy

- approval of nsk appetite

- pnnaipat nsks faced by the Company

- reports of the acivities of the Audit including nsk] Remuneration
and Nominatron Commuitiees

- Chief Executive s Managemant Reports quariet ly updates on
the business and exiemmal environment

- updates an the portfolio inctuding developments acquisitions
and disposais

- updates on inanaing

- results of the Board perfoermance evaluation

- reappointment of Dhirectors at the AGM,

- conflicis of interest

~ approval of year end results the Annuat Report and Accounts
the AGM Circelar and dwdends

- people developrent and succession ptanning

- health & safety

- sustanabrlity

- investor relalons reports

- Remuneration policy

~ cybersecunity and

- informatian technotogy
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Accountabilit

The Board 15 responsible for preparnng the Annual Report and Accounts
and as confwmedin the Directors responsibibily statement the Board
believes that this Annual Report and Accounts taken asa whole 15 fair
halanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
to assess British Land s positon performance business maodet and
strategy [C 11 % The basis on which the Company creates angd
preserves value over the long term 1s described In the strategic
report(C12] ~

The Directors Responsibitity Statement 1s set out on page 113

Strategic report see pages 1to 43

The Annual Report and Accounts is compiled by the relevant responsible
individuals across the Company Speoific sections are reviewed by
Department Heads and Executive Commiltee members as appropnate
ensuring that all key stakeholders across the business are involved

The Executive Director s are clasely involved in dr afting and r eviewing
thesr relevant sections of the Report before formally signing them off
Finance Investor Relations and Company Secretariat conduct a 1 obust
due dilrigence process venfying key staternents made within the Annual
Report and Accounts The full Annual Report and Accounts is then
reviewed thoroughty by the Audit Commuttee hefore 1t 1s presented

ta the Board for appt oval

The procedure undertaken lo enable the Board to provide the far
balanced and understandable confirmation to shareholders has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee The process 1s enhanced by a specific
meeting between the Chief Financiat Officer Head of Strategy and
investor Relations and the Group Financiad Controlter and ther relevant
team members to review and document ihe key consider ations

undei laken to ensure thatinformation presented is fair balanced and
understandable Areport detailing those considerations was reviewed
by the Audit Commuttee alongside a summary of the detailed procedures
undertaken and the full Annual Reportand Acrounts

Risk management and internal control
The Board determmes the nature and extent of Lthe significant risks
1t1s willing to take in achieving the Company s strategic objectives

The mantenance of the Company s 11sk management and inter nal
cantrot systemns s the responsitility of the Board Oversight of the
effectiveness of the 11sk management and internal control system

has been delegated to the Audit Commutiee A top-down risk review

15 combined with a complementary bottom-up approach o ensure that
nisks are fully considered Aswell as complying with the Code the best
practice recornmendations in Guidance for Risk Management Internal
Contrel and Related Finencial and Business Reperting have been
adopted and the Company snter nal conti ol framework has been
assessed against the tmernationally recagmsed COS0 Inter nat Control
Integrated Framework The latier assessment showed that afl key
conirol elementsare in place Appropriate internal controt and risk
management processes apply to all entities which Briish Land
administers including alt materral joint ventures and funds {C 2 3~

Briush Land s approach to risk including the roles of the Boaid the
Audit Comimittee and the Risk Comnittee in setiing nsk appetite and
monitoring risk exposure 1s described in the Managing risk in delivering
our sitategy secton of the report on pages 57 w0 43[C 2 11 %

Formal and Lransparent arrangements exist for considering how
corporate reporiing nsk management and internal control principles
are applied and for mamtaiming an appropt iate relationship with the
Company s auditor




Imyestment- sticking to our strategy

Executive Birectors are involved throughout the investment process
and alignment with the Board s strategy s considered from the
inrhal discussion of a transaction, right through to final approval

T8 All new investment opporiunities are discussed at weekly

B deal sourang meetings attended by investment executives
Potentially atiractive deals that are in bine with strategy
are selected Lo be nvestigated and analysed in detail by
profect teams

Project teams assess whether nvestment opportunities
should be pursued conducung detalled properiy and
corporate due diigence ongang dratogue with the relevant
Executive Commiitee members lakes place throughaut
the process

2

Investrnent opportunities with potential are piesented for
Investrnent Committee approval Depending on the size
and nature of a transaction the Investment Committee
can approve the proposed transaction outright or
tecammend it for appr oval by the fult Board

Investinent opportunities are presented to the full Boord
for approval when required

4

The Graup s internal control systerm s hult on the {oltowing fundamental

principles andis subject to review by Internal Audit

- A defined schedule of matters reserved for approval by the full Board

- A detarled authonsation process no material commitments are entered
into without thorough review and approval by more than one
authorised person

~ Fermal documentation of alt significant transactions

- A robust system of business and financiak planning includes cash flow
and profitability farecasting and scenaro analysis performed on major
corporate woperty and financing proposals

- Arobust process for property investment appraisats

- Monitoring of key outcommes particutarly expenditui e and performance
of significant investments against hudget and forecast

- Clearly deiined policies and review of actuat perfor mance against policies

- Benchmarking of property performance against external sources such
as Investment Praperty Databank,

- Key controls testing

- A comprehensive preper ty and corporate insurance programene and

- A formal whistte-blowng policy

The Audit Comrmittee reviews the effectiveness of the Group s system

of mternal control over financial reporting annually including the
systems of controd for mater rat jot ventures and funds Duning the
course of its review of the nsk management and wnternal control systems
over financial reporting the Audii Commuttee has notidentified nor

been advised of a faibing or weakness which 1t has delermined to be
sigmhicant [C 2 3} &

A nurnber of policies are in place to ensure that the Comnpany not only
meetsits legat obligations bul also behaves ettucally acts with integrity
and protects its assets from the unlawful activities of others These
include ar Anti-Bribery and Cor ruption Policy a Compeution Policy

and a Fraud Awareness Policy All employees are made aware of the
polictes and procedures in place with under standing enhanced by siafi
communications and traimng

Viability and going concern
To read our viability statement see page SB(C 22) &

The Gioup has consider able undrawn debi facilities and cash depaosits
tn excess of current drawn bankuing faciliies There (s substanbal
headroorm agamst the covenants forits unsecured banking facilities

k also beneiits from a diverse and secure income stream from leases
with tong average lease terms

Having assessed the principal risks and other matiers discussed in
conneclion with the viabiity statement the Directors believe that the
Group1s well placed tomanage its financing and other business risks
satisfactorily and have g reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources 1o continue In operation far at least
12 months from the date of the Annual Repor t They ther efore consider it
appropriate to adopt the going concer n basts of accounting

in preparing the financial statements (C 13 %

Taxation

Our principles of good governance extend to our responstble approach

to tax |tremaims important to our stakeholder s that the Company s
approach totax s aligned to the long term values and slrategy of the
Group The Group s tax strategy Is the responsibility of the Chief Fiancial
Offrcer with close ivolvernent of Executive Directors and semior
management in all acvty The Audit Cornmuttee is presented with

an annual tax update

Employees

Having expert people at British Land 15 one of the four core elements
aof our business model This applies both to the individuats on the Board
who have respansibitity for leading the Company and to the employees
who work througheout British Land

We encourage a high deqiee of employee mvalvement in the Company
and provide regutar information on business activilies and explanations
of sts ategy through Company meetings traiming sessions internal
communications and an annual Cormpany conference Employee
feedback 1s also strongly encouaged

The Operations Comenittee {OpCol which i1s cormprised of semor
indmduals across Bribish Land s business functiens assists the
Executive Commitiee with operational matters anising in the day-to-day
management of the business The OpCo forms a link between the
Executive Commitiee and wider teams ol employees enhancing the flow
of information around the Company both upwards and downwards lo
improve the strategic and tactical decisions that are made The aim of
the OpCo1s to strengthen collaboration across the Company in driving
imtatives that help us achieve our objectives The OpCo also plays an
increasingly tmportant role in the development of the operational
leadership areas of our business such as technology

British Land contimues to implement a number of miiatives to help
develop our employees and grow inter nal talent reinforcing the
Cornpany culture of exceltence and embedding vatues and behaviours
As a relatively small company in ierms of number of employees we are
proud i be able to invest in our people on an indwvidual basis taking
ume to understand specific requirements 1o progress careers

We have well-established all-employee share schemes to incentivise
employees at all levels in the Company and align therr mterests with
those of shareholders by building a holding of Briush Land shar es
Separate pension fund reports are made available to members
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Governanee andd remuncrittion

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Staff turnover

2016 2J15 2014
Head office 44 [19%]} 31 12%I] 32 15%)
Broadgate Estates 53 115%) 28 (M%) 42 {20%)
Total faverage] 98 [17%) 59 {12%} 74 {17%}

The benefit of diversity both on the Board and throughout the Company
continues to be a key consideration when searching for candidates for
Board and other appointments [nadditon the Company continues 1o
support the Pathways to Prapertly programme which aims to increase
diversity within the proper ty ndustry as a whole by attracting students
from a vartety of backgrounds into the praoperiy seclor

Funding te charity and good causes

Our Local Char ter sets out how we budd trust by supporting successful
local communities and develop skilis and cppor tumties to help local
people and husinesses grow Our Chanitable and Community Funding
Guidetines set out how we allocate funding wath a particular focus on
intiatives close to our assets that have a positive impact on young people
education employment and training Both documents can be found an
our wehsite al www britishland com/palicies

The Charity and Community Commuttee which approves all spend under
the Chanty and Commumiy Budget 1s chaired by a Senior Retail Assel
Manager and 1eports to the Executive Committee on an annual basis

Donations during the year totalled £1 371 044 compared with £1 287 500
in the previous year Bretish £and does not make any donations (o
political organisations

Health and Safety

We have retained for mal 1ecogn:tion of our focus on heatth and safety
through a successiul audit of our CHSAS 18001 acureditation We
continue to impr ave our approach to health and safely management to
ensure thal we consistently achieve best praclice acioss atlaciivities in
the business [construction managed portiolio and head office to deliver
Places People Prefer to our employees and our customers

RIDDOR* Year ended 31 March

Total RIDDOR
Accidents Accdent Frequency Rate
216 2m5 2016 2015

Construction 3 8 014 019  per 100000
hours worked
Retail 23 19 om 007 per 100000
fooufall
Offices [ 2 18 85 750  per 100000
workers
Head Office 0 0 0 3 per100000
full ime

equivalents

*Reporiing of Ijuries Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013
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Remunerauon

The Remuneration Commuttee has recommended that we seek approval
thus year of a new Remuneration Policy as our Matching Share Plan
expires this year We are not mtending to renew the Matching Share Plan
Amendments to our Long-Term Incentive Plan are proposed to deliver

a simplilied remuneration structure with one long term centive
arrangement The new Remuneration Policy 1s set out on pages 97 to 98

Relations with shareholders

The Board remains committed to mamtaining open channels

of commumcation with shareholders fhisimportant to us that
shar eholders understand the Company s strategy and objectives
these must be explained clearly and shareholder s feedback must
be heard and the 1Issues and guestiens raised properly considered

Bitish Land has a dedicated Investor Relations team which reporis to
the Chief Financial Officer Communication with investors and analysts
1s an ongoing process throughout the year This includes reqular
scheduled Investor Relalicns events suminarised in the box on the page
oppostte one-to-one and group meetings with Executive Derector s and
tours of our properties aswell as regular contact with the Investor
Relations team During the year the Chief Executive Chief Financial
Othicer and our Investor Relations team met with representatives from
aver 180 institutions We perodically commission an independent
investor perception siudy which is presented to the Boaid

The full Board plans to attend the AGM which provides an opportunity
for all shareholders to queshon the Birectors in persen

Signsficant emphasis s placed en the impor tance of feethng sharehotder
views both positive and negetive back to the Board A wnitten investor
relatiens report which includes diect market feedback on actvity during
the period 1s presented to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors

at each scheduled Board meeting for discussion Shairehalder opinions
are also given due consider alion throughout the annual Strategy Days

E1@(E12Q




hey imvestor relations activaties during the vear included

May 2015 - Fuli-year results presentation
- Full-year roadshow London

June 2015 - Investor property conferences London
and Netherlands
- Investor roadshew Ldinburgh

July 2015 - 1 mterim management staterment and call
- AGM
- Hetail capital imarkets day Londen

September 2015 ~ lnvestor roadshow US
- Private Chient readshow London
- Investor property conference London
- Investor property tour The Leadenhall Building

November 2015 - Half year resulls presentation
- Half year results roadshow London
~ Inve star property conference London

December 2015 - Investor property conference London

- Analyst and investor tour Broadgate
January 2016 - Investor property conference Londen

- Tradng statement investor video and call
February 2016 - Investor roadshow Nethertands
March 2016 - Investoi conference US

- Private Client roadshow | ondan

Brirsh Land aims to be informative and accessible to all shareholders
For results and other key announcements we provide infor mation on
a timely basis to both retail and institutional sharehotders A number
of case studies coveling topies that range from profiles of our key
assets to sustainabsiity activiies are also avallabie to view online
Shareholders can ask questions at any ime via our contacks page on
the corparate webstte

Contact Bribish Land
www britishland com/contacts

We are pleased with the level of engagement with sharehotder s achieved
during the year and the Board also recognises the important contribution
of provider s of vapital other than shareholders namely our lenders and
bond helders We mamtain a regular and open dialogue with our lenders
1o help us understand thew investment appelite and criteria

Lord Turnbutl Senror Independent Director 15 avallable to address
any concerns shareholders may wish to 1a1se other than via the usual
channels of the Chairman Chief Executive or other Executive Directors

A4S
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Governanee and remuneration

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We are committed to monitoring
the Group's control environment
and financial reporting processes

Tim Score
Chaiwrman of the Audit Committee

Audit Conumttee members’ attendance durng
the vear ended 31 March 2016!

Tim Score 5/5
Aubrey Adams 5/5
Simon Boriows 5/5

During 2016 semor axecutives were wwited to ailend and/or present at
meetings of the Committee includirg the Chiet Financral Othcer the Head of
Strategy and Investor Retatigns the Financial Controlier the Head of Tax the
Head of Finanzial Reporting and the Head of Frnancial Planning and Analys's
and Risk Commttee Secretary

h12@

Ternis of Reference

The Commttee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s
websile al www britishland com/commuttees
[c32)~(C33 2
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Weilcome to the report of the Audit Commuttee

The key areas of focus for the Commutiee this year have been reviewing
and adwising the Board on the viability statement includedn the Annual
Report and Accounts scruinnsing the process for valuation of
invesiment and development properties by ihe Group s exter nal valuers
and overseemg the Internal Audit tender

Composition
The Commuttee comprises Aubrey Adams Simon Besrows and myseli
as Committee Chawman (C 31] ~

Each of the Corrinitiee members ts considered to be approprrately
qualified and expersenced to fulfil theu role For the purposes of the
Code fam the member of the Commuittee nominated as having
significant recent and retevan! financial experience

Activities

During the year the Committee has undertaken each of sts principat
responsibilities recewing relevant repor ts from the external valuers
the internal and external auditors the Risk Commutlee and management
and chaltenging the validity of accounting assumptions and judgements
The table on page 81 details the principal responsibilities of the
Commuttee and key areas of focus throughout the year

The Commutter per for ms a detailed review of the conient and tone of

the annual and half-year ly press reteases and the Annual Report and
Accounis aswellas trading updates The Commmuitee has sausfied itself
that controls aver the accuracy and consistency of information presented
n the Annual Repor t and Accounts are robust and has confirmed te the
Beard that it believes this Annuat Report and Accountsis fair balanced
and understandable [C 3 4) v An assurance apnion is obtained for

the Cornpany from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP [PwC) over selecled
sustainability data and a verification exercise ss per formed by managernent
lo ensure conaistency and accuracy of nfor mation presented

In addition to regular committee meetings additional time s spent by
members ol the Audit Commuttee meeling wilh executive management
to understand keyissues The Commutiee regularly meets with PwC
and Internal Audit without management present and the Comrmittee
Chairman meets privately with the exter nat valuers




Prncipal responsibihities
of the Comnuttee

Kev areas discussed and revien ed by the
Committee during 2016

Reporting
and External
Audit

- Monitoring the integrity of the Company s hinancial statements
and all formal announcemenis relating to the Coimpany s
financial performance reviewsng significant financial reportng
1ssues judgements and estimates including the consistency
quabty and appropristeness of accounting policies and the guality
and completeness of disclosures

- Making recornmendations to the Board regarding the
reappomiment of the external auditor and approving the external
audior s reruneration and terms af engagement [C3 7] %

- Monitoring and reviewsng the exiernal auditor s independence
objectwity and effectiveness

- Reviewing the content of the Annual Report and Accounts
to ensure ¢t 15 fair balanced and understandable

- Developing and implernenting policy on the engagement
of the externat auditor to supply non-audit services taking
inte account relevant guidance

- Results commentary and announcemenis

- Key accounting judgemenis including valuattons
- Changes te accounting policres

- Gong concen and the viabilily statement

- Faur, balanced and undersiandable assessment in retaton
to the annual report (C 3 4} ~

- External audior eflectiveness

- External audstar reports on planning the half yearly review
and the full-year audit including the final opinion

- The external auditot s retnuner atron

Valuations - Monstoning and reviewing the valuation process - Effectiveness of the external valuers
- Reviewing assumptions and methodology - The quabity of the valuaiion process and Judgernents at half year
- Monitering the external valuer s cornpetence and year end
and effectiveness - Valuer presentations to the Comrmttee
Risk and - Overseemg the mternal control environment and risk - Risk register wicluding dentification of the Group s principal
internal management systems an behal! of the Board risks and movernent In expasures
control - Monitaring the Company s risk exposure and recommending - Status of key nsk indicators including any breaches of

the Cormnpany s risk appetite to the Beard for approval

- Overseeing the assessment of the principal risks and
rmiligating actions

- Reviewing the risk management disclosures on the Group s
approach to sk inthe hall yearly and annual reports

- Reviewing the whistle-blowing policy and #ts implementation
Ic38“

thresholds
- Activines of the Risk Commuttee inctuding review of its minutes
- Effectiveness of internal conts ol systems

- Responses to audit findings and recornmendations for controt
improvemnents iIncluding reviewing the External Audd
managernent letter

« An annual fraud nsk assessment
- Cybersecuniy

- The insurance programme for property development and
corporate risks

Internal Audit

- Appraval of arrangerments for the provision of internal audit
servi.es and any termination of such arr angements

- Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company s
tniernal Audit funciion including its plans level ol resources
and budget

- Reviewing tnternat audit repoi ts recommendations and progress
inimplementation of those recommendations

- Coordmation between linternat Audit and External Audit

- Annualinternal audit plan including consideratton of s
alignment to the principat nisks consideration of ernerging
areasof 11sk coverage across the Group and its joint ventures
and review of the Group s processes and controls

- KPMG s execution of the mternal audi plan and reviewing
the resultant audit reports and indings

- Internat Audil effectivensss

- Internal Audn reports payrolt tax comphiance 1T
The Leadenhall Building and Broadgate joint venlures
procuremnent [phase 2] Broadgate Estales leasing process
anti-bribery and corruption key financial controls treasury

- Annusal internal conti ofs overview

- Internat Audit charter defining 11s rele and responsibiliies

- Internat Audit tender pracess

Other

- Reviewing the Audit Comnutiee s effectiveness and its Terms
of Reference

- Considering compliance with legal requirements accounting
standards and the Listing Rules

- The Committee s Ter ms of Reference

- Elfectiveness of the Comnuliee

- Maintenance of the Group s REIT stalus

- Annual tax update

- Review of PwC 5 Sustainability Assurance Repost
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Significant issues 1n relanon to financal statements
The Comntlee pays pa: icular attention to matters.t considers to

be important by virtue of their size complexity level of judgement
reguired and potentiat impact on the financtal statements and wider
business model Identification of the 1ssues deemed to be sigmificant
takes place following open frank and challenging discusston between
the Commitiee members with input from the Cheef Financial Ofhicer
PwC and Iniernal Audit and other televant British Land ernployees

A particular area of lecus for the Commuttee has been the wiahility
statemen which 1s included within the strategic report for the first

ume this year an page 58 The Commutiee has discussed the form

and content of the staternent and the analysis carred out to support it
with management and PwC throughout the year The Committee has
confirmed {o the Board thal it bebieves the viablity statement adequately
considers the Group s principal nisks covers an appropriate period 15
supporied by the assessment prepared by management and includes
disclosure of all refevant matenal assumptions made

The signifscant issues consider ed by the Comrmittee during the year
ended 31 March 2016 are detailled below alongside the actions taken
by the Commitlee to address these issues [C 3 8f <

Sigmificant issues in relabon to financil statements
considered by the Conmiittee durmg the vear

Internal Aundu

The Company s Internal Audit function during the year was outsourced
to KPMG who reported regularly to the Committee The Committee
momitored the pet formance of Intet nal Audit throughaout the year as
well as performing an annuat review of i1s effectiveness The Commuttee
believes KPMG dischar ged its duties effectively [C 3 6) -

KPMG has performed the inter nal Audit functien since it was outsourced
in 2017 ltwas decided that the internal Audit function should be put out
to tender in March 2016 o facilitate evaluatian of different internal audit
approaches Following a competitive process Ernst & Young LLP [EY]
was appointed EYwill report regutarly to the Comrmittee and et 1s
envisaged that 1ts perfor mance will be momitered in a similar way

Poliey on PwC providing non-audit services (C 3 8) £
With respect to non-audit services provided by PwC the iollowing
framework was in place duning the year

- Audrt related semices audit related services include format reporting
relaling to borrowings shareholder and other arrcutar s and various wark
in respect of acquisitions and disposals Where the externat auditar must
carry out the work because of then office (he external auditor 15 selected
In other aircumstances the selection depends on which irmis best suited

How these issues were addressed by the Comuiittee

Vatuation of The valuation of investment and development
imvestment and ptoperties whichis conducted by exiernal
development valuers s inherently subjective as it1s made
properties on the basis of assurmptions made by the

vaiuurs which may not ps ove to be accurate
The cutcome of the valuation 1s significant

to the Group in terms of invesiment decisions
results and remuneration

The external valuers presented their reports to the Commitiee and were
asked to hightight any significant judgements or disagreements with
managernent Yaluation ceriificates and outcermes were reviewed and
assumptions challenged with particularly nigerous scrutiny this year
given the lower valumes of evidence seiling transactions compared
torecent periods

Accounting for Risk 1s encountered through property and
transactions finanuing transactions as targe and non-standard
accounting enires can be required

The Commitee reviewed managernent papers on key judgements,
meluding those for sigmficant transactrons as well as the external
auditor s repor t presented following the conclusion of the audit

Gaing concern The appropriateness of preparing the Group
statement hinancial statements an a gomg concern basis

The Committee reviewed management s analysis supporting the gomng
concern basis of preparation This included consideration of forecast

cash flows availability of committed debt facilities and expected covenant
headroam PwC reported to the Committee the results of testing performed
on management s analysis

Viability statement Whethet the statement appropriately reflects the
prospects of the Group and covers an appropriate
period of bime

The Committee constdes ed whether the assessment perfermed by
managernent adequately 1eflects the Group s principal risks as disclosed on
pages 99 to 62 whather the period covered by the statement s reasonable in
light of the industry the Group operates in and 1s a lair reffection of the
forecast periog typically censidered by rnanagernent and whetherthe
assumnptions made and sensitivities identfied represent severe but plausible
scenarios i the context of solvency or iguidity

REIT status Maintenance of the Group s REIT status through
compbance with certain conditions has a
significant impact on the Group s resulls

The Commitiee reviews compliance with the REIT tests annually
Management presenied the methodology and resulis of the REIT tests
tughlighting any change in tong term trends and the current levet of
headroom

Judgements affecting For certain transactions judgemeni s applied

revenuerecognitton by management as to whether and towhat
extent they should be treated as revenue lor
the financial year

The Committee and PwC considered the appropriateness of the accounting
treatrent applied by management in relaton to revenue recogrition The
Commuttee and PwC also considered the scope of the accounting standard
and the reasonableness of the jJudgement rnade
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- Sustaingability assurance the selection depends on which firm s best
suited and s reviewed on a five yearly basis Currently the externat
auditor provides an assurance opinton over selecied sustainability data

- Tax advisory the selection depends on which firm 15 best suited in the
circumstances

- General consulting the external auditor 1s nat selected to provide general
consultancy senaces except In certamn bmited arcurnsiances and then
only after consideration that they are best placed to prowde the service
and that thew independence and objecimty will not be compromised

The fallowing commuitment protocol operated throughout the year and
applied to any engagement for conducting other work [excluding audit
and half-yearty reporung) performed by PwC
- The iotal non-audit fees are hrited to 70% of the audil fees in any
one yeat he audit and non-audit fees tor the three-year average
are calculated in ine with the methaodology set out in the 2014
EU Regulations and include fees for yoint ventures and funds
- Audit Committee approval 1s required where there were any doubts
as to whether the external audror had a conflict of interest and
- Approval by the Audit Commuttee Chairman 1s required for each
additional project over £0 1m 1n value where the cumulative fees for
non-audit work are projectad to exceed 50% of the audit fee in any
imanaiat year Dunng the year no project approvals by the Audit
Commutlee Chairman were required

Effectiseness of the External Aucit process

The Comnuttee places greal importance on ensuring a high quality
etfective External Audit process Fottowmg best practice and In
accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committee annually reviews
the audit requirerments of the Group foi the business and in the context of
the external environment The Comsmittee atso conducts an annual review
of the performance of the externat audrior and considers its independence
compliance wilth relevant statutory regulatory and ethical standards and
ohjectivity {C 3 8] 2

Following its appesntinent in 2014 Pw( successfully completed ws fir st
audit last year The Commuttee reviewed PwC s performance this year and
was content with the quality of the audit it had delivered The Commuttee
reviewed PwC s proposats {or the audit and s confident that appropriate
planswere putin place to carry out an etfective and high quality sudit
No significant 1ssues wei e raised during the cour se of the audit PwC
confirmed to the Comnutiee that it maintained appropriate internal
safeguards 1o ensure its ndependence and objectivity The Cernmittee
considered and approved PwC s assessment of its independence and
has 1ecommended #ts reappointment to the Board approvat of which
will be sought from shareholders at the 2016 AGM

The Cammuttee has agreed to consider the need for a competitive tender
for the role of external auditor every five years with a cornpetitive tender
taking place at least everyten years To the extent thal the auditor did
not rotate earbier through thus process the Company witl rotate audit
pariner as required by legisiation There are no contractual ohligavions
which would restrict the selection of a different auditor

The Company has complied with the relevant parts of the Compeltitten
and Markets Authority Finat Order on the statutory audit market for the
year enided 31 March 2016

Valuanons

The external valuation of Briush Land s portfolio 1s a key deter minant

of the Group s balance sheet performance and semor management s
remuneration In accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committee
adopis a rigorous app: oach to moniortng and 1 eviewing the valuation
process and the effectveness of the Group svatuers Knight Frank and
CBRE The Commuttee reviews the effectiveness of the external valuers
mannually focusing ona qualitative analysis of capual values yeld
benchmarking availabiity of compar able rmarket evidence and major
outliers te subsector movements

The valuers present directly lo the Commiitee at the half-yearly

and annual reviews of results including providing canfirmation of the
valuation process markel conditions and significant jJudgements made
PwC reviews the valuations and valuation pracess having full access
to the valuers to determine that due process has been followed and
apprapriate tmiormation used It reportsits findings to the Committee
The vatuation process is atso subject to regular review by Internal Audit
the most recent being undertaken4n 2013 with anather one planned for
later this calendar year In addwion | as the Commuttee Chairman meet
privately with the valuers

For the valuation of the Group s wholly-owned assets, the Company
has fixed fee arrangements with Knight Frank and CBRE 1 line with
the recommendations of the Carsberg Commattee Report Copies af
the valuation certidicates of Kenght Frank and CBRE can be iound on
the corporate website at www briishland com/reports

Identification and evaluation of commet cial nsks and
related contiol objeetives

The Audit Commattee 1s responsible for overseeing the effectiveness

of sound nsk management and internal control systems Mt fuihls this
role by overseeing the activities of and receving reports from the Risk
Comrttee and momitorning the risk management processes in place and
the activibies of the Internal Audit funchion including its reperting on the
effectiveness of controls The Risk Committee minutes are airculated to
the Commuttee for review with any sigisficant matter s highlighted for
discussion Twice yearly the prinapal risks which are derived froman
assessment of the resk register are presented to the Committee along
with commentary on changes in the exposure 1o thege risks in the period
Annually areport on the effectiveness of internal centrols and the nisk
management systern s pr epared by Internal Audit for presentation (o the
Comnittee Internal Audit and the Risk Cormmittee work closely together
to ensure that identified risk areas are incarporated in the Internal Audi?
programme and similarly findings of Inter nat Audit 1 eviews ar e 1aken
into account imidentifying and evaluating risks withun the business
British Land maintains a framewor k of controls related to key financial
processes and management of the associated nisks The effeciveness
of such controls is reviewed annually either by Internal Audit or as part
of the year-end external audst

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit Cormimitiee
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Governaes unnd remaneration

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Comunittee
leads the process for
Board appointments

John Gildersleese
Chairman of the Noemination Cornmittee

Nomination Commiittee members’ attendance during
the vear ended 31 March 2016

John Gildersleeve 2/2
Witiam Jacksen 2/2
Lord Turnbull 2/2
n121@

Composition of the Board

W Non-Executive Chiairran
EIndependent Non Executive Directors
. Executwe Directors

Ihrectors core arcas of expertise!

Property 9%
Finance

Retail and consumer AR

Acadermic £

Public sector m

' Some Direclors are represented in more than one category
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The Board and its Committees

Thraughout the year the membership of each Commitiee has comprised
independent Non-Executive Directors to the extent required by the Code
(B 2119 We value contimuity and experience of Briush Land s business
and wet e delighted to recommend that Lord [urnbull be re-appointed
as Semor Independent Directar Lord Turnhull will however step down
as Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee foltowang this year s AGM
although he will remain a member of that Committee William Jackson
has agreed to take on the position of Chair man of the Rernuneration
Commuitiee (B 7 4@

Asreported lastyear following a rigorous selection process Laura
Wade-Gery was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Brirsh Land
on 13 May 2015 Laura s bogr aphy demonstrates her huge retaill and
consumet experience No further changes to the Board occurred during
the year

Composition of the Board

The Commutiee considers that the Board consists of individuals with
the nght balance of skills experience and knowdedge 16 provide strong
and effective leadershup of the Company The majority of the Board

are independent Non-Executive Directors and the Board s collective
expenence covers a range of relevant sectors as illusirated in the left
hand column Aswell as a breadth of properly and financial expenence
many Roard members have per sanal expertence of working in the retast
and cor porate environments that are typical of many of our occuprers

All of British tand s Director s will retir e and submit themselves for
re-election by shareholders at the 2016 Annual General Meeting

The Commutiee believes that ak! the Direclor s continue to demonst: ate
commitment to thewr roles as Board and Committee members continue
to discharge their duties effectively and that each makes a valuable
contrmbution to the leadership of the Company

Diversity

British Land pays fult regard to the beneiits of diversity including gender
diversity bothwhen the Nomination Commirnttee 1s searching for
candidates for Boai d appointments and when the Company is searching
for candidates for other appaintments

The Boai d agraes with the conclusions of the Women on Boards repoit
by Lot d Davies of Aber soch that greater efforts should be maden
improving the gender balance of corporate boards and that quotas

for fernale boar d representation are not the preferred appscach The
Company currently has three female Directors Lynn Gladden and Laura
Wade-Gery whowere appomted as Non-Executive Direciersin 2015
and Lucinda Bell who was appointed Chief Financial Offtcer in May 2011
This currently represents 25% female Board membership




Principal responsibilities of the Committee

Kev areas discussed and reviewed
bv the Committee in 2016

Regular review of the structure size and composition of the Board

Review of the structure size composition of the Board along with
the skitls knowledge and experience of its members to ensure that
Dweciors remain able 1o discharge thew duttes and responsibifities
effectively and to the requred high standard

Recommendations to the Board with regard 1o Board changes
and Committee membership changes

Selection and appotntmeni of Laura Wade-Gery as a Non-Executive
Oirector Appomiment of Willlam Jackson as Chairman of the
Remuneration Commitiee

Succession planming for Directors and other senior executives

Suceession planning including :denbiication of potential internal
candidates for semor vacancies which may arise on a crisis short
medium or long term basis

Reviewing ime commitments required fram Non-Executive Directors

Time cormimitments r equired i om Non-Executive Dizectors were
reviewed as part of the year end process

Recommendations for re-election of Non-Executive Director s

Recommendations to the Board regasding Directors standing
for re-election by shareholders ot the AGM

Terms of Reference

The Committee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s website at www britishland com/committees [B 2 1] &

The promotion of women to the Board and other seniar positions
within the Company 1s dependent on the recrunment development
and retention of women in the workforce both within Lthe Company
and more widety throughout the business and prafessional commumty

Asof 31 March 2016 British Land s employees [including Broadgate
Estates] comprised 283 females and 3046 mates 12019 218 and 247
respectivelyl of the employees considered to be execulives 141 were
female and 257 were male [2015 115 and 205 respectively] Semor
execuiives comprising the Executive Committee and Cperations
Commuttee consisted of i1 femates and 26 males [2015 Band 17
respeciively] To encourage and help mothers return to work we offer
enhanced matermity leave payments and support flexible wor king
patterns currently 2/ of our fermate employees take advantage of this
facility [2015 31] We also offer enhanced paternity leave payments and
support flextble working patterns for all parents and other employees
whose personal arcurnstances may make this beneficial Currently 13
men work flexibly and 5 men took advantage of enhanced paiernity leave
(2015 9 and 14 respectivelyl Traiming and mentoring progr ammes are
provided to ensure that alt ous employees achieve thew potental taking
account of their diverse development needs |t s pleasing that our Chief
Financial Ofhcer Luonda Bell was aniniernal appointment reflecting
the development of our own people

The Nomnation Committee seeks to ncrease the percentage of female
Board members as quickly as we are able The speed at which we can
achieve this will be subject to the availability of sutable candidates

and compliance with the requirements of the Equality Act the Board

has a fundamental obligation to ensure that appointments ate of the
candidates best able to promote the success of the Company and we

do not consrder that it would be to the long term benefit of the Company
H appointments were made on any other basis Subject to these
requiremnents we have an ongoing commitment to jurther strengthening
fernale representation at Board and tap management level

Gur people strategy focuses en creating a team who can deliver

Places People Prefer Getting closer to our customers is one of aur key
strategic priorilies and having a wor kfor ce which reflects the diversity

of our customers helps us achieve this The pelicy throughout British Land
1s to employ the best candidates available in every position regardless of
sex race ethnicorigin natenality colour age religion or plulosophicat
belief sexual orentation marnage or cwil partnership pregnancy
materruty gender reassignment or disabiisty Applications for employment
by disabled per sons are always fully considered bearing mn mund the
aptitudes of the applicants concerned in the event of members of staff
becomung disabled every effo: t1s made ta ensure that their employment
continues and that appropriaie traming 1s arranged The policy provides
that the traiming career development and promotion of disabled people
should as far as possible hedentical to that of other employees

We achieved a key milestone on our journey towards creating a truly
inclusive environment with our formation of BL Pride our leshian gay
bisexual transgender ILGBT) and atties network and our Women s
network this year Both networks have been active in the year and we are
pleased that our Chief Executive Chris Grigg was 1anked 11th in the 2015
Leadmg 30 LGBT Ally Executives by OUTstanding and the Financial Times

We are also piloting 2 mentoring scheme for wornen offering help
guidance advice and support where it is needed

AR -

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Nominatron Commattee
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Policy is
designed to align management
incentives with our strategy

Lord Turnbull

Charman of tlhe Remuneration Cormmittee

Remuneration Committec members' attendance
during the year ended 31 March 2016!

Lord Turnbuli 3/3
Lynn Gladden 3/3
William Jacksan 3/3
Laura Wade Gery- 2/2

' Other indiwiduals attend Remuneration Comruttee meaetings by mvitation
Alan Judes of Strategic Remuneration attended Cormmittee meetings dur ng
2016 Alan ludes has beerappointed by the Commuftee as iis Independent
Advisor further detar’ s prowded on page 110 Durirg the year by the
Commuttee sinvitation the {ollowing seaior executives attended andfor were
present al Commitlee meeungs [other than when thair own remuneralion was
beirng discussed] the Company Chatrman the Chief Executive the Cormpany
Secrelary and Generat Counsel ard the Head of Operatans

?Laura Wade Gerywas appeinted as a Directar ond member of the
Remuneration Comimutiee an 13 May 2015
w1212

Terms of Reference

The Commitiee s Terms of Reference can be lound on the Coripany
website at www britishland com/committees (D 2 1 @(D 2 4 ©
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During the year we as the Commutiee have confinued to focus

on ensuring that our Remuneration Policy appropniately reflects

our remuneration philosophy which is based on three

fundamenial principtes

- remuneration should align management incentives with strategy
and so encourage activilies that support eur sirategy of creating
Places People Prefer

- remuneration parkages should be designed to altract and retain
expert peaple throughout Bntish Land s husiness and

- the level of remmuneration should be direcily inked to corporate
and wdivduat performance

We were delighted to receve over 97% of shareholder votes in favour of
our existing Remuneration Policy at our 2014 AGM As our Matching
Share Plan IMSP) will exprre mn July 2016 we have taken the opportunity
to review the current Remuneration Policy this yearather than at its
expiry in 2017 with & par bicular focus an simphifying our long term
incentive arrengements jaking into account ivestor seniment araund
matching share plans we have decided not to renew the MSP
Asaresult we willhave one single long term incentive arrangernent
under the proposed new Remuneration Policy

To achieve this we are proposing the following key rhanges to oue
Remuner atton Policy 1emovat of the MSP and amendments to the
tong-Term incentive Ptan [LTIP} which address the rermoval of the MSP
and respond L investor preferences fer the introduction of post-vesting
holdmg penods and the extension of time periods over which awards
should be subject to clawback Proposed amendments are summarisedn
tha box on the facing page Given the level of shareholder support receved
for the existing Remune: ation Policy in 2014 we are not proposing to make
any other material changes to our Remuneration Pelicy

Consultation on proposed changes to Remuneration Policy

We were pirased to be able to engage m meaningful discussion with
key shareholders during consultation on the proposed amendments
to 0tn Remuneration Policy A number of opinions expressed during
consultation have directly influenced the design oi the Remuneration
Pelicy that will be presented for approval al our AGM m July 2016

Our preposals to move Lo a single long ferm incentive areangement
introduce a two year hotding period followmg LTIP vesung and maintamn
the computsory defert al of a propor tion of an Annual Incentive award
into shares were particularly well received by investors and have been
incorporated into the new Remuneration Policy

in respanse ta feedback receved during consultation we are atso this
year providing mor e information about performance agasinst Anaual
Incentive measures over the financial year included on pages 102 10 103
of this Reportl and we are reducing the percentage of LTiP that vests for
achieving medan performance under the new Policy




Design of new Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the design of our new
Remuneraton Policy remains aligned with our remuneration philosophy
The elements of our remuneration structure have heen chosen so that
they support our business model and our four areas of strategic focus
Custorner Orientation Right Places Capial Efficiency and Expert
People Performance measures attached to variable elements of
remuneralion are siretching with Annual Incentive starting to be

awar ded and LTIP awards star biig to vest only once median performance
has been reached maximum levels of remuneration are only paid out
when upper quariile performance 1s achieved Beth short term [Annuat
incentive] and long term [LTIP) per formance measures have been
carefully selected 10 incentvise activities that support our strategy of
credting Places People Prefer The measures that witl be attached to
awai ds granted under the amended LTIP and their respective tinks to
our strategy are summansed i the box on the next page Page 21 of our
Strategic Report hightights the relationship between our strategy and
ourincentive measures

Our new Remuneration Policy will be presented to shareholders for

approval at the AGMn July 2016 Shareholders will also be asked to

vale on separate resolulions 1o approve the amendments to the LTIP

[0 2 4} @ and to approve the Directors Remuneraton Report for the year

ended 31 March 20156 If approved aur new Remuneration Policy witl

apply from the date of the AGM and will consist of the tollowing key

elements for Executive Directars

- Basic salanes and benebits will be set by reference to comparator
comparies of a similar position in the FTSE 100 Index

- Annual Incentive awards will be tinked to performance against
quantitative gualitative and personsl measures and ene third of
each Anrmuat Incentive award granted will be deferred to purchase
Bntish Land shares and

- LTIP awards will be binked to both speaific property retated performance
meagures [TPR and TAR assessing performance at the gross and net
tevels respectivety) and TSR performance measures andwill be subject
to & two year holding penod fotlowing the three year vesting penod

The Executive Dhrectors are responsible for setting the levels of fees pawd
to the Non-Executive Directors In bine with other FTSE 100 companies
IL1s proposed that under the new Remuneration Policy fees payable

to Non-Executive Diectors will be structured as an annuat fee plus
addiional fees for membership of committees andfor holding certain
posittons as outlined in the box 1o the night This represents a change
fraom the struciure under the cusrent Policy whereby Non-Executive
Dhrectors recetve fees based in part on thewr attendance at Boar d and
Commutiee meetings throughout the year Levels of fees under the new
Policy loutiined on page 100} have been selecled so that total fees for the
year commencing 1 April 2016 will not change materiatly compared to
the fees that would have been received had the current Policy remained
in place based on the anticipated number of meetings that will take
place during the year (D 2 3 @

Etement of remuneration

Change in Remuneration Policy

Matching Share Plan
{MSP)

No MSP will be included in the Policy presented
for shareholder approval at the AGM in July 2014
Underthe current Policy one therd of an Executive
Director s post-tax Annual Incentive award 15
deferred and used 1o purchase shares [MSP
Bonus Shares| that must be held for three years
and a conditional award of additional matching
shares (s granted

Annual Incentive
Deferral

the deferr at of one third of the post-1ax Annual
Inceniwe into shares will be retained bul no
award of additional matching shares wil be
granted This will result in continued abignment
between Executive Directors and sharehotders
nterests and wili psovide a longer term aspect
to the Annual Incentive award One third of an
Executive Director s post-tax Annual Incentive
award will be deferred and used to purchase
Annuat Incentive Shares that must be held
torthreeyears regaidiess of whether o

not the ndiwvidual remains an esmployee of
British Land throughout thes period Annwal
Incentive Shares will be subject to clawback
during the holding period

Long-Term {ncentrve

Plan {LTIP}

For Exetutve Direclors a two year holding period
will be mtroduced iollowing vesting of an LTIP
award during which awards will be subject

to ctawback The holding period will apply
regardless of wheiher ar not the individual
remains an employee of British Land throughout
this period The maximum award potential will be
increased from 200% to 300% of basic salary as
Executive Dis ectors witl ne longer be eligible to
recewe addibonal matching share awards under
the MSP The praportion of award vesting on
achsevernent of the median tevel of performance
wilt be reduced from 25% to Z0% of the award
Fhe perfermance cenditions atiached to LTIP
awards will be amended as detailed in the box

on the next page

Non-Executive
Directors Fees

Non-Executive Directers will recewve an annual
fee with addilional fees «f they are members of
Board Commuttees or hold the position of Senior
Independent Director or Chairman of the Audit
or Remuneration Commitee This replaces the
current fee structure which1s based 1n part

on meeting attendance
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Governanee uand Bemuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Remuneration i respect of the year ended 31 March 2016

British Land has had ancther active and successiul year demonstrated
wvour strong fudl year results Relative to the prior year underlying profit
has increased by 16% our NAY s 11% ahead and the dividend has
mcreased by 2 5% The resutts were driven by good performances
across the business with good leasing actrvity and rental growth key
features The executive management team was strengthened through
a number of key appointments including Roger Madelin who has been
hired to lead our important Canada Water project The receipt of the
prestigrous 2016 Queen s Award for Enterprise 1s a great endorsement
of pur ecanomic social and environmental achievements

Perforrance during the year was in line with or exceeded expectations
on all but one of the Annual Incentive measures However overall
performance was less stong than performance in the previous financial
year Consequently Annuat Incentives awarded to Executive Directors in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 are lower than those awarded in
respect of performance over the prior inancial year The Remuneration
Commmutiee s assessment of Annual Incentive performance over the year
is set out on pages 102 to 103 of this Report

LTIP performance measures

Kev activities of the Committee dunng the year
ended 31 March 2016:
- Approval of the Remuneration Report presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM on 21 July 2015
- Development of Remuneration Policy to be presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM on 19 July 2016 and preparation for consultations
with key shareholders
- Review of corporate and individual performances over the year ended
31 March 2015
- Approval of performance measures for the year ended 31 March 2016
- Review of
- Chairman s annual fee
- Chief £xecutive s remuneration
- Executive Direciors remuneration and
- Employees salaries and Annual Incentives
- Approvat of discretionary share scherne grants and vestings
- Approval of all-employee share schame granls

The following performance measures will apply 1o LTH awards granted under the new Remuneration Policy

Measure Link to strategy

Measured relative to

Total Property Return [TPR]

The change i capital value less any capital
expendiiure incurred plus net income TPR s
expressed as a percentage of capital employed
over the LTIP performance period and 1s calculated
by Investment Property Databank [{PD)

The TPR measure is dessgned to link reward to
sirong performance at the gross property level

TPR performance will be assessed against
the performance of an IPD benchmark

Total Accounting Return (TAR)
The grawth in Batish Land s EPRA NAV per
share plus dividends per share pawd over the
LTIP performance peniod

to sharehelders

The TAR rneasure 1s designed to link reward
to performance at the net property level that
takes account of gearing and our distributions

TAR will be mmeasured relative 1o a comparator
group consisting of the 17 {argest FTSE property
campanes that use EPRA accounting linctuding
Briish Land)

Total Shareholder Return (TSR}

The growth invalue of a British Land
shareholding over the LTIP performance
period assuming dividends are reinvested
1o purchase addiional shares

to shareholders

The TSR measure 1s designed to directly
cotrelate reward with the return delivered

50% of the TSR measure witl be measured
telative to the performance of the FTSE 100

and 50% of the TSR measure will be measured
relative to the performance of a compar ator
group consisting of the 17 targest FTSE property
companies that use EPRA accountng e luding
Brinish Land)

Performance against the LTP measures will be assessed over a period of three years For each measure 130% of the part of the award attached

10 that measure witt vest if British Land s performance 15 at Lthe upper quartie level If performance against a measure 15 equal to the median 20% of the
part of the award altached te that measure will vest and if performance 1s below medtan the part of the award attached 10 that measure will lapse There
wiit be straight-line vesting between mecdian and upper guartile performance for each measure
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Vesting of the MSP and LTIP awards granted to Executrve Diectors in
2013s dependent on British Land s performance over the three year
period ended 31 March 28156 Vesting of these awards 1s scheduted to
take place in August 2014 and estimated vesting values are included m
the Executive Directors single total figur es of remuneration on page 101
Performance measures altached to the MSP award measure growth in
gross incame and total shai eholder return (TSR} Half of the MSP award
is expecled tovest as the gross income growth target has been fully
achieved however the remaining hatf of the MSP award will lapse as
Briish Land s TSR over the pertod was below the median TSR of the
comparatar group of companies

The two performance measures attached to the vesting LTIP award
measure total property return [TPR] and total accounting return {TAR]
The TPR part of the awar d 1s expected to vest at 69% reflecting par tial
achievement of this conditton and Lthe TAR part s estimated to vest at
44% again showing that the perfor mance condstion has been met i part
but upper quartile performance b equied for the futt award to vestf has
not been achieved

Executive Directors single total figures of remuner ation for the year

to 31 March 2016 have decreased retative to the figures for the previous
firancizl yeai reflecting the partial vesting of long term incentive awards
and reduced Annual Incentive awar ds compared to the prsor year The
Committee believes ihis demonstrates that our Remuneratton Policy

15 designed so that the third strand of our 1emuneration philesophy

“the leve! of remuneration received shoutd be directly inked Lo cor por ate
and indiwidual per formance™ s praperly reflected in the Policy

Remuneration m respect of the year cammencing 1 Aprit 2014

The Comnuliee is satisfed that the Executive Drectors salaries and
the Chairman s annual fee rernam correctly pastioned in relation 1o
our comparator group [being F TSE 100 companses of a sinklar market
capualisation 1o Brish Land) and these will nol be increased for the
year cammencing 1 Apnl 2016

As explained earlier in this letter a new Remuneration Policy and
amended LTIP rules will be presented for shareholder approval at the
AGM In July 2016 The Comimittee intends to grant the bnal LTIP awaid
under the current Remuneration Policy and rules before the AGM
therefore the first LTIP award under the new Paolicy and amended
rules will not be granted untll the year commenang 1 April 2017

Trus1s my last report as Chawu man of the Remuneration Committee as

I intend to stand down fottoweng British Land s Annual General Meeting

in fuly 2014 {will remarn a member of the Commuttee and ook forward

to continuing te work with Willam Jacksan who will take over the
Committee Chan manship as well as Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade-Gery
whowere bath appainted Committee members in 2015

The Committee very much valued your support of our Remuneration
Pahicy whenat was introduced 1n 2014 We hope that you will be
supportive of the proposed changes to our lang term incentive
arrangements set autin our new Remuneration Policy and supportive

of our Annual Report en Remuneration for the year ended 3t March 2014
at the AGM n July 2016

e —
Lord Turnbuli
Chan man of the Remuneration Committee
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT OVERVIEW OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Having expert pecple 1s one of the four core focus areas of our business
model Our Remunerauon Policy 1s intended to help reiain the expert
people we have recruited and developed and mitigate the nisk of losing
them Our Remuneration Policy 1s atso designed to foster employee share
ownership and align Executive Directors miterests with those of investors
The Remuneraiion Policy outtined on pages 92 ta 98 will take eilect from
19 July 2016 subject to shareholder approval at British Land s Annual
General Meeting on that day The bar charts below illustrate the levels of
1emuneration recewable by the Executive Directors under this proposed
Remuneration Policy for varying tevels of periormance

Within the remuneration package, varizble elements [the Annual
incentive and Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIPI} are designed 1o reward
pet formance that supporis our strategy and creates susiainable long
ierm vatue for shareholders If enly the rmmimurm level of performance s
achieved onty fixed remunes atron elements wilt be pard to the Directors
In the illustrative bar charts this mimmum remuneration consists of
basic sdalary, benefits pension or pension allowance and shares awarded
by Bettish Land under the all-employee Shar e Incentive Plan'

For performance that s 1n line with expectations up 1o half of the
maximum Annual Incentive awaird possible wall be granted [equivalent
1o 75% of basic salaryl and the proporuon of the LTIP award expected
to vest 1s equivalent to 140% of basic salary One third of the Annuat
Incentive award granted will be deferred into shares which must be
held by the Executive Director for the ee years {Annual incentive Shares)

Hlustration of application of Remuneradon Policy

For the maximum tevet of performance the Annual Incentive award

will be granted at a level equivalent to 150% of basic salary and the LTIP
award is expected lo vest in full lequivalent to 300% of basic salary} One
third of the Annual Incentive award gr anted will be deferred into Annuasl
Incentive Shares Remunerabion payable in respect of ths maxmum level
of performance has not changed materially caimpared to that payable
under the cutrent Remunerabion Policy approved by shareholders in 2014

The illustrative bai charts below da not take into account any share
price apprecialion between grant and vesting of LTIP awards or between
deferral and release of Annual Incentive Shares Share price growth wll
result in the values of LTIP awards and Annual Incentive Shares increasing
m the perod between grant and vestng/release to the Direclor

As explained on page B9 the first LTIP award grant under the new Policy
{with maximum level equivalent 1o 360% basic salary] will not take place
until the year ending 31 March 2018 as it ts intended that an LTIP award
will be granted under the existing Policy [wath masimum levet equivatent
to 200% basic salaryl v advance of the 2016 AGM

' Calculated using salaries for tne year ending 31 March 2017 assuming that
beneli values for the year ending 3+ March 2017 will rernain tha same as the
values for the year ended 31 March 2016 and that the maxirnurn value of shares
that can be awarded by the Company under the Share Incentive Plan 1s granted
Pension values are based an the Remuneratwan Policy and estimates supplied
by the scheme acwary foi dehined benefit scheme members

Chnis Grigg Charles Maudsles

Chief Executive £000 Headof Retail and Leisure £000
Minimum L 100 | £1,187  Mimmum £553
A 40% 2% 39% £2993  oncianons 37% 20% - 41% £1.512
Maximum 2% . 5% " 51% €4,967 Maximum 22% | 75% 52% £2.561
Lucinda RBell Tun Roberts

Chief Financial Officer £000  Head of Offices and Residential £000
Mirimum £60%  Mimmum | 100% | £572
In e with In Line with

£1.669

22% 2% 52% £2,828

expectations

Maximum

W Fixed remuneration B Annual Incentive M Long Term Incentive
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£1.531

2% 2% 52% £2,580

expectations

Maximum




Executive Directors

é?ﬂ Fixed Remuneration

@3 Lang-Term Incentve Plan ILTIP]

The components of fixed remuneration are intended to prowide a base
package at a level that will attract hugh-calibre individuals with the
appropriate degree of expertise and experience to carr y out their rales

to the tagh standards we require Executive Directors salaries are
positioned around the medsan of our compar ator group (FFSE100
companies with broadly similtar market capitalisations to British Landt
and inaddilsen to salary the fixed remuneration package includes the
provision of benefits a pension or pension atfowance and the opportunity
to take part in all-employee share schemes

O~-D

Eﬁ Annual Incentive

The Annuat Incentive forms part of the variahle propor tion of an
Executive Director s remuneralion package The level of Annual Incentive
award recerved is directly inked to corporate and individual performance
aganst annually tailored measures

A propor tion of each Executive Director s Annuat Incentive award is used
to puichase shares that must he held for three years adding a longer
ter m aspect to the Annual Incentive award

Magn:tude of Annual Incentive award 1s dependent on performance
agansl Annual Incenive medsures ger one year

-

One third Inet of tax 15 used
to purchase shares which must
be heid for three years
{Annual Incentive Shares)

Two thirds 1s paid as
cash onaward

The LTIP 15 the second etement of variabie remuneration The proportion
of an LTIP award that ss actually released 1o an Executive Director 1=
dependent on Britssh Land s performance sgainst specified performance
measuires over a three year period

LTIP award consssts of performance shares
or market vaiue options or a combinaton af the two
with per fermance measui es attached

I
Performance 15 measured ’
over thyee years )

The number of performance shares vesting and the number of options
becorming exercisable are both dependent on the degree
towhich Lthe pertformance measures have been mel

A twa year holding penod apples to LTIP awards followsg vesting

Chanrman and Non-Executive Directors

Fees paid to the Company Chair man and Non-Executive Directars are
posiioned around the median of our comparator group of companies
{FTSE100 compantes with broadly sirmilar market capitalisations to
Britssh Land] with the aim of attracting mdividuats with the appropriate
degree of experuise and experience to work with and challenge the
Executive Directors
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Governance and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY -

Executive Dhreetors’ Remuneration Poliev

Compoenent and Purpose

Operation

gaﬁl Fixed Remuneration

Basic salary

To attract and retain expert people
with lhe appropriate degree of
expertise and experrence

The levet of basic salary 1s posiioned around the medsan of our comparator group of FTSE 100
companes with broadly simitar market capitalisattons Executive Directors responstbilities
are taken into accountvhen basc salanes are set

Basic sataries are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Commutee with increases usualty
taking effect on 1 April for the subsegueni year Emptoyment condiions and salary increases
throughout the Group are taken into account when basic salaries are set

tn addition to basic salary, Executive Directors may be eligible to receive fees for sitting on the
boards of certain subsidiary companies

Benefits and all-employee
share schemes

To attract and retain
expert people and to
foster share ownership

A car allowance 1s paid to Executive Directors in bieu of the provision of o company car

Executive Directors are eligible to recewe other taxable and non-taxable benefits which
may include
- private medical insurance lcovering the Director spouse and any children under the age of 25)
- bife assurance cover under which & tump sum of four imes basic salary witl be paid out in
the event of death in service,
- permanent health msurance under which 75% of basic salary will be pard in the event
of long term absence due to certain medical reasons
- access to wmdependent actuanal financial and legal advice when necessary
- gymmembership subsidised by the Company
annual medicat checks,
- retevant professional subscnption fees
- ather benefits on substantially the same hasis as other employees

Executive D ectors are eligible to partiopale in Boitish Land s Share Incentive Plan [SIP}
and Sharesave Scheme on the same basis as other eligible emplovees

The Company provides Directors and Officers Liabdity Insurance and may provide an
indemnity to Lhe fullest extent permitted by the Companies Act

Pension or pension allowanca

To attract and retain expert peopie
and to provide an approptate level
of pension on 1 etiresment

Executive Directors may receive pension benefits through a defined contribution
arrangement may recewe a cash attowance in liew of pension contributions or tprovided the
Director joined British Land before its defined benefit scheme closed to new members in
2006} may r ecewe benefits through a defined benefit arrangerment as deemed approp: 1ate
by the Commuttee

Accruai rates for Directors recerving benefits through the defined benefit scheme are
determined by the rules of the scheme and are dependent on the age at which the Directer
Joined the Company Benefits up to the bmit permitted by the tax legislabon are provided

in aregistered plan Benefits over that lmit ar e currently provided n an employer financed
retirernent benefit scheme [EFRBS) EFRBS participants are curr ently offered a choice
annually as to whether they wish to accrue benefits in the EFRBS or to s ecewe a cash
payment in lieu

Directors partcipating in a defined contribution arrangement may choose whether
caninibubions are made mto Britsh Land s defined contribution scheme or mto their
own personal penston ptan Cash allowances in Lieu of pension conirdbutions would
tymcally he pasd at the serne tevel of salary as Company contribubions under the defined
contributian arrangement
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Maxirmum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

The maxmum level of basic salary will not be greates than the upper
quartle of the comparator group

Increases will typically be wn tine with inflation and general salary
increases throughout the Group If an indwvidual 1s appointed at o
salary positioned below ihe level aligned with our cornparator group
a larger merease may he awarded in order to posilion the salary
around the median of cur comparator group

Executive Directors fees fo: siting on subsidiary company boards
are capped at a maximurn of £1 300 per annum in aggregate for all
qualifying apposniments

Nol applicable

The maximum carallowance 15 £20 000 per annum

The maximum cost of other taxable and non-taxabie benefits
permitted under the Policy 15 the arnount required to continue
providing benefits ot a sirmilar level year-on-year

The maximum opportumties under the SIP and Shar esave Scheme
are set by the rules of the schemes and deterruned by statutory bmits

Not applicable

Under the defined beneht scheme the target benefit1s the penston
that can be provided by the 31 March 2612 lifetime allowance [£18
mitlion) uplifted by RPI from that date The maximurm accruat rate

for a defined beneht scherne member is that which will gqive the target

henefi at age 60 subject (o the accrual rate beng no greater than
one thirtieth and no less than one sixtieth of salary

Emplayer pensian contiibutions to Executive Directors under

the defined coniribution arrangement and cash allowances 1n lew
of pensien are made at a ficed percentaqe of satary between

15% and 35%

Mot applicable
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Governnnee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Component and Purpose

Operatioh

e

FHE Arela 'reetine

To reward Company and indvidual
performance that supports the
strategic priorities of the business
and o promote acineties that help
the business successfully
implement its strategy

To foster share ownership and align
participants interests with those of
shareholders

@3') Long-Term incentive Plan {LTiP}

Annual Incantwe awards may be granted to Executive Directors each year with the levet of
award refiecting Company and individual performance against measures set by the
Remunesation Committee Awards are granted following the financial year end when actual
performance over that year has been measured

Two thirds of an Executive Director s Annual Incentive award 1s paid in cash when the awar d
1s granted The remaining third ef the Annual Incentive award [net of tax] 1s used to purchase
Brtish Land shares on behali of the Executive Directar {Annuat Incentive Shares] Annual
Incentive Shares must be held for thiee year s from the date of grant of the Annuat Incentive
award hefor e they may be transferrad or seld regardless of whether or not the indwidual
remams an ernployee of Britsh L.and throughout this period Executive Birectors are entitled
to the dividends paid in respect of the Annual Incentive Shares during the holding period

The Annual Incentive Shares may be clawed back during the three year period following 1ssue
1f1tis discovered that the relevant Annual Incentive award was granted on the basis of
materiatly misstated accounts or other data

To Link the tevel of reward to
Company performance against
specified long term measures,
promoting and rewarding activities
that support our strategy and create
sustainable long term value for
shareholders

To foster share ownership and atign
participants interests with those of
shareholders

LTIP awards may be granted annually by the Remuneration Cornrmuttee to Executive Directors
Awalds may consist of performance shares [conditional rights to teceive shares) or mai ket
value options or a combination of the two Fxecutive Directors may indicate a preference asto
the proportions of their award recesved as performance shares and/or market value optiens

LTIP awards vest after three yeat s The number of performance shares and/or options vesting
15 dependent on the degr ee to which performance conditions attached to the LTIP award have
been mel over this three year performance period A payment equivalent to the dividends
accrued on vesting performance shares and the interest thereon 1s paid at the poust of vesting

On vesting sufficient performance shares may be sold to cover any lability to mrcome tax and
MNational Insurance Contributions The remaining performance shares must ke hetd for two
years following vesting before they are perrmitied to be transferred or sold regardless of
whether or not the indwidual remains an employee of British Land throughout this period

L TP options may he exercised at any point during the seven years following vesting if LTIP
oplions are exercrsed within two years of the vesting date sufficient of the shares acquired
may be sold to cover the cost of exercise and any bability to income tax and National Insut ance
Contributtons but the 1emaining shares must be held until the point two years from the
vesting date befor e they are permtted to be transierred or sold regardiess of whether or not
the individual remains an employee of British Land throughout this period

i$1t1s discovered that an LTIP award was granted or vested on the basis of materially

rnisstated accounts or ather data

- the Commutiee may require some or all of the performance shares to be forferted or clawed
back during the five year pertod following the grani date

- the Commuttee may require sorme or all unexercised ophions Lo be forfeited at any point and

-where an option 15 exercised within five years of 1L grant date the Cormmittee may require
same or all of the shares acquired to be clawed back duning the five year penod fotlawing the
option grant date
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Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

The maximum levet of Annual Incentwe which may be granted
15 equivalent to 150% of basic salary

The Annual Incentive performance measures relate to Briush Land s
strateqec focus areas and the Executive Director s individual areas of
responsibility The measures are set by the Remuneration Commulttee
at the begnnung of the financiat year over which performance will be
assessed and are noi strictly wewghted When determining the level of
an Executve Direcior s Annual Incentive award the Cominitlee takes
into account performance against all measui es and makes an
assessiment in the round

If actual pertormance averaged over all measures!s equal o the
median level of performance the Annual incentive award granted
will be one guarter of the maximum potential award [equivalent to
375% of basi¢ salaryl Up to hall of the maximurn patential award
tequivatent to 75% of basic salaryl 1s payable for performance that
1510 bine with expectations {f average performance is below the
median level of performance ne Arnual Incentive award will

he granted

No further performance conditions are attached o the Annual
Incentive Shares during the holding penod

The maxmum value of an LTIP award which may be granted s
equivalent to 300% of basic salary The value for this purpose
15 the aggregate fair value of the shares andfor options granted
at the date of award

The fair value of a share 1s the aver age market value of Britsh Land
shares over the three dealing days preceding grant The {air value of
a markel value option ts such fraction of the fair value of a share asrs
set by the Commuttee This fraction s currently one quar ter but may
be varied by the Commuttee to reflect the ecenomic rnoedels used by
the Cornpany for the vatuation of aplions

Fhe LTIP pet formance conditions have been chosen torewas d

performance that 1s abgned with Briush Land s strategy

- totat property return {TPR} performance 1s assessed relative
to an Investinent Property Databank {IPD} benchmark rewarding
strong relurns at the property level

- total accounting resurn [ TAR] performance 1 assessed relative
to a comparator group consisting of the 17 targest property
companses within the FTSE that use EPRA accounting fncluding
Bnush Land} and

- total shareholder return [TSR] performance is assessed against hoth
the FTSE00 and a comparator group consisting of the 17 largest
property companies within the FTSL that use EPRA accounting
linctuding British Land}

The relative weighting of the performance conditions may be varied
by the Cornminttee to ensure the LTIP best supporis Britsh Land s
slrategy and to meet investor preferences The Commulttee currently
intends to apply ihe performance conditions with the foltowing
weightings 40% of the awai d will be linked to the TPR condition
£0% will be linked to the TAR condibiors and 20% witl be binked to

the TSR condition

TPR perfarmance is currently assessed aganst the iPD UK Annual
Praperty index The Comnutiee may amend the comparator groups
of companies during the periormance penodif there s a corporate
event affecting any member of the group and may amend the IPD
benchmark if a different benchimark s deemed more appropriate

Performance conditons are challenging requinng sigmficant
outperformance for 100% of the LTIP award tovest 20% of the
award will vestif the minimum performance threshold 1s achieved
performance below the miimum threshold for a performance
conditron will result in the LTIP award in respect of that conditton
tapsing Upper quartile performance must be achieved agamst
each performance measure for the entir e award to vest
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Non-Eaecutive Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Comgponent and Purpose

Operation

Maximum Opportumity Performance Conditions

Charman s fee

To attract and retan an individual
with the appropriate degi ee

of expertise and experience

The Chawrman s annual fee

15 sel by the Remuneration Commitlee
and reviewed annuatly The tevel of the
Chanman s annual fee 1s positiened
around the median of our chosen
compar ator group which consists

of FTSE 100 compames with broadly
similar market capitalisations

The maxamum annual fee
will not be greater than the
upper quartle of the chosen
comiparaior group Typically
increases ifrequired

will be in line with inflation

Not applicable

Chairman s benefits

To facititate the Chairman s
travel in the fulfilment of his
or her duties

The Chate man s provided with a car
and chauffeur logetberwith any taxes
thereon

The maximurn opporiunity
15 Lhe cost to the Company
of providing this gressed-up
taxable benefit at a simitar
level each year

Not applicable

Non-Executive Directors fees
To attract and retain expert
people with the appropriate
degree of exper lise and
experience

Remuneration of the Non Fxrecutive
Director s 15 a matter for the Execulive
Directors and fees are reviewed
annuatly

Nan-Lxecutive Directors receve an
annudl tee plus additional fees if they
are members of a Committee orif
they hotd the position ot Senior
Independent Birector or Chairmen

cof the Remuneration or Audit
Committee

The Company s Policy 1s te deliver a
total fee at a level in Line with similar
positions at our chosen comparator
group which consists of FTSE 100
companies with broadly simwvlar
rmarkel capitalisabons

The maximum aggregate Not applicable
amount of basic fees payable

to alt Mon-Executive Directors

shall not exceed the £600 000

timit set inthe Company s

Artcles of Assocwiation

Other arrangements for
the Chairman and the
Non-Executive Directors
To support the Directorsn
the futhilment of their duties

The Company may reimburse
expenses reasonshly mcurred by
the Chairman and the Non-Executive
Dwrectors in fulfilment of the
Company s business together

with any taxes thereon

The Company provides the Chatrman
and the Non-Executive Directors wih
hrectors and Officers Liability

Insur ance and may provide an
wdemumty to the fullest extent
perrmitted by the Companies Act

The maximum rermbursement
IS expenses reasonably
incurred logether with any
taxes thereon

Mot apphicable

The maxirnum value of the
Directors and Officers Liabiduty
Insurance and the Company s
indernnity 15 the cost at the
relevant time
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Notes to the Remuneration Policy table

Remuneration Policy for other employees

Salary reviews across the Group are carried out on the same basis

as salary reviews for the Executive Directors considet ation 1s given
tothe indwvidual s role duties expenence and performance along

wiih constderatron of lypical salary levels of employees in sirmitar

roles in compal able companies where the datais available Employees
are entitled to taxable and non-taxable benefiis with executives being
entitled to substantially the same benehts as the Executive Directors

All employees are eligible to receive an Annual Incentive the level of
which will be dependent on indiwvidual depas tmental and Company
performance A propor tion of a senior executive s Annual Incentive
award may be deferred to pur chase Annual Incentive Shares Executives
may be granted Long-Term Incentive Plan awaids Some executives

[net including Executive Direciors] are eligible to recetve shares under
the Fund Managers Perfarmance Plan [FMPP] The hnal FMPP award
was gianted in 2013 and the inal FMPP vesung will take place in 2016
Employees joining the company after 2006 are eligible o take partin a
defined contribution pensien arrangement The Company s all-empioyee
share schemes (the Share Incentive Plan and the Sharesave Schemel
are also open to eligible employees

Pre-existing-obligations and commutments

It1s a provision of this Policy that the Company can henour all
pre-existing obligations and comnutments that were entered nto prior to
this Rernuneration Policy taking effect The terms of those pre-existing
obligations and commitrments may differ from the terms of the Remuneration
Policy and may include [without limutation] ebligations and comrmitments
under service contracts lonq term mcentive schemes {including previous
Long-Term Incentive Plans and the Matching Share Plan} pension and
benefit plans

Considerations when setteng Remuneration Policy

in drawsng up the Remuneration Policy the Committee tock into
account views expressed by shareholders during meetings and
comynunicated to the Campany The Company engaged with s
shareholder s via consultation meetings with investor bodies

and by wiiting to its largest shareholders offering each a meeting
to discuss i emuner ation proposals

Each year the Remuneration Commuttee takes mlo account Lthe pay and
employment conditions of employees in the Greup noting the general
incr ease i satary proposed for all employees and levels of incentive
payments and perfor mance before setling the remuneration of the
Directors The Committee did not consult with the Company s employees
or use remuneration comparison measurements when drawing up the
Directos s Remuneration Policy

Approach to recruitment remuneration

Executive Dhrectors

Basic salary i set at 2 tevel appropriate to recruit a suitabte candidate
taking into account extet nal market compebtiveness and internat equity
The tevel of basic salary may intially be pasttioned below the median

of the chosen comparator group with the intention of increasing it to
around the median of the camparator group after an itial period of
satislactory service

Where 3 recruits forfeiting incentive awards granted by his or her existing
employer compensation in the form of a Restricted Share Plan IRSP)
award may be made (in accordance with Listing Rule 94 2] the maxwum
value of which witl be that whrch the Commuttee nits reasanable opinion
cansiders to be equal to the value ef the awards which have lapsed

The value of diwdends paid on the RSP shares during the vesung period
15 pard directly to the Director Vesting of the shares granted under the
RSP award will be subject to the Ditector completing a minimam period
of qualifying service so the award will not be released unul this condition
has been satisfied The vesting ol the RSP award may be subject to
additional performance measures being met over the same period

the Committee will determine the most retevant measures to use at

the ime of award bearing n mind the responsshilities of the individuat
being appointed and the Company s strategic priorihes at the time

The Committee may choose to offer a Co-Investment Share Plan {CIF}
award 1o a new Executive Director on recruniment bin accordance with
Listing Rute % 4 2] to assist the Director in building a holdmg of British
Land shareswith the aim of further aligning the Direcior s personal
interests with those of British Land s shareholders

Under the CIP a director may mvest a maximum of 150% salary

{225% salary for a Chiel Executive} to purchase British Land shares
these mils being determined by the Director s minimum shareholding
gurleline The Company will match the purchased CIP shares on a

11 basis {helore allowing for tax liahiliies that will arise on vesting of
the matching shares] All the CIP shares are then deferi ed for three
years subject to the Duector remaimning employed by the Group and
holding the shares far this time Should the Director Lleave the Group
before the qualifying period s completed all of the matching shares
will lapse and the purchased shares will be released to the Director
Draidends paid an the purchased CIP shares during the vesting penod
are pad directly to the Director a dividend equivalent payment is made
on vesting to compensate for dwdends accrued on matching CIP shares
The Lommuttee wilt impose perfoermance measur es on CIP awar ds
which must be achieved over the three-year hotding period fo1 the
matching shares to vest The Commuttee will determene the mast
relevant measures o use at the ime of award bearing in mind the
responsibilities of the individual being appoimnted and the Company s
stralegic prierities at the e

The Company s Policy 15 1o give nottce periods of no longer than

12 months However when recruiting an exter nal candidate 1t may
be necessary to give an imtial notice period of up to 24 manths this
reduces ai the end of 12 months work to 12 months The remainder
of the package oftered to & new Executive Director would be in line
with the Company s ongoing Remuneration Policy

Chatrman and Non-Executive Directors

On recruwtment the Chairman will be offered an annuat fee and benefits
in gecordance with the Policy The level of the annual fee may imitally

be posttioned betow the median of the chosen comparator group with
the intenbion of Incr easing 1t to around the median of the comparator
group after an iniial period of satsfactory service Non-Execulive
Diector s will be offer ed Non-Executive Tirector s fees in accor dance
with the Policy

Appointment of internal candidates

ff an existing employee of the Groaup 1s appainted as an Executive Director
Chairman or Non- Executive Direclor any obligation or commitment
entes ed into with that individual pror to his or her appoiniment can

be honoured in accordance with the terms of those obligations ar
commitments even where they differ from the terms of the Policy
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Policy on loss of office

Executtve Directors

The Executive Directors service contracts ¢an be tawlully terminated by
etther pat ty gtving 12 menths notice or by the Company making a lump
sum payment w lteu of notice [PILON} equal to the Executive Director s
base salary for the notice period Additionally when the Company makes
a PILON t may either pay 4 lump sum equal to the value of any benelits
for ihe notice pertod or continue to provide benefits until the notice perod
expires of the Execuitve Director starts new employment {whichever

1s the eartier] These tawlut ter minztion mechamsms do not prevent

the Cernpany inappropniate crcumnsiances from terminating an
Executive Direcior s employment in breach of his or her service

contract and seeking to apply mitigation wn determmining the damages
payable Where thisis achievable in negotiation with the oulgoing
Director settternent arrangements are str uctured so that the
terminaiion payment 1s patd in instaiments and the instatments

are reduced by an amount equal to any earnings received trom the
outgaing Dwector s new employment consultancy or other pard work

For depar bing Executive Dinector s and Executive Directors that have left
Briush Land the Committee may agree to cash commutation of pension
benefits under the defined beneit scheme including EFRBS benehis)
and other penston arrangements entered mto prior to the adaption of the
2014 Remuneration Policy Any comimutation would take into account
valuations provided by independent actuasial advisors so as 1o be
undertaken on a basis consilerad by the Commuttee to be cost neutral
io the Company

The arcumstances of the loss of office dictate whether the individual is
treated as a good teaver or otherwise in accordance with the Company s
Policy The Remuneration Commuttee uses ets discretion to form a view
taking mte account the circumsiances Good leavers typically receve
pro-rata Annual Incentive and long term incentive awards subject to
performance measurement and ether leavers for feit their entittements
In the evenl of a change of control the rules of the share plans generally
provide for acceler ated vesting of awards subject fwhere applicablel

to Lme appor ionment and achievement of perfarmance targets All of
the Company s Executive Direciors have contracts that pre-date 27 june
2012 but these do not contam contractual prowvisions that could impact
on the amaount of any payiment tor loss of office and whach fatl ouiside
the Policy Detals of the Fxecutive Directors service contracts and
natiee pertods are given in the table below [D 15 @

Nermal Normal

notice rot ce

Length Date of penad lo penod lo

of service service  begmenby  begwenby

Drractor contract contract Campany Director
Chris Grigg 12 mths 191208 12mihs 12 mihs
Luanda Befl 12 mths o3 n i2mths 12 mths
Charles Maudsley 12mths 031109 12 mths 12 mths
Tirn Roberts 12 mths 141106 12 rmiths 12 mths

The Company may teriminate a Director s appotntment with immediate
effect without nolice or payment in lieu of notice under certamn
crrcumstances prescribed within the Director s service contr act
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The letters of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are subject

to renewal on 2 triennial basis In accordance wath the UK Carporate
Governance Code all Birectors stand for election or re-election by

the Campany s shareholders on an annual basis The Directors service
contracis and letters of appointment are available for inspection during
norimak business hours at the Company s reqisiered office and at the
Annual General Meeting The unexpired terms of the Chairman s and
Non-Executive Director s letiers of appointment are shown hetow

Unexpired term af
Date of current appointment at

Director appoinmeant 31 March 2014
John Gidersleeve [Chatrman) 01/01/2016 33 months
Aubl ey Adams 01/09/2014 17 moenths
Simon Borrows 17/03/2014 11 menths
Lynn Gladden 20/03/2015 23 months
Witliam Jackson 11/04/2014 12 manths
Tim Scare 26/03/2014 1 months
Lord Turnbull 01/04/2015 24 months
Laura Wade-Gery 13/05/2015 25 months

Althougﬁ the Chairman s and Non-Executive Direclors appointments
are for fixed terms their appeintments ray be terminated immediately
without nolice i they are not reapponted by shai eholder s orif they are
removed frorn the Board under the Campany s A ticles of Assoaation
or if they 1esign and do not offer themselves forre-elechon In addition
thetr appoinirnents may be terrminated by either the indivedual or the
Campany giving three months writlen nouce of termmation lor far

the Chawrman six months written notice of termmation] Despite these
terms of appointment neither the Chairmon nor the Non-Executive
Directors are entitled to any compensation {other than accrued and
unpaid fees and expenses for the pertod up te the termunation) for loss
of office for any reason




REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How we intend to apply our

Remuneration Policy during

the

year commencing 1 April 2016

Pages 9% 10 100 detail how the Remuner ation Cormmittee itends to apply
the Rermuneration Policy during the comng yea

Exccuine Directors’ Remuneration

% Basic salarees

Basic salartes have been set at the tollowing levels for the year
commencing 1 April 2016 Salaries have not been changed :elative
lo the prior year

Director Basic salary £
Chris Grigy 840 000
Lucinda Bell 493000
Charles Maudsley 446250
Tim Roberts 446 250

@ Annual Incentive awards

During the year Annual Incentive perfarmance will he assessed against
arange of quantitative and qualitative measures

Quanutaive measures

- Property returns  Unlevered property capitat returns relative to IPD
and totat property return relative to IPD

- Accounting returns Total accounting return relative to property majors

- Rentat growih ERV growth relatwe to IPD and

- Undertying profit performance Profit performance relatve to budget

Qualitative measures suppor ting the four areas of our business model
- Right Places progress on key projects including devetopments and
exacution of fargeted acquisitions and disposals
~ Customer Orentation company reputation with alt stakeholders
and supporung the delivery of sustainability abjectves
- Capual Efficiency execution of debt financings and pregress
on strengihening the dvidend and
~ Expert People quality of people and management renewal

The Execuuive Directors indwidual performance will also be assessed
against measures relauing to their specific areas of responsibility that
support the corporate measures ahove Further mformation regarding
the measures and the assessment of performance used (o deter mine
Executive Directors Annual Incentive awards for the year ending

31 Mar ch 2077 wiil be disclosed in the 2617 Remuneration Report

@ Long term incentive awards

Matching Share Plan [MSP)

Under the Rernuneration Policy approved by shareholders at the Annual
Generat Meeting in 2014 [avanlabie on pages 84 to 91 of Brinsh Land s
2014 Annual Report] one thid of each Executive Directars Annual
Incentive award must be deferred and used t¢ purchase MSP Bonus
Shares Therefore the Annual Incenlive awar ds that are due to be paid to
Executive Directors i June 2016 in respect of performance during the
year ended 31 Mat ch 2616 will be subject to such a deferral and an
assoctated award of MSP Matching Shares wilt be granted This wili be
the final MSP awar d granted to Execulive Directors as the Remuneration
Policy that will be presented to shareholders for approval at the AGM in
July 2016 [detaded on pages 901098 of this Repor 1] does notinclude a
matching share plan

Two equally weighted per formance measures will be apphied to MSP
Matching Share awards each measure relates to half of 1he total MSP
award mean:ng no moere than half of the total award canvest if one of the
performance measures does npt meet (ts mnsnum vesting threshold

The total shareholder return (TSR] part

The comparator group against which TSR performance will be
assessed over the three-year performance period consists of

Great Portiand Estates plc Hammerson ple Intu Properties pte
Eand Securtties Group PLC SEGRO plc Big Yellow Group PLC
Capital & Counties PLC Derwent London plc Gramger plc
Hansteen Holdings ptc Helical Bar ple LondonMetnc Property ple
St Modwen Properties PLC Shaftesbury PLC The UNITE Group ple
UK Commercial Property Trust Ltd and Briish Land The percentage
of the part of the MSP Matching Award linked to TSR performance
will be determined as feilows

British Land s TSR relative to the comparater group
atthe end of the performance period

Percentage of TSR part
of award vesting %

Below medran 0
Median 25

Furthervesung per each 1% TSR exceeds median
[to a maximuim of 100% of TSR pari of award) 1875
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The gross mcome growth [GIG) part

British Land s gross income growth will be assessed relative to the
Investrnent Praperty Databank [IPD) Quarter ly Universe (the IPD
Universel Inorder for the part of the MSP Matching Awar d linked to GIG
performance lo vest Britsh Land s GIG over the three-year performance
period must be equal to that of the IPD Universe {the Growth
Requirement ] The percentage of the GIG part of the MSP Matching
Award vesting will be determined as lollows

Britssh Land s GIG retative to the IPD Universe
at the end of the performance pened

Percentage of GIG part
of award vesting %

Below Growth Requi ement 1]

Equal to Growth Requirernent 25

Fui ther vesting per each 1) 5% per annum GIG
exceeds the Gr owth Requitement {to a maximum
of 100% of GIG part of award] 25

Long-Term Incentve Plan [LTIP)

Itis mtended that the final LTIP grant under the Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the AGM m 2014 [available on pages 84 to 91
of British Land s 2014 Annual Report] will take place in June 20146 As the
ntention i to grant an LTIP award in advance of the new Remuneration
Policy and amended LTIP rules being presented for shareholder approval
at the AGM 1n July 2016 no further LTIP award will be granted to
Executive Director s during the year to 31 March 2017 Therefor e the first
LTIP award to Executive Director s under the new Policy «f approved 1s
not inlended to be granted untl the inancial year ending 31 March 2018
Two equally weighted performance measures will be applied 1o LTIP
awar ds granted in the year ending 31 March 2017 each measur e relates
1o half of the total LTIP award meaning no mor e than hali of the total
award can vestif one of the performance measui es does not ieet its
rmumum veshing threshold

The totai property return [TPR] part

British Land » TPR over the three-year performance peniod will be
assessed relative to the IPD UK Annual Property Index {the 1PD
Benchmark I The percentage of the TPR part of the LTIP award vesting

Total Accounting Return (TAR)

British Land s TAR over the three-year performance period will be
assessed relative to the same comparator group of companies that
performance will be assessed against under the MSP TSR measure
The percentage of the TAR part of the LTIP award vesting will he
determined as fallows

Briish Land s TAR relatwe to the comparater group Percentage of TAR panl
at the end of the performance period of award vestirg %5
Below median 0
Median 25
Ugpper quai tile 100

Ther e will be straight-line vesting belween median and upper quar ule
verformance

The pes formance measures that witl apply to LTIP awards granted under
the new Remuneration Policy that will be presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM in July 2014 lthe first grant of which is not intended
1o take place unti the financial year ending 31 March 2018} are descnibed
on page 88

Non-Executive Directors remuneration

The totlowmng fee structure witl apply for the Char man s and Non-
Executive Directors fees, subject to sharehelder approval of out new
Remuneration Policy at the AGM i July 2016 This represents a change
from the current stiructure under which Non-Executive Directors recewve
fees based in parton then attendance a. Board and Committee meetings

The Chairman s annual (ee has not been changed relative 1o the prior
year s intended that fees paid to the other Non-Executive Directors
inrespect of service between 1 April 2016 and the 2016 AGM [paid in
accordance with the current Remuneration Policy approved by
shareholders in 2014] will be deducted from the annual fees set out
below so that fees receved in respect of the fuil year to 31 March 2017
are :n kine with the structure set out below

will be deter mined as follows Chairman s annual {ee £369 340
Brtzch Land s TER retatrve to the IPD Benchmark Percentage of TPRgant | 1on-Executive Director s annual fee £61000
at the ond of the performance perod ofawardvesting % | onigr Independent Director s annual fee £10 000
0
Below medran Audit Commutiee or Remuneration Commuttee Chairman s
Median 25 | annual fee £20 000
Upper quartile 100 | Remuneration Committee or Audit Committee member g
annual fee £8 000
Normnation Commitiee member s annual fee £4 008
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How we applied our Remuneration
Policy during the year ended
31 March 2016

Smgle total figure of remuneration (audited infor mation)
The following tables detail all elements of remuneration recewvable by Briush Land s Directors in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 and show
cormnparatwve figures for the year ended 31 March 2015

Other tems in Pension or

Taxable Annual Long term the nature of pension
Salary/tees benefits' incentve ncentves remuneration’ allowance Totat
s 2014 2Ms 2014 2016 2016 2014
Executive Directors €000 €000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Chris Grigg 840 2 840 1,681 33 294 370%
Lucmnda Bell 493 21 410 819 8 a2 1853
Chartes Maudsley 446 22 410 861 17 &7 1823
Tim Roberts 448 2 400 841 19 106 1855
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 05
Exacutive Directors £000 £000 €000 €000 £000 £000 £000
Chris Grigg aop g 1152 4259 39 280 6551
l.ucinda Bell 465 2 500 1863 17 &8 2934
Charles Maudsley 425 22 540 1670 16 b4 2737
Tim Roberls 427 22 570 1696 21 76 2812

Taxable benefits include car atlowance privale medical insurance and subsidised gym membership The Campany provides the tax gross up on subsidised gym
membership and Lthe figures included above are the grossed up values An adjustment has been made to the prior year s corresponting amount 1o reflect the fact

thal gym membershio benefits were noj disclosed on a grossed up basis in that year

Other temns inthe nature of remuneration include Life assurance permanent health insurance annual medical cherk ups professionat subscription fees the value
of shares awarded under the all-employee Share Incentive Plan and the notional gain on exercise for any Sharesave Scheme oplions (hat mature during the year

e

Fees Taxable benefits? Total

2014 25 2016 2015 2016 2015
Chairman and Non-Exacutive Directors £000 €000 €000 €000 £000 €000
John Gildersleeve [Chairman) 369 352 40 &0 429 £12
Aubrey Adams 48 69 - - 68 &9
Simon Borrows 68 67 - - 68 &7
Lynn Gladden 67 1 1 - 68 1
Dide Harding* nfa 34 nfa - nfa 34
Wilham Jackson 0 bb - - 70 b6
Tim Score 88 73 1 - 89 73
Lord Turnbull 97 79 - - 97 79
Laura Wade-Gery® 44 n/fa - n/fa 44 n/a

Taxable benefits includa the Cha rman s chauffeur cost and expenses incurred by other Non Executive Durectors The Company provides the 1ax gross up on these
benehits and the higures shown above are the grossed up values An adjusiment has been made to the prior year s corresponding amount to reflect the fact that chaufiewr
costs were not disclosed on a grossed up basis in that year

* Dido Harding resigned as a Director on 10 Decermnber 2014

* Laura Wade-Gery was appainted as a Director on 13 May 2015
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Notes to the single total fisure of remuneration table

ﬁ Annus! Incentve

The tevel of Anpual Incentive award is determined by the Remuneration Committee based on British Land s perfor mance and eachindividual
Executive thrector s contrbution during the year Annual Incentive measures ar e not strictly weighted and the Comritiee assesses performance
inthe round The Comimittee § assessment for the year ended 31 March 201415 sot out helow undartaken with refarence la performance agamst
the following quantitative and guabitative measures using data avaiable at the year end

Range of Range of
performance performance
between between
median and n line with
in line with expectations

expectations  and maximum pay-out

i { i
10005 pay out
o ircreased
pay-out ahove
this maximum
pay out paintl

505 pay-out
[periormanca
in bingwith
expactationsl

25% pay out
[no pay out below
this median point}

Quantitative Measures Narrative descnption of performance against measures

Unlevered property ‘ - Capital grawth of 6 8% outperiorrmung IPD by 50 bps both
capial returnvs IPD Retait and Otlices outperformed thewr sector mdices
Propert
retu":'nsy T - Totat property return of 1) 3% performing < bne with 1PD
otlelglé:ruper:y relurns altheugh both Retad and Offices sutperformed their sector
ve ndices
- Total acceunting return above the estimated median of the
Ac::ounlmg Total accfum'"g return property magrs at 15 8% vhen adjusted to reftect changes
returns V6 property majors 10 UK Commercial Stamp Duly [as described opposital
Leasing activity vs ERV @ - Leitings and renewals & 8% ahead of ERV
Rental
- ERV growth af 5 3% outperforming IPD by 130 bps
rowth g p g Y p:
g ERVgrowthvs IPD . both Retail and Offices outperformed ther sector indices
g:;:!lrlymg Profit growth vs budget - Profit growth oi 16 0% ahead of budget and abave the
performance and properly maors estimated med:an of tne preperty majors

Qualitative Measures

- InOffices completed 5 Broadgate plarning achreved at
100 L iverpool Street 1 Finsbury Avenue and Blossor Street
planning application subridted for 2 ang 3Finsbury Avenue

- In Retall completed Whiteley Phase 2 pianning consent
received ot Speke planning apphication submitted for

Progress on key
prujects mcluding

Right developmenis and ® Eden Walk
Places E xecution of targeted P for devel ig
acquisiions ard - Public censultation for development of 46 acre site at
Canada Water

disposals

- Lontinuad repositioning of the partfolio with £1 3 billian of
gross activity acquistions and investments balanced with
dispasals iniine with plan

- Awarded the Oueen s Award for Enterprise the UK s highest
accotade for business success for our coriinued economtc
soctal and environmental achieve menis over live years

- Strang progress an developing Places People Prefer

Company reputation
with all stakeholders
Custemer and o

Qrientatton  Supporing delivery = Customer salisfaction score maintained at 7 9410
g:}s:cs:lgg;ablhly - Maintamed mclusion in the four target E56G tndices Dow Jones
! Sustainabelity indices World and Europe FTSE4GO0D and
GRESB [Eurgpe Sector Leades]
Progress on - Fullyear dwvidend increased by 2 5 % to 28 36 pence per share
c ) strangthening - £215 million refinancings executea inctuding £350 rmidlion zero
Efaf?;::ncy the dridend and { ] coupon convertible bond
Execution of - Finance costs reducedfurther weighted average inieres. rate
debt financings reduced 50 bps to 3 3%
- Retained One Star rating for employee satisfachon
Expert Quality of pecple and
People management renewai - Further strengthening of seniortearn with two external

Executive Cornmttee appo niments

25% of the maximum level 37 5% of basic salary 50% of the maximum level » 75 0% of basic salary 10075 af the maximum level = 150% of basic salary

102 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 7016




The increase i UK Commercial Stamp Duty which took effect an 17 March 2016 impacted the total accounting return {TAR} and IFRS profits of
companies with a financial year end of 31 March 2016 bui did not impact those with a financial year end of 31 December 2015 The underlying profit
figure used to assess Annual Incentive performance, was not affected by the change to UK Commerciat Stamp Duty Se that the TAR performance
of British Land for 2015/16 can be compared on a like-for-Uke basts with the other property major s an adjusted and audited lrgure fot British Land s
TAR which excludes the impact of the UX Commer ciat Stamp Duty change has been used to assess performance In assessing the performance
of the comparator group {or TAR and profit per formance 1 elative to proper ty majors analysts consensus [before the impact of the UK Commeraat
Stamp Duty changel has been used for one company with a Mar ch yeat end and reported data bas been used for the December year end companies
Qver the year each Executive Director s individual performance was measured against ohjectives supporting the key areas of our business moded
Right Places, Customer Orentation Capita! Efficiency and Expert People The Group does not disclose prospective and retrospective performance
measures for individual performance beyond that disclosed above as the Directors consider this to be commercially sensitive this informatron will
not be disclosed at future dates for the same reason

Taking into account corpor ate per formance aganst the quantitative and quahitative measures over the yeas to 31 March 2016 aswell as each
Executive Director s individual performance the Remuneration Cormmittee set the Annual Incentive awar ds recerved by the Executive Directors
at the following levels

Proportion of maximum
potentiat award granted

Executive Director %
Chrts Grigg &7
Lucinda Bell 55
Chatles Maudsley 61
Ttm Rober ts &0

The maximum Annual Incentive award achievable 15 equivalent to 150% base salary The Remuner ation Cormimitiee set the aggregate Annual
Incenuive recewved by the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2016 at 62% of the maxsmum {93% of base salary) as compared with
87% of the maxirmum [130% of base salaryl for the year ended 31 March 2015

One third of each Executive Directar s Annual Incentive award will be deferred and used to purchase MSP Bonus Shares subject to a three-year

holding requirement under Biitish Land s Matching Share Plan [MSP i aceoi dance with the current Remuneration Palicy No ferther performance
measures apply to these deferred shares the MSP 1s described on pages 99 to 100

@ Long term incentives [audited informaton)

Figures in the "Long ierm incentives™ calumn are comprised of awards vesting under the Long-Term Incenlive Plan fLTIP] and Matching Share Plan
[MSP) inctuding where applicable dividend equrvalent payments on those vesting awards and inter est accrued on those divudend equivalents The
LTIP awar ds and MSP Matching awards granted to Executive Directors in 2013 are included in the 2016 L.ong ter m encentives column Vesting of these
awards s subject to performance over the three year period to 31 Mar ch 2014 against the relevant performance conditions which are detarled on
pages 9% to 108 The estimated vesting values of these awards have been calculated using the average market vatue for a Briush Land share for the
period from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2014 [702 é pence] as the vesting share price

LTIP

Twa equally weighted per formance conditions are atiached to the LTIF awards granted in 2013 measuring Brirsh Land s total propesty return (TPR})
reialive to the funds in the December IPD UK Annual Property Index [the Index) and tolal accounting return [TAR) relative to a comparator group of
Briish Land and 16 other praperty companies These awards are due to vest on S August 2016 The increase i UK Commet ciat Stamp Duty which
tock effect on 17 March 2036 impacted Briush Land s TPR at 31 March 2016 but did not smpact the Index So that the perfar mance ot the Company
and the Index can be compared on the same basis an adjusted and audited figure for Brisish Land s TPR excluding the impact of the UK Commeroal
Stamp Duty change has been used to assess LTIP TPR performance This adjustment will not be required in future years because when deterrining
LTIP vesting levels the impact of this UK Commeraial Stamp Duty change will {al already have been reflected in the TPR of the Company and

the comparator group for awards granted in 2014 and 2015 and [b] be reflected in the start paint for awards granted i 2016 and future years

The TPR partis expected to vest at §3% based on Briush Land s adjusted TPR of 14 93 compared to the Index median of 13 9% 115 estimated that
the TAR part will vest at 4% the actual vesting rate of the TAR part witl be calculated once resulls have been published by all of the companies
within the comparater group This produces the estimated values on vesting set out in the table on the following page The actualvesting wilt be
confirmed by the Comimittee and provided in the 2017 Remuneration Report
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{iovernmnee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Estimated Estimated dividend

Award price Number o1 percentage of  Estimatad value of eguwalent and

lexercise pricel performmance Number of award vesting award on vesiing interest

Executve Director LTIP award date p shares awarded oplions awarded % E009 £000
Chris Grigg 05/08/2013 401 266 222 - 57 §057 125
Lucinda Bell 05/08/2013 401 116 056 154 742 57 549 55
Charles Maudsley 05/08/2013 401 141 430 - 57 561 67
[m Raberts 05/08/2013 601 141 430 - 57 361 67

The LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors in 2012 which vested on 14 September 2015 and are shown in the 2015 Long term tncentives column}
were subject to a perfor mance condition assessing the growth m British Land s net asset vatue retative te the increase i the capital growth
component of the IPD UK Annual Property Index This condition is detailed on page 102 of the 2015 Annual Repart The vesting values of these awards
have now been calcutated using the actual mar ket value on the day vesting replacing the estimated vesting values included i the prior year s single
total figure of remuner ation table

Msp

Two equalty weighted performance conditions ar e attached to the MSP Matchung awards granted in 2013 measuning Bribsh Land s total shareholder
return [TSR] relative to a compas ator group of 17 proper ty compaaties gincluding British Landl and Briush Land s gross sncome growth (GIG] relative
to the IPD GQuarter ly Universe [the Universe) These awar ds are due to vest on 2 August 2016 Aon Hewilt has confirmed that the TSR part of the award
wilt lapse as British Land s TSR performance aver the period was 38 0% cornpared to a median of 53 7% for the comparator group The GIG partis
expecled tovest at 190% as Britsh Land s annualised GIS over the period 1s expected Lo exceed the growth of the Universe by more than the upper
hurdle of 15% This produces the estimated values on vesting set out betow The aciual vesuing rate will be confirmed by the Commuttee and provided
in the 2017 Remuneration Report

Estimated Estimated Estirnated

Number of percentage of valug of award dradend

Matcting Shares award vesting on vesting equivatent

Executive Director MSP award dale awarded % £000 £006
Chris Grigg 02/08/2013 127096 50 bbb 33
Lucinda Belt 2/08/2013 54720 50 192 23
Chartes Maudsley 02/08/2013 59,428 50 209 25
Tirn Roberts 02/08/2013 59428 50 209 25

The MSP awards granted to Executive Dir ector s 1n 2012 [which vested on 7 September 2015 and are shawn in the 2015 Long ter m incentives cotumn}
wet e subject 1o the sarme performance conditions as the MSP awar ds granted in 2013 The vesting values of these awai ds have now been calculated
using the actual mar kel value on the day vesung replacing the estimated vesting vatues included in the prior year s singte total figure of
remuneration table

g@l Pension or pension allowance (audited information)

The figures shown i the Pension colurma represent the differing pension arrangements of the Executive Directors During the year ended 31 March
2016 Chnis Grigg recewved 35% basic salary as cash in lieu of pension and Charles Maudsley recerved 15% basic salary as cashin lieu of pension
Lucinda Bell and Tim Roberts earned pension benefits i delined benefit schemes sponsored by the Company during ihe year The increase m value
over the year of their 1 espective pensicns is shown in the single Lotat figure of remuner ation table and further detail 1s provided on page 105

There are no additicnal benefits that will hecarne 1ecevable by a Director w the event that a Director retires early
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Share scheme interests anarded during the vear (audited information)

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The total fair value of each Executive Director s LTIP award for the year ended 31 March 2016 was equivalent to 200% of basic salary al grant At grant
each Director can indicate a preference as to the proportion of the award that they wish to receive as performance shares and the proportion that
they wish to receive as market value oplions The shar e price used to determine the face value of perfor mance shares and the far value of options

- and therefore the nuinber of per formance shares and market value options awarded - 1s the average market vatue of the Company s shares over
the three dealing days immedsately prior to the day of award The pertormance conditions attached io these awards are detailed on page 100

Performance shares Number of Percentage vesting on
performance Endof achievement of rmnimum

shares Facevalue  performance performance threshold

Executve Directar Grant date granted £000 pered  Vesting date %
Chris Grigg 22/06/2015 154 949 1260 31/03/2018  22/06/2018 25
Lucinda Belt 22/06/2015 121 254 986 31/03/2018 22/06/2018 25
Charles Maudstey 22/06/2015 109 756 892 31/03/20i18  22/06/2018 25
Tim Roberts 22/06/2015 109756 892 31/03/2018 22/06/2018 25
Options Percentage vesting on
Number End of achievement of rinimum

of options Fatce value Farvalue Exermseprice  performance performance threshold

Executrve Director Grant date granied £000 €000 p penod  Vesting date %
Chris Grnigg 22/08/2015 206 599 1680 420 8245 31/03/208  22/06/2018 25

' Oplions are currently valued at one quartar of the valus of a periormance share therefore the fair vaiue of each option awarded is one quarier of the face value
of the option

Matching Share Plan

The totat face value of each Executive Director s MSP Matching Share award for the year ended 3t March 2016 was equal te two thit ds of their
Annuat Incentive award in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 equivatent to 91% basic salary at grent for Chrnis Grigg 68% for Lucinda Bell
81% for Charles Maudsley and 85% for Tim Roberts The share price used to determne the number of Matching Shares awarded is the mar ket
value of the Carnpany s shares on the day the proportion of the Annual Incentive 1s deferred

Malching Shares Number of Percentage vesting on

Matehing Endof achievemnent of mimmum

Shares Facevalue performance performance threshald

Executive Director Grant date granted EQDC pertad Vesting dale %

ChnisGrigg 29/06/2015 9% 348 768  31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Lucinda Bell 29/06/2019 40950 333 N/03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Charles Maudsley 29/06/2015 44 226 360 31/03/2018 29/06/2018 25

Tun Roberts 29/06/2015 46 682 380 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25
Sharesave Scheme

The following options were granted to the Executive Directors duning the year under the all-employee Sharesave Scheme The exercise price 1s sel
al a 20% discount to the average market ptice of the Company s shares over the thr ee dealing days immediately preceding invitation ta the Scheme
The cost of exercise 1s met entir ely by the Director and 1s accurnulated by deductions from salary over the period between grant and vesting

Opt[ons Jotalto be
deducted from
salary to cover Number of
exarcise cost aptons Facevalue Exercise pnce Earliest
Executrve Director Grant date ECS0 granied £0C0 p exercise date Expiry date
L.ucinda Bell 22/06/2015 9 1291 9 697 01/09/2018  28/02/2019

Directors’ pension entitlements under the defined benefit pension scheme (audited informacon)

The below table details the defined benefit pension accrued by participating Dhrectors at 31 March 2016

Defined benefit pension Normal

accrued at 31 March 2014 retirernent

Executive Director £000 age
Lucinda Beit 101 40
Tim Roberts 8 60

' The accrued pension is based on service to the year end and finat pensionable salary at that daie
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited information)

Directers shareholdings at 31 March 2014
The followeng table shows the Directors interests in fully paid ordinary British Land shares including shares hetd by connecled persons and
for Executive Directors ncluding Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares and shares held in the Share Incentive Plan All interests are beneficial

Holding at Hold ng at
Director 3 March 2016 31 March 2015
Chris Grigg 1118090 955 204
Lucinda Bell 162 894 164 201
Chartes Maudsley 158 887 159 801
Tim Rober ts 173042 274189
John Gildersleeve 5220 5220
Aubrey Adams 20000 20000
Simon Borrows 300000 3000600
tynn Gladden 14645 0
William Jackson 120 304 42582
Tim Score 12693 6946
tord Turnbell 20 471 18 790
Laura Wade-Gery' 1670 nfa

' Laura Wade-Gerywas appoimnted as a Director on 13 May 2015

Purchases after the year end up to one month before publication of the Notice of Annuat General Meeting

On 4 Aprid 2016 Lynn Gladden was allotted 1 063 shares Withiam Jarkson was allotted 486 shares Tam Score was altotled 1 416 shares Lord Turnbull
was allotted 359 shares and Laura Wade-Gery was altotted 718 shares all at a price of 696 3945 pence per share as part of their standing
instructions to receive shares in full or par t satisfaction of their Non-Executive Duector s fees

On 14 April 2016 Chris Grigg purchased 20 shares Lucinda Bell purchased 20 shares Charles Maudsley pur chased 17 shares and Tim Rober ts
putchased 21 shares allat o price of 730 5208 pence per share under the pas tnershep element of the Shar e incentrve Plan ISIP] Accordingly

Chris Grigg was awarded 40 shares Lucinda Bell was awarded 4G shares Charles Maudsleywas awarded 34 shares and Tim Roberts was
awarded 42 shares under the matching element of the SIP On 6 May 2014 Chiis Grigg acquired 48 shares Lucmda Bell acquired 123 shares Charles
Maudstey acquired 50 shares and Tim Roberts acquired 144 shares all ata price of 722 pence per share under the dividend element of the SIP

Executive Directors minimum shareholding guideline
The minimum shareholding gurdeline requires the Executive Directors to hold fully vested shares of a certain percentage of salary The number
and value of shares required as a target is lixed once a year

There 15 no set timescale required ta reach the target but 1 should be achseved through the regular addstions anticipated by vestings of long term
incentive awards No purchases ai e reguired either to reach the fevel or to respond ta share price falls but Executive Directors are expected to increase
their holding of shares each year until the target 1s attamed Shar es included are those unfettered and beneficially owned by the Director and by tus or
her connected persons {not inctuding delerred Annuat Incentive Shares Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares or locked-in Share Incentive Plan shares)

The gudetine shareholdings for the year to 31 Mar ch 2047 are shown below

Percentage of

Percenage Unfetiered  basic salary

of basic salary halding at held at

to be held Gurdelme 31 March 3 March

Executive Director inshares holdng 2016 2016
Chris Grigg 225% 269807 1031183 860%
Lucinda Bell 150% 105 567 122 478 174%
Charles Maudsley 150% 95 557 16 707 183%
Tim Roberts 150% 95 557 129 031 203%

Although there s no guideline holding for Non-Executive Directors they are encouraged o hold sharesin Biitsh Land The Company facilitates this
by offering Non-Executive Directors the ability 1o purchase shares using their post tax fees Lynn Gladden William Jackson Tin Score Lord
Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery 1 eceived shares m fuil or part satisfaction of their Non-Executive Directars fees duning the year
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Unvested share awards

Number Subject o Endof
outstandingat  performance  performance
Executve Director Typa Date of grant 31 Mar_h 2814 measures penod Vesting date
Chiis Grigg LTIP per foimance shar es 05/08/13 266 227 Yes 31/03116 05/08/14
LTIF perfarmance shares 23/06/14 233 804 Yes 31/03/17 23/06/17
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 154 949 Yes 31/03/18 22{04/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 127 096 Yes 31/0316 02/08/16
MSP Matchung Shares 30/06/14 10 766 Yes 31/03/17 30/06117
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 94 348 Yes 34/03/18 29/06/18
Lucinda Bell LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 116 056 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
LTIP performance shares 23/06/14 135 898 Yes 31/0317 23/06017
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 i21 254 Yes 31/03/18 22/046/18
MSP Maiching Shares 02/08/13 54 720 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/14
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 43816 Yes 31/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 40950 Yea 31/03/18 29/06/18
Charles Maudstey LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 141 430 Yes 3103/16 05/08/14
LTIP performance shares 23/06/14 124 208 Yes /037 23/06/17
LTIP periormance shares 22/06/15 109 756 Yes 31/0318 22/0618
MSP Matchung Shares 02/08/13 59428 Yes 31/03/14 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47584 Yes 33/0317 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 44 226 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Tim Roberts LTIP perfotmance shares (5/08/13 141 430 Yes 3403/16 05/08/16
L_TtP performance shares 23/06/14 124 208 Yes 31/03/17 23/06/17
LT!P per formance shares 22/06/35 169756 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shaies 02/08/13 59428 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47 584 Yes 31/03A17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 4b 582 Yes 31/0318 29/06/18

' Awards with a performance period ended 31/03/2014 are included within the 2014 Long term incentives column of the single total figure of remunaration table on
page 101 The notes to the single total figure table on pages 103 to 104 outline the degree to which performance measures have been or are expected lo be achieved

and the resuliant propartions of the awards that are expected to vest

Unvested aptron awards {not available to be exercised)

Number Subject to End of

oulstanding at Qpuon price  perfarmance  performance  Date becomes Exercisable

Executrve Director Type {ate of grant 31 March 2014 p measures period’ exercisable until
Chris Grgg LTIP options 22/06/13 206 599 824 5 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18 22/06/25
Lucinda Bell LTiP options 85/08/13 154 742 401 Yes 3103716 05/08/16 05/08/23
Sharesave options 23/06/14 1567 574 No nfa m/0917 28/02/18

Shar esave options 22/06/15 1291 697 No nfa 01/o9/18 28/02/19

Tim Reberts Sharesave options 19/06/13 2348 s No n/a 01/09/18 28/02/19
Sharesave options 23/06/14 3135 574 No nfa 01/0919 29/02/20

' Awards with a performanca peniod ended 31/03/204¢ are included within the 2036 Long term incentives column of the single fotal figure of remuneration 1able on
page 187 The notes to the single totat figure table on pages 103 to 104 outline the degree 1o which performance measures have been or are expecied to be achieved

and the resultant preportions of the awards thal are expected 1o vest
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REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Vested option awards [avaiabie to be exercised)

Number

outstanding at Opuan price Exercisab’e
Executve Director Type Date of gramt 31 March 2016 p untit
Chris Grigg LTIP options 29/06/09 779 387 29/06/19
LTiP options 11/06/10 1073825 447 1/06/20
LTFEP options 28/06M 695 652 575 28/06/21
LTIP options 14/09/i2 743 494 338 14/09/22
Lucinda Bell LTIP options 11/06/10 47952 447 11/06/20
LTIP options 14/12/10 11744 510 14112120
L TIP aptions 1440947 138 28% 538 16109422

Options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2014
Markel pnce on
Number  Option pace  Date became date of exercise
Executive Director Type Date of grant exercsed p exercisable Date exerised p
i_.ucinda Belk Shar esave options 26106112 2295 392 01/69/13 a1/09/15 8035
Tim Roberts LTIP opuions 05/12/0% 17483 8234 05/12/08 01/12/15 846
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Further disclosures

Relative importance of spend on pay

The gr aph below shows the amount spent on remuneration of all
employees including Execubive Directors] relative 1o the amount spent
on disiributions to shareholders for the years to 31 March 2016 and

31 March 2015 Remuneration of employees increased by 7% relaiive to
the prior year and distnibutions to sharehotders increased by 3%
Distributions to sharehotders include ordinary and scrip dividends and
the split between property ncome distributions {PID} and non-proper ty
ncome distibuuens [non-PID) s shown

Relatn e mportance of spend on pas

2015/16 Mesim
I < 07

2014115 Il £76m
I N 77

Seven-year total shareholder return and Chief Executive s remuneration
The graph to the night shows Briush Land s total shareholder return for
the seven years from 1 Apnit 2009 to 31 March 2016 against that of the
FTSE Real Estate Investment Trusts {REIT) Total Return Index for the
same period The graph shows how the total return on a £100 investrnent
inthe Company made on 1 April 2009 would have changed over the
seven-year pensod measured compared with the total return on a £100
iwestment in the FTSE REIT Total Return Index The FTSE REIT Total
Return tndex has been selected as a surtable comparator because itis
theindex mwhich British Land s shares are classified

The 7009 base point required by the regulations goverming this
remuneration repor t disclosure was close to the boltom of the property
cycle British Land s share price had not fallen as much at that time as
the average shai e price of the FTSE REITs Sector thereby setiing a
tugher base point far subsequent growth The table helow details the total
remuneration of the person undertaking the rote of Chiet Execuiive over
the same period calculated on the same basis as the single total figure
of remuneration table and the Annual incentive payouts and long term
mcentive vesting rates as a percentage of the maximum opporiunity

Rermuneration of employees including Directors
B Wages & salartes

F Annual Incentives

(", Soctal security costs

M Pension costs

M Equity-settled share-based payments

[hstributions to shareholders

B 71D cash dividends paid 1o shareholders

B PID tax withholeding

M Net cash equivalent of new shares 1ssued under
Non-PID Scrip dividends

BB Nei cash equivatent of new shares 1ssued under
PiD Scrip dvidends

Total Shareholder Return
Rebased to 100, April 2009

150

300 //
250 //—7

200 ]
|
150 /y\___

100 /

Apnt Apnl Apnl Apnl Apnl Apni Apnl March
09 2010 21 a12 2013 M4 2015 218
B The Bniash Land Company PLC
B FTSE REITs Sector
Source Aon Hewatt

NN
il

00 200 mz2 2013 2014 2015 204
Chief Executive Chns Grgg Chris Gngg Chris Gngg Chrs Gngg Chrs Gngg Chns Grgg Chnis Grigg
Chief Executive s single total ligure
of remuneration [E500) 2082 2329 5353 4810 5398 655 3709
Annual Incentive payout against maximurn
opportunity (%) &7 83 75 5 90 9% 67
L.ang term incentives vesting rate against
maximurn opportunity (95 n/a n/a 99 63 98 93 54
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REMUNERATION REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Chief Executive s remuneralion compared to remuneration of British Land employees

The below table shows the percentage changes in differ ent elements of the Chiel Executive s remuneration relative to the previous hinancial year
and the average percentage changes in those elements of remuneration for employees based at British Land s head office over the same period
Head office employees have been chasen as an appropriate comparator group for this purpose as employees based at Brish Land s head office
carry out work of the most similar nature to the Chief Executive

Average change

Value of Cruef Value of Cnsf Change in n remunerst on

Executve Executrve Ch ef Executve elemert of

remunerabon remuneralion remuneration Brit:sh Land

efement 2016 efement 2015 e'ement employees

Remuneration element [dRed] £CC3 % %
Salary 840 800 50 54
Taxable benefits 21 21 0o 27
Annuat Incentive 840 1152 21 -68

Executive Directors external appointments

Executive Dir ectors may take up ene non-executive directorship at another FTSE company subject to Briush Land Board approval Chis Grigg was
appointed a non-execuiive director of BAE Systerns plc on 1 July 2013 During the year ta 31 March 2016 Chris Grigg receved a fee of £86 495
lincluding £2 495 of expenses deemed 1o be taxable] from BAE Systems ple which he retaned in full Lucinda Bell was appointed a non-executive
du ector of Rotark plc on 10 July 2014 During the year to 31 March 2016 Lucinda Bell recewved afee of £43 625 from Rotork ple which she retamned
nfulliD12&

Statement of voting at the Annual General Meeting
The table below details the results of the sharehelder vote to approve the Birectors Remuneration Repos L at the 2015 AGM and the shareholder vole
to approve the current Remuneration Policy at the 2014 AGM The Commutles was pleased to note the high levets of shareholder support

Voles % Votes % Totat votes Votes
Resolution AGM for for against against cast withheld
Approval of Directers Remuneration Repart 2015 4680 540 864 9753 17257841 247 697798705 54 059 367
Approval of Directors Remuneration Policy 2014 &84 058 054 9730 18953424 270 703011480 1198 374

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors remuneration

Throughout the year the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Lord Turnbull Lynn Gladden and Williamm Jackson were members of the
Commitiee throughaut the year Laura Wade-Gery was appainted as a Director of the Campany and member of the Commiitee on 13 May 7015
The foltowing persons assisted the Comeuitee during the year Chsis Grigy iChief Execunvel Joff Sharpe {Head of Oper atons} Elane Williams
Charles Middleton and Victana Penrice feach of whomn acted as secretary to the Remuneration Committee during the year] and Alan Judes

of Strategic Remuneration

The Cormeittee appointed Alan Judes of Strategic Remuneration as its independent adwisor for the year He also gave advice to the Company on
human resources and shai e plan matlers The Commiitee is sausfied there 1s no conflict s him providing such services to the Company Strategic
Remuneration 1s @ member of the Remuner abion Consultants Group and adheres Lo the Remuneration Consubtants Group s Code of Conduct
Strategic Remuneration was selected by the Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee following a competitive tender process

The Commuttee assesses the advice given by Alan Judes of St ategic Remuneration to satisfy itself that the adwice receved rs abjecnive and
independent Alan Judes has a privale meeting with the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee once a year it accordance with the Code
of Conduct of the Remuneration Consultants Group Fees charged by Strategic Remuneration for the year amounted to £48 400 excluding VAT
[£73 400 excluding VAT for the year ended 31 March 2015) and are charged on a ime basis

This Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 20146

MTL...};JA

Lord Turnbull

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Directors’ report and additional disclosmes

The Directors present their repert on the alfairs of the Group togethes
with the audited financial statements and the repori of the auditor for
the year ended 31 March 2016 Information required to be disclosed

in the Oirectors Report may be found below and in the folfowing
sectigns of the Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Section in
Information Annual Report Page
Dvidend 1 ecommended during
the year Strategic Repost 52

Sustainability governance Strategic Report 151017

Governance and

Political donations and expenditure remuneration 78
Greenhouse gas emisstons Strategic Report 48
Financial instrurnents - risk management

objectives and policies Strategic Report 54

Eachordinary share carnies the right to particspale equally In distributions
and dwidends There are neither resirictions on the transfer of shases nor
on the size of 3 holding

Future developments of the business of

the Company Strategic Report Hto 19
Employment polictes and employee Governance and
involvernent remuneration  77and 85

Risk facter s and principal risks Stralegic Report 57 to 63

Antaeles of Association
The Company s Articles of Assoctatron may only be amended by special
resotution at a general meeuing of shareholders

Subject to applicable kaw and the Company 5 Articles of Associabion
the Directors may exercise all powers of the Company

@ Matters reserved for Board approval see page 73

Board of Directors

The Direclors bisted on the Board of Directors pages constituted the
8oard during the year Inaccordsnce with hest praciice the Direclors
will retir e at the AGM and will affer themselves for election and annuat
re-election as required

@ Board of Directors see pages 66 to 69

Directors’ labnhty insurance and indemnity

The Campany has indemmnified 1its current Directors The indermnity
arrangements ar e qualifying mdemmity provisions under the Compames
Act 2006 and are currently in force at the date of this Repart (A 1 31 &

Purchase of own shares

The Companywas granted authority at the AGM in 2015 to purchase its
own shares up 1o a total aggregate value of 10% of the sssued nominal
capital subject to market-standard maximum and minimum price
constrainis That authority expires at this year s AGM and a resotution
will be proposed for its renewat During the year the Company made no
purchases of its own shares

Shaie capatal

The Company has one class of ordimary shai e and all shares are fully
pawd [25 pence eachl On a poll at a general meeting every hotder ar proxy
has one vote for every share that they hold On a show of hands at a
general meeting each holder and proxy has one vote

Al the AGM m 2015, the Directors were given the power to allot shares
up o a normunal amount of £85 636 863 as well as addittonal authornity
to allot a further £85 856,887 on g nghts issue This authonty exprres
at this year s AGM atwhich a similar resolution will be proposed

The 1ssued share capital has been increased during the year by fully paid

1ssues as follows

Number of ordinary

shaiesof 25p

15 Apri 2015 to

Shares in lieu of

14 January 2016 Dwreclors fees 12 504
T Aprit 2015 to On exercise of options
30 March 2016 under the Long-Term

Incentive Plan [LTIP) 503 817
15 May 2015 to Onvesting of shares
21 December 2015 undet the LTIP 894 761
7 April 2015 o Onvesting of shares
16 September 2015 under the Fund Managers

Performance Plan 35609856
15 Apnl 201510 On exercise of options undes
4 March 2016 the Sharesave Schemne 134107
5 August 201510
12 February 2014 Scrip altotment & 407945

21 Augus12015 Share Incentive Ptan Free

Share Award allotment 1770466

Onvesting of Matching
Shares under the Matching
Share Plan [MSP] 182 831

07 Septernber 2015

Substantial interests
As at 31 March 2016 the Company had been notilied of the followng
major nteresis inits ordinary shares

Percentage of

Interests mthe  ordinary shares

Company s In 1s5Ue

ordinary shares %

Blackrock Inc’ Bé 222 399 829
Norges Bank 61739 045 593
APG Algemene Pensioen Groep MV 51 212198 492
GIC Private Limited 41042 589 394

Of the B6 222 399 share interests notihed io the Company by Blackrock 327 645
share interests are hald gursuant (o qualifying frnancial instruments lor financial
mstruments with similar economic effect] The remaindes of Biackrack s

holding and alt other substantial interests bisted in the above table arise from
direct orind rectinterests in ordinary shares

Sofar as the Company s aware no other person holds a notfrable
interest in the Campany s ordmary shares

Since theyearend but pnot to the date of this Report the Company has

been notified by GIC Private Limuted that its interests in the Company s
ordinary shares has increased to 41 226 746
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Governanee and remumeration

DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Warver of dividends

Lnder the trust deed establishing the Briish Land Employee Share
Trust the trustee has waived any dwidends payable in respect of any
shates held by them unless otherwise direcied by the Company fother
than in respect of shares held as a nomines)

Significant agreements
There are no sigmficant agreements to which the Company Is party that
take effect alter or terrminate upon a change of contr ol of the Company

Pavments poliey

We recognise the impor tance of good supplier relationships to the
overall success ot our business We manage dealings wilh suppliers
in g fair consistent and transparent manner and have signed up to the
UK Government s Prompt Payment Code At the year end there were
34 (2015 36} suppliers days outstanding

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no reportable events after the balance sheet date

Auditor

The Audit Commutlee has recommended resolutions at the 2016 AGM to
reappoint PricewaterhouseCocper s LLP as the Company s auditor and
to authorise the Audit Cormmuittee to agree the auditor s remuneration

isclosure of nformation to auditor

Each ot the persons who 1s a Dit ector at the date of approval of this

Report confirms that

- so faras the Director 1s aware there 1s no relevant audit inforsmation
of which the Corpany s auditor 15 unaware and

- the Diwector has taken all the steps that he/she ought 10 have taken
as a Director sn order 10 make himselifherself aware of any relevant
audit mformation and to establish that the Company s auditor 1s aware
of that information

This confit mation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Discloswmes under Listing Rule 9.8.4R
Infor mation reguired to be disclosed in compliance with LR 9 8 4R may
be found n the fellowing sections

Section n
Information Annual Repoert Page
Amount of Interest knancial statements 132
capitabised by the Group
Additional unaudied Other informatton 184 to 204
financial infor mation unaudited
Waiver of dividends Additional disclosures 112

Governance arrangements

Infermation regarding the Company s governance arrangements s set
out on pages 66 to 85 These pages are incorporated by reference into
the Direciors Report
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Directors’ interests in contracts and confhicts

of interest

No contract existed durmng the year in relation to the Company s bustness
i which any Director was materially nlerested

The Company s policy 1s that Directors noufy the Chairman and the
Company Secretary of all new outside interests and conflicts of interest
as and when theyarise The notification is then annually referred to the
Board for approval Furthermore the Board reviews the policy on an
annual basts and following the most recent review in Nevember 201511
concluded that the policy operated effectively

Annual General Mceting (AGM)

The AGM of The British Land Company PLC will be held at The Montcalm
London Marble Arch 34-40 Great Cumberland Place London W1H 7TW
on Tuesday 19 July 2016 at 11 00 am Furtherinformation wall be
available on the Nouce of AGM [L 2 41@ The AGM s the principal
occasion when shareholders are able to ask questions of thew Beard
and the chairmen of the main committees We look forward 1o seeing
you there [E 2 3]@

Management Report

The Strategic Report and the Birectors Report together are the
management report for the purposes of the FCAs Disclosure &
Trangparency Rules [DTR 4 1 5R]

The Directors Reportwas approved on behalf of the Board on 16 May 2016

&

Elaine Williams
Company Secretary and General Counsel
16 May 2014




DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report
the Directors Remuneration Report and the financiat statements
in accordance with applicable law and requlations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial staterments
far each financial year Under that law the threcior s have prepared the
Group financial staternents in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards [IFRSs] as aaopted by the European Union and
the parent Company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Gener ally Accepied Accounting Pracuce {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applcable law}

Under Company law the Direclors must not approve the financral
statements untess they are salishied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of alfairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Group fos that perod tn preparing these financial statements the
Directors are required to
~ select suitabke accounting policies and then apply them consistently
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent
- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union and applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been fallowed subject to any materal
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and parent Company
financiat statements respectvely and
- prepare lhe financial statements on the gaing concern basis
unless it 1s mappropnate {o presume that the Company watl
continue In business

The Directors are responuible for keepmng adequdte accounting records
that are sufficient to show and expiam the Company s transactions ang
disclose with reasonabte accur acy at any ime the financial position of

the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Drrectors Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial statements
Article 4 of the |AS Regulation They are also tesponsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasenable
sieps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the
Company swehsite Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissermination of financral statements may didfer frorm
legislation i other junisdchions

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounis taken

as a whole 1sfair balanced and undersiandable and provides the

information necessary for shareholders te assess the Company s

position and pet formance business medel and strategy ‘

Each of the Directors whose names and functigns are listed in the ‘
gavernance and remuneraticn seclion confirm that to the best of
their knowtedge
- the Group inancial statements which have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU gwive a true and fan view of the assets
liabiitres financial posiion and profit of the Group and
- the Strategic Report and the Directors Reportinclude a fair review
of the development and performance of the business and the pasiion
of the Group together with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that it faces

By or cter af the Board

UMM

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Gfieer
16 May 2014
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Fimneial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE

BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opimon

- the British Land Company PLC s Group financial statements and
Company financial statements [the financial statements ] give a true
and farr view of the state of the Group s and of the Company s affairs as
at 31 March 2014 and of the Group s profit and cash flows for the vear
then ended

- the Group financiat statements have been propeily prepared in
accordance with Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards [ IFRSs |
as adopted by the European Union

- the Company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companses Act 2006 and as regards the Group
financial staterents Articte 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited

The hnancial staternents included within the Annual Report comprise

- the Consolidated Batance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

- the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

- the Consolidated Incame Statement and the Cansolidated Staterment of
Comprehensive Income for the year then ended

~ the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

- the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity far the year then ended
and

- the notes to the finencial statements which include a summary of
srignificant accounting policies and other explandtory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the
Annual Report rather than in the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced {rom the hinancial staterments and are
identified as audited

The finangial reporting framewor k that has been applied in the

p: eparation of the Group hnancial statements 1s appticable law and
[FRSs as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting
frarmework that has been applied i the preparation of the Company
financial statements i1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards [United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung Pracuice)
inctudimg FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
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Our audd approach

Overview

Cur 2016 audit was planned and executed having regard to the fact

that the Group s operations were largely unchanged in nature from

the previous year addinionally there have been no sigaificant changes
to the valuation methodology and accounting standards relevant to the
Group In hight of this our approach to the audit iy terms of scoping and
areas of focus was largely unchanged

Atull scope audit was performed by the Group team for all subsidiar ies
of the Group and the following joint ventures Broadgate Meadowhall
and Leadenhatt

Matenality

- Overalt Group matenality £138 mullion {2084/15 £130 melbon] which
represemts 1% of Total assels

- Speafic Group matenality applied to pre-tax profit. £18 rmilhion (201415
£15 milbion] which represents 5% of undertying pre-tax profit

Areas of focus

- Valuation of imvesiment and develapment properties

- Revenue recogrition speaficalty focusing on non-standard revenue
transactions

- Accounting for transactions including acquisttions and disposals of
wwestment properties review of the accounting treatrnent of the deferred
consideration recerved from one of the Group s joint venture partners the
£110 nullion debenture bands tender cffer and purchase and the issuance
of £350 rulbion convertsble bonds in the year

-~ Taxation - REIT status and tax provisions

The scope of our audit and our areas of fecus
Woe conducted our audit in accor dance with Internat:onal Standat ds on
Auditing [UK and Iretand] { 15As [UK & ireland) )

We designed our audit by deterrminmg materiality and assessing the
risks of matersal missiatement in the financial statements {n particular
we looked at where the Direciors made subjective jJudgements for
example in sigruficant accounting estimates thal imvolved making
assumptrons and censidering future events that are mmherently uncer tain
Asn atl of our audits we also addressed the nsk of management
overnide of mternal controts inctuding evaluating whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material
missiatement due to fraud

The nisks of materat misstaternent thai had the greatest efiect on out
dudit including the atiocation of our resour ces and effor t are identified
as areas of focus in the table below We have also set out howwe
tailer ed our audit o address these specific areas in order to provide an
option on the financial statements as a whole and any commenis we
rmake on the resulls of owr procedures should be read in this context
Tus s not a comptete list of alt risks identsfied by our audit




Area of focus

How our audit addressad the area of focus

Yaluation of investment and develepment properties
Refer 1a pages 80 to 83 [Report of the Audit Committeel pages 127
10 129 [Accounting policies] and pages 136 ta 139 [Note}

The Group sinvestment proper ty portiolio 1s split between office
and residential praperues in London retall and leisure properties
across the UK and the assels at the Canada Water site with a
vatuation in the Consotidated Balance Sheet of £9 643 million

The valuation of the Group s ivestment propei ty portfolio i1s nherently
subjective due to amang other factars the individual nature of each
propesly its location and the expected future rentals for that particutar
property For developrments factors inciude projected costs to complete
and uming of practical completion

The valuations were carrted out by third par ty valuers CB Richard Ellis
and Knight Frank {the Vatuers| The Valuer s were engaged by the
Directors and performed thetr work in accot dance with the Royal
Insttute of Chartered Surveyors  RICS | Valuation - P ofessional
Standards The Valuers used by the Group have considerable
experience of the mat kets in which the Group operates

In determuning & property s valuation the Valuers take into

account property-specific iInformatian such as the current tenancy
agreements and rental income They apply assumptions for yietds and
estimated market rent which are influenced by prevailing market yietds
and carmparable market transactions to arrive at the tinat valusation

For developments the residual appraisal method 15 used by estimating
the fair value of the completed project using a capitatisation method less
estimated costs to completion and a 115k premium

The signiicance of the estimates and judgerents involved coupled with
the fact that only a simall percemtage difference in indwidual property
vatuations when aggregated coutd result in a material misstatement
wartants specthc audit tacus inthis area

There were also a number of speufic factor s atfecling the valuations

tn the year

- a number of developments that were completed in the year are now
valued as standing investment properties so we have paid particular
focus to the vatuairon methodology apphied to those assels

- the nature of the Canada Water site which compnses three contiguous
si#es that Bntish Land are currently master planning as a combined
targe scale mixed use developmient site resulted in our audit paymg
particutar focus to the relevant valuations and

- the UK supertnarket sector continues to be an area of focus gven
performance in the sector

We read the vatuation reports for all the properties and confirmed
that the valuation approach for each was in accordance with RICS
standards and suitable for use in determining the carrying value
for the purpose of the ftnancial staterments

We assessed the Valuers qualificauions and experuse and read their
terms of engagement with the Group to determine whether there
were any matters that might have affected their objectivity or may
have imposed scope limiutations upon thewr work We also considered
fee arrangements between the Valuers and the Group and other
engagements which righi extsi between the Group and the Valuers
We found no evidence to suggest that the objectivity of the Vatuers

in their perfarmance of the valuations was compr ormised

We performed testing on the standmg data in the Group s information
systems concer ning the valuation process We cartied out procedures,
on a sample basts to satisfy ourselves of the accuracy of the property
infermation supplied to the Valuers by management For developments
we canfirmed that the suppor ting information for construction contracis
and budgets which was supplied o the Valuers was also consestent
with the Group srecords

The audit team inctuding our valuation specialists attended

meetngs with each of the Vatuers at which the valuations and the key
assumptions therein were discussed Our work focused on the largest
properties in the portfolio and thase where the assumptions used and/or
year-an-year capital value movement suggested a possible outlier

ver sus mar ket data for the retevant sector We also focused on

super stares Canada Water and completed developments for the
reasons relerred o opposite We compared the investment yields used
by the Valuers with an esumated range of expected yields deterrmned
viateference 1o published benchmarks We atso considered the
reasonableness of other assumptions that are not so readily comparable
with published benchmarks suchvas Estimated Rental Vatue [ ERV | void
iates and rent-free perniods Finally we evaluated year-on-year
mavemnents in capilal value with reference to published henchmarks
Whei e assumptions were outside the expected range or otherwise
unusual andfor valuations showed unexpected maovements we
discussed these with the Valuers in otr meetings held with them and
obtamned addiliocnat audit evidence to suppori the explanations 1 ecetved

e g copies of lease agi eements to support new lettings that have
increased valuation durrng the pesied In this way professional
scephicism was exercised in our evaluation of whether assumptionswere
appropriate in Light of the evidence provided by significant transactions
which had taken place in the market during the yea:

ltwas evident from our interaction with management and the Valuers
and from our review of the valuaton reports that close attention had
heen paid to each properly s tndividual characteristics at a granutar
tenant by tenant level aswell as consider ing the overall guality
gecgraphic location and desirability of the asset as awhole The
evaluation of wha! were Lhe appropriate assumptions 1o apply to any
gven property included determining the level of impact that recent
and sigmficant market transactions should have on each indvidual
preperty s valuation given iis unique charactenstics did not reveal
anyissues We saw evidence that aliernative assumptions had been
cansidered and evaluated by management and the Valuers before
deterrmimng the final valuation We concluded that Lhe assumptions used
In the valuations were supportable n lght of available and comparahble
rnarket evidence
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Finaneial statements

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Area of forus

How cur audit addressed the area of focus

Revenue recogmtion
Refer to pages 80 to 83 {Repor1 of the Audit Commuttee] pages 127
1o 129 {Accounting policies] and page 131 [Notel

Revenue for the Group consists primar iy of rental income Renial
income s based on tenancy agreements where there s a standard
process in place for recording revenue which is system generated
There are however cef tain transactions withun revenue that watrant
additional audd focus because of an increased inherent risk of errar
due to therr non-standasd nature

These inctude spreading of occupier Incentives and guaranteed tent
increases - these balances reguu e adjustments made to rental iIncome
10 ensure revenue 1s recorded on a straight-ine basis over the course
of alease

We carried out tests of controls over the ¢ash and accounts recevable
processes and the related IT systems to obtain evidence that postings to
these accounts were reliabte For rental ncome balances we then used
data-enabled audit techmiques to identify atl standard revenue yjournals
posted using these systems and processes

The remaining journals related to non-standard transactions These
included reclassifications within revenue accrued income and bad debt
provisions For each category of non-standard revenue summartsed
above we have under stood the nature and assessed the reascnableness
of jous nals being generated and performed substantive tesung aver

a sampte of these tems There have been no exceptions artsing fram

our testing over non-standard revenue transactions

For balances not included within rental income such as service charge
income we performed substantive testing on a sample basis Noissues
were noted

Accounting for transactions
Refer 10 pages 80 1o 83 [Report of the Audit Cemmitiee] pages 127
to 179 {Accounting poticies] and pages 134 to 164 [Notes to Accounts)

There have been a number of transactions during the year
These warranted additional audit locus due to the magniiude
of transactions and the potential tor complex contractual terms
that introduce judgement tnto how they were accounted lor
Key transactions subect to additional audit focus were
- purchase of additional units in HUT for £59 million
- acquistion of One Sheldon Square for €210 rullion
- 1ssuance of £330 million conver uble bonds
- recognilion of deferred consideration recewved from
one of the Group s jaint venture partners
- profit on disposal of investment proper ties and trading
properties of £45 million and
- £110 mullion debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

For each transaction we understood the natur e of the transaction and
assessed the praposed accounting lreatment i relation to the Group s
accounting policies and retevant IFRSs

For the purchase of additional unmits 1n HUT we agreed the net asset
value used in the share price calculation to supporting imformation
including external Net Asset Value certsficates

For all acqusitions and disposals we obtained and reviewed the key
suppor ing documentabion such as Sates and Pui chase Agreernents
and compltelion statements Consideration 1 eceved or paid was agreed
ic bank statements and deferred consider ation postings No materiat
1ssues were found Js a resuli of these procedures

Fer the conver ubte hond we have inspected the bond agreement
and obtamed evidence of all the key inputs into the bond 1ssue gprice
We have also considered the accounting treatment and concurred
with management s ireatment

For the deferred consideration recewved from one of the Group s jomnt
ventui e pariners we have inspected the shareholder agreement that
governs the {ee payment obtained evidence that the milestones that
trigger tiie payment have beenmet and have inspected the calculabon
of the payrment amount and agreed the cash receipt We have assessed
the accounting treatment and concur with the treatment

For the debenture bonds iender offer and purchase we have agreed
the repayment of the debentures and recalculated the finance charge
incurred through agreerng the various tender documents resolutions
contamed in the Committee of the Board and cash payments The
finance charges have been expensed thr ough the Income Statement
We have reviewed this treatrment and concur with this
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Taxatron
Refer to pages 80 10 83 [Report of the Audit Committee}
pages 127 i0 129 {Accounting poltaies] and pages 133 and 144 [Notes)

The Group s status as a REIT underpins its business model and
shareholder returns For this reason it warrants spectal audst focus
The obligations of the REIT regime include requirements to comply with
balance of husiness dividend and income cover tests The Broadgate
joint ventur e1s atso structured as a REIT and as such REiT compliance
15 also of cetevance for this joint venture in addition to the overall Group

Tax prowisions are in place to account for the risk of challenge
af cet tan of the Group s tax provisions Given the subjective
nature of these provisions additional audit focus was placed
on tax pravistons

We re-per formed the Group s annual REIT compliance tests aswellas
those tests foi the Broadgate REFH Based on our work pes formed we
agreed with management s assessment that all REIT compliance tests
had been met to ensure that the Group and Broadgate maintains its
REIT status

We used our tax expertise to evaluate tax provisions and potentiat
exposures as at 31 Mai ch 2016, challenging the Group s assumptions and
Judgements through our knowtedqe of tax circimstances and by reading
1elevant correspondence between the Greup and Her Majesty s Revenue
& Customs and the Gioup s external tax advisors We concluded that the
tax provisions wer e within an appropriate range based on the supporting
information provided by the Gi oup s tax depar iment

How we tailored the audit scope

We tatlored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough
work o be able 1o give an opinion an the financial stalements as a whole
taking into account the structure of the Group the accounting processes
and controls and the industry in which the Group operates

The Group and Company financial statements are produced using a
single consohdation systern that has a direct mterface with the general
ledger We performed our audit procedures over the general ledger
system and tested the interface with the consolidation system

A full scope audit was perforred by the Group andit team for all
subsidiarses of the Group and the following Joint ventures Broadgate
Meadowhall and Leadenhait This gives coverage over substantially
all of the Group

In establishing the overall approach to cur audit we assessed the nisk
of materizgl misstatement taking into account the nature liketibood and
potentsal magnitude of any misstatement Following this assessment
we applied professional jJudgement to determime the extent of testing
required over each batance n the hnanuat statements

Matenality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality
We set certan guantitative thresholds for materiality These together
with qualitative consider ations helped us to determine the scape of our
audit and the nature timing and extent of our audit procedures on the
individual financiat statement bine items and drsclosures and in evaluating
the effect of risstatements bath imdividually and on the financial
staternents as a whale

Based on our professionat judgement we deterimined materiality
for the financial stalements as a whole as follows

Overall Group materiality £138 mulhon

How we determined it 1% of total assets

Rationale for benchmark applied A key determinant of the
Group s value s direct properiy
investments Due tathis the key
area of focus in the audit is the
valuation ot investment properties
On this basis we set an overall
Group mateniatity level based
on total assels

In addiion we set a specific materiality level of £18 mullion (2014/15

£15 muthion} for items within underlying pre-tax profit This equates to 5%
of profit before tax adjusted for capttal and otheritems n arniving at this
judgement we had reqard te the fact that the underlying pre-tax profit
1s a secondary financiatincicator of the Group {refer to note 2 of the
financial staterments page 130 where the term s defined in full]

We agreed with the Audit Cormrnittee that we would teportto them
misstatements identhed during our audit of underlyig pre-tax items
above L1 milion [2014/15 £1 multient as well as misstatements helow
that amaount that n our view war ranted repor ing for gualitative reasons
Thisyear we agreed with the Audil Cornrmultee that we would report to
thern any risstaternents wdentihed during our audit of capitat and other
itemns sbove L4 9 million {20t4/15 n/al as well as misstatements below
that amourdt that in our vtew warranted reportmg for qualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors
staternent setout on page 77 mretation o going concetn

We have nothing to report having performed our review

Under I1SAs [UK & Ireland] we are required to report to you if we have
anything material to add or to draw attention to in retation to the
Directors statement about whether they considered it appraprate to
adopt the going concernbasis m preparing the financial statements We
have nothing material lo add or to draw attention to

As nated in the Directors statement the Directors have concluded thai it
1s appe opriate to adopt the gomg concern basis In preparing the financial
statements The going concern basis presumes that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to remain in operation and that the
Directors intend them to do so forat least one year {rom 1he date the
financal statemenis were signed As part of our audi we have concluded
that the D ectors use of the gong concern haws s appropriate
However because not all future events or condittons can be predicied
these stalements are nol a guarantee as to the Group s and Company s
abifity to continue as a going concern
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Finaneial staterments

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required reporung
Consistency of ather information

Companies Act 2006 opinion

In our opimion the information given in the Strategic Report and

the Directors Report for the finanaial year for which the financial
statements are prepared I1s consistent with the financiat statements

ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under I1SAs {UK & ireland} we are required to report 1o you i
111 oUr opINIoN

- Information in the Annual Repart 15 We have ne exceptions
- matenatly mconsistent wath the information  to report
in the qudited financial statements or
- apparently materally sncorrect based on or
matenially mconsistent with our knowledge
of the Group and Company acquured in the
course of performing our audit or
- otherwise rmisleading

We have no exceptions
to report

- The statement given by the Directors an
page 76 in accordance wath provision C 11
of the UK Corporate Governance Code [the
Coda | that they consider the Annual Report
taken as a whole to be far batanced and
uvnderstandable and provides the information
necessary for members to assess the Croups
and Company s performance business model
and strategy 1s matenally inconststent wath
our knowledge of the Group and Company
acqutred in the course of performing our audit

- The section of the Anxnual Report on page 82
as required by provision € 3 8 of the Code
descnbimng the work of the Audit Commitiee
does not appropniately address matters
commuznicated by us to the Audit Committee

We have no exceptions
to repart
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The Directors assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or biquidity
of the Group

Under ISAs [UK & treland] we are required to report to you if we have
anything matertal to add or to draw atlention to in refation to

We have nothing matersal
toadd or to draw
attention to

- the Directors confis maton on page 76
of the Annual Report 1In accordance with
provision C 2 1 of the Code that they have
carned oul a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facng the Group including
those that would threaten its business model
future performdnce sobvency or bguidity

- the disclosures in the Annual Report
that descrbe thosa nsks and explain how
they are being managed ol mitigeted

We have nothing matenal
to add or to draw
attention to

We have nothing material
to add or to draw
attention to

- the Directors explanation on page 58
of the Annual Report i accordance with
provision C 2 2 of the Code as to how
they have assessed the prospects of the
Group over what penad they have done
50 and why they consider that petied to
be appropriate and their stalement as
to whether they have a reasonable
expectatton that the Gi oup will be able
to continue 1n operation and meet its
ratubities as they fall due over the penod
of their assessment Including any related
disclosures drawing atieniion Lo any
necessary qualfications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rutes we are required Lo review the Directors
statemnent that they have carried cut a robust assessment of the
prncipal risks facing the Group and the Directors statement m relation
to the longer termwability of the Graup Our review was substanirally
less m scope than an audit and only consisted of making mquisies and
considering the Direclors process suppor ting ihesr statements
checking that the statements are in alignmeni with the relevant
prowvisions of the Code and consider ing whether the statements are
consistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
ouraudit We have nothing to repor t having per for med our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information

and explanations recerved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if

N our opinion

- we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for
our audit or

- adeguate accounting records have nat been kept by the Company
or jeturns adequate for our audit have not heen recewved from branches
not visited by us ar

- the Corpany financial staiemenis and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited are noi in agreernent with the
accounting records and retums

We have no exceplions to report arising from this respansibility




Directors remuneration

Directors rernuneration report - Compantes Act 2006 opinon
Inour opinion the part of the Directors Remuneration Report

to e audited has been proper by prepared in accordance with

the Companies Act 2004

Other Companies Act 2004 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart o you if
inour optnion certain disclosut es of Drectors remuneration specified
hy law are not made We have no exceplions to repor: arising from

this responsibility

Corperate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we ar e required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Staterment relating to ten further provisions
of the Code We have nothing to repart having perfor med our review

Responsibilities tor the financial statements
and the audn

Our responsihilities and those of the Directors

As explained maore {utly in the Directors Responstbiliies Statement
set out on page 113 the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satistied thal they give a true
and fan view

Our responsibitity 1s to audit and express an opinton on the financrat
staiemenis i accordance with apphicable law and ISAs fUK & Iretand)
Those standar ds require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board s Ethical Standar ds tor Auditors

This report including the opinions has been prepared for and only for
the Company s members as a body i accor dance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Compames Act 2606 and for no other purpose We donect In
giving these apintons accept or assume respansibibity {or any other

put pose or Lo any other person to whom this report s shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
cansent In writing

What an audit of financial statements involves
An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the hinancial statements suflicent to give reasonable assurance that
the financial stalements are free from matenal misstatement whether
caused by fraud or error Fhis includes an assessment of
- whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group s and the
Company s arcurnstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed
- the reasonableness of significant accounung estimates made by
the Directors and
- the overall presentation of the inanaal statements

We primanily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors
judgements against avarlable evidence forming our own judgernents
and evaluating the disclosures in the iinancial statements

We testand examine information using sampling and other auditing
techmiques to the exient we consider necessary {o provide 2 reasonable
basis for us lo draw conclusions We oblain audit evidence throegh
testing the effectiveness of contrals substantive procedures or a
combination of both

In addition we read all the tinanaial and non-tinancial informationin
the Annual Report 10 identify matenal inconsisiencies with the audited
financial staternents and to identily any information that 1s apparently
materiatly incorrect based on ar materiatly inconsistent with the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit

li we become awai e of any apparent matenial misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

J=

John Waters (Semor Statutory Auditor)
forand on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor s
London

16 May 2016

" The mantenance and integrity of the The BritishLand Company PLC website
15 the responstbility of the Dhrectors the work carnied out by the auditors does
not invotve cansideration of these malters and accordingly the auditors aceept
no responsibility for any changes thal may have occurred to the financial
stalements since they weare initially presented en the website
Legislation i the United Kingdom geverning the preparestion and dissemination
of hnancial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Financial statecments

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 05
Capital Capital
Undertying'  and other Total Underlying  and other Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3 569 21 590 505 51 554
Costs 3 {128) mi (139} {115] 1451 {i50]
3 441 10 451 390 6 3%
Jomt ventures and funds [see also below] 1 135 262 397 129 597 726
Adrinistralive expenses ) 193) - 93 (85 - {85
Valuation mevement 4 - 816 416 - 884 884
Profit on disposal of mvesiment proper bes and investments - a5 35 - 20 20
Net financing costs
- fmancing income 5 45 70 7 - 7
- financing char ges (111] (34) (145} 21 {47 (159)
(106) N (75} {105] (47 [152)
Profit on crdinary activities before taxation 377 954 1,31 379 1460 1789
Taxation 7 33 33 (24} [24]
Profit for the year after taxation 1,364 1765
Attributable to non comtrotling interests 14 5 19 14 39 55
Attrsbutable to shareholders of the Company 363 §82 1,345 313 1397 1710
Earmngs per share
- basic 2 131 2p 168 3p
- diluted 2 124 1p 167 3p
All results derive from conlinuing oper ations
2014 20
Capital Capital
Urdertying'  and other Total Underfying'  and other Totat
Note £tm &m £m fm £m £m
Results of joint ventures and funds accounted for using the
equity method
Under lying Profit 135 - 135 129 - 129
Valuation movement 4 - 245 245 - 589 589
Profit on disposal of investment properbies trading properties
and investments - 18 18 - ¢ é
Taxation - t1l (1 - 2 2
1 135 262 397 129 597 726

" See definition in glossary

! The prigryear comparatives have been restated See note i

122 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
£m Em
Profit for the year alter taxation 1,364 1765
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net actuarial loss on pension scheme 11} 151
Valvation movemnents on owner-occupted property 19 i0
18 5
Items that may be reclassified subsequentty to profit or loss
iLossesl gains on cash flow hedges
- Group (24) [71)
- Joint ventures and funds 13} 3
- Reclassification of items from the statement of comprehensive iIncome - 30
27 {38l
Transferred to the income statement {cash flow hedges]
- Foregn currency derivatives 2 ARl
- Interest rale derivatives 10 8
12 13
Exchange differences on tr anslation of foreign operations
- Hedging and transtation {31 b
- Other 3 {6)
Deferred tax on items of other comprehensive income {15] 10
Other comprehensive loss for the year 112} (26}
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,352 1739
Attiibutable to non-controlling interests 19 53
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 1,333 1686
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note fm £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment and development properties 10 9.643 120
Owner-occupied property g 95 40
9.738 9189
Other non-current assets
investments in joind ventures and funds " 3,353 2901
Other nvestments 12 142 31
Deferred tax assets 16 3 -
interest rate and currency derivative assels 17 167 139

13,403 12 599

Currentassets
Trading praperties 10 325 274
Debtors 13 33 20
Cash and shor t term deposits 17 114 108
472 402
Total assets 13,875 13001
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Short term borrowings and overdrafts 17 74) 192)
Crediors 14 1218] {261}
Cor poration tax (18) (%
1310 £372
Non-current habitities
Debentures and loans 17 (3,687} {38471
Other nan-current liabilities 15 (122) (791
Deferr ad tax labiliies 14 - h2)
Interest rate and currency derivative iahiities 17 1137 1124)
' {39461 (4 .064]
Total Liabibities (4,258} 14 436)
Netassets 9.61% 8565
EQUITY
Share capual 260 258
Share premium 1.29% 1284
Merger reserve 213 213
Other rescrves 193 821
Retained earnings 1.667 6563
Equity attributable to sharehotders of the Company 9,342 8232
Non-controlting interests 277 333
Total eguity 9,619 B 565
EPRA NAY per share* 2 N9p 829p

* As defined in glossary

John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Financial Offier

The hinanciat statements on pages 127 to 164 were approved by the Board of Directors and signed onits behalf on 146 May 2014
Company number 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 A5
Note £m £m
Rental income 1eceived from tenants 435 397
Fees and other income received 58 49
Operating expenses paid to suppliers and employees (152} [128]
Cash generated from operaticns kI3 318
interest paid (124) {(124]
Inter est receved 1 18
Carporatien taxabion repayments received 8 -
Distributions and other recevables from jomnt ventures and funds " 58 73
Netcash inflow from operating activities 294 285
Cash flows from investing activities
Development and other capital expenditure (256) [157)
Furchase of investment properties (243) {172]
Sale of nvestment and trading properties 564 415
Payments received in respect of future tiading property sales 40 32
Purchase of tnvestments - 7
Acquisition of Speke Unit Trust - (90l
Tesco proper ty swap - [93]
Investment in and loans to jamt ventures and funds (241) (173
Capual disivbutions and loan repayments from joint ventures and funds 66 134
Net cash inflow [outflow} from investing activities 230 {111]
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares 5 12
Divndends paid 19 {235) (228)
Dividends paid to non-controtling interests {18) (19
Acquisition of units in Her cules Uit Trust (1) (93]
Closeout of interesi rate derwatives 5 2
Cash collateral transaclions (24) 10
Decrease in bank and other berrowings 919) [581)
Drawdowns on bank and other borrowings 3N 703
Issue of zero coupon 2015 convertible bond 3b4 -
Net cash outflow from financing activities (518} [208)
Net increase [decreasel in cash and cash equivatents & [34)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Aprd 108 142
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 114 168
Cash and cash equivalents consists of
Cash and short term deposits 17 114 108
' The prior year comparatives have been resiated See nate 1
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Financial statement~

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Hedgirg
and Re- Non
Share Share tanslation  valuaton Merger  Retained controli:ng Total
captal  premwum  reserve’ reserve reserve  earnimngs Total interests> equity
£m £m £m Erm im fm £m £m £m
Balance at 1 Apri 2015 258 1,280 (761 ()] 213 6,563 8,232 333 8,545
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - - 1,345 1,345 19 1,364
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (24 - - - (24 - 124}
Revaluation of owner-occupied proper ty - - - 19 - - 19 - 19
Exchange and hedging movermnenis in joint ventures and
funds - - - (3 - - (3] - (31
Reclassificatton of gains on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency denvatives - - 2 - - - 2 - 2
- Interest rate derwatives - - 10 - - - 10 - 10
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - (3] 3 - - - - -
Net actuarial foss an pension schemes - - - - - {n 1l - i
Deferred tax on ttems of
other compt ehensive income - - 14) 1 - - (15) - {15}
Other comprehensive {loss) income - - 31) 20 - 1 112} - (12}
Total comprehensive mcome for the year - - 121) 20 - 1,346 1,333 19 1,352
Share issues 2 15 - - - n2) 5 - 5
Farr value of share and shaie option awards - - - - - 8 8 - 8
Purchase of umts from non-controlling terests - - - - - - - 59 159}
Loss on purchase of units from non-controlling interests - - - - - () i - {1}
Dmdends payable in year (28 Op per share] - - - - - (287] (287} - (287]
Dwadends payable by subsidianes - - - - - - - (18) 18]
Adjustment for scrp dividend element - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2014 2460 1,295 107] 14 213 7,667 9,342 277 9,619
Balance at 1 April 2014 255 1257 (32] [38) 213 501 6 Thé n ni
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - - 1710 1710 55 1765
L osses on cash flow hedges - - {69 - - - [69) (2 171
Revaluation of owner-occupied proper ty - - - it - - 10 - 0
Exchange and hedging movements in joint ventures and
funds - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Reclassiication of items from the stalemment
of comprehensive income - - - 30 - - 30 - 30
Reclassification of {losses) gains on cash fiow hedges
- Foreign currency dervatives - - 1} - - - Ml - (1}
- Interest rate derwatives - - ] - - - 8 - 8
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operaftons - - 6 [6) - - - -~ -
Net actuartal loss on penston schermnes - - - - - {5) 151 - {5l
Deferred tax on tems of other comprehensve income - - 22 {5 - (7} 10 - 16
Other comprehensive flossi mcome - - {44} 32 - f12) {24) (2 [26)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - [44} 32 - 1698 14854 33 1739
Share Issues 3 23 - - - noj 14 - 16
Non-controlling interest on acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - - - 31 31
Farvalue of share and share option awards - - - - - 19 10 - 10
Purchase of units from non-controtling interests - - - - - 2 2 {103 {101
Divrdends payable inyear (27 3p per share) - - - - - (277 2771 - (277}
Dividends payahle by subsidiar ies - - - - - - - 119 19l
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - - - - 49 49 - 49
Balance at 31 March 2015 258 1280 [76] 18] 213 6563 81232 333 8565

The balance at the beginming of the year ncludes £30m in relation to translation and [£86m) in relation to hedging
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Basis of preparation sigmficant accounting
polietes and accounting judgements

The financtal statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
prepared on the hustorical cost basts except for the revaluation of
propertes investments held for trading and derivatives The financiat
statements have also heen prepaied i accor dance with International
Financial Repor tny Standards {{FRSs] as adopted by the Eurcpean
Union and therefore comply with article 4 of the EU IAS regulation
and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In the current financial year the Group has adoepted Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle and 2011-2013 cycle and Defined Benefit Plans
Employee Contributions -~ Amendments (o 1AS 19

The adophon of these standards has not had a materal impact on the
Group and otherwise the accounting policies used are consistent with
those contained in the Group s previous Annual Repert and Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2015

A number of new standar ds and amendments {o standards and
mterpretations have been issued but are not yet effective for the current
accounting period None of these are expected to have a material impact
on the consolidated inancial statements of the Group except the
toltowing set out below
- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments walk smpact hoth the measurement and
disclosures of financial instruments and s effective for the Group s year
ending 31 March 26019 The Group has not yet completed its evaluation
of the effect of the adoption
- IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers does not apply
to gross rental income  but does apply to service charge income
management and performance {ees and trading property disposals
and 1s effective for the Group s year ending 31 March 2019 The Group
does not expect adoption of IFRS 15 to have a matenal impact on the
measurerment of revenue recogniion but addiianal disclosures wall
be required with regards to the above sources of income
- IFRS 16 - Leases will impact both the measurement and disclosures
of the Group s head leases and 1s effective for the Group s year ending
31 March 2020 [he Group has not yet completed its evaluation of the
efiect of the adoption

Restatement

Buring the year the accounung for Broadgate Estates a wholly-owned
subsidhary of the Group which acts as a property manager has been
reviewed resulting in a reclassification ol iterns presented in the
Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Ftows

This reclassdication had no impact on either IFRS profit befor ¢ tax

or Undertying Profit |t resulied in a E29m increase in other fees and
commissions received ofiset by a £26m increase in other fees and
commussions expenses and 2 £3m increase in administrative expenses

Thisreclassification had no impact on the net cash inflow fr om operating
activities presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

It resulted i £35m increase m fees and other income 1eceived and a
£35muncrease in operating expenses paid to suppliers and employees

Inaddiron the farmat of the Consolidated Income Statement has been
changed to aid the clarity and usabiiity of the financial statements and the
pi lor-year comparalives have been re-presented 1o reflect this change

Going concern
The linancial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as
explained the corporate governance section on page 77

Subsidiaries, jotnt ventures and associates fincluding funds)

The consolidated accounts inctude the accounis of the British Land
Company PLC and atl subsichanes {entities controlled by British Land)
Controlis assumed wher e Brit:sh Land has the power and the ability
to aftect the financial and eperating policies of an investee entity so as
to gam henelits fram s activities

The tesults of subsidianes joint ventures or associates acquired or
disposed of dunng the year are included from the effecuve date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal Accounting policies
of subsiharies joint ventures or associates winch difier from Group
accounting pohicies are adjusted on consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisiion method
Any excess of the purchase price of business cambenations over the fair
value of the assets biabilifies and contingent liabilities acquired and
resulting delerred tax thereon s recognised as goodwill Any discount
receved 1S eredited to the income statement i the perod of acguisition

Alt intra-Group transactions hdlences incame and expenses are
eliminaled on consolidation Jointventur es and assoctates, including
funds are accounted for under the equity method whereby the
consalidated halance sheet incarporates the Group s share [investor s
share) of the net assets of its jonl ventures and associates The
consolidated mcome staternent incorporates the Gioup s share

of josnt venture and associale profils after tax

Their profits include revaludtion rmovements on investment properties

[hstnbutions and other receivables from joints ventures and associates
(including funds] are classed as cash flows from operating activities
extept where they relate to a cash flow arising from a capital transaction
such as a property or investmen| disposal In this case they are classed
as cash llows from investing activities

Properties

Properties are externally valued on the basis of fair value at the balance
sheet date Invesiment and owner-occupied properties are recorded at
valualton whereas trading propertees are stated at the lower of cost and
net reatisable value

Any sui plus or deficit arising onievaluiing investment propertes 1s
recognised in the capitaland other cotumn of the income staterment

Any surplus arising on revaluing owner-occupied proper ties above
costis 1ecogmsed in other comprehensive income and any deficit ansing
in revaluation helow cost tor owner-occupied and trading properties s
recognised in the capital and other column of the incorne staternent

The cost of properties n the course of development includes attributable
intes esi and cther associated oulgoings includmg attnbutable
devetopment personnel costs Interest is catculated on the development
expenditur e by 1 eference ta speafic bor rowings where retevant and
atherwise on the weighted average rate ivterest rate of Briish Land PLC
borrowings Interestis not capitatised where no development acuvity is
taking place Aproperty ceases lo be treated as a develapment property
on practical completion

Investrent property disposals are recagmsed on comptetion Profits
and losses arising are recogmsed through the capitat and other column
of the income slaternent The profil on disposalis determined as the
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Fimnaneial ~eatements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amouni of
the asset at the commencement of the accounting perniod plus capital
expendilure in the period

Trading property disposals are recogmsed in line with the revenue
polictes outlined below

Where invesiment proper ties are appropnated to trading stock
they are transferred at market value H properties held for trading
are appropriated to investment they are transferred at, book value
In deter mining whether leases and relaied properiies represent
operating or finance leases consideration s given to whether the
tenant or landlord bears the nisks and rewards of ewnership

Financial assets and liabilities
Trade debtors and creditors are iniially recogresed at fair vatue and
subsequently measured at amortsed cost and discounted as appropriate

Other investments include loans and recevables held at amarused

cost and mvestments held far trading ctassified as fair vatue through
profit or loss Amorused cost of loans and recevables 1s measured using
the effective Inter est method less any imperrment Interestis recognised
by applying the effective interest rate tnvestments held fortrading are
inihatly recorded at fairvalue and are subsequently externally vatued on
the same basis at the balance sheet date Any surpius or delicit arising
an revaluing investments keld for trading 1s recogmsed in the capital

and other column of the income statement

Where an investment properiy is held under a head lease the head
tease s inteally recogmmsed as an asset bemng the sum of the premuum
paid on acquisstion plus the present vatue of mimimem ground rent
payments The corresponding rent hiahiily to the head leaseholder
1sincluded in the balance sheet &s a finance lease ebligation

Debt instruments are stated at their net proceeds on 1ssue Finance
charges including premia payable on setilement or redemplion

and direcl 1ssue cosls at e spiead over the period to redemption using
the effective interest method Lxceptional finance charges incurred due
10 ear ly redernptron hincluding premiumst are recognised 1n the Income
statement when they accur

Converutble bonds are designated as far value through proirt or loss
and so are presented on the balance sheet al fair value with all gains
and losses including the write-off of issue cosis recognised in the
capital and other coluran of the income statement as a cosnponent of
net financing costs Tha interest charge i respect of the coupon rate on
the honds has been recognised withun the underlying component of net
financing costs on an accruals basis

As defined by IAS 39 cash flow and far value hedyes are carried al fair
value on the balance sheat Changes i the [air value of dervatves Lhat
are designaled and quabify as effective cash llow hedges are recognised
direclly through other comprehensive income as @ movement in the
hedging and translation reserve Changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualily as effective fanr value hedges are
recorded i the capital and other column of the income statement along
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that is atiributable
10 the hedged risk Anyinefiective portion of all dervatives s recegmised
1 the capital and other column of the iIncome statement Changes i the
fair value of derivatives that are not in a designated hedging relationship
under IAS 39 are recorded directly in the capital and other column of the
mcome stalernent These derivatives at e carried at fair value on the
balance sheet
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Cash equivalents are Limited to mstrurnents with a maturity of less than
three months

Revenue

Revenue comprises rental income and surrender premia service charge
income management and perfor mance fees and proceeds from the sale
of trading properties

Rental incame ncluding fixed r entat uplifts, from investment property
leased cut under an operating lease 1s recognised as revenue on a
straight-bne basis over the lease term Lease sncentives such as rent-free
periods and cash contributions to tenant fit-out are recognised on the
sarne straight-tine basis being an integrat part of the net cansideration for
the use of the mvestment properiy Any rent adjustments based on open
market estrmated rental values are recogmsed based on managerment
estimates from the rent review daten retation to unsettled rent reviews
Contingent rents being those lease payments that are not fixed at the
nception of the lease including lor example turnover rents are
recognised In the penod in which they are earned

Surrender premua far the earty deter minatien of a tease are recognised
as revenue immediately upon recept net of ditapidations and non
recoverable outgoings retating to the lease concerned

Service charge income s recogmsed as revenue in the period to which
itretates

Management and performance fees receivable are recognised as revenue
n the period o which they retate Performance fees are recognised at the
end of the perfarmance period when the fee amount can be estimaied
reliably and it 1s virtuatly cer tain that the fee will be received

Proceeds from the sale of trading praperties are recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred o the purchaser
This generally orcurs on completion Froceeds from the sale of tradmg
properies aie recognised as 1 evenue n the captal and other coluran of
the income statement All ather revenue described above s recognised
in the underlying column of the Income statement

Taxation

Current tax 1s based on taxable proht for the year and is calculated using
tax [ates tha! have been enacted ot substantively enacted al the batance
sheet date Taxabie profit ditfers from net profit as reported in the
income staternent because it excludes items ol income or expense that
are not taxable lor tax deductible)

Deferred tax 15 prowded on items that may become taxable :n the fulure
or which may be used to offset against taxable profits in the future, on the
ternporary differences between the carrying ampunts of assets and
liabilities for financral reporting pur pases and the amounts used for
taxation purposes on an undiscounted basis On business combinations
the deferred tax eflect of fair value adjustments s incor porated in the
consolidated batance sheet

Employee costs

The fair value of equily-settled share-based paymenis 1o employees s
detetmined at the date of grant and 1s expensed on a st arght-hine basis
over the vesting period based on the Group s estimate of shares or
optiens that witl eventually vest [n the case of options granted fair value
1s measured by a Black-5choles prrcing model

Oefined benelit pension scheme assets are measured using fawr values
Pension scheme labilities are measured using the projected unit credit
method and discounted at the rate of return of a high quality corporate
hond of equivalent term io the scheme liabdities  The net surplus




twhere recoverable by the Groupl or deficit s recogmsed in full in the
consolidated balance sheet Any assetresulting from the catcutation s
limited to the present value of avadtable refunds and reductions in future
contributions io the plan

The current service cost and gains and losses on settlement and
curtailments are charged to operating profit Actuanal gains and losses
are recogmused i fulbin the peried in which they accur and are presented
in the consalidated statement of comprehensive incorne

Contributions to the Greup s defined contnbution schemes are expensed
oh the basts of the contracted annual contribution

Accounting judgements and estimates
in applying the Group s accounting pclicies the Directors are required
to make judgements and estimates that affect the financial statements

Significant areas of estimation are

Valuation of properties and invesiments held for trading The Group
uses external professional valuers to deterrmine the relevant amounts
The primary source of evidence for property valuations should he recent
comparable market transactions on an arms-length basis However

the valuation of the Group s property portfolio and investments held for
trading are inherently subjective asthey are made on the basrs of
assumplions made by the valuer s which may not prove to be accurate

Other less significant areas of estimation include the valuation of fixed
rate debt and interest rate derwatives the determination of share-based
payment expense and the actuarial assumphions used in calculauing the
Group s retirement benehit obligations

The key areas of accountng judgement are

RE{T status British Land 1s a Reat Estate Investment Frust (RE{T]

and does not pay lax on Its property mcome or gains on propeity sales
provided that at least 90% of the Group s property mcome 1s distributed
as a dividend to shareholders which becomes taxable in thewr hands
inadditon the Group has to meei certain conditions such as ensuring
the property rental business represents moi e than 75% of total profiis
and assets Any potential 01 proposed changes to the REIT legislation are
monitored and discussed with HMRC [t rs Management s intention that
the Group will continue as a REIT for the foreseeable future

Accounting for joint ventures and funds In accordance with FRS 10
Consohidated financial statements IFRS i1 Jamnt ariangements and
IFRS 12 Disclosures of interestsin other enlities an assessment s
required to determine the degree of controd or influence the Group
exercises and the form of any control to ensure that the hinancial
statement treatment 1s appropriate

Interestin the Group sjomnt ventures 1s cormmonly driven by the terms

of the parinership agreements which ensure that control ts shared
between the pariners These are accounied for under the equity method
whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorperaies the Group s share
of the net assets of its joint ventures and associales The consolidated
incorne statement incorpor ates the Group s share of joint venture and
associate profits after tax

Accounung for transactions Property transactions are complex in

natui e and can be matenal to the financial statements Assessment s

required to deterrine the rmost appropriate accounting treatment of

assels acqured and of potential contractual arrangements in the legal !
documents for both acquisitions and dispesals Management consider |
each ransaction separately and when considered appropiiate seek
independent accounting advice
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2 Performance measures

Earnings per share

The Group measures financial performance with reference to underlying earnings per share the European Public Real Estate Association [EPRAI
earnings per share and IFRS earmings per share The relevant earnings and weighted average number of shares ncluding ditution adjusirnents)

for each per formance measure are shown below and a reconciliation hetween these 1s shown within the supplementary disclosures [Table B on page 1791

EPRA earnings per share 1s calculated using EPRA earnings which is the (FRS profit after taxation attnibutable ta sharehotders of the Company
excluding investment and development pi oprer 1y revaluations gains/losses on investing and trading property disposals, changes in the fair value
of inancial insts uments and associaled close-out costs and then related taxation EPRA earnings {diluted) also takes into account ditution due

to the 2012 conver tible bond

Undes lying earmings per share 1s calculated using Underlying Prafit adjusted for underlymg taxation [see note 71 Underlying Profitis the pre-tax
EPRA earrangs measure with additional Company adjustienis No Company adjustments were made in esther the current or ptior year For the year
ended 31 March 2015 the 2012 convertible bond was nat dilutive for underlying earnings as the contingent condibions associated to the bond had not
been met The convertible condittons penod ended on 25 September 2015 and therefore the bond was treated as dilutive in the current year

2016 2015
felevant Relevant

Relevant number Earnings Relevant aumber Earmings

earnings of shares per share earnings of shares per share
Earmings per share £€m mullien pence tm millien pence
Underlying
Under lying basic 365 1,025 356 33 1016 308
Under lying diluted n 1,089 341 313 1022 306
EPRA
EPRA basic 365 1,025 356 313 1014 308
EPRA diluted 371 1,089 341 319 1080 295
IFRS
Basic 1,345 1,025 1312 1710 1016 1683
Dituted 1,351 1,089 1241 1710 1022 1673

Net asset value

The Group measur es inanciat pasiion with reference to CPRA net asset value INAV] per share and EPRA triple net asset vaiue INNNAV) per share
The net asset value and number of shares for each performance measure 1s shown hetow A reconciiaion between 1ERS net assets and EPRA net
assels and the 1elevant number of shares for each performance measure 1s shown within the supplementary disclosures [Table B on page 180)
EPRA net assetsis a proportianally consolidated measure that i1s based en IFRS nei assets excluding the mark-to-market on effective cash flow
hedges and related debt adjustments the mark to-market on the convertible bonds as well as deferred taxation on propet ty and dervative
valuations They include the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusted for the dilutive impact of share options and the €400 rmillion
conver lible bond maturing tn 2017

2016 Mms

Relevant Net asset Relevant Net asset

Relevant number value per Retevant number value per

net assets of shares share net assels of shares share

Net asset value per share £m million __perce tm moltion pence
EPRA

LPRA NAY 10,074 1,096 19 9035 1090 879

[CPRA NNNAY 9,640 1,096 880 8,359 1090 767

IFRS
Basic 9,619 1,029 935 8 565 1020 840
Diluted 10,01% 1,096 914 8 565 1 032 830

Total accounting return
The Group atso measures financial performance with reference to total accounting return Thisis calculated as the increase tn EPRA net asset value
per share and dividend paid in the year as a percentage of the EPRA net asset value per share at the start of the year

2016 2015
Increasein  Dividend per Total Increase mNAY  Dwdend per Total
AV per share share paid accounting per share share paid accounting
pence pence return pence pence return
Total accounting return 90 28 02 14 2% 141 2730 24 5%
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J Revenue and costs

2016 2015
Capital Capital
tinderiyming and other Undertying and other
£m £m £m Em
Rent recevable 437 - 349 -
Spreading of tenantincentives and guaranteed renl increases 12 - 26 -
Surrender premia 2 - 4 -
Gross rental income 451 - 39¢ -
Trading proper ty sales proceeds - 21 - 51
Service charge income 12 - 65 -
Managerment and per formance fees [from joint ventures and funds) ] - 7 -
Other fees and commissions 38 - 34 -
Revenue 569 21 505 51
Trading property cost of sales - ) - 1451
Service charge expenses (721 - (63) -
Property operaling expenses 126 - {24] -
Other fees and commissions expenses (30 - {26] -
Costs 128 (1) (115] t45l
441 10 390 &

The cash element of net rental inceme 1 ecogmsed during the year ended 31 March 2016 from properties which were not subject to a secutity
interestwas £229m [2014/15 £182m] Property operating expenses relating to investment proper ties that did not generate any rental iIncome wer e
£1m [2014/35 £2m) Conungent rents of £3im (2044/15 £3m} were recogmsed in the year

4 Valuation morements on property

2018 25
£m Em
Consolidated income statement
Revaluation of properties 616 884
Revaluation of properties held by jownt ventures and funds accounted for using the eauity method 245 589
861 1473
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Revaluation of owner-oceupied propes ties 19 10
880 1483
5 Auditor 8’ remuneration — PricenaterhouseCoopers LLP
2014 205
€m Em
Fees payable to the Company s audttors for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 02 02
Fees payable to the Company s auditor s for the audit of the Company s subssdiarses pursuant to legislation 04 04
Total audit fees 0é 06
Audit-related assurance services 0.1 01
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 0.7 07
Other fees
Tax advisory services - -
Other services 01 01
Total 08 08

In addttion te the above PrnicewaterhouseCooper s LLP wer e remunerated for non-audit feesin PREF an equity accounted property fund [see note 11]
The Group s share of fees totatled £0 2m [2014/15 €0 2m) PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are not the external auditors to PREF
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6 Net financing costs

2016 2015
£m m
Underlyming
Financing charges
Bank loans overdrafts and derivatives (30) [36]
Gthertoans (88} (88l
Obligatiens under head leases (2} (2)
{120 (12¢]
Development interest capitalised 9 14
111} nz)
Financing thcome
Deposits securities and liquid snvestments 3 2
Loans ta jomnt ventures 2 9
S 7
Net financing charges - undertymg 106} {105)
Capital and other
Financing charges
Valuation movements on translation of foreign currency debt 2 Al
Hedging reserve recycling (2} n
Valuation mevernents on fair value dervatives 54 108
Valuation moverents on fair vatue debt {53] f184]
Recycling of fair vatie imovement on close-out of dervatives (6] {12)
Capital financing costs' (29 (2]
Fan value movement on convertible bonds - (35]
Valuat:on movemnent on translation of foreign currency net assets - il
Fairvalue movement on nen-hedge accounted dervatives - {1
(341 (47
Financing income
Fair valie moverent on convertible bonds b4 -
Fair value movement on nen-hedge accounted derivatives 1 -
45 -
Net financing income [charges) - capital ] (47}
Net financing costs
Total financing income 70 7
Total financing charges [145] [159]
Net financing costs (75) 1152

Primarily d¢ebenture bonds tender offer and purchase

Interest payabte on unsecured bank loans and related interest rate derivatives was £19m [2014/13 £24m] Interest on developrent expenditure
1s capitalised at the Group s weighted average mnierest rate of 2 6% [2014/15 3 3%] The weighted average interest rate on a propot tionately
consolidated basis at 31 March 2016 was 3 3% {2014/15 3 8%)

132 British Land i Annuai Report and Accounts 2014




7 Taxation

2014 2015
Em £m

Taxation incomne [expense)
Current taxation
UK corporation taxation 20% (2014715 21%) {i5] 1]
Adjustments in respect of prior years 17 -
Total current taxation income lexpense) 2 H
Deferred taxason on revaluahions and derivatives 31 {23]
Group total taxation 33 (24}
Attributable to joint veniures and funds {1} 2
Total taxation income [expense) 32 (221
Taxation reconciliation
Profit on ardinary activities before taxation 1,34 1789
Less profit attributable to joint ventures and funds' 1397) {726)
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation 934 1463
Taxation on profit on ordmary activities at UK corporation taxation rate of 20% [2014/15 21%i 1187) 1223}
Effects of

REIT exernpt income and gains 161 232

Taxation losses 1 (10]

Deferred taxation on revaluations and derivatwes 3 (23]

Adwstrnents in respect of prior years 17 -
Group total taxation income [expense| 33 [24)

! Acurrent taxation expense of £1m [2014/15 £2m expense) and a deferred taxation expense of £nit [2014/15 £4m credit] arose an profits attrioutable ta joint ventures

and funds

Taxation attributable te Underlying Profit for the year ended 3% March 2016 was a credis of £2m {2014/15 £nil} Corporation taxation payable at 31

March 2016 was £18m [2014/15 £9m) as shown or the halance sheet

8 Staff costs

2016 ams

Staff costs {including Directors) £m Em
Wages and salaries 57 50
Soctal security costs 7 6
Pension costs 7 &
Equity-settled share-based payments 10 14
81 74

The average monthly number of employees of the Company during the year was 260 (2014/15 249} The average monthly number of Group

employees including those employed directly at the Group s properties and thewr costs rechar ged to tenanis was 692 £2014/15 598}

The Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are the key management personnel Their emoluments are summarised helow and {urther

detail ts disclosed i the Remuneration Report on pages 86 to 110

2018 2015

Directors emoluments £m Em
Short term employee benelits 54 58
Service cest in relation to defined benefit pension schemes 02 02
Equity-settled share-based payments 5% b4
115 12 4
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8 Staff costs continued

Staff costs
The Group s equity-seitled share based payments comprise the Long-Term Incentive Ptan [LTIP} the Matchuing Share Plan [MSP} the Fund
Managers Performance Plan [FMPP] and varous savings related share option schemes

The Company expenses an estirnate of how many shares are likely to vest hased on the markel price at the date of grant taking account of expected
performance against the retevant performance targets and service pertods which ar e discussed in further detail in the Remuneration Report

For all schemes except the Company s Long-Term Incentive Plan share oplicns the fair value of awards ar e equal to the market value at grant date
The key nputs used to value share options using a Black-Schotes model granted under the Company s Long-Term Incentive Plan are shown below

Long-Term incentive Plan Awards in the year ended 31 March 2014 ” JZlS?g
Share price and exercise price at grant date 825p
Expected option lde in yeai s 7
Risk free rate 19%
Expected votaulsty 4%
Expected dvidend yeld 3%
Vatue per option 201p

Movemenis in shares and options are given in note 20

9 Pensions

The Briish Land Group of Companies Pension Schemne [ the scheme § (s the principat defined benefil pension scheme i the Group The assets of the
scheme are held i a Irustee-admimistered fund and kept separate from those of the Company 1L1s not cents acted out of SERPS [State Eatnings-
Related Pension Schemel and 1t 1s not ptanned 10 admut new employees to the scheme The Group has three ather small delined benefit pension
schemes There 1s alse a Delined Contribution Pension Scheme Contnibutions 1o this scheme are at a flat rate of 15% of satary for non-Diecters
and pawd by the Company

The total net pension cost charged for the year was [7m [2014/15 £6m) of which £4m {2014/15 £3m)] retates te defined coniribution plans and £3m
§{2014/15 E3m) relates to the current ser vice cost of the defined benefit schemes

Afull actuanal valuation of the scheme was carried out at 31 March 2012 by consulting acluaries AON Hewlt Associotes Ltd The employer s
cortnibutions will be paid in the future at the rate recornmented by the actuary of 54 4% per annum of basic salaries The best estimale of employer
conlributions expected lo be paid dut g the year to 31 March 2917 s £3m The major assumptions used for the actuaral valuahon were

2016 2015 L 4 M3 2012
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa
[hscount rate iz RE 44 41 4b
Salary inflation 48 48 52 47 47
Pensions increase 32 32 35 31 31
Price inflation 33 33 37 32 32

The mortality assumptions are based on standard gnortabity tables which allow far future marlaiity imprevements The essumptions are that a
member curr ently aged 60 will live on average for a fur ther 297 year s if they a1 e male and for a further 31 5 yearsif they are female For a member
who retires In 2036 at age 60 the assumpbions are that they will live on average for @ further 31 6 years after retrernent if they are male and for a
further 33 1 year s after retirernent if they are female

Compositien of scheme asseats

2016 2013

£m £m

Equities 52 55
Dwversified growth funds n 81
Other assets 8 3
Total scheme assets 137 139

The vast major ity of the scheme assels are gquoted in an active market
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9 Pensions conunued

The amount included In the halance sheet arsing from the Group s obligations in respect of its defined benefit scheme is as follows

2014 2015 2014 2013 2012
£m fm £m Em £m
Present value of defined scheme obligations [143) (145} hzsl {119 1071
Fan value of scheme assets 137 139 13 120 1G9
It 1 ecoverable surplus - - 8] ] (21
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (6) {61 - - -
History of experience gains and losses
2015 015 2014 2013 2012
£m £ £m Em £m
Totat actuaral koss recogrised i the consolidated staternent of compr ehenstve incorne'
Amount’ ) {5} £2] (4) (3}
Percentage of present value on scheme babilities 07% 3 6% 16% 3 1% 27%
Movements stated after adjusting for rrrecoverability of any surplus
2 Cumulative loss recognised in the statement of comprehensive incorme s £37m {2014/15 {36m)
Maovements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows
2016 2015
€m £m
At 1 April {145] 129
Current service cost 3 (31
Interest cost (5) (5]
Actuarial gam (loss)
Gain from change in demographic assumptions - 14
Gain [lossi from change in fimancial assumplions 4 {32
Gain on scheme liabilities arising fram experience 3 4
Beneiits paud 3 2
At 31 March [143) (145]
Movements in the fair vatue of the scheme assets were as follows
2018 25
£m fm
At 1 Apnil 139 1
Interest tncome on scheme assets 4 &
Contributions by employer 4 2
Acluanat flossl gain 17 2
Benefits pad (3 i2]
At 31 March 137 139

Through s defined benefit plans the Group is expoesed toa number of 1isks the most significant of which are detailed below

Asset volatility

The biabiliies are catculated using a discount rate set with a reference to corporate bond yields if assets underperform thisyield this will create
adeficit The scheme holds a significant portion of growth assets lequities and dwversified growth funds] whsch although expected to cutperfarm
corporate bonds in the tong term create volathity and risk in the short term The allocation to gr owih assets s monitored to ensure it remains
appi opriate given the scheme slong term objectives

Changes in bond yrelds

A decrease in corporate bond yields wilt increase the value placed on the scheme s labthities for accounting purposes although this will be parbally
olfset by ar increase in the value of the scheme s bond holdings
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9 Pensions contimued

Inflation risk

The majonty of the scheme s benefit obligations are linked to inflation and fugher inflation wilt lead ta higher kabilitres (slthough 1n mosi cases caps
on the level of Inftationary increases are in ptace 10 protect agamnst extreme indlation] The majonity of the assels are either unaffected by or only
loosety col related with inflation meaning that an increase v inflatlon will also increase the defict

Life expectancy

The mayority of the scheme s obligations are to provide henehits for the tife of the member soincreases in Life expectancy will result in an increase

in the labilities

10 Property

Property reconcitiation for the year ended 31 March 2016

Canada Water was added as a property sector in the year reflecting the key role the campus has in the strategy of the Group Consequently the prior

year comparatives in this note have been restated to reflect this additional property sector

Investrnent
Investment
and
Retai & Gifices & Canada development Owner-
lesure  residentiat Water Developments  properties Trading occupled
Level 3 Level 3 Level3 Level 3 Leveld  properties Level 3 Total
£m Em tm £m £m fm fm £m

Carrying value at 1 April 2015 5,584 2,902 249 385 9,120 274 50 9,454
Addiions

- property purchases 4 234 - - 238 - - 238

- development expenditure 4 [ 1 43 54 59 - 113

- capitalised interest and staff costs - - 1 3 4 5 - b

- capital expenditure on asset management

Inlratives M 24 1 - 114 - - 16
99 264 3 [13 {12 64 - 476

Depreciaiion - - - - - - M 1))
Disposals (372} 130) - 7} (509) (1 - {5201
Reclassfications 135 22 - 172) (15] {2) 17 -
Revaluations included mincome staternent 181 369 [4 82 816 - - 816
Revatuation mctuded in GCI - - - - - - 19 17
Movement i tenant incentives and contracted
rent uplift balances i0 9 - - 19 - - 19
Carrymng vatue at 31 March 2016 5,617 3,436 254 334 9,643 325 95 10,043
Head tease liabilities [note 15) (371
Valuation sui plus on trading propertes 85
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2016 10,111
Non-conir olling inierests {324)
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2016 attributable to sharehelders 9,787
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10 Property conunued

Property reconciiation {or the year ended 31 March 2015

Investrent
Investment
and
Retail & Offices & Canada development
lesure resdential Waier Deveiopments  properties Tradng Owner
Level 3 Level3 Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 properiies occupled Total
£m £m £m Em €m fm fm £€m
Carrying value at T Aprit 2014 4 356 2 550 1035 261 7,272 271 47 7,590
Additions
-~ property purchases [ - 14t - 147 - - 147
- acquisitian of subsicdharies 1000 - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
- development expenditure % n 4 52 68 4b - 114
- capitalised interest - - - - - 8 - 8
~ capiial expenditure onasset management
Initiatives 35 1 ) - 42 - - 42
1 042 12 151 32 1,257 54 - 1,31
Dept eciation - - - - - - 1 3]
Disposals [219} (102} - {12] [333) 145) - {378)
Reclassifications - {41 - b 2 l6) 4 -
Revaluations included 1 incorne staterment 397 423 7 n B84 - - 884
Revaluation included m OC! - - - - - - 10 10
Movementn tenant incentives and contracted
rent uplift balances 8 23 - 7 38 - - 38
Carrying vatue at 3t March 2015 5584 2902 249 385 9,120 27, 50 9,454
Head lease Liabibties {note 15) (41)
Vatuation surptus on trading properties 96
Group property portfolio vatuation at 31 March 2015 9,509
Non-controlling interests [441)
Group property portfolio vatuation at 31 March 2015 attributable to shareholders 9,048

Property valuation
The didferent valuabion method {evels are defined betow

Level 1 Quoted prices {unadjusted! in active markets for identical assels or babilities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices mcluded within Level 1 that are observabte for the asset or Liability either direcily i e as prices] or indrrectly
{re derived fram prices)

Level3 Inputs for the asset or bability tha! are not hased on observable market data lunobservable inputs]

These levels are speafied In accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Property veluations are inherently subjective as they are made on
the basis of assumptions made by the valuer which may not prove to be accurate For these reasons and consistent vith EPRA s guidance we have
classified the vatuations of our property portiolio as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13 The unobservable mputs to the valuations are analysed in the table
on the following page

The Group s iotal praperty portfolio was valued by independent external vatuers on the basis of fair value in accordance with the RICS Vatuation
~ Professional Standards 2014 minth edition published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

The mformation provided to the valuers and the assumptions and valuations models used by the valuers are reviewed by the property portiolio team
the Head of Offices the Head of Retall and the Chief Financal Otficer The valuers meet wiih the external auditor s and also present directly to the
Audit Commuttee at the interim and year end review of results Further detarls of the Audst Commuitee s responsibilities m relation to vatuations can
be found in the Repart of the Audit Comrnitiee [on pages 80 10 83)
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10 Property continued

Investment properties excluding proper ties held for development are vatued by adopting the investment method of vatuation This approach
involves applying capitalisation yields to current and future rental streams net of income voids arising from vacancies or reni-free periods and
associated runnng costs These capitatisanon yields and future rental values are based on comparable preperty and leasing transactions in the
market using the valuers professional judgement and mai ket observation Other factors taken ito account i the valuations include the tenure
of the preperty tenancy details and ground and structural conditions

In the case of ongoing developments the approach applied s the residual method of valuation which 1s the investment method of valuation as
described above with a deduction for all costs necessary to complete the devetopment including a notional finance cost together with a further
atlowance for remaining risk Properiies held fo: development are generally valued by adopting the fugher of the residual method of vaiuation
allowing for all associated nisks or the investment method of valuation for the existing asset

Copies of the valuation certificates of Knight Frank LLP and CBRE can be found at www britishland com/reports
Within thesr valuation repor t CBRE have highlighted that they expect considerable uncertainty to anse if there 1s a decision for the UK to exit the
EU following the referendum on 23 June 2016 and that this has the potential to reduce investment velumes and liguidity Thisis a forward-tooking

statement which has noimpact on 1he valuations as at 31 March 2076

Abreakdown of vatuations split between the Group and is share of joint ventures and funds 1s shown below

2014 25
Joint Joint
ventures and ventures and
Group funds Total Group funds Tota!
£m £m Em £m fm £m
Knight Frank LLP 7.52% 3,574 11,105 6,795 3313 10108
CBRE 2,582 1,361 3.943 2714 140% 4115
Total property portfolio valuation 10,113 4,937 15,048 7509 4714 14 223
Non-controlling inferests 324) (76} 1400 {441) (105} (546}
Total property portfolio valuation
attnbutable to shareholders 9,787 4,881 14,648 20468 4 609 13 677
Infermation abeut fair value measurements using unabservable mputs [Level 3} .
ERV per sq ft Equrvalent Yield Costs to complete persqft
Farr value at
31 March 2016 Valuation Min Max  Average M Max  Average Min Max  Average
{nvestment £m techmque £ € £ % % % £ £ £
Investmery
Retall & leisure 5,608 methodalogy 2 75 27 3 n 5 - 45 8
Investment
Offices & residentrat' ? 3,492 methodology 4 136 53 1 8 4 - 150 15
Investment
Canada Water 250 inethodology 15 25 27 1 5 3 - 5 4
Residual
Developments® 343 methodology 45 107 /3 4 5 4 - bbd 447
Total 9,693
Trading properties
at fan value 18
Group property
portfolio valuation 10,111

includes owner-occupied
?Includes Residentrat with an average capital vatue per sq ft of £1 028 including developments at end value and mixed use
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10 Propertv continued

All other {actors being equal

- a hugher equivalent yield or discount rate would lead to a decrease i the valuation of an asset

-an increase in the current or estimated future rental stream would have the effect of increasing the capral value and
- an increase in the costs to complete woultd lead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset

However there are interrelationshnps between the unobservabie inputs which are par tially determined by market conditions which would smpact
on these changes There were no lransfer s between valuatton tevels in the peried

Additional property disclosures - including covenant information

A131 March 2016 the Group property portfabio valuatton of €10 111m {2014/15 €9 309m) comprises Ireeholds of £6 184m [2014/15 £6 098m) wiriuvat
freeholds of £906rm [2014/15 £811m) and long leaseholds of £3 021m 2014715 £2 600m)] The tustorical cost of properties was £6 544m{2014/1% £6%82m|
The property valuation does not include any investment propertes held under oper ating leases [2014/15 Enill

Cumulative interest capitalised against iwestment devetopment and trading proper ies amounts 1o £88m {2014/15 £81m]

Properties valued at £2 55%m {2014/15 £2 479m] were subject to a security interest and other properties of non-recourse companies amounted
to 01 244m 12014115 €1 365m) totalling £3 803m [2014/15 €3 B4éml

Included within the property valuation 1s £110m {2014/15 £102m) in respect of accrued contracted rental uplit income

1§ Jont ventures and funds

Summary movement for the year of the investments tn joint ventures and funds

venl‘ixorg‘: Funds Total Equity Leans Total

tm tm £m Em tm £m

At1Apri 2015 2588 315 2,901 2598 303 2,9

Addittons 244 - 244 14 232 246

Dhsposals (21 13 1151 - 1191 (15)

Share of profit on ordinary activities after taxation 365 32 397 397 - 397
Distributions and dwidends

- Capstal - 176} (76 {78) - (78)

~ Revenue [%0] (13} {103) (103 - (103)

Hedging and exchange movements 4 {11 3 3 - 3

At31 March 2014 3109 244 3,353 2833 520 3,353

Additional investments in joint ventures and funds covenant informatron
At 31 March 2016 the investinents injoint ventures mcluded within the total investments in jamnt ventures and funds was £3 348m [2014/15 £2 84%m]
being the £3 353m total investment shown above less the net investrnent of E5m [2014/15 £32m)in PREF a property fund in Conunental Europe
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

The sumimansed income statements and balance sheets betow and on the following page show 100% of the resulis assets and liabilities of jomnt
ventures and funds Where necessary these have been restated to the Group s accouniing policies

Jointventures and funds summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

Broadgate MSC Praperty BL Sainsbury

REIT intermediate Superstores Tesco Joint
Ltd Raldirgs Ltd Lid Ventures'

Norges Bank

Euro Bluebell LLP Investment
Partners {GIC] Management J Sansbury plc Tesco PLC

City Offices  Shopping Centres
Properiy sector Broadgate Meadowhalt Superslores Superstores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 50%
Summarised income statements £m £m Em fm
Revenue’ 244 102 56 19
Cosis {48) {231 {1] -
196 79 55 19
Administrative expenses - - - -
Net interest payable [86) [36] {24 19l
Underlying Profit 110 43 31 10
Net valuation movement 334 50 (386] (%
Proiit on disposal of investment properties and mvestments - - 2 -
Profiton or dinary activities before taxation 3.7 23 3 1
Taxatran - - - 1
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 444 93 (3 2
Other comprehensive income fexpenditure] 5 - - 3
Total comprehensive Income 449 93 (3) 5
British Land share of total comprehensive income 225 1] 2) 3
Brittsh Land share of distributions payable 44 i7 n 4
Summansed balance sheets £m £m £m Ern
Investment and {rading properties 4 622 1784 Qhé 354
Current assets 4 5 2 -
Cash and deposits 293 32 80 &
Gross assels 4,919 1,823 1,028 350
Current liabilities 77 {31] (301 {3l
Bank and securitised debt {1842] {6941 {462) 1841
Other non-current biabilities (65} {241 - {15
Gross habiliies [1,984) 74%) 1£92) [202)
Netexternal assets 2,935 1,074 536 158
British Land share of net assets 1,467 537 2469 79

Tesco yoint ventures inchude BLT Holdings [2010] Limited as at 31 March 2016

[P

USS joint ventures include the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and the Fareham Property Partnershep
Het cules Unit Trust joint ventures and sub-funds includes 50% of the results of Deepdale Co-Ownership Trust Gibraltar Limited Partnerstup and Valentine Co (wnership

Trust and 41 25% of Birstall Co-Ownership Trust The balance sheet shows 50% of the assets of these joint ventures and sub-funds

-

Included in the column headed Other joint ventures and funds are contnbutions from the foliowing BL Geodrnan Limited Parinership The Aldgate Place Limited

Partnershsp Bluebutton Property Management UK timited City of London Office Uit Trust and P:llar Retait Europark Fund [PREF] The Group s ownership share
of PREF is 9% howaver as the 8roup s not able to exercise control over ssgnificant decisions of the fund the Group equity accounts for its interest in PREF

-
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Uss Leadenhall Hercules Umt Trust Other TOTAL
The SeuthGate Limited Jownt Hold ng Co feInt ventures Jontventures TOTAL Group share
Partnership Ventures Dersey! Ltd and sub-funds® and funds* 2016 2016
Univer sities
Superannuaticn
Aviva Scherne Group Oxford
Invesiors PLC Properlies
Shopping Shopping City Offices Retasl
Centres Centres Leadenhall Parks
% 50% 50% Various
£m £ £m £m £m £m £m
19 12 35 38 & 531 266
(6} 131 [10] {71 (1 {99] (44)
13 9 25 3 5 432 222
| - ! 16] {2] {10 (5}
11 - - (8 - 1164l (82}
1 9 24 17 3 258 135
4 12 124 4 7 490 2458
- - - - 30 32 18
i5 21 148 21 40 780 398
- - - - {3) 2 ]
15 21 148 2 37 778 397
- - - {21 - [ 3
15 21 148 19 37 784 400
8 L Th 10 25 400
4 & 3 59 31 179
£m £m fm Em £m £m £m
267 252 942 812 108 9,869 4,944
2 1 - 4 14 32 18
3 7 5 ? 33 470 239
274 260 947 625 155 10,391 5,201
[4) t6l i6} t7} {51 (215) (111)
- - - {139} - [3,321) (1,660)
128} - - ta) (18l (154} {77)
[32] i) 13] [150) 69} (3,690} (1,848]
242 254 §41 475 [:13 6,701 3,353
121 128 471 237 (13 3,353

The barrowtngs of yeint ventures and funds and their subsidiares are non-recourse ta the Group All joint ventures are tncorporated in the Urited Kingdom with
the exception of Broadgate REIT Limited the Eden Walk Shopp ng Centre Unit Trust ang Leadenhall Hold ng Co [Jerseyl Lim ted which are incorparated in Jersay

0Ot ihe funds the Hercules Unat Trust [HUT) joint ventures and sub-funds are incorporated n Jersey ard PREF in Luxembourg

These financial statements include the results and financial position of the Group s merestin the Fareham Property Partnership the Aldgate Place Limited Partnership
the BL Goodman Limited Partnership the Auchinlea Partnership and the Gibraltar Limited Partnership Accordingly advantage has been taken of the exermpuons
provided by Regulaucn 7 of the Parinership [Accounts] Regulations 2008 not to attach the partnership accounts to these hnancial statements

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2014

141



Finaneial statemenis

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds conunued

The summarnised income staternents and balance sheets below and on the following page show 100% of the results assets and lizbilities of jomt
ventures and funds Where necessary these have been restated to the Group s accounting policies

The prior year camparatives below have been rept esented to reflect the presentation adopted in the current petiod

Jomtventures and funds summary financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Broadgate MSC Property BL Sainsbury

REIT intermediate Superstores Tesco Joint
Lid Holdings Ltd Lid Ventures

Norges Bank

Euro Bluebell LLP tnvestment
Partners {GICH Management J Sainsbury plc Tesco PLC

City Offices  Shopping Centres
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhall Superstores Superstores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 20%
Summarised income statements fm Ern £m £m
Revenue 214 9% 60 $7
Costs {50) 19} - (5
164 75 60 92
Adrminisirative expenses i - - 1]
Net mterest payahte {88] {as} (28] [50}
Underlying Profit 75 37 32 41
Net vatuation mevement 644 161 14 17
Profit an disposal of investrment properties and investments - - {3) [4]
Profit on ordinary acuvihes befor e taxation 739 198 43 54
Taxation - - - 9
Profit on ordinary activities after taxatron 73% 198 43 &3
Other comprehensive {expenditurel income (21) 17l 4 )
Totat comprehensive iIncome 718 191 47 &9
British Land share of total comprehensive income 359 96 24 35
British Land share of distributions payable 15 2 42 37
Summansed balance sheets Em Em £m £m
Investment and trading propertes 4 209 1719 1039 343
Curient assels 3 5 3 -
Cash and deposits 212 3z 25 [
Gross assets 4,486 1,756 1,067 369
Current liabilives {82t {31} (28] 15)
Bank and securitised debt (2142) {721} {478] (184}
Other non-current Liabibiies 164} {241 - (70}
Gross labilities [2,288) (776) [504) {209)
Net external assets 2,198 980 563 160
British Land share of net assets 1,099 490 282 80
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uss Leadenhall Hercules Unit Trust Other TOTAL TOTAL
The SouthGate Limited Jont Holding Ca oint ventures joint ventures Group share
Partnersh p Yentures [erseyi Ltd and subr funds and funds 2015 2015
Universities
Superannualion
Aviva Scheme Group Oxford
Investors PLC Properties
Shopping Shapping Cuy Offices Retait
Cenires Centres Leadenhatl Parks
50% 50% 50% Various
£m fm Em fm £m £m £m
14 n 15 53 15 573 289
1] 131 9 1] 13} (98] 491
13 8 ) 47 12 477 240
£l - - - 13 (8) (4
N - - {5§ (2] (212] {107}
n 8 ) 42 7 259 129
26 25 2n 63 - 1M 589
- - - (1t 16 8 é
37 33 207 104 23 1,438 724
- - - - 12 7 2
37 33 207 104 21 1,445 726
- - - {1} (10] 129 1131
37 33 207 103 1 1,416 713
19 17 104 52 7 713
4 4 - 37 - 141
£m £m £m Cm {m Em £m
262 235 770 706 140 9,443 4,79
Z - 2 7 23 42 25
2 9 4 N 21 382 192
266 244 776 719 184 9.867 4,934
i 14} 14 i7) 165) {228 [119)
- - - 127l - (3,652 (1.827)
128} - - N 2141 (181 89]
132) [4) 14} 135] 1109} [4.061) 2,035)
234 240 772 584 75 5,806 2,901
17 120 386 283 [4] 2,901
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Finaneial ~tatements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

L1 Joint ventures and funds continued

Operating cash {lows of joint ventures and funds {Group share)

2016 2015
£m £m
Rentat income received §rom tenants 208 234
Fees and ather ncome receswved 1 1
Operating expenses paid to suppliers and employees (18] [26)
Cash generated from operations i 209
Interest paid 84) (1341
Interest received 1 2
UK corporation tax paid {3 (7}
Foreign tax paid n 2)
Cash inflow from operating activities 102 88
Cash inflow from operating actwities deployed as
Sur plus cash retamed within joun ventures and funds 113 15
Revenue distribuiions per consehidated statemant of cash Hows 58 73
Revenue distributions split between centrolling and non-controlling interests
Attributable to non-controling interests 4 7
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 54 &b
12 Other investments
2016 05
Investment Leoans, Investment Loans
held for  recemvables heldfor  recewables
trading  and other Total trading and other Total
£m £m £m £Em £m £m
At1 Aprit 99 280 a7y 92 170 252
Addifions - 35 35 - "3 13
Disposals - 1272 (272 - (2} (2}
Revaluation 2 - 2 ! - 7
Depreciation - {2) 121 - m 4]
At31 March 10 41 142 99 280 379

The investment held for b ading comprises interests as a trust beneficary The trust s assets comprise fi eehold rever sionsin a pool of commerual
properbies comprsing Sainsbury s superstores The inlerest was ¢otegensed as Level 3 in the fair vatue hierarchy (s subject to the same inputs as
those disclosed innote 10 and its fair value was determined by independent externat valuer s

Included within the {oans recewables and other balance s Enil [2014/2015 €243m]in relation to a loan to the Broadgate joint ventut e whichis

carrred at amer tised cost and was fully repaid in the year
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13 Debtors

2014 Fk]

£m £m

Trade and other debtors 24 16
Prepayments and accrued sncome 9 4
33 20

Trade and ather debtors are shown after deducting a prowvision for bad and doubtful debts of £16m {2014/15 £16m} The charge to the mcome
statement In relation to bad and doubtiul debts was £1m [2014/15 £1m)

The Directors cansider that the carrying amount of trade and other deblors 1s approximate to thetr faw value There 1s no concentration of credit risk
with 1 espect 1o trade debtors as the Group has a large number of customers who are paying their rent in advance

Asat 31 March trade and other deblors outside therr payment terms yet not prowded for are as follows

Outside credit terms but nat impaired

Within credit More than

Tetat terms  0-1month 1-2 months 2 months

£m £m €m €m £m

2014 24 12 1 1 -

2015 16 9 7 - -
14 Creditors

2016 2015

£m £m

Trade creditors 39 6t

Other taxation and social security 34 31

Accruals 72 98

Deferred income 73 71

218 261

Trade creditors are interest-free and have setilement dates within one year The Directors consider that the carrying amount of irade and othes

creditors Is approximate to their tair value

15 Other non-current liabilities

2né 205

Em £

Other creditors 70 32
Head leases' L 41
Net pension liabihbies L) 6
122 7%

' Includes £9m in relation to head lease babilities on trading properties held at cost

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 145




Finanvial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

16 Deferred tax
The movement on deferred tax s as shown below

Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2014

1 Apnil Credited to Credited [debited]  Transferred to 21 March
2015 ncome to equity joint ventures 2016
£m £€m &m €m fm
Interest rate and currency derivative revaluations - - 5 - 5
Oiher tming differ ences - & - - ]
- ] 5 - 11
Deferred tax babilities year ended 31 March 2016
£m €m £&m £m £m
Property and investment revaluations (5l - (21 - 7
Interest rate and currency dervative revaluations (4} 25 (21} - -
Other urming differences (31 = - z M
(F4] 25 {23) 2 [8)
Net deferred tax (Labality] asset (21 3 {18} 2 3
Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2015
1 April Expensed Credited 1o Transferred to 31 March
2014 1 meome equily ot ventures 2015
£m £m Em tm £m
Deferred tax labilities year ended 31 March 2015
tm £in £m Em £m
Property and mvestment revaluations - {5} - - (5
Interest rate and currency dervative revatuations - 9} 5 - {5)
Other iming differences (4] 1 ~ - 13l
141 (23] 15 - {12)
Netdeferred tax {Liability) asset l4 {23) 15 - {12]

The followtng corporation tax rates have heen substantively enacted 20% effectve from 1 Apnit 2015 1educing 1o 19% effectuve from 1 April 2017
and 18% effective from t April 2020 The deterred tax assets and lisbilities have been calculated at the taxrate effeclive in the period that the tax s
expected to crystallise

The Group has recogmised a deferred tax asset calculated at 18% (201472015 20%!} of £&m (2014/2015 £mil) in respect of capital losses from previous
years avallable for offset against future capital profit Further unrecogmsed deferred tax assets in respect of capital losses of £60m [2014/2015
£87m} exist at 31 March 2016

The Group has 1ecogmsed deferied tax assets on dervaiive revaluations to the extent that future matcling taxable profits are expected 1o aiise

At 31 March 2016 the Group had an unrecogmvsed deferred 1ax asset calculated at 18% [2014/2015 20%T of £51m {2014/2015 €38mlin respect of UK
revenue tax lesses from previous years

Under the REIT reqime development properties which are sold within three years of completion do not benefit from tax exernption At 31 Merch 2014

the value of such properties s £967m [2014/2615 £1008m] and if these properties were 10 be sold and no tax exernption was available the tax artsing
would be £56m [2014/15 £66ml
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17 Net debt

2018 2015
Footnote £m £m
Secured on the assets of the Group
9125% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 11 34 35
5 264% First Morigage Debenture Bonds 2035 an 355
5 6035% First Mortgage Amortising Debentures 2035 160 g9
5 357% Fwst Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 349 344
6 79% First Mor tgage Debenture Stock 2020 62 176
Bank leans 1213 733 963
Loan notes 2 2
1,651 1974
Unsecured
5 50% Senior Notes 2027 101 98
6 30% Senior US Dollar Notes 2015 - 104
3 895% Serwor US Dollar Notes 2018 2 28 28
4 635% Sepor US Dollar Notes 2021 2 165 158
4 766% Senior US Dollar Notes 2023 2 105 99
5 003% Senior US Dollar Notes 2024 2 &9 b4
3 81% Sentor Notes 2026 113 m
3 97% Sernuor Notes 2026 114 114
1 5% Convertible Bond 2017 L45 493
0% Converuble Bond 2020 334 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 634 706
2,110 1975
Gross debt 3 3,761 3 949
Interest rate and currency derivative lizbilities 137 176
interest rate and currency derivative assets (167) 139}
Cash and shori term deposits 45 [114) 1108}
Total net debt 3,617 3828
iNet debi attributable to non-controthing interests [104) {1901
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,513 3438
' These ate non-recourse boriowings with no recourse for repayment o ather companias or assets in the Group
2016 2015
£m £m
11BLD Property Haldings Ltd 34 35
t 2 Hercules Unit Trust 443 645
¥ 3 T1BL Properties Limted and subsrdiaiies 250 318
767 998

¥ Principal and interest on this borrowing was fully hedged into Sterling at a floating rate at the time of 1ssue

¥ The principal amouni of grass debt at 31 March 2016 was £3 552m [2014/15 £3 717ml Inctuded in thes ts the principal amount of secured borrowings and other

barrowings of non-recourse companies of £ 5563m of which the borrowings of the partly srvned subsidary Hercules Unit Trust not beneficially owned by the Group

15 £109m

* Included within cash and short ferm deposits 1$ the cash and shart term depesits of Hercules Unit Trust of which E8miis the propartion nol beneficially owned

by the Group

* Cashand deposits aot subyect te a security snterest amount o £93m [2014/315 £84mi
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Finaneial ~tatements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt continued

Maturity analysis of net debt

2018 2015

£m £m

Repayable within one year and on demand T4 102
Between one and two years 504 i
two and iive years 1,491 1707

five and tenyears 807 943

tenand fifteen years 500 747

{ileen and twenty yedrs 385 )

twenty and twenty five years - 33

3,587 3 847

Gross debt 3,781 394%
Interest rate and currency derivatives (30) 131
Cash and shar U terrm deposits M [ius]
Net debt 3,617 3828

1 5% Convertible bend 2012 Imaturity 2017)
On 10 Septemnber 2012 Briush Land [Jersey] Linited [the 2012 1ssuerl a wholly- owned subswdiary of the Group 1ssued £400 mullson 1 5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bonds) at par The 2012 Issuers fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds

Subject to their terms the 2012 bonds are convertible into preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are automattcally transferred 1o the Company m
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combination of ordinary shares and cash Bondholders may exercise
their conversion right at any time up to [but excluding] the 20th dealing day before 10 September 2017 [the matunity date)

The initial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certain events

From 25 September 2015 the Company has the option to redeem the 2812 bonds at pai |f the Company s share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a specified period or at any ime once 83% by nomunai value of the 2012 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased
and cancelled The 2012 bonds will be redeemed at par on 10 September 2017 [the matur ity date] if they have not already been converted redeemed
or purchased and cancelled No redernption of the bonds occurred in the year

0% Convertible bend 2015 (maturity 2020)
On 9 June 2015 Brrush Land [White] 2015 Lirsited fthe 2015 Issuer] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group 1ssued £350 million zero coupon
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 [the 2015 bonds} at par The 2015 Issuer is fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Subject to thetr terms the 2015 bonds are converiible into preference shares of the Issuer which are autornatically transferred to the Company in
exchange for ardinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combination of ordmary shares and cash From 20 July 2315 up to
and including 29 June 2018 a bondholder may exercise its conversion night if the share price has traded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period Thereafter and up to but excluding the 7th dealing day betare 9 tune 2020 [the maturily date} a bondholder may convert
atany ime

The mtial exchange price was 1103 32 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certamn events |such as the Company
paying dwidends tn any year above 14 18 pence per ardinary share

From 30 June 2018 the Company has the option lo redeem the 2015 bonds a1 par f the Cornpany s share price has traded above 130% of the
exchange price for a specified pertod or at any e once 85% by nominat value of the 2015 bonds have been converted 1edeemed or purchased
and cancetled The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on 9 June 2020 [the maturity datel if they have not alt eady been converted redeemed or
purchased and cancelled
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17 Net debt continued

Farr value and book value of net debt

2016 2015

Farrvalue Bookvalue Difference Farvalue Booxvalue  Difference

£m Em fm fm tm

Debentures and unsecured bonds 1,637 1,613 24 1925 1785 140
Converuble bends 779 779 - 493 493 -
Bank debt and other floating rate debt 1,384 1,369 15 169 1671 20
Gross debt 3,800 3,761 % 4109 3949 160
laterest rate and currency derivative Liabilities 137 137 - 126 126 -
Interest rate and currency det ivative assets 1167) (1671 - 11391 1139} -
Cash and short term deposits 14} (114) - (108} (108) -
Net debt 3,656 3,617 39 3988 3828 160
Net debt attributable to non-controlling interesis (108) (104) 2) (192} i190] (2]
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,550 3,513 7 3794 3638 158

The fair values of debt debentures and the convertible bonds have been established by obtaming quoted market prices from brokers The bank debt
and loan notes have been valued assuming they could be renegotated al contrected margis The dervatives have been valued by catculating the
present vatue of expected future cash flows using appropriate market discount rates by anindependent treasury advisor

Shor t term deblors and creditars and other investments have been excluded from the disctosures on the hasts that the tair value is equsvalent

to the boek value

Group toan to value [LTV]

2016 2015

£m fm

Group toan to value [LTV] 25% 28%
Principal amount of gross debt 3,552 any
| ess debt altributable to non-controlling interests 109 {200}
Less cash and shot t term deposits [batance sheet] 14) {108]
Plus cash attributable io non-cenirolling interests 8 10
Total net debt for LTV calculation 3,337 3 419
Group property portfolie valuation [note 10} 10,111 9509

investrments n joint ventures and funds [note 11) 3,353 291
Other investments [note 12} 142 379
Less property and mvestments attrebutable to non-controthng interests [384) 1528}

Total assets for LTV calculation 13,222 12261

Proportionally consolidated loan to value [LTV]

2016 2015

£m £m

Proportionally consolidated loan to value [LTV) 32% 35%
Principal amount of gross debt 5,217 5404
tess debt attributable to non-controlling interests (128) {200}
Less cash and short terim deposits 1353) {300)
Plus cash attrnibutable to non-controlling interests 9 10
Total net debt for proportional LTV calculation 4,745 4914
Group proper ty por tfolio valuation [note 10] 10,111 9509
Share of property of joint ventures and funds [note 10 4,937 474
Other investments Inote 121 142 379
L.ess other investments attributable to joint ventures and funds 14) 123}
Less praperty attnbutable to non-controlling interests 1400) (544
Total assets for proportional LTV catculation 14,784 13933
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt continued

British Land Unsecured Financial Covenants
The two financial covenants applicable to the Group unsecured debt including converttble bends are shown below

2014 205

£m Em

Net Borrowings not to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capital and Reserves L% 38%
Principat amount of gross debt 3,552 3Nz
L.ess the relevant proportion of borrowings of the partly owned subsidiary/non-controlling interests {109) [200)
Less cash and deposits [balance sheel) £114) [t08)
Plus the relevant proportion of cash and deposis of the partly-owned subsidiary/non-controlling sntes ests 8 ta
Net Borrowings 3,337 3419
Share capital and reserves [balance sheet] 9,619 8545
EPRA deferred tax adjustment (CPRA Table Al 5 13
Trading propet ly surpluses {EPRA Tahle A 923 %6
Excepuonat refinancing charges (see below] 287 300
Fanr value adjustiments of financial insiruinents |[EPRA Table A 198 257
Less reserves atiibutable to non-controlling inter ests [balance shest) [277) (333)
Adjusted Capital and Reseryes 9,925 B8 898

In calculating Adjusted Capnal and Reserves for the pui pose of the unsecured debt finangial covenants there is an adjustment ot £287m (2014/15
£300m] to r eflect the cumuiative net amertised exceptional fems relating 1o the refinancings in the years ended 31 March 2005 2004 and 2007

2018 2015
£m tm
Net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets 29% 8%
Principal amount of gross debt 3,552 3Nz
Less cash and deposits not subject to a security interest (being £93m less the relevant praportion of cask and deposits of the
partly owned subsidiary/non controling interesis of £5m) (88) 771
Less principat amount of secured and non-recourse hot rowings {1.563) 11906]
Net Unsecured Borrowings 1,901 1734
Group prope ty pos tolio valuation [note 13) 18,11 9509
Investments in jont ventures and funds [note 11 3,353 290
Other nvestmenis [note 12} 142 379
Less mvestments i ot ventur es Inote 11) {3,348) i2 86%)
Less encumbered assels [note 10§ 13,803} {3844)
Unencumbered Assets 6,455 & 075
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17 Net debt conunued

Reconctiiation of movement in Group net debt fer the year ended 31 March 2014

Arrangement
Bustness Forewgn costs
2015  Cashflows combmations Transfers? exchange Far value amortisation 2016
Short term bot rowtngs 102 {104) - 7% 2 - - 74
Long term bosrowings 3,847 198} - (74} 1% 9 7 3,687
Derivatives’ 13} 22 - - (13) [25) - {30}
Total liabilities from financing actwiies 3,936 (180) - - 3 {35) 7 3,731
Cash and cash equivalents (108) () - - - - - (114)
Net debt 3,828 (184} - - 3 [35] 7 3,617
Reconciliation of mavement tn Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2015
Arrangement
Brsiness . Foregn costs
24 Cashflows comb natons Trarsters® exchange Farwlue amortsation 215
Short term borrowings 495 1495} - 02 - - - 102
Long tetm borrowings 2803 &16 379 (102} 40 104 7 3847
Dervatives? 25 141 - - 141) 3 - 13)
Total Labilires from tinancing actvities 3323 ny 379 - [7} 7 7 3936
Cash and cash equivalents h4zl 34 - - - - - (108!
Netdebt 3181 131 379 — {7} 317 7 3828
" Cash flows on derivatives include £7m of net receipts on derivative interest
? Cash flows on derivatives inclugds £8m of net recepts an derwative interest
¥ Transiers comprises debt maturing from lang term to short term borrowings
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17 Net debt continued
Fair value hierarchy

The table below prewides an analysis of financial instruments carried at far value by the vatuation methed The fair value hierarchy tevels are defined
innote 10

2016 2015
Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total tevel |evel 2 Leveld Total
tm £m £m £m £m fm £m fm
Interest rate and currency dei vabive assels - 157] - (167 - {139] - 139
Other investments - held for trading - - o1} (101 - - 1991 (991
Assets - [147) 1o {248) - 13%1 991 {238
Interest rate and currency derivatwe biabilities - 137 - 137 - 126 - 126
Conver ibie bonds 779 - - 779 493 - - 493
Liabilities 77% 137 - bal) 493 126 - 519
Total 779 [30) [101) 548 493 N3 (99] 381
Categonies of fmancial instruments
2016 2015
£m £m
Financial assets
Fair value through income statement
Other investments - held for trading 191 59
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 164 129
Derivatives not in des:gnated hedge accounting relationships 3 -
Amortsed cost
Trade and other debtors 24 14
Cash and short term deposits 14 108
Other investments - toans and recewables 41 280
447 442
Financial lrabilities
Fair value through income statement
Conver uible bonds 779 14931
Denvatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 137 [12¢}
Amortised cost
Gross debt (2,982] 13 454)
Head leases payable 146) [41]
Creditors (133} 1178)
(4,077) {4 294)
Total {3.630] {3 652

Gains and losses on financial instruments as classed above are disclosed innote & (net inanong costst note 13 {debtors] note 4 lvalvation
movements on progertyl the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive sncome The Du ectors consider that
the carrying amounts of other investments and head leases payable are approximate to thew {air value and that the carrying amaunts are recoverable
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17 Net debt conunued

Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debi and equity autributable to the equity holders of The British Land Company PLC comprising
1ssued capiial reserves and retained earmings  Risks relating to capital structure are addressed withun managing risk in delivenng our strategy on
pages 57 to 63 The Gieup s objectives policies and processes lor managing debt are set out i the financial polictes and principles on pages 54 to 56

Interest rate risk management
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge exposure to the vartability in cash flows on floaiing rate debt such as revolving bank facitiies and
floating rate honds caused by movements in market rates of tnterest

At31 March 2016 the fair value of these derivatives 1s a net liability of £136m Interest rate swaps with a fan value of £137m have been designated
as cash flow hedges under IAS 3%

The ineffectiveness recognised 1n the iIncome statement on cash flow hedges in the year ended 31 March 2016 was EniL(2014/15 £nil}

The cash flows oceur and are charged to profit and toss until the maturity of the hedged debt The tabte below summarises vanable rate debt and
foreign currency denominated debt hedged at 31 March 20146

Cash flow hedged debt
2ms M5
£m £m
Outstanding  al one yea: 413 1138
at twoyears 663 538
at five years 250 450
al ten years 250 230

Fair value hedged debt
The Group uses interest rate swaps 1o hedge exposure on fixed rate hinancial irabiliies caused by movements in market rates of interest

At 31 March 2016 the fair value of these dervatives 1s a nel asset of £166m [ntes est rate swaps with a fair valoe of £164m have been designated as
fair value hedges under IAS 39 12014/15 asset of £133ml

The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placements fully hedge the foreign exchange exposure at an average fioaung rate
of 146 basis points above LIBOR These have been dusignated as fan value hedges of the US Private Placements

Interest rate profile - including effect of derivatives

2016 20i5

im Em

Fixed or capped rale 2,372 2589
Variable rate [net of cash} 1,245 1239
3,617 3828

All the debt 1s eifectively Sterting denorminated except for £10m [2014/75 £39m) of Euro debt of which Enilis at a fixed rate [2014/15 £346m]

At31 March 2016 the weighted average interest rate of the Sterling fixed rate debt1s 3 5% [2014/15 4 8%} The weighted average pertad for which the
rate 1s fixed s 91 years [2014/15 71 years] The floating rate debt is set for periods of the Company s choasing at the relevant LIBOR {or stmilar] rate

The proporuon of net debt at fixed or capped rates of interest was 66% at 31 March 2014 on a spot basis The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped
rates of nlerest as an average over the next five-year forecast period on a proportionally consobidated basis was 60% at 31 March 2014 Based on
the Group sinleresi rale prohle al the balance sheet date a 576 bps increase in interest rates would decrease annual profits by £72m {2014/15
£53m decrease] Similatly a 59 bps reduction would increase profits by £7m [2014/15 £5mincreasel The change i interest rates used for this
sensivity analysis s based on the largest annual change in three month Sterling LIBOR over the last ten years The impact assumes LIBOR

does noi fall below 0%

o
%)
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17 Net debt connnued

Interest rate profile - including effect of dervatives continued

Upward movements i medrum and long term interest rates associated with higher interest rate expectations increase the value of the Group s
interest rate swaps that provide protection agamnst such moves The converse 1s true for downward movements in the yietd curve The majorsty of the
Group s interest rate swaps which provide such pretection qualify as efieclive cash flow hedges under IAS 39 therefore movementsin the {air value
are recogised directly in equity rather than the mncome statement A 204 bps shift represents the targest annuat change in the seven-year Sterling
swap rate over the {asl ten years Ak 31 Maich 2016 a 204 bps parallet upwar d shistin swap rates would increase the value of these interest rate
swaps by £151m [2014/5 £151m] A 204 bps downward shiftin swap rates would reduce the value of these interest rate swaps by £197m [2014/15
£155m} Because the mnterest rale swaps are matched by floating rate debt the overall effect on Group cash flows of such movements s mimmal

The 15% 2012 Converuble Bond and 0% 2015 Cenvertible Bond are both designated as fawr value through profit or loss Principal componenis of the
market value of both bonds include British LLand s shar e price and its volat:lity and rar ket interest rates

The fau value of the 1 5% 2012 Converttble Bond at 31 March 2016 was a £445m biabitty A1 31 March 2016 a 204 bps parallel upward shiftininter est
rates would reduce the {airvalue hability by £13m and a 204 hps downward shuft in interest rates would increase the fair value Lability by £14m

The fair value of the 0% 2013 Converuble Bond at 31 March 2016 was a £334m liability At 31 March 2016 a 204 bps parallet upward shitt in interest
rates would reduce the fair value lrability by £27m and a 204 bps downward shift in interest rales would inci ease the fair value babitity by C30in
Foreign currency risk management '
The Graup s policy 1s to have no matenal unhedged net assets or liabiltties denominated in foreign currencies The currency risk on overseas
investments is hedged via foreign currency denorminated borr owings and dervatives The Group has adopted net investment hedging in accordance
with 1AS 39 and therefore the portion of the gain or toss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to he an effective hedge ts recogmsed directly
in equity The ineffective portion of the gawn or loss on the hedging instiument 1s 1 ecogmsed immediately in the income statement

The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Group s foreign currency denominated assets and labliies Contingent tax on overseas
investments not exgected e accur s ignored for hedging purposes asis the requirement to fair value interest rate swaps Based on the 31 March
2014 position a 33% appreciation llargest annuat change over the last ten yearshin the Euro relative to Sterling would result in a £nit change (2014/15
Enill in repar ted pr ofits

Assets Liabtives
) 2016 2015 2016 15
£m £m £m £m
Eui 0 denominated 10 39 10 39

Credit nsk management

The Group s approach to credit risk management of counterpartiesis referred to in the finanoal policies and prnciples on pages 54 to 546 and the
risks addressed within managing risk in delivering our strategy on pages 57 to 63 The carrying amount of inancial assels recorded mn the hnanciat
statements represents the Group s maximum exposure Lo credst risk without taksng account of the value of any collateral obtained

Cash and short term deposits at 31 March 2016 amaunted to £194m (2014715 £108m} Deposits and interest 1 ate deposits were placed with hinancial
mstitutiens with BBB+ or hetter credit rabings

AL 31 March 2016, the fair value of alt interest 1 ate derivative assets was £167m [2014/15 £139m]

At 31 March 2016 priorto taking into account any offsel arrangements the largest combined credit exposure to a single counterparty arising from
money mar ket deposits hgquid investments and derivatives was £85m [2014/15 £59m| Thus represents 0 69 {2014/15 0 5%) of gross assets

The deposit exposures are with UK banks and UK branches of internananal banks

The Group s exposure ta credit nisk in respect of ils rade receivables is analysed th note 13 Provisiens are made taking account hustoric credit losses
and the creditworthiness of debtors

Liquidity nisk management
The Grougp s appi oach to biquidity sk management s discussed i the financial policies and principles on pages 54 to 56 and the risks addressed
within manageng risk in delivermg our strategy on pages 57 to 63

The following table presents a maturity profile of the contracted undiscounted cash flows of inancial liabilites based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required ta pay The table includes both interest and principal flows Where the interest payable 1s not fixed the amount disctosed
has been deterrnined by reference 1o the projecied interest rates imphed by yield curves at thereparting date For dersvative finznciat instruments
that settle on a net basis e g interest rate swaps] the undiscounted net cash Hows are shown and for derivatives that reguire gr oss settlement

le g cross currency swaps] the undiscounted gross cash flows are presented Where payment obligations are in foreign currencies the spot
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheel date 1s used Trade creditors and amounts owed to joint ventures which are repayable within one year
have heen excleded from Lhe analysis
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}7 Net debt connnved

Liquidity risk management continued
The Group expects ta meet its financial babilites through the various avaitable liguidity sources inctuding a secure rental income profile asset sales
undrawn commitied borrowing facilities and in the longer term debt refinancings

The Group leases out alt its investment properties under operating leases with a weighied average lease length of nine years This secure income
profile 1s generated from upward only rent reviews long leases and tugh occupancy rates The future agy: egate mininum rentals receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases s also shown in the table below income from jomt ventures and funds is not iIncluded helow Additional Ligusdity
will anise fram tetting space in praperties under construction as welk as from distnbutions recewed from joint ventures and funds

2014
Three

Within Following to five Over frve
one year year years years Total
£m €m £€m £m £m
Cebt! 76 481 1,47 1.577 3,585
Inter est on debt 103 100 268 538 1,009
Derivative payments 13 14 77 395 499
Head lease payments 2 2 ] 23% 249
Total payments 194 577 1,822 2,749 5,342
Dervative receipls (23) [25) {104) (383) {535)
Net payment 17 552 1,718 2,366 4,807
Operating leases with tenants 437 419 1,133 2,389 4,378
Liguidity sut plus [deftcit] 266 133) {585) 23 1429)

Cumulative Liquidity surplus {deficit) 266 133 (452} [4629)

M35
Threa

Within Followng o fve Over fve
one year year years years Total
tm Im £m Em £m
Debt’ 105 74 1615 1950 3746
Interest on deb1 126 125 328 619 1198
Dervative payments 121 16 T 407 618
Head lease payments 2 2 b 223 233
Total payments 354 219 2023 3199 3795
Denvative receipts 132} {24) {90} (3851 {634
Net payment 222 175 1933 2814 5164
Operating leases with tenants 443 431 1180 2782 4 836
Liguidity sur plus [deficit] 221 236 [753) 324 (328}

Cumulative hquidity surplus {defrait) 221 457 (298] {328)

' Bross debt ef £3 761m [2014/15 €3 94%9m) represents the toial shown less unarmortised 1ssue costs of £19m (2014715 €23m] plus fair velue adjustments to debt
of £199m (2014/15 £226m)

Any short term liquidity gap between the net payments required and the rentals recevable can be met thr ough other liqutdity sources available to the
Group The Group currently holds cash and short term deposits of £114m of which £93m 15 not subject to a secunity inlerest |see {ooinote 5 to net debt
table on page 147} Further liguidity can be achieved through sales of property assets or investments and debt refinancings

The Group s property porttolio is valued externally at £10 111m and the share of joint ventures and funds property is valued at £4 937m The undrawn
commutted borrowing facilines avallable to the Group are a further source of hquidity The maturity profile of commutted undrawn borrowing facilives
1s shown overleaf

wh
1]
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17 Net debt continued

Matunty of committed undrawn borrewing faciditres

2016 2015

£m [

Maturity date over hve years - -
between four and five years 1,113 930

between thiee and four years 95 -

Total facilitres available for more than three years 1,208 930
Between two and three years 85 6
Between one and two years - 235
Withtn one year 60 10
Total 1,353 1236

The above facilittes are corprised of British Land undrawn faciities of £1150m plus undrawn facilitees of Her cutes Unit Trust totalling £203m

18 Lecasing

Operating leases with tenants
The Gioup leases out all of its investment properties under operating leases with a weighted average lease length of nine years [2014/15 ten years)

The future aggregate minimum rentats 1 ecetvable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2016 2015

£m Em

Less than one yeat 437 443
Between one and two years 419 431
Between three and five years 1133 1180
Between sixand tenyears 1,241 1353
Between eleven and hifteen year s 626 783
Between sixteen and twenly years 357 443
After twenty yeal s 185 203
Total 4,378 4 836

The Group s teasehold mvestment properties are typrcally under non-renewable leases without signilicant restnctions Finance lease Liabihties are
payable as lollows no contingent renis wetr e payable in either peried

2016 2015
Miimum Mimimum
lease lease
payments Interest Prinapal payments Interest Principal
£&m £€m £m Em £m Em
Bntish Land Group
L ess than one yea 2 2 - 2 2 -
Between one and twoyears 2 2 - 2 2 -
Beiween two and five years [ [ - 6 & -
More than five years 239 193 46 223 182 41
Total 249 203 (13 233 192 41
Less futui e finance charges (203) {1921
Present value of lease obLigations ) &b A
More than five years L6 41
Present value of lease obligations 46 41
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19 Dividend

The fourth quarter mtenm dwidend of 7 09 pence per share totalling £73m [2014/15 6 92 pence per share totaliing £71ml was approved by the Board
on 14 May 2016 and 1s payable on 5 August 2016 to shareholders on the register at the close of Business on 1 July 2016

Fhe Board will announce the availabiity of the Scrip Dividend Alternative 1f availlable via the Regulatory News Service and on its website [www

britishland com/dvidends] no later than four business days before the ex-dividend date of 30 June 2016 The Board expects lo announce the split
between Property Income Distributions [PID) and nen-P1D income at that ume Any Scrip Dividend Alternative will not be enhanced PID dwvidends
are paid asrequired by RCIT legislation alter deduction of withholding tax at the basic rate lcurrently 20%) where appropriate Certam classes of
shareholders may be able to electtoreceve dwidends gross Please refer to our wehstle www britishland com/dividends for details

Pence per 2014 2015
Payment date Dnadend share £m £m
Current year dividends
G508 2016 2016 4th interim 709
06 052016 2016 3rd interim 709
12022016 2016 2nd interim 709 73
06 11 2015 2016 1st interim 709 72
28 36
Prior year dividends
07082015 2015 4th interim 692 il
04605 2015 2015 3rd interim 692 ral
1302 2015 2015 2nd intersim 692 71
07 11 2014 2015 1stintenim 692 70
27 68
08 08 2014 2014 4th mterm 479 48
7 05 2014 2014 3id intenim 675 48
Dmwdends in consolidated statement
of changes n equity 287 277
Dividends settled n shares {52) [49)
Dividends settled in cash 235 228
Taming difference relating to payment
af withholding tax - -
Dividends in cash flow statement 235 228
Scrip atternalive treated as non-PiD for thes davadend
20 Share capital and reserves
2016 015
MNumber of ordinary shares inissue at + April 1,031,788,286 1019746 481
Share issues 8,774,037 12 021 805
At 31 March 1.040,562,323 1031788 284

Of the 1ssued 25p ordinary shates 627 shares were held in the ESOP trust 12014/15 98 453] 11 266 245 shares were held as treasury shases
(2016/15 11 266 245} andt 1029 295 451 shares were i free 1ssue [2014/15 1020 423 588] No treasury shares were acquired by tie ESOP trust

durting the year All rssued shares are fully pawd

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translalion reserve comprises the eflective partion of the cumulative net change n the fair value of cash ltow and foreign cur rency
hedging instrumenis as well as all foreign exchange differences ansing from the transtation of the financial staterents of foreign operations
The foreign exchange differences also include the translation of the absiiies that hedge the Company s netinvestment i a foreign subsidiary

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to owner-accupied properles and iwvestments in joint ventures and funds

Merger reserve

This comprises the premium on the share placing in March 2013 No share prenuum is recorded in the Company s financiat statements through

the operatien of the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2004
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20 Share capital and reserves conttnued

At31 March 2016 options over 7 341 620 ordinary shares were outstanding under employee shat e option plans The options had aweighted average
bfe ol 6 4 years Detads of outstanding share opttons and shares awarded 10 employees including Executive Birectors are set out below and on the

following pages

Exercrse dates
AL Aprt Vested bui Exertised/ At 31 March Exarose
Date of grant 2015 Granted  not exercised Vesled Lapsed 2016  prce pence From To
Share options Sharesave Scheme
280610 38159 - - [37700) [459) - 37000 010915 290216
0ro7n B 474 - - {1 (393) 7172 47300 010916 2807217
260612 92390 - - {87 800) {4 590) - 39200 010915 290216
260612 L 52262 - - (2320 [7 244) 42,698 19200 010917 280218
190613 41201 - - {2 605) {4 404] 34,792 51100 010916 280217
190613 16 376 - - {489) {0851 15,202 511 00 010918 280219
230614 159 415 - - (10861 (21100} 137,254 574 00 01017 280218
230614 131633 - - 169641 £37451 127192 574 00 010919 280220
220615 84 687 - - {8 520) 76,167 59760 o918 280219
220615 - 63 59¢ - - {5 249} 58,350 69700 010920 280221
539917 148 2846 - 132982} 56 389 498,827

Long-Term Incentive Plan - Options Vested, Not Exercised
314505 164 840 - - {73 551) {91 2891 - 726 66 316508 300515
051203 141254 - - [105483) (35771 - 82360 051208 041215
2906 09 21913 - - {7441} - 14,472 38700 290612 2905139
25109 6063 - - [6 063) - - 47500 25112 251119
21142 09 TT443 - - (4 989] - 72,454 44600 211212 211219
116610 1420932 - - [208 549 [4 026} 1,208,357 44700 110613 110620
141210 90 568 - - 19112 it 789) 69,667 31000 141213 141220
28061 1108 890 - - 119 412) {52451 1,084,233 57500 288614 280621
912N 174 824 - - (75 649] {3 6900 95,575 45100 191214 9N
140912 - 178819 - 58 030) {4079] 1,116,710 538100 148915 140922
201212 - 151 658 - 128 853) f2488] 120,317 56300 201215 201222
0508 13 - 18177 - - (11456] 6,716 60190 05081 050823
051213 - 27330 - - {16 7641 5,766 400 00 051216 651223
230614 - 87845 - - 179955) 7,8%0 684 00 230617 230624

3206727 1455024 - (6071321 (256 462) 3,802,157
Long-Term Incentive Plan - Unvested Options
14 0912 1292739 - (1178819 - 113920) - 538 00 140915 140922
201212 19821 - {151 458 - [46553) - 563 00 201215 201222
050813 799292 - 118172} - 117442] 663,678 60100 0508% 050823
051213 508 874 - {22 530 - [B3744) 402,400 406 00 051216 051223
230614 1131228 - (87845 - [213675) 829,708 684 00 2306717 230624
121214 26177 - - - - 26,127 75783 1212197 121224
220615 - 1199744 - - 81261) 1,118,523 824 50 220618 220625

30956471 1199784 {1459024) - [656595] 3,040,636
Total 031G 28070% (14590241 [740114]  1969446] 7,341,620
Weighted average exercise price
of aptions [pencel 9463 676 551 535 651 580
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20 Share captal and reserses conunued

Share price
AL T Apr Exertised/ At 31 March  aigrant date
Date of grant 15 Granted Vesied Lapsed 206 pence Vestng date
Performance Shares Long-Term Incentive Plan
140912 848 412 - 8139500  [44 462) - 538 0¢ 140915
201212 103130 - (86 B45) [16 285) - 36300 201215
050813 1124 612 - - BB 159) 1,036,453 40100 0508 16
051213 270334 - - 40108 230,226 60000 051214
230614 1539336 - - (180113) 1,359,223 684 00 230617
121214 4354 - - - 4,354 75783 121217
220615 - 1289926 - (88 057] 1,201,869 824 50 220618
3902178 1289926 (902795} (457184 3,832,125
Fund Managers Performance Plan
120912 170 466 - 1166934) 13 5301 - 53700 1209215
020813 199543 - (190254 [9292] - 59900 020815
(629813 199476 - 15 380} (14 4321 179,664 59200 020816
569 485 - 1362567) (272041 179,664
Matching Share Plan
050912 386994 - (182831 (204143 - 500 00 050915
020813 375338 - - (26 448 348,890 609 66 020816
300614 3t7184 - - (27 608 289,560 702 40 300617
290615 - 296 638 - 14 468] 282,170 806 00 290618
1079 498 295638 (182831 (272 6851 920,620
Total 5551161 1586564 [14481931  |/57123t 4,932,409
Weighted average price of shares {pence) 611 821 540 599 897
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21 Segment information

The G oup allocates resources to investment and asset management according te the secior s it expects te perfor m over the medium term s three
principal sectors are Offices Retail and Canada Water The Office sector includes residential as this 15 often incorpor ated into Office schemes and
Retall includes leisure Far a similar raugnale Canada Water was added as a principal sector in the year reflectng the key role the campus has in the
strategy of the Group Consequently the prior year comparatives in this note have been restated to reflect this addstional principal sector

The relevant gross rental income net rentalincome operaung sesult and proper ty assels being the measures of segment revenue segment i esultand
segment assets used by the management of the business are set out below Management reviews the perforrnance of the business principally on a
proportionally consolidaied basis which includes the Group s share of joint ventur es and funds on a line by-line basis and excludes nen-contreliing
interests in the Group s subsidiaries The chief operaung decision maker for the purpose of segment information 1s the Executive Commitiee

Gross rental income 1s derived from the rental of builldings Operating result is the net of net remat income fee income and administrative expenses
No customer exceeded 10% of the Group s revenues in either year

Segment result

Offices and ressdential Retail and lessure Canada Water Other/unallocated Total
2014 2015 2016 015 206 2015 2016 2015 nmé 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross rental iIncome
British Land Group 133 [Pl n 248 8 ) - - 432 37
Share of joint ventures and funds 114 8% 104 146 - - 4 B 222 243
Total 247 210 395 3%4 8 & 4 8 654 618
Net rentalincome
British Land Group 124 112 277 233 7 & - - 408 am
Share of joint ventures and funds 110 85 99 141 - - 3 8 212 234
Totat 234 197 376 374 7 & 3 8 620 585
Operating result
Briush Land Group 112 101 240 218 7 b (48) a1 333 284
Share of joint ventures and funds 109 82 102 138 - - %]} 10 210 230
Total 221 183 362 356 7 & [[¥]) {31) 543 514
206 2015
Reconciliation to Underlying Profit tm £m
Operating result 543 514
Net financing costs (180) {201}
Underlying Profit 363 3
Reconciliation to profit on ordinary activmities before taxation
Underlying Profit 363 313
Capttal and other 954 1460
Undertying Profit atiributable
to nan-controlling mieresis 14 16
Total profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1.3 1789

Of the total revenues above {4m [2014/15 £8m]was denved from outside the UK
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21 Segment information continued

Segment assets

Ofiices and residentrat Retaland tesure Canada Water Other/unallocated Total
2016 015 2016 2015 2016 215 2016 2015 2016 25
£m £m £m £m €m £m €m £m £m £m
Property assets

British Land Group 4,181 3520 5,323 5275 283 273 - - 9,787 9048
Share of joint ventures and funds 2,843 2530 2,018 2039 - - - 40 4,88 4 609
Total 7.024 6 050 234 7314 283 273 - 40 14,648 13 677

Reconaliation to net assets
2015 2015
Britsh Land Group £m £
Preperty assets 14,448 13 677
Other non-curient assels 138 256
Non-current assets 14,784 13933
Other net current Liabilities (2571 (3071
Adpsted net debt (4,765) (4918
Other non-cutient labidities (s0) {73
EPRA net assets [unthiuted) 9,674 84635
Convertible ditutron 400 400
EPRA net assets [diluted) 10,074 9035
MNon-controlling interests 277 333
EPRA adjustments 1732) 1803}
Netassets 9,619 8565

22 Capital comnutments

The aggregate capital commitments Lo puichase construct or develop investment property for repairs masntenance or enhancements or for the
purchase of Investrments whch are contracted for but not provided are set out below

06 2035

£m {m

British Land and subsidiaries hacludes share of development loan facibityl 174 198
Share of joint ventures 40 42
Share of funds 2z 2
216 247

23 Related party transactions

The Gi oup had provided a development toan of up to £326m to the Broadgate jont venture secured aganst the 5 Broadgate development The (oan
was jully repaid during the year Interest and commutment {ees earned on the loan during the year were C4m [2014/15 (8m]

Detals of transacuions with joint veatures and funds are given innotes 3 6 and 11 During the year the Group recognised joint venture management
fees of £8m [2004/15 E£7m)

Detaits of Directors remuneration are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 86 1o 110 Detaits of transactions with key management personnel
are provided i note 8

Details of transachions with The British Land Group of Campanies Pension Scheme and other smaller pensien schemes are given in note 9

The purchases by related parues of Simon Boirows of two flats in Londen for a total of E4m from a Briish Land Group company as approved at tast
year s Annual General Meelng completed during the year
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24 Contingent liabihties

Group, joint ventures and funds

The Group joint ventur es and funds have contingent liabibities in r espect of legat claims guarantees and warranties arising in the o1 dinary course

of business It 1s nol anticipated that any material babiities will anise from contingent Liabilimies

25 Subsidiares with material non-controlling interests

Set oul below 1s summarised financist information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group
The information below s the amount befare intercompany elimimatiens and represents the consolidated resulls of the Hercules Unit Trust group

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31 March

Hercules Unit Trust

28 2015

£m fm

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 5% 142
Attiibutable to non-controlling interests 19 58
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company 40 87

Summarised batance sheet for the year ended 31 March

Hercutes Urat Trust

2016 2015

€m £m

Total assets 1,450 1687
Total Liabilites (469) 1674)
Netassets 1,021 1013
Noi-controlling interests 277 333
Equity attnbutable to shareholders of the Company Tha 4680

Summarised ¢ash flows

Hercules Unit Trust

2016 2015

£m £m

Net [decrease] sncrease in cash and cash equivalents 15) 2
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 35 33
Cashand cash equivalents at 31 March 30 35

The Hercules Unit Trust is a publicly listed Unit Trust The Unit price at 31 March 201615 £719 (2014719 €711]
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26 Audit exemptions taken for subsidiaries

The following subsidiaries are exempt fiom the requirements of the Companies Act 2004 relating to the audit o indmiduat accounts by virtue of

Section 479A of that Act

Companies House

Name req number
British Land Aqua Partnership Limited 6024919
British Land Aqua Partnershup £2) Limited 4024921
Apartpower Limited 2832059
Piltarcaisse Management Limited 2961307
BL Guaranteeco Limited 5403335
WK Holdhings Lirmited 2487591
Wates City Point Lirmited 2973114
BL HC Properiy Heldings Lirmsted 06894046
BL Heatth Clubs Ph No 1 Limited 05643248
BL Health Clubs Ph No 2 Limited 05643261
St James Retail Park Northampton Limited 53963%
Pellar Nugent Linnted 2567031
Prllar Developments Limited 2850421
Urited Kingdom Property Company Limited 266486
British Land Hercules No 1 Lirrited 3527580
Pillar Estates Lunited 3044028
Prllar [Dartford) Limited 2783384
8L Goodman iLP] Limited 5056902
Pillar Broadway Linmted 3589116
Parwick Investments Lirmited 00454239
Hilden Properties Limited NIQ42887
BL [Maidenhead) Company Limited 7667834
Wardrebe Holdings Limied 06049158
BLCwmbran Limited 7780251
BL GP Chess No 1 Limited 8572585
Ludgate West Limited 4882129
Bayeast Property Company Limited 435800
Boldswitch Limited 23070%6
Exchange House Holdings Limited 2037407
Paddington Central | (GP}1 irmuted 389137
Reqis Property Holdings Limited 891470
Dinwell Limited 5035303
TPP lnvestments Limited 4843814
Bl Osnahurgh St Residentral Lid 06874523
Moorage [Property Developments) Limited 1185513
39 Victoria Sireet bumuted 7037133
Teessude Leisure Park Limited 2672136
Cavendish Geared Limited 2779045
Piltar Auchinlea Limted 2661047
Prltar Europe Management Lirnited 2871826
Piltar Retall Parks Limited 2725163
Wates City Of London Propertes Limited 1788526
BLDSJ] Investments Limited 4484750
Adamant Investment Corporation Limited 225149

Companies House
Name reg number
The Liverpool Exchange Company Lymited 490255
Osnaburgh Sireet Limited 5886735
Adshilta Limited 1052683
Rohawk Properties Lirmited 787485
Blaxmill [Twenty-Nine) Liruted 5279010
Piltar {Beckton} Limited 2783376
Briush L_and Proper ly Advisers Limited 2793828
Brinish Land Hercules Limited 2783381
Brrish Land Hercules No 4 Limited 3108851
Sprint 1118 Limited 5840847
Longford Street Residential Limited 8/00158
Meadowbank Retail Park Edinbur gh Liméded 5489809
BF Propca {No 19) Limited 5270113
vorydell Lermited 3264791
Bioadgate [PHC 8 Limited 3707220
BVP Developments Limited 3534586
FRP Group Ld 2844685
BLU Property Management Limited 1020347
Prllar Hercules No 2 Limited 2839069
Orake Circus Leisure Limited 2190208
Blu Lstates Limed 3325057
Diomedes Property No 1 Lirmited 5278996
Chriailis Nominees Limited 732510
tvoryhidl Lirmeted 2307407
Pardev [Broadway) Limited 2891851
Pitlar [Kirkcaldyl Limited 3024412
Pillar Fort Limited 28046956
Pitlar Futham No 2 Limited 266246
Piflar Glasgow 3 Limited 5070568
Bexite Limited 5738899
T{Partnesship) Liruted 03436754
TBL Ferndown] Limited 3854372
TBL {Brent Park] Limtted 3852947
Padd:ngton Block A (GP] Lid 320570
Paddsngton Block B (GP) Lid 9370577
Padd:ngten Kiosk IGP} Lid 6320562
PC Lease Nommee Lid 2320541
PC Partnership Nominee Ltd 9320533
BL Broadgate Fragment | Lirnited 9400407
BL Broadgate Fragmeni 2 Lisvited 9400541
Bl Broadgate Fragment 3 Listuted 9400411
BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limited 9400409
BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited 9400413
BL Broadgate lragrment 6 Limited 2400414
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The foltowing partnerships are exempt from the requrements to prepare publish and have audied individual accounts by virtue of regulation 7
of The Partnerstups (Accounts] Regulattons 2008 The results of these partnerships are consolidated within these Group accounts

Name Name

Bl Shereditch Lisnited Par tnership Herefor d Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
Bl Chess No 1 Limited Partnership Bl Lancaster Limited Partnershyp

Paddington Central | LP Paddingion Block ALP

Paddington Central It LP Paddington Btock BLP

Meadowhall Oppor turities Limeted Par tner ship Paddington Kiosk LP
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note tm im
Fixed assets
investments and loans to subsidiaries D 27,518 27370
Investments in joint ventures D 395 392
Other invesiments D 17 264
hierest rate derivative assels E 167 i39
Delerred tax assets 1 -
28,098 28165
Current assets
Debtors G 14 4
Cash and short term deposits E 35 18
50 22
Current liabilities
Shor t term bort owings and ovet drafts E 174) {102
Creditors H [77] [103)
Amounts due to subsidiartes [19,225) {18 881)
(19,378) {19 086]
Netcurrent babibties (19,324) {19064)
Total assets less current abilities 8,772 210
Non-current habilities
Debentures and loans E (2,216} (2 4621
Interest 1 ate der vative Labiliies E 19 [}
Deferred tax and other non-current babiiies - {131
(2,335) (2 584]
Net assets 4,437 6515
Equity
Called up share capitat | 260 798
Share premium 1,295 1780
Other reserves 120) (94])
Merger reserve 213 213
Retained earnings 4,789 4 858
Equity shareholders funds 6,437 6513
John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Fmancial Officer
Approved by the Board on 16 May 2014
Company number 621920
' The pripr year comparatives have been restated on transitionto FRS 101 See note A on page 147
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Finnncial starcmoents

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Profit and
Shara Gther Marger loss

Share captial prem.um reserves reserve account Total

£m tm £m fm £rn £m

Balance at 1 Apnil 2015 [restated| 258 1280 (941 213 4 858 6,515
Share 1ssues 2 15 - - [¥?) 5
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - - - 32 52
Dividend pad - - - - (2871 (287}
Far value of share and share option awards - - - - 8 8
Net actuaral loss on pension schemes - - - - )] 11
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - lVal m
Derwative valuatton moverment - - {26) - - (26
Balance at 31 March 2016 260 1295 {120 213 4 789 6,437
Balance at 1 April 2014 [restated) 235 1257 {24} 213 3432 5333
Adjustment for change in capitolised interest accounting policy - - - - 37 37
Share i1ssues 3 73 - - - 26
Adjustment for scrp dwvidend element - - - - 49 49
Dwidend paid - - - - vaki] {277)
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - £5) {5l
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - 1422 1422
Derivative valuation movement - - (70} - - [70)
Balance at 31 March 2015 [restated) 258 1280 194} 213 4 858 6515

The value of distributable reserves withun the profit and loss account s £3 336m (2014/15 €3 514m)
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{(A) Accountng policies

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of
dervatives These financial staterents have also been preparedin
accordance with Francial Reporting Standaerd 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework [ FRS 101 | The amendments te FRS 101 {2013/14 Cycle}
1ssued in July 2014 and effective immediately have been applied

In preparing these financial stalements the Company applies the
recognition measurement and disclosure requirements of Internat:onal
Financial Reporiing Standards as adopted by the EU { Adopted IFRSs
but rmakes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS
101 disclosure exemptions has been taken In these financiat statements
the Company has adopted FRS 101 for the fir st time

The Company meets the definition of a gualifying entity under FRS 100
[Ftnancial Reporting Standard 100} issued by the Finanoial Reporting
Counal Accordingly i the year ended 31 March 2016 the Company

has changed its accounting framework frorm UK GAAP Lo FRS 101 as
1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council and has in deing so applied
the requirements of IFRS 1 6 33 and related appendices The prior year
hnancial statements wer e restated for material adjustments on adoplion
af FRS5 101 in the current year as set out helow

The Cornpany has taken advantage of the following disclosure
exemptions under FRS 101

tal the requirements of IAS 1 to provide a Balance Sheet at the beginning
of the penodain the event of & prior peniod adjustment

[b] the requirements of IAS 1 to provide a Statement of cash ftaws for
the perod

Reconciliation of Profit and LLoss

fc} the requirements ofiAS 1 to provide a statement of compliance
with [FRS

[d] the requirements of 1AS 1 to disclose mformation on the
management of capital

le] the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS B Accounting
Policies Changes in Accounting Estmates and Eriors to disclose
new IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet ellective

it} the requirements in |AS 24 Retated Party Disclosures to
disclose related party transactions entered into between two
or more members ol a group provided that any subsidiary which
1s a par ty to the transaction 1s whally owned by such a member

{gl the requirements of paragraph 17 of 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures
to disclose key managemaenl personnel compensation

{hl the requirements of IFRS 7 io disclose financial instruments and

bl the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 11 Fau Value
Measurement to disclose information of fair value valuaton
technigues and inputs

Explanation of transition to FRS 101

Thisis the first year that the Company has presented its financial
statemnents under FRS 101 [Finzncial Reparting Standard 101} 1ssued

by the Financial Repor ting Council The followsng disclosures are
restatemnents of balances disclosed under previgus UK GAAP in the prior
year The lasl financial statements under previous UK GAAP were for the
year ended 3t March 2015 and the date of trans:tion to FRS 101 was
therefore 1 April 2014

The toliowing 1s a reconciliation illustrating the adjustments pested 10
the Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet 1o restate the prios year
compat atives as a result of the transition to FRS 101 fr orn UK GAAP

2013 UK Transition 2015

GAAP  adjustmentis FRS 10t

fm £m £m
Administrative expenses [77) - (771
Finance costs [85] {85
Other Profit and Loss 1584 - 1584
Total impact to Profitand Loss 1,422 - 1,422

Reconciliation of Balance Sheet

Transition 2004 UK Transition WMEFRS

Transition M5 UK adustments 2015 FRS GAAP  adustments HY|

reference Em £m £m {m im £m

Creditors 0 [i01) 12) {103] (89} 12 o1
Share premium i 1783 3 1280 1240 13l 1257
Retained earnings (} ) 4 857 1 4 858 3463 ¥ 3432
Other Balance Sheet 478 ? 480 533 2 535
Total impact to Balance Sheet 6,517 2] 6,515 5,335 12) 5,333
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Explanation of transition to FRS 101 continued

Transition adjustment li}

Share schemes are subject to Natianal Insurance on the gain employees
make Under UK GAAP the exercise price was estimated to be the share
price prevailing at the balance sheef date whereas under FRS 101 this
was measur ed as the estimated share price at the exercise date Upon
conversion this resutted in an addinonal £2m creditor and 2 £2m debit

o retained earnings

Transition adjustment [u}

Under UK GAAP upon redemption of a converible bond 1n 2004
unamorused capitalised loan issue cosis were debited to the profit
and loss Under FRS101 these issue costs of £3m are debited to share
premium and credited to retained ear mngs

Notice of continued adoption of financial reporting standard [FRS] 101 -
reduced disclosure frameweork

The Board continues to consider that it 1s i the hest inter ests of the
Group for The British Land Company PLC 1o continue to apply FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework for its next financial year commencing
1 Apnit 2016 A shareholder or shareholders holding in aggregate 5% or
more of the total allotted shares in The British Land Company PLC may
serve objections te the continued use of the disclosure exemptions on
The British Land Company PLC inwnittng to its registered office {York
House 45Seymour Street London W1H 7LX) not tater than 31 July 2016

Going concern
The financal statements are prepared on the going concern hasis a5
explained tn the corpor ate governance section on page 77

invesiments and loans

Investments and toans in substdiait es and joint ventures are stated
at cost less provision for impair ment

(D) Investments and loans to subsidiaries

Sigmificant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The key source of estrnalion uncertainty relates to the Cornpany s
investments in subsidiaries and jomt ventures {n estimating the
iequirement for imparment of these investments management make
assumptions and judgements on the value of these investments using
inherently subjactwe underlying asset valuations supported by
independent vatuers

(B) Dividends

Details of dividends paid and proposed are included in note 19 of
the consolidated financial statements

(C) Company profit for the inaneial vear after tax !

The Company has not presented 1ts own profit and loss account as
permuitted by Section 408 of the Comparues Act 2006 The profit after
tax for the year was £171m {2014/15 profit £1422m)

The aver age monthly number of employees of the Company duting
the year was 260(2014/15 249]

Empleyee costs include wages and salanes of £35m (2014/15 £33m)
social security costs of £5m [2014/15 £5m] and pension costs of £6m
(2014715 £5ml Detads ol the Execulive hrectors remuner ation are
disclosed tn the Remuneration Report

Audit fees inrelation to the parent Company only were £0 2m
[2014/15 €0 2m}

Investments
Shares in Loans (o WO Dther
subsdanes substdianes vertures  investinenis Total
Em £m £m £m £m
Gn 1 Aprit 2015 [restated) 20197 7173 392 264 28,026
Additions - 509 18 4 531
Disposals - 1432) (141 [251) {697
Whrite back of [provision for) ki - N - 70
As at 31 March 2016 20 268 7 250 395 17 27,930

The historicat cost of shares in subsidianes s £20 529m [2014/15 £20 558m] Investments injoint ventures of (395m (2014/15 £392mi mcludes
£216m{2014/15 £205m) of loans to joint veniures by the Company Resulis of the joint ventures are set outin note 11 of the consolidated hinancial
statements The histoncal cost of other investments s £87m {2014/15 £252m}
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(E) Net debt

2016 2015
€m Em
Secured on the assets of the Company
5 264% First Mortgage Dehenture Bonds 2035 n 355
5 0055% First Mortgage Amortising Debentures 2035 100 98
5 357% First Mortgage Debentu e Bonds 2078 349 344
6 759% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2020 62 182
Loan notes 2 2
884 281
Unsecured
550% Senior Notes 2027 101 98
6 30% Senwor US Dellar Notes 2015 - 104
3 895% Sentar US Dottar Nates 2018 28 28
4 635% Semor US Dallar Notes 2021 165 158
4 766% Semor US Dollar Notes 2623 105 9¢
4 003% Semor US Dollar Notes 2026 6% b4
3 81% Senion Notes 2026 113 m
3 97% Semor Notes 2026 1é 114
Fairvalue of oplions ta 1ssue under 1 5% convertsble bond 2017 48 100
Fan value of options 1o 1ssue under % converti:ble bond 2020 27 -
Bank loans & overdrafts 634 707
1,406 1583
2,290 7 2bh
Gross debt
Interest rate and currency derwvative Liahiities Lt} M
Interest rate and currency dervative assels (187) i139]
Cash and short term deposis (38) (18l
Net debt 2,206 2518

Principal and interest on these borrowings were fully hedged into Sterling at a floating rate at the tme of 1ssue

1 5% Convertible bond 2012 (maturity 2017)
0n 10 September 2012 Bntish Land [er sey] Limited {the 2012 {ssuer] a whaolly-owned subsidiary of the Company 1ssued £400 mulhion 1 5%
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2017 fthe 2012 bonds) at par The 2012 Issuer 1s fully guaranteed by the Company n respect of the 2012 bonds

Subject to thewr terms the 2012 bonds are convertible into preference shares of the 2012 |ssuer which are automatically transferred to the Company
inexchange for ordinary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combinatwon of ordiary shares and cash Bondholder s may
exerctse their conver ston right at any ime up to {but excluding) the 20th dealing day before 10 Septeraber 2017 {the matunity date)

The intial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share The exchange price 1s adjusied based on certain events

From 25 Septernber 2015 the Company has the option to redeem the 2012 bonds at par «f the Company s share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a speafied period or at any ume once 85% by nomenal vatue of the 2012 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased
and cancelted The 2017 bonds will be i edeemed at par on 10 September 2017 {the matur uy date] if they have not alr eady been conver ted redeermed
or purchased and cancelled No redemption of the bonds occurred in the year

The intercompany loan between the Issuer and the Cornpany anising from the transier of the loan proceeds was mitially recogmsed at fair value

net of capitalised 1ssue costs and is accounted for using the amorused cost method [n addiion to the intercompany loan the Company has entered
tnto a derivative contract relating to its guarantee of the obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Bonds and the comrmitment to provide shares or
a combimation of shares and cash on conversion of the Bonds This derivative contractis inctuded within the balance sheet as a biability carried at
fair value through profit and loss
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(E) Net debt conunued

0% Convertible bond 2015 [maturity 2020]
0On 9 June 2015 British Land [White] 2015 Limited [the 2015 tssuer] a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company sssued £350 million zero coupon

guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 [the 2015 bonds] at par The 2015 Issuer s fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds

Subject to therr terms the 2015 bonds are converubte inio preference shares of the [ssuer which are autematically transferred to the Company m

exchange for ordimary shares in the Company or at the Company s election any combination of ordinary shares and cash From 20 July 2015 up
andinctuding 29 June 2018 a bondholder may exercise ns conversien right If the share price has traded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchan

lo
ge

price for a specified period Thereafter 2nd up 1o but excluding the 7th deating day belore ¢ June 2020 (the maturity datel a bandhalder may convert

at any time

The iniral exchange price was 1103 32 pence per ardinary share The exchange price 1s adjusted based on certan events [such as the Company
paying dwvidends iy any year above 14 18 pence per ordinary share)

From 30 June 2018 the Company has the option to redeem the 2015 bonds at par if the Company s share price has traded above 130% of the exc|

hange

price for a specified period or at any time ence 85% by norminal value of the 2015 bonds have been converted redeemed or purchased and cancelled

The 2015 bands will be redeemed at par on 9 June 2020 {the maturily date} if they have not ali eady been converted redeemed or purchased and
cancelled

In addrhon to the iIntercompany loan the Company has entered into a derivative contract relating to its guarantee of the obligations of the Issuer

m

respect of the bends and the commutment to provide shares or a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the bonds This derivative contract

1s inctuded within the halance sheet as a lahility carried at tair value through profit and loss

Matunity anatysis of net debt

2016 M5

£m fm

Repayable within one year and on demeand 74 162
between oneand two years 109 75
two and five years 414 497

five and ten years 807 561

ten and fifteen years 500 747

fifteen and twenty years 386 ]

twenty and twenty five years - 376

2,216 2462

Gross debt 2,290 2564
Inter est rate dervatives (48] {28}
Cash and short term deposits (38) {18}
2,206 2518

(F) Penston

The Briish Land Group of Companies Penston Scheme and the Defined Contribution Pension Scheme are the principal pension schemes of the
Company and details are sel out m note 9 of the consobidated {mancial statements

170 British Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 2014




{G) Debtors

2014 2ms
£m fm
Trade and other debters 9 2
Prepayments and accrued income 5 2
14 4
(H) Creditors
Reslated
2016 2015
£m £m
Trade creditors 2 23
Corporation tax 18 19
Other taxation and sociat secunty 29 24
Accruals and deferred income 27 37
77 103
(f} Share capital
Ordmary shares
£m of 25p each
Issued, called and fulty paid
At 1 April 215 258 1031788 286
Issued 2 8774 037
At 31 March 2016 260 1,040,562,323
Ordinary shares
Em of 25p each
Issued, catled and fully paid
At 1 Aprl 2014 255 1019764 481
Issued 3 12 021 805
At 31 March 2015 258 1031788 286

() Contingent habilities, capital commitments ad related party transactions

The Company has contingent liabibiies in respect of legal claims guarantees and warranuties arising in the ordinary course of business

It 1s not anticipated that any mateqial labihiies will anse irom the contingent babilitres

At 31 March 2016 the Company has £13m of capital commitments [2014/15 £27m]

Related party transaclions are the same for the Comipany as for the Group For details refer to note 23 of the consclidated financial statements
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(K) Related undertakings

Dusclosures relating to subsidiary undertakings

The Company s subsidiaries and other related under takangs at 31 March
2016 are listed below All Group entiies are included in the consohidated
financial resulls

Indirect holdings

Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status
1& 4 & 7 Triton Lunited UK Tax Resident
10 Brock Street Etmited UK Tax Resident

10 Portman Square Unit Trust [Jersey]
Units)

Overseas Tax Resident

Unless otherwise slaled the Company holds 100% of the voling nghts 10 Taiton Street Limited UK Tax Restdent
and beneficial interests in the shares of the following subsidiaries 17-19 Bedford Street Limuted UK Tax Resident
pat iner ships associated joint ventures angd joint arrangements 18-20 Craven Hit Gardens Lirnuted UK Tax Resident
The subsidiaries and retated undertakings are registered in the United 20 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Resident
gungdom unle'fs noled[othl()e:wvtse and the slhars capltarl]of each :]f the 20 Triton Street Limited UK Tax Resident
mt:\r:{;:z:::;;ﬂzre appticabte comprises of ordinary shares unless 338 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Resident
35 Basinghall Street First Limated UK Tax Resident
The Comgany hotds the majority of iis assets in UK campanies although 32 Basinghall Street Second Limited UK Tax Resident
sore are held in overseas companies In recent years we have reduced 330 Euston Road Limied UK Tax Resident
the number of overseas companies in the Group 39 Victora Street Limsted UK Tax Resident
8-10 Throgmorton Avenue Limited UK Tax Resident
Direct holdings Adamant Investment Corporation Limited UK Tax Resident
Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status ~ Adghitta Limited UK Tax Resident
B LCT Holdings Lirted [Jes seyl UK Tax Resident  Aldgate Place [GP} Limited [50% interest] UK Yax Resident
BL Bluebutton 2014 Limited UK Tax Residenl  Apartpower Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Davidson Limited UK Tax Resident  Ashband Linted UK Tax Resident
BL Exempt Insurance Services Limited UK Tax Resident  Austral House Unit Trust [lerseyl (Umits] Overseas Tax Resident
BL Intermediate Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident (35 9430 interestl
BLSSP [Funding} Limited UK Tax Restdent Basnzgha[l Street Urit Trust Llersey] [Units) Overseas Tax Resident
Bluebutton Property Management UK UK Tax Resident (35 9‘% interesi]
Lunited [50% interest] B L CT (12697} Liruited Ulerseyt UK Tax Resident
Botdswitch [No 1] Linited UK Tax Resident B LCT (215001 Limited Lerseyl UK Tax Resident
Holdswitch |imited UK Tax Resident  BLC T [29900] Limited [Jerseyl UK Tax Restdent
British Land [Jersey] Limited [Jersey} UK Tex Resident B L U {11193] Limsted [Jersey} UK Tax Resident
[Founder Shares| Balsema Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land City UK Tax Resident  Barnclass Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land City 2005 Lirnited UK Tax Residerst  Barndnill Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land City Offices Limited UK Tax Resident  Bayeast Property Co Lirmited UK Tax Resident
British Land Financing Lisuted UK Tax Resident  Bexile Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Investrnents Netier lands Oveiseas Tax Resident  BF Propco [Ne 1] Limited UK Tax Resident
Holding BV [Nethertands] BF Propen INe 10] Limited LK Tax Resident
Briush Land Properues Limited UK Tax Resident  gp Propco No 12] Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush Land Real Estate Lirmted UK Tax Resident  pr Propco [No 13] Limited UK Tax Resident
Briush |and Securnities Limited UK Tax Resident  pp Propco [No 19] Limited UK Tax Restdent
British Land Securiisauon 1999 UK Tax Resident  pr Propco [No 3] Limited UK Tax Restdent
Broadgate lFundmgI PLC UK Fax Resident BF Propco (Mo & | Limited UK Tax Resident
!qir‘ﬂadgalf [:s:d(ljes fnsut ance Mediation UK tax Resuent e Propco (No 5 | Limited UK Tax Resident
28 vIces LIMie BI Properuies {No 4 ) Lumited UK Tax Resident
Hyfteol Limited UK Tax Residen! BF Propet ties iNo 5 ) Limited UK Tax Resident
Kingsmer e Productions Limited UK Tax Resident P
Bu stall Co-Ownership Trust {Membes UK Tax Resident
Linestair Limnted UK Tax Reswdent Interest] 41 25% interest]
London and Hentey Holdings Linuted UKTaxResident g gy Acquisition Limited UK Tax Resident
rf:‘lj";"ha“ Pensians Scheme Trustee UK Tax Resident | [Maidenhead) Company bimited UK Tax Resident
2 BL [SP| Cannon Sireet Limited UK Tax Resident
MSC Property Intermediale Holdings UK Tax Resident
Limited 150% interest) BL [SP]invesiment [1] Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Plantaton House Limited UK Tax Resident  BL ISPl Investiment {2] Lunited UK Tax Resident
Priory Patk Merton Limited UK Tax Resident  BL [SPHnvestment (3] Limited UK Tax Resident
Regss Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident BL [SPHvestment [4] Limited UK Tax Resident
The British Land Corpor ation Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Baker Co 2012 Lirnited fersey) Overseas Tax Resident
Vilalcreate UK Tax Resident  BL Bradford Forsier Limited UK Tax Resident
Real Asset Insur ance Limited (Guernsey) Overseas Tax Resident  BLBroadgate Fragment 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
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Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Reswlent Status ~ Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resudent Status

BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Lirited UK Tax Resitent  BL Meadowhall No 4 Limued UK Tax Resident

BL Broadgate Fragment 4 Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Office {Non-City] Holding Compaty UK Tax Resident

BL Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited UK Tax Residens  Larmited

BL Broadgate Fragment 6 Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Difice Hatding Company L imited UK Tax Resident

BL Chess Limited UK Tlax Resident  BL Osnaburgh St Residenuial [1d UK Tax Resident

BL ChessMa | Limiied Partnership UK Tax Resident  BL Piccadilly Residendial Limited UK Tax Resident

{Parinership Interest] BL Piccadilly Residential Managernent Co UK Tax Resident

BL City Ofhices Halding Company Lunited UK Tax Resident  Limted

BL Cliton Moor Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Piccadilly Residential Retail Lirited UK Tax Resident

BL Cwmbran Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Residential General Par tner Limited UK Tax Resident
150% interest]

BL Department 5t Holding C UK Tax Resident

le“ee%ar ent Slores Holing Lompany ax Residen BL Residential No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident

BL Doncaster Wheatley Limited UK Tax Resident B Residential No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident

BL Eden Waik J2012 Limited [Jer seyl Ovsrseas Tax Resident Bk Residual Holding Company Linuted UK Tax Resident

BL ESOP Lirruted [Isle of Man] Overseas Tax Resident Bk Retail Hotding Company Limied UK Tax Resident

BL Furopean Fund Management LLP UK Tax Resident 5L Retall Warehousing Holding Company UK Tax Resident

iMember Intes est] Limuted

BL European Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Sainsbury Superstores Lirmited [50% UK Tax Resident

BL Fixed Uplift Fund Limited Partnership
{Jersey]

Overseas Tex Resident

BL Fexed Uplift Fund Norminee No 1 Limited
fJerseyl

Overseas Tax Resident

trterest)

BL Shoreditch General Par tner Limited

UK lax Resident

BL Shoreditch Lirmited Partnership
{Partnership Interest]

UK Tax Resident

81 Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee No 2 Limited Overseas Tax Reswdent 8L Shoreditch No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Lersey] BL Shoreditch No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fund Limited [Jersey] Overseas Tax Resident  BL Superstores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
B! Goodman [Gener al Partner Limited UK Tax Resident  BL Triton Building Residential Limsted UK Tax Resident

[50% mteq esti

8t Goodman [LP] Limited

UK Tax Resident

8L Urit Trust Jersey)

Overseas Fax Resident

BL Unitholder No 1 LJ} Limited [Jersey)

Overseas Tax Resident

BL GP Chess No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident i (nutholder Mo 2 1] Lirnited Llersey] Over seas Tax Resident
gtigﬂ:glleeco Limuted [Limiaed by UK Tax Resident  g| (nwversat Limited UK Tax Resident
BL War drobe Court Holdings Lunited UK Tax Resident
gt :E :gggtlll LL'::IIS’ SE "Tr:: gzzij::t BL West [Watling House] Limited UK Tax Resident
Bl HC Dollview Limited UK Tax Resident g::zt?v\:s[: ;_.:!m’md 3ﬁ 'Tl'zi gzz:gz::
BL HC Hampshire PH LLP [Member UK Tax Resident
Interest] Blaxmill {Thurty ) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Health And Funess Holdings Limited UK Tgx Resident  Bloxmill (Twenty-ninel Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Invic Leisure Limited UK lax Resident  BLDIAI Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH CRG LLP [Member Interestt UK Tox Resident LD [Ebury Gatel Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH LLP {Member Interest) UK Tax Resident  BLD IS} Investmenis Limsted UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 1 LLP {Member Interesi} UK Tax Resident  BLOISJ Limited UK Tax Resident
BE HC PH No 2 LLP {Member Interest} UK Tax Residert  BLE Land Limeted UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 3 LLP {Member interest} UK Tax Resident  BLOC Properties Lumited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident  BLD Property Holdings Linuted UK Tax Resident
Bt Health Clubs PH Mo 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  BLT Holdings 2016 Lid [50% enterest] UK Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH Mo ? [ imuted UK Tax Resident  BLY Estates Linuted YK Tax Resident
BL High Street and Shopping Centres UK Jax Resdent  BLY Property Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Holding Company Lirnited BLL Securtires Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Lancasler Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident  British Land Loint Ventures) Limited UK Tax Resident
[Partnership Interest} Brivsh Land (White) 2015 Limited {Jerseyl UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhall [Jersey] Ltd Jersey) Overseas Tax Restdent  [Founder Shares)
BL Leadenhall CL Co Limited [Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident  British Land Acquistiions Lirnited UK Tax Resident
BL Leadenhall Holding Co lJersey) Ltd Overseas Tax Resident  Britsh Land Aqua Par tnershup {2] Lirited UK Tax Resident
{Jersey] Brissh Land Aqua Partnership Limited UK Tax Resident
Bl. Leisure and industrial Holding Campany UK Tax Resident  Brinsh Land Company Secretarial Lirmited UK Tax Resident
Lunited Briush Land Construction Limited UK Tax Resident
g:: m;ﬁﬁ;ﬁ:{fi:};:ﬁimne a zEE: g:::z:: Brinsh Land Departmen: Stores Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Meadowhall Lirmited o Restdent Brinsh Land Developiments Limited UK Tax Resident

Brinsh Land Ealing BV {Nethes lands]

Overseds lax Ressident
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Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Restdent Status

Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Reswlent Status

Britssh Land European Hotding BV
{Nether lands)

Overseas Tax Residert

City of London Office Unit Trust [Jerseyl
{Unis] 135 94% interest]

Overseas Tax Resident

Brinsh Land Fund Management Limsted UK Tax Resident  Comgenic Limnited UK Tax Resident
Brissh Land Hercules Limited UK Tax Resident  Cormish Residential Propes ties Trading UK Tax Resident
Britsh Land Hercules No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  Limited

Britsh | and Hercules No 3 Lirmited UK Tax Resideny  Cornish Residential Proper ty Investments UK Tax Resident
Bitish Land Hercules No 4 Lymited UK Tax Resident (l;'mlmd WoelP UK Tax Reordont
Briish Land HIF Limited UK Tax Resident rescent West Froperties ax resigen
Briush Land In Towe Retal Limited UK Tax Resident Deepdale Co-Ownership Trust IMember UK Tax Resident

MNus elal Limite AxResent  nreregt) [37 66% interest)

Briush Land Industrial Limited UK Tax Residert e by nvestment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Brinsh Land Investment Managerent UK Tax Resident

Limited

Biitish Land Investments NV [Netherlands)

LiK Tax Resident

Brivsh Land Investiments Netherlands BV
{Nethei lands)

Overseas Tax Resident

Briush Land Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident
Biitish Land Offices [Non-City) Limiied UK Tax Resident
British Land Offices [Non-Cityl No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident

British Land Gifices Limited

UK Tax Resident

British Land Gifices No 1 Limited

UK Tax Resident

Brtist: Land Proper ty Advisers Limuted

UK Tax Resident

Bntish Land Preperty Management Limited

UK Tax Resident

British Land Regener ation Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Retail Warehouses Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Superstores [Non Secur rtised) UK Tax Resident

Number 2 Lirnited

Rroadgate [PHC 8] Lirmited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgaie Adjorring Proper kies Limuted

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate Business Centre Limited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate City Lirnited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate Court Investments Lamled

UK Tax Residant

Broadgale Estates Limited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgaie Estates Peopte Management
Limited

UK Tax Resident

iroadgate Estates Retal Management
Limited

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate Exchange Square

UK Tax Restdent

Broadgale Investiment Holdings Limited

UK Tax Restdent

Broadgate REIT Linuted [Jerseyl 150%
interest)

UK Tax Resident

Broadgate Square Limited

UK Tax Resident

Dinwell Limited

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Property No t Limited

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Proper ty No ? Lirmsted

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Properly No 3 Limited

UK Tax Resident

Diomedes Property No 4 Limited

UK Tax Reswdent

Diomedes Property No 3 Limited UK Tax Resrdent
Diomedes Property No & Limited UK Tax Resident
Diwomedes Property No 7 Limited UK Tax Resident
Diomedes Property Ne 8 Linited UK Tax Resident
Drake Circus 6P L L T [United States) Overseas Tax Resident
Drake Circus Letsure Limited UK Tax Resident

Drake Circus Limuted Partaership [United
Siates] [Par tnership Interest]

Overseas fax Resident

Drake Circus Unit Trust [Jersey] [Units]

Overseas Tax Resulent

Di ake Property Holdings Limited

UK Tax Resident

Drake Property Norminee [No 1) Limited

UK Tax Resident

Drake Property Norminee [No 2] Limited

UK Tax Resident

Eden Walk Shopping Centre General
Partner Limited {50% inter est)

UK Tax Resident

Broughton Uit Trust [Jersey] [Units}
{75 31% mterest)

Overseas Tax Resident

Bioughton Retait Park Lirmited [Jerseyl
{75 31% interesti

UK Tax Resident

Brunswick Park L imited

UK Tax Resident

BVP Developments Limited

UK Tax Resident

Casegood Enter prises

UK Tax Resident

Caseplane Limiied

UK Tax Resident

Cavendish Geared k Limited

UK Tax Resident

Cavendish Geared Lirmiied

UK Tax Resident

Cavmall Lrmited

UK Tax Resident

Chantway Limited UK Tax Resident
Cheshine Proper ties Limited UK Tax Resident
Chrisily Nominees Limited UK Tax Resident

Clarges Estate Property Management Co
Limited

UK Tax Resident

Clifton Moor Limited

UK Tax Resident
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Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust
{dersey] [Unuts] 1503 mterest)

Overseas Tax Resident

Edinburgh Fort Unit Trust {Jersey] {Uniis)
[75 31% mterest)

Over seas Tax Resident

Elermnentvir tue Limited UK Tax Resident
Fuston Tower Limnited UK Tax Resident
Exchange House Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
f msbury Avenue Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Four Broadgate Limied UK Tax Resident
FRP Group Limited UK Tax Resident
Garamead Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Gardenray Limited UK Tax Resident
Gibraltar General Par tner Lunited |37 66% UK Tax Resident
interesth

Gibraltar Nominees Limsted {37 66% UK Tax Resident

wterest}

Gilibrook Retarl Park Notungham Limited

UK Tax Resident

Glenway Limited UK Tax Resident
Hempel Holdings Lirmited UK Tax Resident
Hempel Hotels Limited UK Tax Resident

Her cules Property Liruted Partnership
{Partnership Interest] [40 68% mterest]

UK Tax Resident

Hercules Property UK Holdings Lumited

UK Tax Resident

Hercules Property UK Lirmited

UK Tax Resident

Hercules Unit Trust [Jersey] [Units] [75 31%

nterest)

Overseas Tax Resident

Hereford Shopping Centre GP Limited

UK Tax Resident

Herefard Shopping Centre Limited
Partner ship [Pasinership Interest)

UK Tax Resident




Company Name

UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status

Hereford Shopping Centre Unit Trusk
{Jersey Units}

Overseas Tax Restdent

Hilden Properties Limited

UK Tax Resident

Horndrift Limited

UK Tax Resident

HUT Investmenis 2 Limited [Jersey)

(Overseas Tax Resident

HUT Investments Limited Jerseyl (75 31%
mterest]

Overseas Tax Resident

Industrial Real Estate Limtted

UK Tax Resiudent

Insistmetal 2 Limied

UK Tax Resident

varydell Lirmited

UK Tax Resident

ivorydell Subsidiary Lunited

UK 1ax Resident

Ivoryhult Limited

UK Tax Resident

Jetbloom Limited

UK Tax Resident

Comparny Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status
One Sheldon Square Limuted [Jersey| Overseas Tax Resident
Orbual Shopping Park Swindon Limited UK Tax Resident
Osnaburgh Street Limtted UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block A [GP) Ltd UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block A LP [Partnership Interest] UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block 8 {GP Ltd UK Tax Resident
Paddington Bleck B LP [Partnership Inter est} UK Tax Resident
Paddington Central H{BP] Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Central | LP [Partnership UK Tax Resident
Interest|

Paddington Centrat | Nominee Limied UK Tax Restdent

Paddington Centrat | Unit Trust { Jerseyl
(Unuts]

(Overseas Tax Resident

L & H Developments Limited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Cent at It [GPI Linited

UK Tax Resident

Lancaster General Partner Limited

UK Tax Resident

Paddington Centrat It LP

UK Tax Restdent

Lancaster Unit Trust [Jer sey) {Units]

Overseas Tax Resident

Leadenhali Holding Co [Jer sey] Ltd {Jersey)
(50% nterest]

UK Tax Resident

Liverpool One Management Company
Lirmuted {50% mterest]

UK Tax Restdent

Paddington Central IE Urat Trust {Jer seyl
[Units]

Overseas Tax Residert

Paddington Central IV Unit Trust Llersey)
[Units]

Overseas Tax Resident

Paddington Kiosk [GF] Ltd

UK Tax Resident

Liverpool One Management Services Limited UK Tax Resident  Paddington ¥aosk LP UK Tax Resident
London and Henley {UK] Limned UK Tax Resident  Paddmgton Central Management Company UK Tax Resident
London and Henley Limited UK Tax Resident  Ltted (87 50% interest)

Lonebridge UK Limited UK Tax Resident  Pardev [Broadwayl Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Longlor d Street Ressdential Limited UK Tax Resident  Pardey (Luton] Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate investment Holdings | mmited UK Tax Resident  PannvNorthern Lirnded UK Tax Resident
Ludgate West Limited UK Tax Resident  Farwick Holdings Limited UK 7ax Resident
Manhrig Proper ues UK Tax Resident  Farwick Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
Marble Arch House Unit Trust [Jersey] Overseas Tax Resident  Farwick Properties Limited [Jerseyl UK Tax Resident
[Uruts] PC Baltic Wharf Limited UK Tax Resident
Maytair Properties UK Tax Resident  PC Canal Limuted UK Tax Resident
Mayflower Retail Park Basildon Limited UK Tax Resident  PC Lease Nommnee Ltd UK Tax Restdent
Meadowbank Retait Park Edinburgh Limited UK Tax Residens  PC Partnership Nominee Litd UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre [1999) Limited UK Tax Resident  PCourt Unit Trust [Jersey] [Units) Overseaqs Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Limited UKTax Resident  Pillar [Becklon] Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Cenire Penston Scheme UK Tax Resident  Pallar [Birstall) Limned UK, Tax Resident
Trustees Limried Pillar [Cricklewoad) Limuted UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Estates {UKI Limited UK Tax Resident  pyjiar [Dartford) Limied UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Gr oup [MLP) Limited UK Tax Resident 1 [Fitram] Lirted UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident Pillar [Kirkealdy) Lmited UK Tax Resident
Meadovshall Opportuntties GP Limited UK Tax Resident  pyiar Auchsntea Limited UK Tax Resident
Hersey) Prlar Brcadway Limiied UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Opportunities Limited UK Tax Resident

Parwnership {Jersey} Partnership Interest] Pitlar Cheethamn Hitt Limnited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Gpportunities Normnee 1 UK Tax Resident  P1llar City Pic UK Tax Resident
Limited Pillar Dar tford No 1 Limited UK Tax Restdent
Meadowhatl Oppertunsties Nominee 2 UK Tax Resident  Pitlar Denton Limited UK Tax Resident
Lirmited Pitlar Developmenis Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Traming Limited UK Tax Resident  py)|lar Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercarn UKTax Resident  piljar Estates No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercar Holdings Limiled UKTax Resident  Pil{ar Eurape Management Limited UK Tax Restdent
Minhil Investments Limited UK Tax Resident  PiHar Farnbos ough Limited UK Tax Restdent
Moot age [Property Developments] Lirnited UK Tax Resadent  Pitar Fort Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorhetds Norinee 1 Limited UK Tax Resident  pyliar Futham No 2 Limited UK Tax Restdent
Moorfields Norunee 2 Limiied UK Tax Residen!  piiar Galtions Reach Lirmted UK Tax Restdent
Nugent Shopping Park Lirruted UK TaxResident  piilar Glasgow 1 Limited UK Tax Restdent
Number 80 Cheapside Limited UK Tax Resident  Pillar Glasgow 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
One Hundred Ludgate Hill UK Tax Resident
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Company Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status ~ Comipany Name UK/Overseas Tax Resident Status
Pillar Glasgow 3 Limned UK Tax Resident  TBL [Lisnagebvin] Linmted UK Tax Resident
Pillar Hercutes No 2 Limeted UK Tax Resident  TBL IMaidstonel Lirmted UK Tax Resident
Pillar Kinnaird Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Milton Keynesj Limited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Nugent Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL [Peterborough] Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Pillar Projects Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Piilar Property Gioup Limited UK Tax Resident  TBL Properues Limied UK Tax Resident
Piliar Retall Europark Fund [Pref] Overseas Tax Resident  Teesside Leisure Park Limuted 151% nierest] UK Tax Resident
[Luxembour gl [Member Interest [65 30% The Aldgate Place Limited Partnership UK Tax Restdent
inerest) (Partnership Interest] (50% interestl
Piiar Retalt Parks Limited UK Tax Resident  ¢he Briush Land Resdental Lirmded UK Tax Resident
Pitlar Speke Limited UK Tax Resident  Partnershup [Par tner ship Interest} (S0%
PillarCaisse Management Limited {50% UK Tax Resident  Interest)
interest) The Dartiord Parinership [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident
Pittarman Linuted UK Tax Resident  [30% interest
PiltarStore Lumited UK Tax Resident 1 he Gibraltar Limited Partnership [37 66% LK Tax Resident
interest]
PillarStere Nog 3 Limited UK Tax Resident
l 2L The Liver pool Exchange Company Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Power Cour t GP | imted UK Tax Resident
The Mary Street Estate Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Luton Limided Partnership UK Tax Resident
(Par tnership Interest] The Meadowhall Fducation Centi e [Linuted UK Tax Resident
by Guarantee} {50% interestl
Power Court Morminee Lirnited UK Tax Resident The Retarland Wareh C Lrmed UK Tax Roerdont
Power Court Nominges No 2 [ imited UK Tax Resident B Tela anc arenouse L ompany 2 291

PREF Management Company $A [Spain|

Dverseas Tax Resident

The TBL Proper ty Parinership [Partner ship
Interest]

UK Tax Resident

Project Sunnise Investments Limited UK Tax Resident 7., Whiteley Co-Owner ship Trust {Member UK Tax Resident
Project Sunrise Limited UKTax Restdent  Interest) 150% interest]
Project Sunrise Properuies Limited UK Tax Restdent  TPP Investments Limited UK Jax Resident
Reboline Limited UK Tax Resident  Tweed Premser 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Regent s Place Heldimg Company Linuted UK Tax Resident  Tweed Premier 2 Limited LK lax Restdent
Regents Place Managerment Company UK TaxResident  Tweed Premier 4 Limiled UK Fax Residen:
Lunited Unton Property Corporation Limited Ui Tax Resident
Renash UK TaxResident 5,05 Praperty Holdings [London) Lirmsted UK Tax Resident
Rigphone Limited UK TaxResident  {jpeqd #ingdom Praperty Company Limited UK Tax Resident
Ritesot UK Tax Resident ;-3 Es1ates Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Rohawk Properties | imited UK Tax Resident  yatenting Co-owrership T ust (Member UK Tax Resident
Salmax Proper ties UK Tax Resident  interest] [37 66% mterest]
Seyrmour Street Homes Limited UK Tax Resident  Valentine Unit Trust {Jersey) (Units] 175 31% Overseas Tax Resident
Shopping Centres Lieniied UK Tax Resident  Interest)
Six Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resident  Yicimtee Limded UK Tax Resident
Scuthgale General Par tner Limited (50% UK Tax Resident  Yintners Place Limited UK Tax Resident
inter est) Wardrobe Court Limited UK Tax Resident
Southgate Proper ty Unit Trust [Jersey) Overseas TaxResident  Wardrobe Holdings Limuled UK Tax Resident
(Unnts} {50% iterest) Wardrobe Place Limited UK Tax Resident
Speke Ulml Trust (Jersey] [Unitsl {65 9% Oversees Tax Resident (oo City of London Proper ties Limited UK Tax Resident
;‘;;?::151[318 ] UK Tax Rosndont Wates City Pont Limuted UK Tax Resident
St Jarmes Par ade [43] Lurnied UK Tox Romdomt Wates City Properly Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Westhourne Tertace Partnership UK Tax Resident
St James Retaul Park Northampton Limited UK Tax Resident {Partnership Interest]
St Stephens Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident  wecigate Retail Park Wakekeld Limited UK lax Resident
Stockton Retatl Park Limied UK Tax Resident Whiteley Shopming Centr e Unst Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Surrey Quays Lirmited UK Tax Resident  § Jersey] [Units)
Sydale UK Tax Residert WK [Austral House| First Limited UK Tax Resident
T [Partaership] Lirvted UK Tax Residert WK [Austral Housel Second Limited UK Tax Ressdent
Tadress Limited UK Taz Resident WK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Brent Park] Limited UK Tax Resident  York House W1 Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Bromley) Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Bursledon] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Bury} Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Ferndown) Lirnited UK Tax Resident
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
UNAUDITED

Table A- Summary mcome statement and balance sheet

Summary income stalement based on proportional consolidation for the year ended 31 March 2016
The followmng pre forma information 1s unaudited and does not form pari of the consolidated primary statements or the notes thereto it presents the
resutts of the Group with its share of the results of joint ventures and {unds mncluded on a Uine-by-line basts and excluding non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 March 2016 Year ended 31 March 2015

Less Less
Joint ventures non-controliing Proportionally Jaintventures  non-controlling  Proporticnally
Group and funds interests  consolidated Group and funds interests  consolidated
£m €m &m £m tm Em £m Em
Gross rental income 451 23 {28) &54 399 250 131 618
Property operating expenses {28) (%) 1 134] 124) {10} 1 [33)
Net rental :ncome 425 222 (27 620 375 240 (300 585
Administrative expenses 93! (sl 4 [94) (85] [H] 1 {88}
Net fees and other income 16 - 1 17 15 - 2 17
Ungeared Income Return 348 217 122} 543 3ns 236 [27] 514
Net financing costs 104} (82} 8 {180) [105) ho/l 11 [201)
Underlying Profit 242 135 {14} 343 200 129 18] 313
Undertying taxation 2 - - 2 - - - -
Underlying Prafit after taxation 244 135 14} 355 200 129 (113 313
Valuation movement 841 1473
Qther capita! and laxation fnei)’ 48 50
Capitat and other 09 1523
Total return 1,274 1836

' Includas other comprehensive iIncome mavement in dilution of share oplions and the movement 10 items excluded far EPRA NAV
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table A (continued)

Summary balance sheet based on proportionat consolidation as at 31 March 2015

The foltowing pro forma information is unaudited and does not farm part of the consolidated primary staiements or ihe notes thereto It presents
the camposition of the EPRA net assets of the Group with i1s share of the net assets of the joint venture and fund asseis and liabiliies included
on a line-by-line basis and excluding non-contr olling nterests and assumimng full dilution

Mark ig-
markei oA
effectve cash
Share of Less flow hedges Valuation ~ EPRAMNet EPRAMNet
joint ' nan and related Convertible  surptuson assets assets
ventures  contreli ng Share  Deferred debt Head bond trading 3 March 31 March
Group & funds nterests  options tax  adustments leases adjustment  properties 2016 2015
tm tm £m £m fm £m £m fm £m £m fm
Retast properties 5 662 2109 {400] - - - (30} - - 7.3 7314
Office properties 4118 2835 - - - - (4] - 87 7,024 6050
Canada Water
propet ties 283 - - - - - (6] - 6 283 273
Other properties - - - - - - - - - - 40
Total proper ies 10 063 4944 {4004 - - - (52] - 93 14,648 13 677
Investments in jomt
ventures and funds 3353 13 3531 - - - - - - - - -
Other invesiments 142 14) - - - - - - - 138 256
Other net [iabilities)
assels 1322) (121} 3 36 9 - 52 - - 1347 (280)
Net debt (3 617) {1466} 120 - - 198 - - - {4,745) |46 918]
Dilution due to
conver bible bond - - - - - - - 400 - 400 400
Net assets 9619 - (277] 36 ) 198 - 400 93 10,074 9 (35
EPRA NAY per shaie
inote 2] !119p 829
EPRA Net Assets Movement
Year ended Year ended
31March 2016 31 March 2015
Pence per Pence per
€m share fm share
Opeming EPRA NAV 9.035 829 7027 688
Income return 3565 A 313 3
Capital return 09 77 1523 145
Dwadend paid (235} (211 (278] £27
Ditution due to 2012 convertble bond - - 408 (8]
Closing EPRA NAV 10,074 1Y 9035 829
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Table B EPRA Performance measures

EPRA Performance measures summary table

018 2015
Pence per Pence per
£m share £m share
EPRAEarnings - basic 345 356 313 308
~ dituted 3N 341 319 295
EPRA Net Initiat Yield 41% 43%
EPRA topped-up Netlnitial Yield 4 5% 4 8%
EPRA Vacancy Rate 2 0% 2 9%
2016 2015
et asset Met asset
value per value per
Netassets share pence Net assets  share pence
EPRANAY 10,074 919 9035 829
EPRA NNNAV 9,640 880 8 359 767
Calcutation and reconciliation of EPRA/IFRS earnings and EPRA/IFRS earnings per share
2016 2015
£m tm
Prohit atirnbutable to the shareholders of the Company 1,348 1710
Exctude
Group - curtent taxation (2 1
Group - deferred taxation (31 23
Jomtventures and funds  current taxabhon 1 2
Joint ventu: es and funds - deferted taxation - 14}
Group - valuation movermnent (618) {884l
Group - prefit on disposal of investment p1 operties and investments (35] (20
Group - profit on dispesal of trading properties {10] (8l
Jontventures and funds - net valuation movement fincluding resutt on disposals| [243) {593]
Changes in fairvalue of financial instruments and associated close-out costs (31) AT
Non-controthing interests in zespect of the above 8 39
Underlying Profit 363 3i3
Group - underlying current taxation 2 -
EPRA earnings - basic 345 313
Dilutve effect of 2012 convertible bond é )
EPRA earnings - diluted 3n 319
Praofit attributable to the sharehaolders of the Cornpany 1,345 1710
Oudutive effect of 2012 convertible bond [ -
IFRS earnings - diluted 1,351 1710
2015 2015
Number Number
mullion rmilbion
Weighted average number of shares . 1,036 1027
Adpustment for Treasury shares {11 {111
IFRS/EPRA Weighted average number of shares tbasic) 1,025 1016
Duutive eifect of share aptions 2 Z
Dilutive effect of ESQOP shares 4 4
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond 58 -
IFRS Weighted average number of shares (diluted) 1,089 1022
Dilutive effect of 2012 converuble bond - 58
EPRA Weighted average number of shares [diluted) 1,089 1080
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
UNAUDITED

Table B continued

Net assets per share

201¢ 205
Pence Pence
fm  pershare Em  pershare
Balance sheat net assets 9,819 g 503
Deterred tax aising on revalualion movements 5 13
Mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments 198 757
Dilutton effect of share options 36 37
Surplus on trading properties 93 96
Convertible bond adjustment 400 400
Less non-controlling interests (277 (333)
EPRA NAV 10,074 919 2015 829
Deferred tax anising on revalualion movements 124) (13]
Mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments {153) [257)
Mark-to-market on debt (257) {406)
EPRA NNNAY 9,640 880 8359 767
EPRA NNNAV s the EPRA NAV adiusted tas eflect the fasr value of the debt and deswatives and to include the deferted taxation an revaluations
and derivatives
2016 2008
Number Mumber
milbion rmitlion
Number of shares at year end 1,040 103
Adjustment for treasury shares 11 11
IFRS/EPRA number of shares [basic) 1,029 1020
Ditutive effect of share options 2 4
Ditutive effect of ESOP shares 7 B8
Diutive effect of 2012 convertible bond 58 -
IFRS number of shares {diluted) 1096 1032
Dilutive etfect of 2012 convertible hond - 54
EPRA number of shares (diluted) 1,094 1 090
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Table B conanued

EPRA Net Initial Yield and ‘topped-up Net Initial Yield

s 2015
€m Een
Investment praperty - wholly-owned 9,787 2048
Invesiment property - share of jont ventures and funds 4,861 4 569
Less devetopments residential and land {894) {1148
Completed property portfolio 13,754 12 489
Allowance for estmated purchasers costs 985 784
Gross up completed property portiolio valuation 14,739 13273
Annualised cash passing rental ncome 507 575
Proper ty outgaings (sl (8
Annualised net rents 599 567
Rent expu atron of rent-free periods and fixed uplifts! 43 &4
Topped-up netannualised rent 662 631
EPRA Net Imbal Yield & 1% 4 3%
EPRA topped-up’ Net Imtial Yietd 4 5% 4 8%
Including fiked/minimum uplifts receved i liew of rental growth 24 26
Total topped-up’ netrents 684 657
Overall topped-up Netimtial Yeeld & 7% 4 9%
Topped-up net annuatised rent 662 631
ERVvacant space 14 20
Reversions 42 18
Total ERV 718 569
Net Reversionary Yield 4 9% 5 0%

The weighted average pertod over which rent-free penods expre s 1 year [Z014/15 t year]
The above 1s stated for the UK portfolio only

EPRA Net Initial Yield (NIY) basis of calculauion

EPRA NIY s catculated as the annualised net rent fon a cash llaw basis] divided by the gross value of the completed property portfolio The valuation
of our compieted property pertfolio 1s determined by our external valuers as at 31 March 2014 plus an allowance for estimated purchaser s costs
Esumated purchaser s costs are determined by the relevant stamp duty liability ptus an estimate by our vatuers of agent and legat fees on notignal
acquisition The net rent deduction atlowed for praperty outgoings s based on our valuers assumptions on future recuriing non-recoverable revenue
expenditure

In calculating the EPRA 1opped-up NIY the annualised net rent s imcreased by the total contracted rent from expiry of rent-iree periods and future
contracted rentat uplifts where delined as not in lieu of growth Overall topped-up NIY s calculated by adding any other contracted future uplifi to
the topped-up netannuabised rent

The net reversionary yield 1s calculated by dividing the total estimated remtdl value [ERV) for the compteted property portfolie as determined by our
external valuers by the gross completed property portfolio valuation

The EPRA vacancy rate s calculated as the ERV of the unrented lettable space as @ proporiion of the total s ental value of the completed proper ty
por tfolio

EPRA Vacancy Rate
2016 2015
€m £m
Annualised potential rental value of vacant premses 14 20
Annualised potential rental value for the completed property partfolio 728 692
EPRA Yacancy Rate 2 0% 29%

The above 15 stated for the UK portfolio only
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Financial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUDITED

Table B continued

EPRA Cost Ratios

2016 2015

Em £m

Property operating expenses 25 723
Administr ative expenses 90 84
Share of joint ventures and funds expenses 13 14
Less Pertormance and management fees {from joint ventures and funds) 19 {9
Net other fees and commissions 1] (8l
Ground rent casls {3 [3]

EPRA Costs lincluding direct vacancy costsi (Al 108 10
Direct vacancy costs (14 i
EPRA Costs [excluding direct vacancy costs| [B) 97 90
Gross Rental thcome less gt ound rent costs 429 374
Share of joint ventus es and funds [GRIless ground 1ent costs] 222 245
Total Gross Rental income less ground rent costs {C) 551 815
EPRA Cost Ratio including direct vacancy costs] [A/C] 16 8% 16 4%
EPRA Cost Ratio lexctuding direct vacancy costs} [B/C) 14 9% 14 6%
Overhead and operaling expenses capitalised [including share of joint ventures and funds) 4 -

In the current year employee costs inrelation 1o staff ime on development pi ojects have been capitalised into the base cost of relevant development

assets [

Table C Gross 1ental income

2016 015

£m £

Rent receivable 815 581
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranieed rent increases 36 33
Surrender premia 3 4
Gross rental income 654 418

The current and prioi period information is presented on a proportionally consobdated basis excluding non-controlling mlerests
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Table D: Property related capital expenditure

2016 Zn5

Joint Joint

ventures ventures
Group and funds Total Group and funds Total
Acquisiions 238 - 238 147 - 147
Development 104 58 162 b4 a3 147
Like-far like portfolio 99 L] 105 67 23 0
Other 25 18 40 25 g 33
Total property related capex Léb 79 545 303 114 417

The above 15 presented on a proportionally consolidated basis exctuding non- cantrolling interests and business combinations The Other category
contains amounis owing to tenant incentives of £27m (2014/15 €18m] capitalised stafl costs of £4m [2014/15 Enil} and capitalised inter est of £9m

[2014/15 £15m)
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Uther Tuformation

UNAUDITED
Acquisitons and disposals
Acquisitions

Price Price Annual

|Gross)  IBL Share] Passing Rent
From % April 2015 Area £m £m £
Completed
i Sheldon Square Offices tondon 210 210 10
Hercules Unit Trust unit put chase! Retail Vartous g5 25 5
19-33 Liver pool Street Offices Londan 22 22 1
Broughton Chester development tand Retad Narth West 3 3 -
Teesside Lersure Park Relad North East 2 2 -
Total 334 332 16
Urits purchased over the course of the perind £95m represents purchased GAY

< BL share of net rent topped up for rent frees
Disposals

Price Price Annual

[Gross)  {BL Share] Passing Rent

From 1 Apnl 2015 Area £m Em £m
Completed
Parkgate Rotherham Retail Yorkshire 170 120 6
39 Victora Street Ofhices London 139 139 5
Birstall, Leeds Retail Yorkshire 107 3 z
PREF - France and Portugal Retall Europe &7 43 4
Hatters Way |uton & Hytton Riverside Sunderland Retail Various 45 34 2
560 London Road Camber ley Relail South 38 38 2
Debenhams, Oxiord Retail South 723 23 1
The Hempet Collection Residential London 20 20 -
Supeistore disposals ) Retail Various 154 127 b
B&M BDaventry Retail Midlands 9 g 1
Bedford Street Residential London 4 4 -
Aldgate Place Residential Londan i 1 -
Exchanged
Aldgate Place Residential L.ondon 32 16 -
The Hempel Collection Residential London 18 18 -
Total 827 618 29

BL share of annualised rent topped up for rent trees
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Gross rental income' ?

12 months to 31 March 2014

Anruabsed as 8t 31 March 216

Me & s &

Accounting basis Em Group Funds? Total Group Funds’ Total
Regionat 55 89 144 92 83 135
Local 100 26 126 91 26 123
Mutti-tets 155 115 270 149 109 258
Department Stores & Leisure 57 - 57 56 - 56
Superstores 1 36 47 9 35 44
Solus/Other 2 - 2t 18 - 18
Retail & Leisure 244 151 395 232 144 376
West Fnd 125 - 125 125 - 125
City 3 114 119 5 19 124
Offices 130 14 244 130 19 249
Residential® 3 - 3 3 - 3
Ctfices & Residential 133 W4 247 133 119 252
Canada Water 8 - 8 8 - 8
Total 385 265 450 373 263 636
Table shows UK total with previous classification provided en Campany website www britishland com/results
' Excluding developments under construction and assets held for development
? Gross rental income will differ from annuabised 1 ents due to accounting adjustments for fixed and nunsmum contracted rental uplifts and lease incentives
? Groups share of properties in Joint ventures and funds including HUT al share
* Stand-atone ¢ esidentiat
Major holdngs
At 31 March 2016 BL Share Sgft Rent  Occupancy Lease
lexctuding developments under construction) el £m pa' rate %?  length yrs?
Broadgate 30 &724 226 93 78
Regent s Place 100 1590 79 987 T4
Paddington Centrai 100 06 33 998 78
Meadowhali 50 1500 89 983 69
Samshury s Supersiores® 50 2528 56 1060 149
The Leadenhall Bullding 56 603 37 978 196
Dehenhams Oxford Street 100 363 1N mnao 230
Teastde 100 56% 15 991 57
Glasgow Fort 100 50 14 94 2 &5
Drake s Circus 100 570 16 98 4 52
' Annualised EPRA contracted remt including 100% of joint ventures and funids
? Inciudes accommodation under offer or subject to asset management 2t 31 March 2014
? Weighted average to hirst break
* Comprises stand-along assets/properues
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Other Information

UNAUODITED CONTINUED

Occupiers representing over 0.5% of total contracted rent

% of total 56 of total
At 31 March 2014 rent’ rent
UBS AG! 57 New Look 09
Tesco plc 56 Vodafane 09
Debenhams 53 SporisDirect 09
1 Sainsbury Plc 46 Aon Ple 08
Kingfisher [B&Q1 26 Asda Group 08
HM Government 22 Home Retail Group 08
Next plc 21 JPMorgan 07
Virgin Active 18 Reed Smith 07
Facebook 17 Hennes 07
Spint Group 16 Deutsche Bank AG 07
Alhance Boots ib JDSports 07
Westarmers 14 Mayer Brown e7
Visa Inc 14 Mothercare 07
Dixons Carphone 14 ICAP Ple 06
Marks & Spencet Plc 14 Lend Lease 06
Arcadia Group 13 Carlson [TGI Friday s 06
Dentsu Aegrs 13 Pets at Home 0s
Herbert Smith 12 Credit Agricole 05
RBS 1" Lews Trust 05
TJX Cos tnc [TK Maxx) 10 Steinhoff 0%
Gazprom 10

' Rent contracted on both 5 Groadgate and 1 3F insbury Avenue/100 Liverpool Street lease whilst UBS move 3 0% pro-farrna for run off of UBS rent at 1-3 Finsbury
Avenue/ 100 Liverpoot Street
? Includes the impact of rent-free mcentives
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Portfolio valuation

Change %
s &
Group Funds To'al

At 31 March 2016 £m &m fm H1 H2 FY
Regional 1052 1792 2 844 28 02 30
Locat 1893 485 2378 15 1i 26
Multi-lets 2,945 2,277 5,222 22 06 28
Depas trnent Stores & Lessure 1004 1 1005 34 75 60
Superstot es 153 478 781 (17 to 5l {21l
Solus/Other 333 - 333 (LR (04} 65}
Retail & Lessure? 4,435 2,906 7.341 18 07 24
West End 3904 - 3904 81 ib 128
City 104 2782 2886 85 24 mi

Offices 4,008 2,782 6,790 83 37 121

Restdential* 173 61 234 67 (03l 57

Offices & Residential’ 4,181 2,843 7.024 82 ab nsa
Canada Water 283 - 283 2.4 (LK) 17
Total 8,899 5,749 14,648 47 20 67
Standeng tnvestments 8,204 5,473 13,877 45 19 64
Developments £95 76 mnm 59 31 4

Table with p1 evious ciassidicatien prowided on Company website 3t www britishland com/fresults

' Groups share of properbies in st ventures and funds including HUT at ownership share
? valuation mavemens during the pertad [after taking account of capital expenditurel of properties held at the balance sheet date inciuding developments Iclassified by

end usz] purchases and sales

* Inctuding comnutted developments

* Stand-alone residential

Retail portfoho valuation - previous classificatton basis

Valuation' Change %* ERV Growth %? NEY Yield Cormpression bps
At 31 March 2016 £m H1 H2 FY Hi H2 FY Ht H?2 FY
Shopping Parks* 3346 11 03 13 0ne 19 28 5 2 7
Shopping Centres 2205 38 a9 47 20 19 39 14 5 18
Superstores 781 It 6 (03} 21 0%t 03] (13} (s} 1 (6]
Department Stores 406 29 30 40 - 03 03 12 13 25
Leisure 403 42 18 61 03 03 B4 722 23 54
Retail & Lessure® 7,341 18 07 24 k] 15 24 8 5 13

Group s share of groperties in joint ventures and funds includ ng HUT at share
* Valuat:on maovement during the perod [afler taking account of capral expenditure] of properties held at the batance sheetdate including developments [classified by

end use| purchases and sales
1 Ascalculated by IPD

= Solus/Other assets under current Retail segmentatian previously inctuded in Shopprng Parks

" Inctuding committed developments
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Other Information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Portfoho weighting
216 2016 2016

205 [current] leurrent]  {pro-forma |
Ar 31 March % % tm %
Regional 202 194 2844 190
Local 58 163 2378 159
Multi-lets 370 387 5,222 349
Department Stores & Leisu e 71 69 1005 67
Superslores &7 53 781 22
Solus/Other 28 23 333 22
Retail & Leisure 536 502 7,341 490
Wesi End 239 266 3904 280
City 188 197 2886 193
Dffices 427 4462 6,790 473
Residenuat? 19 16 234 18
Otfices & Residential [ 1Y) 479 7.024 491
Canada Water 18 19 283 19
Tetal 1000 160 0 14,648 1000
London Weighting 55% 58% 8,450 59%
Table with previous classification provided on Company website www britishland com/resuits
" Proforma for developrments under constructian at estimated end value [as determined by the Group s external vatuers} and post period end transactions
* Siand alone residential
Portfolio vicld and ERV mosvements?

NEY ERY Growth %’ NEY Yield Cempression bps?

At 31 March 20 % Hi H2 FY Hi HZ FY
Regienal 48 17 18 35 11 4 15
Local 52 10 72 313 7 2 9
Multi-tets 50 14 20 34 g 3 12
Department Stores & Leisure 51 02 0z 04 19 17 37
Superstores 52 o9 (03) 13 {51 i 161
Solus/Other 51 01 oo 01 1 i 2
Retail & Leisure 50 09 15 24 [:] 5 13
West End 44 41 56 99 24 3 28
Ciy* 44 48 43 93 16 {4) 12
Offices L4 [ X 50 96 20 (0 21
Canada Water 32 02 02 05 11 1 13
Total &7 23 30 53 13 3 17

Tabie with previous ctassiication provided on Company website www britishland com/results

' Excluding developrments under monstruclion assets held for development and residential assels
¢ As calcutated by IPD

+ Inclueding notional pyrchaser s costs

* City ERV growth of 7 3% and West End ERV growth of 719 on a kke-for Uke basis
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Total property return (as caleulated by 1PD)

FY to 31 March 2016 Retal Offices Total
% Brit:sh Land PO Bnish Land IPD  BntshlLand PG
Capital Return 25 23 123 11 &8 53
- ERV Growth 24 14 g6 78 53 40
-Yield Compression’ 13 bps 18 bps 21 bps 20bps 17 hps 23 bps
Income Retuin 32 51 32 39 47 47
Total Property Return 78 7.5 158 154 13 13
Net eguivalent yield movement
Portfolio net vields! 2
EPRA topped Overatl Net Net
EPRA net  up netintial topped up net equivalent reversionary
niial yeld yeld  intialyreld yield yield
At 3% March 2016 % o B % %
Regional 43 44 45 48 48
tocal £8 51 52 572 52
Mutti-tets 45 L7 48 50 50
Department Stores & Lersure 47 48 &4 51 40
Superstores 53 533 53 22 52
Solus/Other 56 56 54 51 47
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
West End 35 39 40 44 46
Caty 32 44 45 44 53
Offices 34 42 42 4 4 49
Canada Water 28 28 28 32 J4
Tatal 41 495 47 47 49
' Including notienal purchaser s costs
Excluding developmeants under construction assets held for development and residential assets
¥ including rent contracted trom expiry of rent-free periods and fixed uplifts not in Lieu of rental growth
* Inctuding fixed/munimum upliéts [excluded from EPRA dehnitian|
Portfoho net vields' 2 — previous classificatbon basis
EPRA topped (verall Net Net
EPRA net up metimbal tappedup net  equwalent  reversionary
initial yield yield  intial yield yield yield
At 31 March 2014 % %! % % %
Shapping Parks 47 49 49 31 50
Shopping Centres 45 L6 47 49 49
Superstores 53 53 53 52 52
Department Stores 3¢9 39 54 42 35
Leisure 61 61 76 b4 48
Retail & Leisure 47 48 51 50 49
Including notienal purchaser s costs
¢ Excluding developments under construction @ssets held for develepment and residental assels
! Including rent contracied from expiry of rent-free periods and fixed uplifts netin lieu of rental grawth
= tncluding fixed/m:n mum upbits [excluded from EPRA defimiion}
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(rther Enformuation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Lease length and cccupancev!

Average lease length years Occupancy rate %o

Qccupancy
At 31 March 2014 Toexpiry To break Occupancy  [undertyingl
Regional 79 69 958 978
Local 87 75 989 9¢6
Multi-lets 83 72 §73 984
Depai timent Stores & Leisure 197 126 000 1000
Superstores 142 138 1000 1000
Solus/Ottrer 105 105 10610 1000
Retail & Leisure 10 6 98 98 0 970
West End 95 75 978 981
City 102 83 98 4 991
Offices 98 79 981 86
Canada Water 75 74 98 4 §91
Total 102 90 $8 0 98
Tabie with previous ar IPD classification provided on Campany website www britishland com/results
' Excluding devetopments under canstruction ard asse*s hetd for development
* Including accommodation under offer or subject to asset management
Annualised rent and estimated rental value (ERV)!

Annuatised rent
[valuation basis) £m? ERVEm Average rent £pst
Vs &

At 31 March 2014 Group Funds Total Total Contracted® ERY
Regronal 54 84 138 155 328 359
Local 97 27 124 134 2472 247
Multi-lets 181 m 262 289 2810 297
Departmeni Stores & Leisure o1 - 51 44 153 131
Superstores k4 35 44 43 214 268
Solus/Other 18 - 18 16 88 160
Retail & Leisure 229 146 375 392 240 243
West End 125 - 125 165 515 606
City 5 P4 9% 162 509 663
Offices 130 9% 224 327 510 604
Ressdential 3 - 3 4
Offices & Residential 133 94 227 3N
Canada Water 8 - 8 b 187 214
Total 370 240 610 732 301 32 6

Table with previous classification provided on Company website at www britishland com/results
Excluding devetopments under construction and asseis hetd for development

? Gross rents plus where rent rev ews are outstanding any increases 1o ERV {as determined by the Group s external valuers) less any ground rents payable under head
leases excludes contracted rent sub,ect to rent free and tuture upleft

= Annuabsed rent plus rent subject tarent free

* Stand-alone residential
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Rent subject to open marhet rent review!

At 31 March 2016 7 08 2019 2020 02 2017-19 20372t
For penod te 31 March Em Em fm m £m m Em
Regional 15 12 17 i0 18 44 72
Local 11 24 il 12 1 b1 79
Multi-lets 26 36 38 22 29 100 151
Bepartment Stores & Leisure - - - - - - -
Superstores 5 4 8 12 14 17 43
Solus/Other - 1 - - - 1 1
Retail & Leisure 3N 41 13 34 43 118 195
West End 6 20 20 5 ? 46 63
City 1 4 13 t4 16 18 48
Offices 7 24 33 29 18 &4 1t
Canada Water - - - - - - -
Totat a3 65 KA 43 ) 182 304
Potential uplift at current ERV 1 2 4 2 i 7 10
Table with previous classification previded on Cormpany website www britishland com/results
' Excluding developments under consiruction residential assets and assets held for development
Rent subject to lease break or expiry?
At 31 March 2016 M7 2048 2019 2020 02 719 7 AN
For penod to 31 March im £m £ m £m L £m
Reguonal 13 12 9 13 9 34 96
l.ocal 9 b 8 1 ? 23 43
Mutti-lets 22 18 17 24 18 57 99
Department Stores & | eisure - 1 - - - 1 1
Superstores - - - - - - -
Solus/Other 1 - - - b 1 7
Retail & Leisure 23 19 17 24 24 59 107
West End 10 8 10 4 19 28 2
City 17 K] 17 14 8 37 59
Offices? 27 # 27 18 27 &5 10
Canada Water 1 - 1 - 1 2 3
Total 51 30 45 42 52 126 220
% of contracted rent 73% 4 L% 6 5% 61% 7 6% 18 2% 3N9%
Potential uplift at current ERV? 4 3 n 4 1 18 23
Tabte with previous classification provided on Company websile www britishland com/results
' Excluding developments under canstruction and assets held {or development
* Based on office space only
' Asdetermined by the Group s valuers excluding near term developrrents
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Other Enformution

UNAUDITED CONTINUED
Superstores

Stand-alane Superstores’ In Multr et asselst Total Exposure’ 22

Valuaton Capital Valuation Capttal Valuation Capital

Store Size Ne of {BL share} Vatue WALL Noal [BL sharel Value WALL Moof [BL share] Value WALL
000 sqfi Stares £m psf wFB Stores Em psi o FB Stores fm psf to FB
=100 8 177 351 124 5 357 538 130 13 534 457 128
75-100 13 270 467 179 2 55 415 128 15 375 457 170
50-75 15 256 404 126 1 12 196 11 17 268 385 123
25-50 8 52 226 83 3 32 457 1446 11 84 281 104
(-25 2 8 177 91 17 80 434 11 19 88 387 109
March 2016 47 763 383 139 28 536 482 1227 75 1,299 419 135
March 2015 57 924 395 145 29 529 491 139 8é 3,453 426 14 4
Geographical Spread Gross Rent [BL Share) Lease Structure
London & South 57% Tesco £37m RP! and Fixed 8%
Rest of UK 43% Sainsburys f30m  OMRR 92%

Other £9im

Excludes £8m non foodstore accupiers in supesstore ted assets and £10m Sainsburys Newguay sold post period end
2 Excludes nonfood format stores e g Asda Living
? Exeludes E101m of invesiments held for trading comprising freehold reversions ina peot of Sainsbury s Superstores

Recently completed and commutted developments

Let & Resi Sales
PC Current Caostio Under  ResiEnd Exchanged &
Bl Share Sqft Calendar Value complete ERYV Offer Value Completed
At 31 March 2016 Sector % {ht] Year £m L £m? £m £rn fm
5 Broadygate Offices o0 710 Completed 469 8 192 197 -
Yalding House Offices 60 29 Completed 37 1 19 - -
Whiteley Leisure Fareham Retail 50 57 Completed 12 1 06 0é -
Glasgow Fos t, M&S & Retail Terrace  Retail 75 112 Completed 35 3 20 17 ~
Total Completed in Period 908 553 13 237 15
4 Kingdom Street Offices 160 147 Q2207 81 b4 95 - -
Ctarges Mayfair Mixed Use 160 192 Q4207 404 107 62 - 456 259
Glasgow Fort [MSCP and addicnal
retail/lersure units) Retail 75 12 Q3206 2 5 04 02 -
The Hempel Phase 1 Residential 100 25 Q22006 26 2 - - 50 36
The Hempel Phase 2 Residential 100 37 Q3204 48 12 - - 72 8
Aldgaie Place Phase 1 Residential 30 221 Q7 2016 4é 14 - - 79 55
Total Under Construction 629 605 204 16 1 02 £57 358
Retat Copital Expenditure? 107

Data includes Group s share of properlias in joint ventures and funds [except area which is shown at 100%}
From 1 April 2016

? Estimated headine rental value net of rent payable under head leases lexcluding tenant incentrves)

¢ Capex cormmutted and yndar way within our investmant porticlio relating to leasing and asset management
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Near term pipehne

BL Sgft Start On Total Cost’
At 31 March 2016 Seclor Share 030 Site Em Status
100 Liverpool Sireet Offices )] 520 M7 279 Consented
1 Tritan Square? Oflices 100 217 017 370 Pre-submission
1 Fmnsbury Avenue Offices 50 303 2017 150 Consented
5 Kingdom Street® Offices 100 240 2017 228 Consented
Blossom Sireet Shoreditch Mixed Use 100 340 2017 256 Consented
Plymouth Lesure Retail 100 102 2016 41 Consented
New Mersey Speke - Leisure Reta:l 44 &6 2018 20 Consented
Crawtey Homewares Park Retail 100 52 2016 26 Consented
Aldgate Place Phase 2 Residential 50 145 04 59 Consented
34 The Broadway Ealing Residential 100 34 2016 21 Consented
Total Near term 2,019 1,450
Retall Capital Expenditure* 90
Total cost incleding site value Excludes notional interest as (nferest s capitabised indimduzlly on each development at our capitalisationrate
? Existing net areas scheme in early design stages
* 210000 sq it of which is consented
* Forecast capital commitmeants within cur invesiment portfolio over the next two years relating o leasing and asset ephancemen
Mednun term pipeline
At 31 March 2016 Sector BL Share SL?O% Status
2 -3 Finshury Avenue Offices 50 550 Submitted
Eden Walk Kingston Mixed Use 50 562 Submitted
Canada Water Mastes plan' Mixed Use 100 5580 Pre submission
Forster Square Bradford Phase 3 Retail 00 43 Consented
Meadowhall Lesure Retall a0 330 Pre-submission
Glasgow Fort - Retail Extension Retall 7 60 Consented
Putney High Street Residential 0o " 410 Consented
Total Prospective 7,175
' Assumed nel area based on gross area of up tc 7m sg it
Residennial deyelopment programme
Current Costto Exchangs:;e;
Sqft  No Market PC Datef BL $hare Value come?  EndValye- Completed
At 31 March 2014 oo Units Status % fm fm £m £m
Clarges Mayfair 103 34 Q42017 100 786 83 456 259
Mixed use 103 34 286 88 456 259
The Hempel Phase t 25 15 Q22016 100 2% 2 50 36
The Hempel Phase 2 32 18 Q372016 Ho 48 12 72 8
Aldgate Place Phase 1 N 154 Q22014 50 44 14 bk 3%
Resi-led 278 187 118 28 201 99
Aldgate Place Phase 2 145 Consented 30
54 The Broadway Faling 34 Caonsented 100
Near Term prospective 17%
Total Committed Residential 3 221 404 116 657 358
Dataincludes Group s share of properties in joint ventures and funds {except area which 1s shown at 10053}
' Excluding completed sales
¥ From 1 Aprit 2016 Cost to comglete excludes notionat interest as inlerest is capitalised indmiduatly on each development at our capiialisation rate
' Includes completed units [£22 8m}
* Includes 9 500 sq ft of affordable housing [1i unis)
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Other Informution

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Sustainability performance measures

The data below cavers 98% of our mul-let managed portiolio by vatue [66% of assets under management| and i00% of development projects

Scope
lassets ar
2015/16 201415 i3/14 urmts)

EPRA best practice recommendations on sustainabitity reporting!
Totat electricity consurption IMWh] 172238 171 619 164 038 27109
Total distiict heating and cooling consumption [MWh] 0 0 289 0/0
Total fuel consumption [MWh] 38 234 356399 30,085 45f46
Building energy intensity [kWh per m2) Qifices 26341 27099 26076 34137
Shopping centres 5182 4000 6071 13113
Retarl parks i023 916 937 35/42
Buitding energy intensity [(kWh per workstation or 10 000 wisiters] Offices 5169 5978 5 659 31137
Shopping centies 1276 1488 1740 12/13
Retall parks 238 224 297 33/42
Total direct [Scope 1) greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes L) 7927 7,519 7335 4546
Total indiect {Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions ftonnes CO,e} 38710 42 503 38 619 97163
Greenhouse gas intensity from building energy consumption Offices [gross internal areal G114 015 014 34/37
flonnes COze per m?) Shopping cenires 003 003 003 13/13
Retaif parks 0 006 0006 0003 35/42
Total water consumption [md) 653 490 557041 654 591 68/81
Building water intensity [m? per m?) Offices 074 064 065 32/37
Shopping cenires 036 036 034 112
Retail pai ks 006 Uo7 008 15/22
Burlding water intensity [m? per workstation or 10 000wisitors]  Offices 1376 i4 29 13 67 30/37
Shopping cenlres g 89 878 971 11412
Retail parks 132 194 227 15/22
Totat waste by dispasal route [tonnes and %] Recycled 14 533 (68 6%} 12 541 (67 4%] 13 059 [66%] 60760
incinel ated 6,522 {30 8%} 5 437 (29 2%] 5 306 (27%] 60/60
Landfilled 13410 6%} 615{3 3%  1465(7%] 60/80
Sustainably certrfied assets - Energy Performance AtoB 30% 22% - 2349/2 856
Ceruficates [% by value] CE 7% 75% - 2369/2 856
FloG 3% 3% - 2 369/2 856
2015/16 Scape

Additional sustainability data in year one of our five-year strategy
Wellbeing Employee score for our offices supporung their wellbeing B7% -
Wellbeing Visitor score for the shopping experience 42/5 29/53
Commumty Britsh Land employee volunteering 84% ai07
Communy Cornimunily proge amme as & percentage of pre-tax profits 0 63% 91/107
Community Communitly programme beneficiaries 79482 g1/107
Future proofing Developments on track to achieve BREEAM Excellent for offices and Excellent o1 Very Good forretail 82% 117
Future proofing Landlos d ener gy reduction versus 2009 hndex score 38% [62/100) 75/78
Future proofing Carbon [scope 1 and 2] reduction versus 2009 lindex score) 40% [60100) 75/78
Future proofing Partfolio at high nisk of flood 5% 267273
Future proofing Energy generation [MWh] 1126 8/9
Skills and opportunity Employees paid Living Wage Foundation wage 100% -
Skilts and oppertunity Supplier warkforce paid Living Wage Foundation wage at our properties 72% B9/101
Skills and opportumty Supply chain spend within 25 mdes of our p1operties 49% 59/108
Skills and opporturity Suppher workforce living within 25 miles of our places 57% 108/120

' As per EPRA besi practice recommendatrons total energy and water data covers energy and water procured by Brilsh Land Energy water and carbonintensity data

covers whole butlding usage for Qéfices and common parts usage for shopping centres and retar parks

For more detaded data on all these indiator s and additional indicalors please see our Sustainability Accounts 2016 www britishland com/data
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TEN YEAR RECORD

The 1able below surmmarses the last ten year s resulls cash flows and balance sheets

2014 2015 2014 03 202 2011 2010 9 2037
£€m £m Em Em £m £m tm fm £ £m
Income’
Gross rental income 554 418 397 567 572 541 581 650 709 706
Met rental income 420 585 562 541 Q46 518 545 598 667 661
Net fees and other incame 17 17 15 13 17 18 15 20 40 50
Interest expense (net) {180) 201] [202) 1206} (218) (2124 1246} {292} {3501 (370)
Administ ative expense 194) {88) {78] (78] {76 {681 [65] (58] {73) (84)
Underlying Profit 343 313 297 274 269 256 249 268 284 257
Exceptional costs
[not included in Under lying Profit]é - - - - - - - {1191 - [305)
Dwvidends dectared 287 2717 266 234 23t 231 225 198 179 107
Summansed batance sheets
Total proper ties at valuabion'? 14,648 134677 12040 10499 10337 G572 8539 8625 13471 16903
Net debt {4,765} (4918) {a890) [6266] f4690) {4173 40811 (4941 (6413) {7741
Other assets and babilites 191 276 123 1266 (264 {298 151} [297] 122} {300}
EPRA NAV/Fully dituted adjusted net assets 10,074 9035 7927 5967 5381 5101 4 407 3387 6936 8862
Cash fiow movement - Group only
Cash generated from operations 34 318 243 197 2n 187 248 406 477 494
Cash outflow from operations (47] (33} (24} (7) (3] 28 [112] 201) £295) {275
Net cash wnilow from operating activitres 2%4 285 219 190 206 210 134 205 182 219
Cash inftow foutflow] fiom capital expenditure
investments acquisitions and disposals 230 (111 t660) (202} (5471 {249) fa9) 418 857 {54)
Equity devidends paid (235] {228) 159] {2031 {212 139] [154) (188) 161 {99
Cash |outflow] infiow from
management of liguid resources and financing 283] 20 407 213 630 157 [485] (581 (8361 {11
Increase ldecrease} in cash é {34) 7 (2} 77 fi2) 1542) 377 48 63
Capstal returns
Growth In nel assels? 1M5% 2846% 178% 109% 55% 197%  301%  IS11%)  (2148%) 13 6%
Total rewurnt 142% 245% 200% 45% 95% 177% 335%  [616%F [181%) 143%
Total return - pre-exceptional 42% 245% 200% 4 5% 9 5% 177% 335% [603% {1B1%) 213%
Per share information’
EPRA net asset value per share 919p 829p 688p 396p 5%5p 56/p S04p 3P8p 11i4p  139%p
Mernorandum
Dividends declared in the year 28 Lp 217p 270p 26 4p 261p 26 0p 26 0p 298p 290p 169
Eiwvidends paid m the year 28 0p 273p 267p 263p 256 0p 25 0p 273p 30 0p 26 7p 4 4p
Oiluted earmings
Underlying EPRA earmings per share 34 1p 30 &p 294p 303p 297p 285p  284p 41 0p 44 3p 359
IFRS earmngs (losst per share 1261p  1673p  HM0Zp J15p  53Bp  952p 1324p (614 tp] [2530p) 389 4p
' Includirg share of joint ventures and funds
? Represents movement in dilutad EPRA NAY
* Inctuding surplus over book vatue of trading and development properties
* Including exceptional finance costs in 2007 £305 mutlior and 2009 £119 million
® 2008 restated for IFRS The UK GAAR atcaunis shows gross rental income of £628 milbion and Undertying Prof ef £175 milboa
* Represents movermnen: in cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movements in cash under UK GAAP
T Adjusted for the nghts tssue of 341 mallion shares in March 2009
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Other information

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Finaneial calendar

2016
Fourth quarter ex-dvidend date 30 June 2016
Fourth quarter dividend payment date 5 August 2016
2017
First quarter Trading Siatement 18 July 2016

First quarter ex-dwdend date
Ftrst quarter dwidend payment date

6 Qctober 2016
11 November 2014

Half year resulis 16 November 2016
Second quarter ex-dividend date January 2017
Second quarter dwvidend paymenti date February 2017
Thu d quarter Trading Statement January 2077
Third quarter ex-dividend date March/April 2017
Third quarter dividend payment date May 2017
Full year results May 2017
Fourth quarter ex-divadend date June/July 2017

Fourth quarter dwrdend payment dale

August 2017

The Board witl announce the avaitability of 2 Scrip Alternative for each dividend 1f offered wia the Regulatory News Service and on the Group s
website www britishland com nalater than four business days hefore each ex-dividend date For the tourth quarter dividend of 2016 the Board

expects to announce the split between PID and non-PID inceme at the same ume Any Scrip Alternative will not be enhanced

Analvsis of shareholders — 31 March 2016

Number Balance as
Range of hotdings % at 31 March 2016 %
1-1 000 8367 5418 4 024 681 039
1,001-5 000 5257 34 04 11211 850 109
5001-20 000 920 596 8 459 556 084
20 001-50000 270 175 8 654 309 084
90 001-Highest 628 407 996 745 682 6 B4
Total 12 442 10000 1029296078 10000

Nurnber Balance as
Holder type of holders % at 31 March 2016’ %
Individuats 6693 4334 11942 035 116
Nominee and inshiiutional investors 8 749 56 66 1017354 043 98 84
Total 15 442 10000 1029296 078 100 00

' Excluding 11 266 245 shares held in treasury
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Registrars

Brinsh Land s Share Registrar Equimu Linnted
[Equaniti) can be contacted at Aspect House
Spencer Road Lancing West Sussex

BN9% 4DA

The Shareholder Helplines 0371384 2143
Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday
to Friday The general enquinies number for
overseas callersis +44 {01121 415 7047

Equiniy s websile 1s www shareview co uk
Registering on this sile will enable you to

- view your British Land shareholding online

- update your details and

- opt to receive shareholder mailings
electronically

Equinti 1s also the Registr ar for the 8LD
Property Holdings Lumuted Stock

Bank of New York [oper ating through Capita)
British Land s Debentures Registrar can be
contacted at The Reqgistry 34 Beckenham
Road Beckenham Kent BR3IATU

The Bondholder Enquiry Linets 0871 664 (1300
Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network
extras Linesare open from 9 00amto 5 30pm
Monday to Friday

Share dealing serviice

Equeniti offers Shareview a service which
allows UK residents to buy or sell

British Land shares

UK residents can deat in British Land shares
on the internet er by phone Log on to

www shareview co uk/dealing or catl

0845 6037037 between 8 30am and 4 30pm
Monday to Friday for mare infermation about
Shareview and for details of the rates If you
are an existng sharehotder you will need your
shareholder 1eference number which appears
on your share cer bificate

Dvidends

As a REIT Briush Land pays Property
Income Distribution [PID] and non-Properiy
Income Distributton [non-PIDl dwdends
More information on REITs and PIDs can

be found n the glossary on page 202 or

iy the Investors sectron of our wehsite at
www britishland com/dividends

Bisuish Land diwdends can be paid directly
into yaur bank or building society account
instead of being despatched to you by cheque
More information about the benefits of having
diidends paid directly into your hank or
budding saciety account and the mandate
farm to set this up can be found in the
Investors section of our wehsite at

www britishland com/dividends

Scenp Baidend Scheme

Bribsh Land ofiers the opportunity to
participate in the Scrip Dividend Scheme
frorn ime to ime which enables participaling
shareholders to receive sharesinstead of
cashwhen a Scrip Alternative 1s offered for
a particulai dividend For more information
and for details of how to sign up o the Scrip
Dividend Scheme please visit the Investors
section of our website at

www britishiand com/dwvidends/
scrip-dividend-scheme

Honcrary President

Sir John Ritblat became Managing Director of
Briush Land in 1970 and Chairman in 1971 He
1retired from the Board in December 2006 and
was appointed Honorary President in
recogrittan of his work buitding Briish Land
into the industry leading company it 1s today

Website and shareholder communications

The British Land cor poraie website contains a
wealth of materiat for sharehalders including
the current share price press releases and
wformation on among other things REITs and
dwidends The website can be accessed at
www britishland com

it you cuirently receive paper copres of
shareholder communications you may prefer
to recemve electronic copies via the British Land
wehsite instead When a document 1s produced
for shareholders you will 1 ecewe an email
cantaineng a bink directly 1o the new document

If your would bike further information or
would Uke to elect for website delivery of
shareholder communications please visit
www shareview co uk of telephone the
Shareholder Helpline
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Annuat General Meeting

The Annual Generat Meeting of The

British Land Company PLC witt be

held at The Montcalrn London Marble Airch
34-40 Great Cumberland Place London
WIH 7TW on 19 July 2016 at 11 00am

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares
the vatue of which makes it uneconomic to sell
them may wish to consider donating them to
the charity ShareGift i eqistered charity
1052686] which spectalises in using such
holdings far charitable benefit

A ShareGift transter form can be obtained
from Equinmiti

For fus ther information coantact

ShareGift

17 Carilon House Terrace
London SW1Y 5AH

Telephone +44 {0120 79303737
Website www sharegift org

Unsolicited mail

On1equest Briush Land 1s tegatly required to
make 11s share register avalable to other
organisations The Mailing Preference Service
15 anindependent orgarisation offer ing free
services 1o help reduce the amount of
unsoltcited mait you 1 eceive

Formore information orto register vistt
www mpsontine org uk

Registered office
The Briush Land Company PLC s registered
officets

York House

45 Seymour Street

Londan WHH 70X

Tetephone +&4 [0)20 7486 4466
Fax +44 (012079355552
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debt is the Group net debt and

the Group s share of joint venture and funds net
debt excluding the mark-io-market on effective
cash flow hedges and related debt adpsiments
and non-contrelling interests A reconciliation
between Group net debt and adjusted net debt
isincluded in Table Awathin the supplementary
disclosures

Annualised rent 1s the g1 oss praperty rent
recewvable on a cash basis as at the reporting
date Additionaliy 1tincludes the external
valuers estimate of additional rent in respect of
unseitledent review turnover rent and sundry
income such as that from car parks and
cornmet cialisation less any ground rents
payable under head leases

Assets under management is the full value

of all asseis owned and managed by British
Land and includes 100% of the value of alt jomnt
ventures and funds

BREEAM [Butding Research Establshment
Environmental Assessment Method} assesses
the sustainability of bulldings against a range
of social and environmental criteria

Capital return s calculated as the change

in capital value of the UK portiolie less any
capital expenditure incurced expressed as

a percentage of capital employed [start value
plus capttal expenditur ej over the perod

as calculated by IPD Capstal returns are
calculated monihly and indexed 1o provide

a return gver the retevant period

Capped rents are rents subject to a maximum
{evel of uplift at the specified rent reviews as
agreed at the time of letung

Collar rents are renls subject to a minimum
level of uplift a1 the specified rent reviews as
agreed at the time of letting

Contracted rent 1s the annualised rent
adjusting for the mnclusion of rent subject
torent-free periods

Customer satisfaction mcludes consurmer s
aswell as occuprers Thrs mcludes exit survey
data for censumer satisfaction in the retail
bustiness as well as office and retail occupier
satisfaction scores and in future we ammn to
be ahle to fur ther expand to include consumer
satisfaction for other sectors
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Developer s profitis the profit on cost
estimated by the valuers that a developer
would expect The developer s prohit 1s typcally
calculated by the valuers to be a percentage

of the estimated total development costs
including land and notional finance costs

Development uplift 1s the total increase

in the value (after taking account of capital
expenditur e and capitalised interest] of
properties held for development during the
pered Italsoncludes any developer s profit
recognised by valuers in the period

Development costs the 1otal cost of
construction of a project to completion
excluding site values and hnance costs ffinance
costs are assumed by the voluers ata notionat
rate of 5% per annum)

EPRA s the European Public Real Estate
Association the industry hody for
European REITs

EPRA Cost Ratio [including direct vacancy
costs] s the ratio of net overheads and
operating expenses against gross rental
income fwith both amounts excluding greund
rents payable] Net overheads and operating
expenses relate to all admumstrative and
operating expenses including the shate of joint
ventures overheads and operating expenses
net of any service fees recharges or other
wncome spectiically intended (o cover overhead
and propei iy expenses

EPRACost Ratio [excluding direct vacancy
costs) 1s the ratio calculated above but with
direct vacancy cosis 1 emoved from net

overhieads and operating expenses balance

EPRA earnings i1s the IFRS pr of it after taxation
allributable to shareholders of the Company
excluding investment and development

proper ty revatuations gans/losses on
nvesting and trading property dispesals
changes m the far value of financial
instruments and associated close-out costs
and thetr related taxation These itens are
presented Iin the capital and other colurnn of the
Income staterstent A reconciliahon between
profit atiributable to shareholdes s of the
Comnpany and EPRA earnings s included in
Table B wathin the Supptementary hsclosures

EPRA NAV per share 1s EPRA NAV divided by
the dituted number of shares at the period end
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EPRA netasset value [EPRANAV] isa
proportionally consolidaled measure
representing the IFRS net assels excluding the
mar k-to-market on effective cash flow hedges
and related debt adjustments the mark-to-
market on the convertible bonds as well as
deferred taxation on properly and denvative
valuations {t includes the valuation surplus

on trading properties and is adjusted for the
dilutive impact of share aptions and the

£400 rmullion converiible bond maturing in 2017
Areconciliation between IFRS net assets and
EPRA NAV s included in Table B within the
Supplementary Disclosures

EPRA net imitial yreld 1s the annuatised

rents gener ated by the portiolio after the
deduction of an estimate of annual recuriing
wrrecover able property oulgoings expressed
as a percentage of the por tfolio valuation
{adding notienal purchaser s costs] excluding
development and residential properties

EPRA NNNAV s the EPRA NAV adjusted to
reflect the faw value of debt and derwatives and
toinctude deferred taxation on revaluations

EPRA Topped-Up Net Initial Yield 15 the current
annualised rent net of costs topped-up for
contracted uphits where these are not in heu
of rental growth expressed as a percentage of
capital value after adding notional purchasers
costs excluding devetopment and tesidential
propertres

EPRAvacancy rate s the estimated market
rental value [ERY) of vacant space divided by
ERV of the whole portfolio excluding
devetopments and residential property

Estimated Rental Value [ERV} 15 the extet nal
valuers opimion as to the open market rent
which on the date of vatuation could reasonably
be expected to be obtained on a new letung or
rei review of a property

ERV growth 15 the change i ERV overa

petiod on the standing investment properties
expressed as a percentage of the ERV at the
start of the period £RV growth s caleulated
monthly and compounded for the period subject
to measurement as calculated by IPD

Fair value movement 1s an accounting
adjustment to change the hook value of
an asset of Liability to its market value

Footfallis the annualised number of
visitors entering our assets

Footfall grewth movenrent in footfatt against
the same period tn the prior year on praper ties
owned throughout both comparable periods
aggregated at 100% share




Gross investment activity as measured by
our share of acquisitions sales and investment
1n commitied development

Gross rental income 1S the gross accounting
rent recevable {quoted either for the pertod or
on an annualised basis) prepared under IFRS
which requires that rental income irom fixed/
mimmum guaranteed rent reviews and tenant
Incentives 1s spread on a straight-line basis
over the enlire lease lo first break This can
resultin incame bemng recognised ahead of
cash flow

Groupis The British Land Company PLC and
11s subsidiaries and excludes its share of joint
ventures and funds [where not treated as a
subsidiary] on a line-by-line basis (1 e nat
proportionally consolidated]

Headline rent 15 the cantracted gross rent
receivable which becomes payable after a!l the
tenant incentives in the leiting have expired

IFRS are the Intei national Financiat Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

Income return is calculated as net income
expressed as a percentage of capital employed
over the period as calculated by IPD Income
returns are calculated monthly and indexed

to provide a return aver the relevant period

interest cover is the number of times net
interest payable 1s covered by Undertying Profnt
hefor e net interest payable and taxation

iPD1s Investment Property Databank Ltd
which produces independent benchmar ks
of property returns and British Land UK
pot tlolio 1eturns

Lettings and {ease renewals are comparad
both to the previous passing rent as at the start
of the financial year and the LRV immediately
prior to leting Both campansons are made

on anet effective basis

Letling performance against ERV comparison
of achieved leting lerms on {ong term letings
and renewals agamnst valuation assumplions on
ltke-for-like space catculated ona net effective
basis aggregated at 100% share

Leverage see loan to value {LTV]

Like-for-like rentat income growth 1s the
growth in net s entat income on properties
owned threughout the current and previous
pertods under review This growth rate includes
revente recogmtion and tease accounting
adjustmeants but excludes properties held for
development i either period and properties
with guaranteed rent reviews

Loan to value ILTV] is the rauo of principal
vdlue of gross debt less cash short term
deposits and ligusd investments io the
aggieqate value of properties and mvestments

Managed pertfolio consists of mults let
proper ties where we have control of lacilires
and utititie s management

Mark-to-market 15 the difference between
the book value of an asset or iabilsty and its
market value

Multi-channel retailing 1s the use of a

variety of channels in a customer s shopping
experience including research belore a
purchase Such channels include retait

stores online stores mobile stores mobile app
stores telephone sales and any other method
of transacting with a customer Transacting
includes browsing buying returreng as well

as pre- and post-sale service

Net Developmaent Value is the estimated end
value of a development ptoject as deterrmined
by the exter nal valuers for when the building
1s compieted and fully let [taking mto account
tenant incentives and notionat purchaser s
costsl H s based on the valuers view on ERVs
ytelds letting voids and tenant incenlives

Net effective rent 1s the contracted gross rent
recewvable taking in1o account any rent-free
penod or other tenant incentives The
incentives are treated as a cost-to-rent

and spread over the lease to the earliest

ter mination date

Net equivalent yield is the weighted average
income retut n [after adding notional
purchaser s costs) a proper ty wiil produce
based upon the ming of the ncome receved
In eccordance with usual practice the
equivalent yrelds (as determuned by the
external valuers| assume 1 ent s recetved
annually tn arrears

Net Initial Yield 1s the current annuatised
rent net of costs expressed as a percentage
of capital value after addmg notionat
purchaser s cosls

Net rentat tncome 1s the rentat inceme
recevable in the penod after payment of direct
properly outgoings which typically comprise
ground rents payable undet head leases vond
costs nel service charge expenses and other
direcl yrecoverable property expenses Net
rental ncome s guoted on an accounting basis
Net rental income wilt differ irom annuabised
net cash rents and passing rent due to the
effects of incorme from rent reviews net
properly outgorngs and accounting adjustments
for fixed and mimmum contr acted rent reviews
and lease incentives

Net reversionary yield is the anttcepaied yield
to which the nttial yeeld wall rise lor tall] once
the rentreaches the estmated rentat value

Occupancy rate is the estimated rental

value of let units as a percentage of the total
estimated rental value of the por tfolic excluding
development and residential properties It
includes accommadatien under otfer subject to
asset managamenl {where they have been taken
vack for refurbishment and are not available to
let as at the balance sheet date] ar occupied by
the Group

Omne-channel retaling s the evolution of
rulti-channel retating but is concentrated
more on a seamless approach io the consumer
exnerience through all avaitable shopping
channels s ¢ molnle internet devices
computers bricks and mortar television

radio direct mail catalogue etkc

Over rented I1s the ter i used to describe when
the contiacted rentis above the estimaled
rental value fERV)

Overall topped-up netimitial yield is the
EPRA topped-up Met Iniial Yield adding all
contracted uplifts to the annuatised rents }
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Other information

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Passing rent 1s the gross rent less any ground
rent payable under head leases

Property Income Distributions [PiDs] are
profits distiibuted lo shareholders which are
subject to tax in the hands of the shareholders
as property income PlDs are normally paid
nei of withholding tax cur rently at 20% which
the REIT pays 1o the tax authorties on hehalf
ol the sha ehalder Certain lypes of shareholder
[t e penswon fundsl are lax exempt and receive
P1Ds without withholding tax RE!Ts alse pay
out notmal dividends called non-PlDs

which are taxed in the same way as dividends
received from non-REIT compames these
are not subject to withholding taxand for UK
indwvidual shareholders qualify for the tax

free dvidend allowance

Portfolio valuation 1s reporied by the
Group s external valuers tn accordance
with usual practice they report valuations
net after the deduction of the notronal
purchaser s costs inctuding stamp duty
land tax agent and legal fees

Propertionally consolidated measures include
the Group s share of joint ventures and funds
and exclude non-controlling interests in the
Group s subsidianes

Rack rented is the term used to describe when
the contracted rentisin line with the estimated
rental vatue [ERV] implymg a nil reversion

Rent-free period see Tenant [or lease)
meentives

REITs are proper ty companies that allow
people and organisalions to mwvest in
commercial property and (eceive benefils

as if they directly owned the properties
themselves The rental income after costs

15 passed directly to shareholders in the form
of dwvidends fnthe UK REITs are required 10
disiribute at least $0% of their tax exempt
proper tyincome 1o shareholder s as dvidends
As aresult over time a significant proportion
of the total return for shai eholdersis likely to
come from dridends The effect is that 1axation
ismoved from the corporaie level to the
investor level as investor s are bable for

tax as i they owned the property directly
Brtish | and became a REIT in fanuary 2007

Rent reviews take place at intervals agreed in
the lease ltymcally every five years) and their
purpose 1s usually to adiust the rent to the
current market level at the review date For
upwards-only rent reviews the rent will either
remain at the same level or increase fif market
rents have increased) at the 1 eview date
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Rents with fixed and mmmimum uplifts are
either where rents are subject {o contracted
uplifts at a level agreed at the time of letting
or where the rent rs subject to an agreed
mmmum tevel of upbit at the specified

rent review

Retailer sales growth mavement i retaiter
sales against the same period i the prior
year on occupiers pt oviding sales data
throughout both comparable perods
aggregated al 108% share

Retail planning consents are separated
between Al AZ and A3 - as set out sn The Town
and Country Planning [Use Classes] Order
Within the Al category Open Al permission
allows for the majority of types of retart
including tashion to he accommaodated while
Restiicted Al permission places lumuts on the
types of retail that can operate [for example

4 restrichion that only bulky goods operators
are allowed to trade at that site)

Class Descnption Use for all/any of the following

purposes

A1 Shops Shops retailwarehouses
handresset s underiakers
travel and ticket agencies
postoffices petshaps
sandwich bars showrcoms
demesuc hire shops dry
cleaners funerat directors
and intes net cafes

A2 Financial and Financial services such
professional as banks and bulld:ng
Services socleties professional

services [other than health
and medical servicesl
mncluding estate and
employment agencies

It does not include betting
offices or pay day loan shops
- these are now classed as
SUIgENelS Uses

For the sale of tood and

A3 Reslaurants

and cafes drink for consumption on
the premises - restauvrants
snack hars and cafes
D2  Assembly  Cinermnas music and concert
and ieisure  halls bingoand dance halls

{but not mught clubs]
swimming beths skating
rinks gymnasiums oF areas
for mdoor or outdoor sports
and recr eations

Reversian 1s the increase in rent estimated by
the external valuers where the passing rentis
helow the esumated rental value The mereases
i rent arise on rent reviews and letung of
vacant space oi 1e-letting of expines
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Scrip dvidend Brilish Land tnay offer its
shai eholders the opportunily io recewve
dividends in the ferm of shares instead

of cash Thisis known as a Scrip dividend

Standing mvestments are assets which are
directly held and notin the course of or held
for devetopment

Tenant lor lease) incentives are mcentives
ofiered to occupiers to enternto a lease
Typicatly tms watl be an imtial rent-iree period
or a cash contribution to fit-out Under
accounting rules the value of lease Incentives
1s amortised through the income staternent
on a straight-line basis to the earliest lease
termination date

TMT stands for technology media and
tetecommumnications

The residual site value of a development is
calculaled as the estimated Inet] development
value less development profit all development
construction costs finance costs fassumed at
anotional rate] of a project to comptelion and
notional site acqusiion costs Theresidual

1s deterrmined to be the current site value

Topping out Is a traditional construction
ceremony to mai k the occasion when
the structure of the builthing reaches
the hughest point

Total property return is calculated as the
change i caprtal value less any capital
expenditure incurred plus net income
expressed as a percentage of capiial empioyed
ave: the period as catculated by 1°0 Total
property returns are calculated maonthly

and indexed to provide a return over the
relevant pertod

Total return {total accounting return)] 1s the
growth in EPRA NAV per shate plus dividends
paid and this can be expressed as a perceniage
of EPRA NAV per shar e al the begianing of

the periad

Total shareholder return s the growth in value
of a shareholding over a specified period
assurmng dividends ar e reinvested to purchase
additional units of stack

Total Tax Contribution 1s a more
camprehensive view of tlax contributions than
the accountancy-defined tax figure quoted In
mast {inanciai statements It comprises taxes
and levies paid directly as well as {axes
collected from others which we administered

Turnover rents s where all or a portion
of the rent 1s Linked to the sales ortut nover
of the orcupier




Under rented is the term used Lo describe
when the contracted : entis below the
estimated rental value [ERV] implying a
pasitive reversion

Underlying earnings per share (EPS] consists
of Undertying Proiit after tax divided by the
diluled weighted average number of shares
inssue during the period

Underlying Profit i1s the pre-1ax EPRA earnings
measure with addiianal Company adjustments
No Company adjustments were made in either
the cui rent or prior year

Valuation uplift s the increase in the portfolio
vatuation and sales receipls of properties sold
during the peried net of capitat expenditure
capitalised interest and development team
costs and transaction costs incurred
expressed as a percentage of the partfolio
valuation at the stari of the period plus net
capital expenditure capitabsed interest and
development team costs and transaction costs

Virtual freehold repr esents a long leasehold
tenure far a persod of up 10 999 years A
peppercorn or nominal renl s patd annually

Weighted average debt maturity - each
tranche of Group debt 1s multiplied by the
remaining period to 1is maturity and the sum
of the resulis 1s divded by total Group debt in
1ssue at the pertod end

Weighted average interest rate s the Group
loan interest and net der ivative cosls per
annum at the peried end divided by totat
Group debt v 1ssue at the period end

Weighted average unexpired lease term s

the average lease terrn remaiming to hirst break
or expiry across the portlolio weighted by
conti acted rent excluding development and
tesidential prope: ties

Yield compresston occurs when the net
eguivalent yield of o property decreases
measured in basis ponls

Yield on cost s the estimated annual rent of
the comnpleted develapment divided by the total
cost ol development inctuding site value and
notional finance costs 1o the pont of assumed
rent commencernent expressedasa
percentage return

Yteld shiftss a movernent [usually expressed
w1 bps) in the net equivatent yield of a property
asset or like-for-like portfolio over a given
period weighted by net capital value Yield
compression 1s a commonty-used term for

a reductian in yrelds
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Forward-tooking statements

Ttus Press Release contains certain forward-looking staternenis Such
statements reflect curient views on armong otherthings our mar kets
activilies projections obgectives and prospects Such forward looking
statements can somettmes but not always be identified by their reference
10 a date or point in the future or theuse of farward-looking terminology
mcluding terms such as believes estimales anticipates expects
forecasts intends due plans projects goal outlook schedule
target aim may blkelyto will would could should orswmilar
expressions orin each case thetr negative or other varrations or comparable
terrinology By their nature forward-looking statements involve inherent
risks assumptiens and uncertainties because they relste to future events
and depend on circumstances which may ot may not occur and may be
heyond our ability te control or predict Forward-tooking statements should
be regarded with caution as actual 1esults may differ matenally from those
expressed in or smplied by such statements

linportant tactors that could cause actual results performance or
achievements of British Land to differ matenially from any outcomes or
resulls expressed orimplied by such forwar d- looking statements include
armong other things. [a) general business and political social and economic
conditions gtabally (bj the outcorne and consequences ol the referendum on
Britain leaving the EU el industry and market irends including demand in
the property nvestinent market and property price volatiity] id) competition
led the bebaviour of other market participants [f] changes in government and
other regulation mcluding m relation to the envirenment health and satety
and taxation in particular in respect of British Land s status as a Real Estate
Investment Trust) [g) inflairan and consumer confidence k] tabour relations
and wor k stoppages il natural disasters and adverse weather conditions

(i} terrorism and acts of war (k] British Land s overatl business sirategy

risk appetite and investment choices in its partfolio management HHegal

or other praceedings aganst or affecting British Land {m} reliable and
secure [T ntrastructure [n) changes in occuprer demand and tenant defauli
{o) changes in inancial and equity mar kets including interest and exchange
rate fluciuations {p) changes m accousting practices and the interpretation
of accounting standards and [g) the avadabilty and cost of linance The
Company s principal risks ar e described n greater detail in the section

of this Press Release headed Managing risk s delivering our st ategy
Forward-looking statements in this Press Release or the Briush Land
website or made subsequently which are attributable to BratishiLand or
persons acting on tts behalf should therefore be construed i hight of

all such factors

Informatian contained tn this Press Release 1elating to Briush Land orits
share price or ithe yiekd an its shares are not guarantees of and should not

be relied upon as anandicator of future performance and nothing inthis
Piess Release should be construed as a profit forecast Any torward looking
statements made by or on behall of Brish Land speak only as of the date they
are made Such forward-looking siaternents are expressly qualifted in their
enlirety by the factors referred lo above and no representation assurance
guarantee or warranty 15 given in relation to them lwhether by British Land

or any of is assaciates Drectors officers employees oradvisers] including
as ta their comnpleteness accuracy or the basts on which they were prepared

Other than 1n accordance wath our legal and regulatory obligations including
under the UK Financial Conduct Authority s Listing Rules and Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rutes] British Land does nat intend or underiake ta
update or revise forward-locking statements to rellect any changes in Britsh
t and s expectations with regatd ther eto or any changes ininforination
events condstions or circumstances on which any such staterment 1s based
This document shall not under any circumstances create any implication
that there has been no change In the business or affairs of Briush Land since
the date of this document or that the information contained herein is correct
as at any time subsequent 1o is dale
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